

dataco

lor

c o m





Preface

Datacolor MATCH^{Textile TM}

User' Guide Version 1.0 english February 2005

All efforts have been made to ensure the accuracy of this Guide. However, should any errors be detected, Datacolor would greatly appreciate being informed of them. Changes are periodically made to the information and will be incorporated in new editions of the guide.

Datacolor reserves the right to make improvements and/or changes in the product(s) and/or program(s) described in this guide at any time.

Copyright © 2005 Datacolor. All rights reserved. This guide may not be reproduced or copied, in whole or in part, without the written permission of Datacolor.

Trademarks

Throughout this manual, trademarks are used. Rather than place a trademark symbol at every occurrence of a trademark name, we state here that we are using the names in an editorial fashing with no intention of infringement the trademark.

Address

Datacolor Brandbachstr. 10 CH-8305 Dietlikon/Zürich Telephone: + (41) 44 835 38 00

Contents

Preface

Contents

1 About

About this Guide	
Who Should Use this Guide?	
How to Use This Guide	1-2
Type Styles and Symbols	1-3

2 Overview

Basic Data	2-2
Quality/Style	
Product	2-3
Customer	2-3
Color Type	2-3
Colorant Set	2-4
Combined Process	2-6
Recipe Calculation (Matching)	2-7
SmartMatch	2-8
Correction	2-9
Fast Correction	2-10
Input of SmartMatch Points	2-10

3 Installation

Supported Operating Systems	3-2
Installing Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile}	3-2
Updating Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile}	3-3
Datacolor Security System	3-4
New Installations	
Existing Installation	3-5
What Happens if the Software Security Key Stops Working?	3-5
What Happens if the User Changes Computers?	3-5
Upgrading Your Purchase	3-5
Removing Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile}	3-6

Configuration and Administration

User Administration	
Specifying, Modifying and Deleting User's Data	
Changing the Password	
Access Rights	4-3
Browser Customizing	4-6
Browse Filters	
Using Browse Filters	
Disabling Browse Filters	
Exporting and Sending Browse Filters Importing Browse Filters	
Importing Browse Filters directly from the E-mail	
Defining Units	
Options	
Import and Export	
Exporting Data	
Importing Data	
Importing Colorant Sets	
Importing and Exporting Samples as QTX Files	4-16
Backing Up Using Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile}	4-16
Backing Up Using Sybase Utilities	4-17
Backing Up Using Sybase Central	
Backing Up A Running Database	
Backing Up A Database File or A Running Database The dbbackup Command	
Importing and Exporting Print Forms (Tools Menu)	
Exporting Print Forms (Tools Menu)	
Importing Print Forms (Tools Menu)	
ASCII Output (Option)	
Specifying ASCII Forms	
ASCII Output of Recipes	
ASCII Output of Basic Data	
Calibrating the Monitors Using Datacolor SPYDER2	4-24
Sending E-mails	
Mailing Basic Data, Lab Dye Lots, Colorant Sets	
Mailing Recipe Tables	
Specifying Print Forms Using the Pager	
Starting the Pager Specifying A New Print Form	
Modifying A Print Form	
Deleting or Renaming A Print Form	
Importing Print Forms	
Exporting Print Forms	
Customizing Graphs	
Setting Colors for Graphs	
Setting Line Style and Color	4-31

Basics	{
Starting Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile}	5
Data Handling	
Browse and Selecting	
Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects	5
Calibration and Measurement	
Calibrating Your Spectrophotometer	5
UV Calibration	
Instrument Correlation	է
Green Tile Test	!
Measurement	!
Manual Input and Modification of Samples	!
Manual Input of Samples	
Modification of Samples	
Specifying Basic Data	
Recommended Sequence of Basic Data Input	
Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Quality/Style	
Specifying A New Quality/Style	
Excluding/Including Colorant Sets from/into An Affinity	
Substrate Delivery: Example	
Substrate Delivery with Colorant Set Dependent Effects	
Using SmartMatch Points for other Qualities	
Overwriting Measurements of Substrate Deliveries	
Modifying and Deleting A Quality/Style	
Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Product	
Specifying A New Product	
Modifying and Deleting A Product	
Specifying A Stock Solution	
Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Dye Process	
Specifying A New Dye Process	
Modifying and Deleting A Dye Process	
Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Dye Class	
Specifying A New Dye Class	
Modifying and Deleting A Dye Class	
Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Customers	
Specifying A New Customer	
Modifying and Deleting A Customer	
Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Parameters	
Specifying A Parameter	
Modifying and Deleting A Parameter	
Parameter Examples	
Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Color Type	
Specifying A New Color Type	
Modifying and Deleting A Color Type	
Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances	
Specifying A New Tolerance	
Displaying Datacolor Tolerance Values	
Modifying and Deleting Tolerance Values	

Specifying Colorant Sets	5-47
Introduction	5-47
Specifying A Colorant Set	5-48
Auxiliary Recipes	5-49
Specifying Colorants and Calibration Samples	5-50
Re-measure, Deleting or Move Calibration Samples	5-51
Moving Colorants	
Using the Graphical Display	
Remove A Dyestuff from A Colorant Set	
Specifying A Colorant Set for An Alternate Substrate	
Completing An Imported Textile Printing Colorant Set	
Comparing Colorants	
Specifying Combined Processes	
Introduction	
Specifying, Modifying, Deleting A Combined Process	
Specifying, Modifying, Deleting An Operation	
Specifying Formulae	
Recipe Calculation (Matching)	
Introduction	
Calculation of A New Recipe Series	
Preliminary Work	
Settings for Recipe Match	
Matching	
Modifying Recipes	
Recipe Editor	
Manual Recipe Modification (Recipe Table)	
Round the Dyestuff Concentration (Recipe Table)	
Replace Dyestuffs in Recipes	5-82
Printing Recipe Lists	5-84
Approving	
Recipes Inserted Manually by Datacolor PROCESS	5-84
SmartMatch	
Introduction	
Automatic SmartMatch Maintenance	
Reviewing SmartMatch Points	
Release SmartMatch Points from the Group	
Saving A Batch as A Sample	
Manual Input of SmartMatch Points	
Manual Input of SmartMatch Points together with the Recipe	
Correction	
Introduction	
Laboratory Correction	
Specifying Theoretical Reflectance Values	
Production Correction	
Production Correction (Access from Datacolor PROCESS)	
Fast Correction	
Manual Graphical Correction	
Search and Correct An Existing Recipe for A New Standard	

5-104 5-106 5-106 5-106 5-110 5-112 5-112 5-115 5-115 5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-126 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-105 5-106 5-110 5-110 5-112 5-112 5-115 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-106 5-110 5-112 5-114 5-115 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-106 5-110 5-112 5-114 5-115 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-112 5-114 5-115 5-115 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-120 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-114 5-114 5-115 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-120 5-120 5-121 5-122 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-115 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-120 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-115 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-120 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-115 5-117 5-117 5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-120 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-119 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-117 5-118 5-118 5-118 5-119 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-121 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-118 5-118 5-120 5-120 5-120 5-121 5-122 5-122 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-118 5-118 5-120 5-120 5-120 5-121 5-122 5-122 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-119 5-120 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-122 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-119 5-120 5-120 5-121 5-121 5-122 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-120 5-120 5-121 5-122 5-122 5-128 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-120 5-121 5-122 5-125 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-121 5-122 5-125 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-121 5-122 5-125 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-125 5-126 5-130 5-131
5-126 5-130 5-131
5-130 5-131
5-131
5-132
5-133
5-134
5-135
5-135
5-135
5-136
5-140
5-142
5-144
ibers 5-14
er Lot 5-
5-148
5-150
5-151
5-151
5-152

laintenance of the Spectrophotometer	
laintenance of the Database	
Deleting Data	
Backup	
-	

Error Handling	6-2
Error Messages	6-2

Windows and Dialog Boxes

Explorer	
Overview Window	
General Menu Functions	
Toolbar Functions	
Folder Structure	
Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu	
Data in Folder Dialog Box	
Find in Folder Dialog Box	7-14
Measurement Main Window	
Single Tab (Example)	
Multiple Tab	
Until Tolerance Tab	
Calibrate Tab	
Instruments Setup Tab General Options Tab	
UV Calibration Tab	
Quality/Style Property Sheet	
Quality/Style Tab	
Affinity Tab	
Fiber Group Tab	
Fiber Tab	
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box	
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box	7-27
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box	7-27 7-28
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet	7-27 7-28 7-29
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-29
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-29 7-30
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-29 7-30 7-31
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-29 7-30 7-31 7- 31
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dyestuff Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dyestuff Tab Dye Class Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dyestuff Tab Dye Class Tab Supplier Dye Name Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36 7-37
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dyestuff Tab Dye Class Tab Supplier Dye Name Tab Dyestuff Color Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36 7-37 7-38
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dyestuff Tab Dye Class Tab Supplier Dye Name Tab Dyestuff Color Tab Dyestuff Color Tab Dyestuff Type (Form) Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36 7-37 7-38 7-39
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dyestuff Tab Dye Class Tab Supplier Dye Name Tab Dyestuff Color Tab Dyestuff Type (Form) Tab Dye Description Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36 7-37 7-38 7-39 7-40
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dyestuff Tab Dye Class Tab Supplier Dye Name Tab Dyestuff Color Tab Dyestuff Type (Form) Tab Dye Description Tab Stock Solution Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36 7-37 7-38 7-39 7-40 7-41
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dye Class Tab Supplier Dye Name Tab Dyestuff Color Tab Dyestuff Type (Form) Tab Dye Description Tab Stock Solution Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36 7-37 7-38 7-39 7-40 7-41 7-42
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dyestuff Tab Dye Class Tab Supplier Dye Name Tab Dyestuff Color Tab Dyestuff Type (Form) Tab Dye Description Tab Stock Solution Tab Stock Solution Tab	7-27 7-29 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36 7-37 7-38 7-38 7-39 7-40 7-41 7-42 7-43
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Process Factors Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dye Class Tab Supplier Dye Name Tab Dyestuff Color Tab Dyestuff Type (Form) Tab Dye Description Tab Stock Solution Tab Formula Setting Dialog Box Customer Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36 7-36 7-37 7-38 7-39 7-40 7-41 7-42 7-43
Substrate Delivery Dialog Box Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box Dye Process Property Sheet Dye Process Tab Product Property Sheet Auxiliary Tab Product Supplier Tab Dyestuff Tab Dye Class Tab Supplier Dye Name Tab Dyestuff Color Tab Dyestuff Type (Form) Tab Dye Description Tab Stock Solution Tab Stock Solution Tab	7-27 7-28 7-29 7-30 7-31 7-31 7-31 7-33 7-34 7-36 7-37 7-38 7-39 7-40 7-41 7-41 7-42 7-43 7-43 7-43 7-44

Tolerance Block Program Dialog Box	
CieLab Tab	
Datacolor Tab FMC2 Tab	
JPC79 Tab	
MS89 Tab	
Cie 94 Tab	
DIN99 Tab	
Datacolor Tolerance Block Dialog Box	7-55
Manual Input of Tolerance Values Dialog Box	7-56
Parameter Definition Dialog Box	7-57
Combined Processes Browse Window	7-58
Quick Search Dialog Box	7-59
Combined Process Window	7-61
Operations Browse Window	7-65
Operation Window	
General Parameters	
Parameters of the General Tab	7-68
Table Columns of the "Control Line" Tab	7-69
Parameters of the References Tab	7-70
Formula Edit Window	7-71
Sample Input Dialog Box	7-72
Spectral Tab	
Coordinates Tab	7-75
Colorant Set List Window	7-76
Colorant Set Window	7-77
Buttons	7-77
Header Information	
Graphical Display	
Colorant Table	
Calibration Series Table	
Components in One Calibration Series (Table)	
Create Calibration Series Dialog Box	
Alternate Substrate Information Dialog Box	
Illuminant List Window	
Sample List Window	
Color Type List Window	
Tolerance List Window	
Parameter List Window	
Fiber List Window	
Fiber Group List Window	
Substrate Delivery List Window	
Quality/Style List Window	
Affinity List Window	
Dye Process List Window	7-88

Dyestuff Class List Window	7-88
Dyestuff List Window	7-89
Auxiliary List Window	7-89
Product List Window	7-90
Supplier List Window	7-90
Customer List Window	7-91
Recipe List Window	7-91
Combined Process List Window	7-93
Operation List Window	7-93
SmartMatch Result List Window	7-94
Correct or Approve Your Recipe Dialog Box	7-95
Laboratory Correction Dialog Box	7-96
Laboratory Correction Table	7-98
View Configuration Dialog Box (Laboratory Correction Table)	7-100
Production Correction Dialog Box	7-101
Production Correction Table	7-103
Fast Correction Recipe Input Dialog Box	7-105
Search and Correct Dialog Box	7-109
Search Results Dialog Box	7-110
Unit Dialog Box	
Options Dialog Box	7-112
View Tab	
Dispenser Tab	
Stock Solution Tab Unit Selection Tab	
Print Tab	
Match Dialog Box	
Process Data for Matching Tab	
Colorant Set Tab	7-118
Lab Graph Tab	
Settings Tab	
Recipe Calculation Result Table	
Insert A Theoretical Sample Dialog Box Recipe Editor Dialog Box	
Current Population Dialog Box Population Dialog Box	
Example of A SmartMatch Group Point	
Example of Lab and C% Graphical View	
Example of Manually Checked SmartMatch Points	7-132
Comments Used for SmartMatch Points	
Example of SmartMatch Points to Be Deleted	
Import Dialog Box	
Export Dialog Box	
Form Maintenance Dialog Box	7-136

7-137
7-137
7-138
7-139
7-139
7-140
7-141
7-142
7-143
7-144
7-145
7-145
7-147
⁷ -149
7-151
7-152
7-152
7-153
7-154
7-154
⁻¹⁵⁴
⁻¹³⁴ ⁻¹⁵⁷
7-158
7-160
7-160
⁻¹⁰⁰ ⁻¹⁶¹
7-162
7-163
7-165
7-166
7-167
7-167
7-168
7-168
7-169
7-169
7-169
7-169
7-170
7-171
7-172
7-173
⁻ 173
7-173
7-174
7-174
⁻ 175
⁻ 175
7-175
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

7-176
7-176
7-177
7-178
7-178
7-179
7-179
7-180
7-180
7-181
7-182

## 8 Glossary

## 9 Index

## About

## About this Guide

## Who Should Use this Guide?

This is the Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} User's Guide. It is to be read by users of the Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} system, who need to know how to begin using the programs. Once you are familiar with Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}, this guide provides a reference to help you carry out specific tasks using the system. This guide assumes you are familiar with Microsoft Windows.

## How to Use This Guide

This guide is divided into the following main chapters:

	Preface	Edition, copyright and trademarks, impor- tant addresses.
	Contents	Table of contents.
1	About	Information about this guide.
2	Overview	Overview of the relationships between the specifications needed for matching.
3	Installation	Installation description for Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} .
4	Configuration and Administration	Configuration and administration of Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} .
5	Using Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile}	This chapter provides you with the basic information you need to start and use the system. A step by step description shows you the specification of the basic data and the calculation and correction of recipes.
6	Maintenance and Error Handling	Maintenance of the spectrophotometer, the database and error handling.
7	Windows and Dialog Boxes	Description of the windows and dialog boxes with their parameters. In <i>Chapter 3</i> <i>Installation, Chapter 4 Configuration and</i> <i>Administration</i> and <i>Chapter 5 Using Data-</i> <i>color MATCH</i> ^{Textile} , some dialog boxes are described in connection with their use.
8	Glossary	Explanation of specific terms used in this guide.
9	Index	The index should help you to find the descriptions you need.

## Type Styles and Symbols

The following type styles and symbols have been used in this guide:

- References to other chapters and sections of this guide are shown in italics, e.g., Refer to *General Table Functions*.
- Screen texts (window titles, parameter names, etc.) are written between double quotes, e.g.,
   "Explorer" window.
- If a user action is requested, menu functions or button names are highlighted in bold, e.g., Click Save.
- A note is used to draw your attention to additional useful information, e.g.:



#### Note:

•

Leave the spectrophotometer to warm up for a few minutes. Datacolor recommends that for the greatest accuracy you should wait thirty minutes before calibrating.

A caution symbol is used to draw your attention to potential hazards, e.g.:



#### Caution

An alteration of these parameters can interrupt the communication between the PC and the spectrophotometer.

## **Overview**

## **Basic Data**

The basic data application is used to manage basic data, e.g., substrates, dyestuffs, auxiliaries, etc.

## **Quality/Style**

Quality/style is a summary of all data in relation to the substrate and contains:

- Quality/style and substrate
- Affinity (quality/style subgroup)
- Fiber group
- Fiber
- Customer
- Substrate blank dyeing





#### Note

The affinity is used to group qualities/styles. Qualities/styles linked to the same affinity should have the same dye behavior or should be dyed with the same combined process.

Customer	A customer may be assigned to each quality/style.
Substrate - blank dyeing	Reflectance measurement of the substrate and quality/style effect factor.

## Product

A Product is either a dyestuff or an auxiliary.

#### Dyestuff



Supplier dye name, dyestuff type, dye description, and dyestuff color can be used to compose the product name.

### Customer

A customer delivers the substrate and orders the dyeing. It is assigned to the quality/ style.

### Color Type

Measured color pattern. A color type is substrate-independent. A color type is a standard and can be linked to a recipe.

default unit.

## **Colorant Set**

A colorant set is a set of color information about the substrate and dyes the system uses to produce match and correction recipes. It contains ...

- information about the overall colorant set, e.g., the substrate and process that will be used with the dyes;
- product information about each dye, e.g., strength, minimum and maximum concentration;
- color information about each dye.



#### **Calibration methods**

Automatic full calibra	ation			×
Type of approximatio     Measured	n Smooth	C Automatic	Start	Cancel
Measured (default)	absorpt	culated absorption tions. The calculate red dye concentrati	d dye concentrat	tions meet all
Smoothed	Adjusts the dye concentrations for larger variations in dye strength.			
Automatic	Normally, the "Measured" method is better for low concentra- tions and the "Smoothed" method for high ones. The automatic method transits continuously from "Measured" to "Smoothed."			



## **Combined Process**



The user has to define combined processes and operations.

#### **Combined process**

A combined process is used to describe the entire dyeing process either for laboratory or production. A treatment is generated for each calibration dye process type (,e.g., Exhaust, Continuous,) linked to the combined process.

#### Treatment

A treatment consists of one or more operations describing the dyeing process for laboratory and/or production.

#### Operation

The operation specifies the sequence of action to be done during the dyeing. Actions may be parameters (,e.g., temperature, volume), or products (,e.g., chemicals, etc.).



#### Note

If Datacolor Process is not installed,

- only one operation is possible for each treatment;
- the operation supports XY-tables (decision tables) and fixed parameter values only.

## **Recipe Calculation (Matching)**



#### Selection:

- Quality/style (data of the substrate)
- Combined process
- Substrate delivery (only for deliveries with data different to the blank dyeing substrate)
- Dyed substrate (over-dyeing only)
- Dyestuff group with dyes pre-selected from the assigned colorant set. The dyestuff group is used to optimize the recipe calculation.

#### Selection criteria:

- Dyes from the list
- Parameter values, e.g., fastness information
- Concentration values, e.g., min., max., conc.
- Settings (parameters for calculation control)
- Standard: Color to be matched.

#### Match:

The recipes are calculated according to the selections and the results are displayed.

Review:	The recipes can be reviewed according to the different crite- ria (various color difference values, coordinates, price, etc.)
Further use:	The recipes can be saved, printed and/or sent to a dispenser.

## SmartMatch

The SmartMatch facility is used to improve first-time matching and correction. Standard color prediction uses the Kubelka-Munk theory, which assumes that dyes behave in the same way when used together or stand-alone. However, this is not the case: dyes interact with one another. The SmartMatch facility overcomes this problem by taking into account the performance of previous predictions, e.g., learning by experience.

SmartMatch stores information about the concentrations used to dye a sample and the results of dyeing, and uses this data to correct the first attempt made by Kubelka-Munk calculations in future matching. It stores information about previous predictions as SmartMatch points.

Once you set your system to SmartMatch, it runs automatically. However, you can also examine the SmartMatch points the system is using and alter them to refine Smart-Match performance. For example, if you suspect that one of the SmartMatch points being used is based on a bad dyeing, you can remove this point. As result, it will no longer be used in the calculations.

The number of similar points is reduced by grouping them. In addition to the automatic SmartMatch housekeeping, a powerful graphical tool supports the checking of the SmartMatch population for SmartMatch points to be deleted or grouped.

All recipes calculated using the "Match" option will use SmartMatch when SmartMatch is turned on and when relevant populations are available. The number of SmartMatch points used in a recipe calculation are shown at the bottom of the dye concentration column in the recipe table.

|--|

#### Note

You can still store SmartMatch points for later use, if the SmartMatch facility is switched off.

## Correction



#### Selection of correction type:

Laboratory

- The existing recipe is altered and saved again.
- Production An additional recipe is calculated, that is used to change color of the dyed batch to the correct color.

#### Data input:

- Recipe to be corrected
- Batch (color of the dyed substrate to be corrected)
- Dyestuffs are pre-selected by the recipe to be corrected. Additional dyestuffs can be selected. Concentration and parameters can be defined.
  - The acceptance limit settings can be altered.

#### Caution!

STOP

A production correction is not saved. It must be printed before closing the "Production Correction" dialog box. Otherwise, the recipe will be lost.

## **Fast Correction**

The "Fast Correction" function is used for production or laboratory corrections without an existing recipe. It is based on a theoretical calculated recipe of the standard or a recipe typed in manually. This task is mainly used for production correction.



#### Data input:

- Quality/style, combined process, colorant set, and standard.
- Batch (color of the dyed substrate to be corrected)
- Dyestuffs must be selected. Concentration and parameters can be defined.
- The acceptance limit and color difference equitation settings can be altered.
- The recipe can be entered manually or a theoretical recipe can be calculated.

#### Caution!

STOP

Only fast corrections of laboratory recipes can be saved. Fast corrections of production recipes must be printed before closing the "Production Correction" dialog box. Otherwise, the recipe will be lost.

### Input of SmartMatch Points

The "Fast Correction" function can be used for entering SmartMatch points.

# Installation

## **Supported Operating Systems**

#### Workstations

Windows XP Professional Windows 2000 Professional Windows NT 4.0, service pack 4 or higher Windows 98 **Not recommended! Server** Windows XP Server Windows NT Server, service pack 4 or higher Windows 2003 Server

## Installing Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}

	Action	Result
1	Insert the Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} compact disc into the CD-ROM drive.	The installation program starts automat- ically.
	If the installation does not start auto- matically, select <b>Run</b> on the Win- dows start menu, type	
	<pre><drive id="">:\setup (<drive id="">: is the identification of the CD-ROM drive, e.g., D:.)</drive></drive></pre>	
	in the "Open" field of the "Run" dia- log box, and click <b>OK</b> .	
2	Follow the advice of the installation program.	



#### Note

After installation, the software runs in the demonstration mode and must be validated. Refer to *New Installations on page 3-4*.

## Updating Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}

For the installation of an upgrade, refer to the installation description of the update and to *Installing Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} on page 3-2*.

#### Caution!



The database is upgraded by the update program. But, it is strictly recommended to back up the database before updating. Otherwise, for some versions of the program the database could be deleted and lost.



### Note

- If an old DCIMatch, SmartSort, CentersideQC or Fibramix program is updated to one of the new Spectrum Textile software products, the old software is removed during the installation of the new Spectrum Textile products like Datacolor MATCH, Datacolor SORT.
- If the software security key is not accepted after updating the software runs in the demonstration mode and must be validated. Refer to *Existing Installation on page 3-5*.

## **Datacolor Security System**

A new Software/Hardware security system replaces the old software protection provided by the green parallel port security key.

### **New Installations**

New purchases receive a sticker containing their serial number. This is typically found on the corner of the jewel case.

The software can be installed normally. After installation and if the software is running for the first time, the following dialog box appears:

📽 datacolor Client Hardware	/Software Security	
You are currently running a o product.	lemonstration of this	datacolor
you do not have access to from the enclosed form to	y validate now by click software, please visit the internet, you can o SoftwareLicense@Dat 82-6496 for toll free se	
Computer Va	lidation Number 752800	
- Unlock Resp	onse Number	
It may take up to seven days do so as soon as possible s use of this software.		

From the date of the first use, you have 30 days to validate the software. (Any attempt to change this system date will immediately end the demonstration period.)

1 During this period, press the **Continue** button to start the software in demonstration mode. It is possible that not all features will be available while in the demonstration mode.

The users should validate their software as soon as possible, as it may take up to seven days to do so.

2 Visit <u>http://pmweb.datacolor.com</u>, call the local sales office, the Lawrenceville or Dietlikon call centers or mail the necessary information to Datacolor (<u>SoftwareLicense@Datacolor.com</u>) using the validation instruction sheet provided with the software.

## **Existing Installation**

If you already have one of the following Datacolor software packages:

Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}, MatchExpress, or Datacolor Process, that run using a green software security key and receive an upgrade due to an upgrade purchase or a software maintenance agreement that does not require re-licensing, your software will run as before. Continue to use the green software security key.

#### What Happens if the Software Security Key Stops Working?

If the software security key fails to work for any reason, the software will be converted to the fourteen days demonstration period. The user then has two options:

- First, check the software security key and make sure that it is still properly attached to the system. If not, reattach it and the software should run normally.
- If it is attached and still fails to respond, the software security key may have failed. Use one of the methods listed in the *New Installations* section to contact Datacolor for validating the software using the software security component.

#### What Happens if the User Changes Computers?

If the user needs to change computers, the software will need to be re-validated. Simply follow one of the procedures listed in the *New Installations* section to contact Datacolor with an explanation of why you need to re-validate your software. The validations will be tracked in the Datacolor network to detect any abnormalities and protect the value of your software purchase.



#### Note

In this case, the website will not directly validating the user's software, but an email will be generated for a validation request.

#### **Upgrading Your Purchase**

Some software packages offer the ability to upgrade the user's purchase level. Using the software security model, it is now easier for users to upgrade their purchase if they want a higher level of software or a new feature module. Simply contact your sales representative to make the purchase. You will be issued a new serial number and a new validation number for your computer. That enables you to run the new features.

## **Removing Datacolor MATCH**^{Textile}

	Action	Result
1	On the Windows desktop, double- click the <b>My Computer</b> icon.	The "My Computer" dialog box appears.
2	Double-click Control Panel	The "Add/Remove Programs Proper- ties" are opened.
3	Double-click <b>Add/Remove Pro-</b> grams.	The "Add/Remove Programs Proper- ties" are opened.
4	Select "Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} ", click <b>Add/Remove</b> , and confirm the removing.	Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} is removed.
5	If Sybase is not used again (,e.g., for Datacolor Process,) it can also be removed.	

# Configuration and Administration

Note

## **User Administration**

## Specifying, Modifying and Deleting User's Data



Only the user "DCI" can specify and modify user's data.

	Action	Result
1	On the <b>Tools</b> menu, select <b>User</b> Manager - User Administration.	The "User Administration" dialog box appears.
2	In the "User's List," select a user, and click:	
	Add to specify a new user;	Add: The "Add a New User" dialog box appears. Insert name and password, and click <b>OK</b> .
	<b>Remove</b> to delete of a user's data.	Remove: The user data is removed after confirmation.
	Rename to rename a user;	<b>Rename:</b> The "Rename a User" dialog box appears. Specify the new name, and click <b>OK</b> .
3	If finished, click <b>Close</b> .	The "User Administration" dialog box is closed.

## **Changing the Password**



#### Note

The user "DCI" cannot be deleted and has all access rights. These rights cannot be modified.

	Action	Result
1	On the <b>Tools</b> menu, select <b>User</b> Manager - Change Password.	The "Change Password" dialog box appears.
2	Insert the old and new password, and confirm the new one.	
3	Click <b>OK</b> .	The password is changed.

## **Access Rights**

User Pe	rmissions		×
Option	 ו	Enabled	•
P Main		<u> </u>	
	elete and Rename		
	Topy Data		
	ile	~	
	Basic Data	~	
	Recipe	~	
	History	~	
	Match	<b>~</b>	
	Match in Background	~	
	ReMatch	~	
	<ul> <li>Pass-Fail and Laboratory</li> </ul>	~	
	Pass-Fail and Production	~	
	<ul> <li>Fast Correction</li> </ul>	~	
	<ul> <li>Search recipes</li> </ul>	~	
	- Search results	~	-1
			-
	ОК	Cancel	

	Action	Result
1	On the <b>Tools</b> menu, select <b>User</b> Manager - User Administration.	The "User Administration" dialog box appears.
2	Select the requested user and click <b>Permissions</b> .	The "User Permissions" dialog box appears.
3	Set the permissions and click <b>OK</b> .	The "User Permissions" dialog box closes.
4	In the "User Administration" dialog box, click <b>Close</b> .	The "User Administration" dialog box closes.

#### Available options



The setting of a user right is valid for all attached rights at lower levels.

Level	Lower Levels Included	Option	
0	+	Main	
1		Delete and Rename	
1		Copy Data	
1	+	File	
2	+	Basic Data	
3		Product	
3		Quality/Style	
3		Dye Process	
3		Customer	
3		Color Type	
3		Parameter Definition	
3		Tolerance	
3		Combined Process	
3		Operation	
3		Sample	
3		Fiber	
3		Fiber Group	
3		Affinity	
3		Substrate Delivery	
3	+	Browse Date	
4		Illuminant List	
4		Sample List	
4		Color Type List	
4		Tolerance List	
4		(refer to menu "Basic Data")	
3		Display	
3		Print	
3		ASCII Output	
2	+	Recipe	
3		History	
3		Match	
3		Match in Background	
3		(refer to menu "Recipe")	
2	+	Colorant Set	
3		Colorant Set Calibration	
Level	Lower Levels Included	Option	
-------	-----------------------------	---------	----------------------------------
3			Colorant Set
3			Display
3			Print
2	+		SmartMatch
3			All menu options of SmartMatch
2	+		Batch Series
3			All menu options of SmartMatch
2			Send Mail
2			Scan Mail
2	+		Production
3			Dye Lot
3			Production Recipe
3			Administration
1	+	Tools	
2			Tool Bar
2			Status Bar
2	+		User Manager
3			Change Password
3			User Administration
2			(Refer to menu "Tools")
2	+		Options (exception: dialog tabs)
3			View
3			Dispenser
3			Stock Solution
3			Unit Selection
3			Print
2			Import
2			(Refer to menu "Tools")
1	+	Instrur	
2			All menu options of Instrument

### **Browser Customizing**

S DCIMatch - [Overview]	
📴 File Tools Instrument Window Help	_ 8 ×
Produc FIBERGROUP MODIFICATION	_
Save Reset Close	
datacolor <b>mana</b>	
For Help, press F1	DCI //

#### You can select the table columns to be displayed as follows:

	Action	Result
1	On the <b>Tools</b> menu, select <b>User's</b> Browser Definition.	The "Browse Columns for Explorer" dia- log box appears.
2	Select the data type (table).	The related data tree is displayed.
3	Check the boxes, the table columns have to be displayed.	In the footer of the dialog box, the checked table column titles are displayed.
4	Click <b>Save</b> .	The settings for the selected table are saved.
5	Repeat steps 3 and 4 to display other table columns.	
	Repeat steps 2 to 4 to alter the dis- play of other tables.	
6	Click <b>Close</b> to close the "Browse Columns for Explorer" dialog box.	



### Note

The **Reset** button deselects all table columns except the object name. It is used if the performance of displaying is not acceptable.

	Action	Result
1	On the <b>Tools</b> menu, select <b>User's</b> Browser Definition.	The "Browse Columns for Explorer" dia- log box appears.
2	Select the data type.	The related data tree is displayed and the checked table column titles are dis- played in the footer of the dialog box.
3	A double-click in a table column title opens the "Custom Name" dialog box.	Refer to the figure on the previous page.
4	Specify the custom name, and click <b>OK</b> .	The table column title is altered.
5	Repeat steps 3 and 4 to alter other table column titles.	
6	Click Save.	
7	Click <b>Close</b> to close the "Browse Columns for Explorer" dialog box.	

You can alter the column titles of the tables as follows:

Using the mouse, you can change the sequence of the table columns by drag and drop.

#### You can alter the position of column titles by drag and drop:

PREPARATION_ID		<b>_</b>
QUALITY_NAME Affinity.AFFINIT	QUALITY_ID CREAT CREATENDATE	
I	45	
<u>S</u> ave	<u>R</u> eset <u>C</u> lose	

### **Browse Filters**

It is possible to specify customized filters (queries) for selecting data from the database. Customized filters can be ordered from Datacolor. Please contact your Datacolor distributor for more information.

- The integrated tool for customizing filters needs advanced know-how of both the database and SQL.
- Filters are language dependant. They can only be specified and used with applications that have the same application language.

### **Using Browse Filters**

Note

User defin	able filters				×
Prepare Filte	er Define Filter				
Data	Recipe				
<u>F</u> ilter:	Recipes with two dy	estuffs		-	
Dyestuff 1		67			
Dyestuff 2		68			
		OK	Cancel	Apply	Help

	Action	Result
1	On the context-sensitive menu of the requested list window, click <b>Filter</b> .	The "User Definable Filters" dialog box appears.
2	In the "Prepare Filter" tab, select the filter, type the identification(s) of the objects in the fields, and click <b>OK</b> .	The selected objects are displayed in the list window.

### **Disabling Browse Filters**

	Action	Result
1	On the context-sensitive menu of the requested list window, click <b>Reset Filter</b> .	

### **Exporting and Sending Browse Filters**

A filter definition can be exported to a file or be attached to an e-mail.

Jser defin	able filters			×
Prepare Filte	r Define Filter			
Data	Recipe	Language:	English	<b>-</b>
Eilter:	Recipes with two dyest.	uffs 💌		
<u>s</u> ql:				
colorrecipe_	cipe.Recipe_ID FROM R line crl2 roduct_id=? and crl2.proc			
	<u> </u>	luate	<u>C</u> lear Dyestuff 1 Dyestuff 2	
Save	<u>I</u> mport	E <u>x</u> port	Send <u>M</u> ail Cancel App	Delete
Actio	ı		Result	
	"Define Filter" tab of ıble Filters" dialog bo			
	click <b>Export</b> to expo definition to a file.	rt the filter	The "Save as" dial file can be saved v ".dmf".	og box appears. Th vith the extension
•	click <b>Send Mail</b> to m ter definition.	nail the fil-		opears and the filter ached.

### **Importing Browse Filters**

	Action	Result
1	In the "Define Filter" tab of the "User Definable Filters" dialog box, click <b>Import</b> .	The "Open" dialog box appears. The file with the extension ".dmf" can be opened and imported.

### Importing Browse Filters directly from the E-mail

	Action	Result
1	On the <b>File</b> menu of the overview window, click <b>Scan Mail</b> .	All attached files with the extension ".dmf" are searched und displayed in the "Loading Filters from Mail" dialog box.
2	Select the requested files, and click <b>Load</b> .	The selected files are imported.

### **Defining Units**

	Action	Result
1	On the <b>Tools</b> menu, select <b>Define</b> <b>Units</b> .	The "Unit" dialog box appears.
2	Select a unit or specify a new name.	
3	Specify or alter the parameters.	Refer to Unit Dialog Box on page 7-111.
4	Click Save.	The new or modified unit is saved.

### Options

The "Options" dialog box is used to define the view of ID and AuxID, the dispenser connection, the use of stock solutions, the selection of units, and the paper orientation.

	Action	Result
1	On the Tools menu, select Options.	The "Option" dialog box appears.
2	Select the corresponding tab.	
3	Specify or alter the parameters.	Refer to <i>Options Dialog Box on page 7-112</i> .
4	Click Save.	The new or modified option is saved.

### **Import and Export**

Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} supports the import/export of samples and colorant sets with different file formats:

- Sample Import/Export with Datamatch format (*.EXP, *.EXQ files)
- Sample Import/Export with Datacolor Envision or Datacolor Tools (*.QTX files)
- Sample Import/Export with Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} (*.XML files)
- Colorant Set Import/Export with Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} (*.XML files).

The XML files may become very big (a file with 120 samples is about 370KB). You can compress them drastically (24 KB) using WinZip.



#### Note

Internet Explorer Version 5.01 Sp2 or higher must be installed to run the Import/Export of XML files.

### **Exporting Data**

Export function for color samples.

	Action	Result
1	On the Tools menu, select Export.	The "Export" dialog box appears.
		Refer to <i>Export Dialog Box on page 7-</i> 135.
2	Select the data type and the format.	Attention: Datamatch, Datacolor Tools or Datacolor Envision cannot import XML files.
3	Specify path and file name of the export file or use the browse func- tion, and click <b>Export</b> .	

### **Importing Data**

	Action	Result
1	On the Tools menu, select Import.	The "Import" dialog box appears.
2	Specify path and file name of the import file or use the browse func-tion.	Refer to <i>Import Dialog Box on page 7-134</i> . Refer to <i>Importing Colorant Sets on page 4-14</i> for importing colorant sets.
3	Click <b>OK</b> .	If the corresponding options are set, all or the existing samples are prompted. You can <b>Save</b> , <b>Save with Prefix</b> , or <b>Skip</b> them.



#### Note

- Samples are not imported if either the name or the spectral data is the same as data that already exits in the database.
- The import function compares the spectral data when the sample name already exists. A new sample is only created if the spectral data is different. E.g., if sample "Blue 4711" is already in the database, the imported sample, which has the same name but different spectral data, is imported as "Blue 4711 001".
- Samples imported from EXP files are always stored in the database. If the sample name already exists, a new sample is created with an extension in the name, e.g. sample "Blue 4711" is saved as "Blue 4711-0".

### **Importing Colorant Sets**

Note



- If you import a colorant set that already exists, the program updates the new data. Calibration data is always updated. **Dyestuff prices are not imported.**
- If the fiber of the colorant set does not exist in the database, a dialog opens where you can select an equivalent from your database.
  - This is to avoid creating the same fibers in different languages (e.g. Co, Bw, etc).
- If there is no fiber in the database that matches the fiber of the colorant set, click **No Match @**. A new fiber is then created.

Fiber					×
Fiber of Dyeset:	BW				
Please select fiber w	hich matches fibe	r of dyeset or clicł	< 'No Match'		]
Fibers available:					
CD PES SI		_	No Match		
		Fiber Creation			
		Fiber ID:	BW		_
		Fiber Name:	Baumwolle		
1					
	OK			Cancel	

Click **OK** to start the import.



### Note

The dye class is treated in the same way as the fiber.

If the dye class of the colorant set does not exist in the database, a dialog opens where you can select an equivalent dye class from your database.
This is to avoid creating the same dye classes in different languages (e.g. Dispersion, Disperse, or Cationique and Basic etc).

If there is no dye class in the database that matches the dye class of the colorant set, click **No Match @**. A new dye class is then created.

- You can modify the dye class ID and name before you start the import.
- Click **OK** to start the import.

Dyeclass	×
Dyeclass of Dyeset	CATIONIQUE which atches Dyeclass of Dyeset No match Dyeclass creation Dyclass ID CATI Dyeclass Name
Vat	CATIONIQNE Selected ID BAS
	Dyeclass creation Dyeclass ID Cat Dyeclass Name Cationid

### Importing and Exporting Samples as QTX Files

Export X
Samples (Datamatch; *.EXP)
Samples (Datacolor Envision/Colorite; *.QTX)
Samples (Datacolor Match/DCIMatch; *XML)
O Dyesets (Datacolor Match/DCIMatch; *.XML)
Selected Standard
😭 (All Data)
÷ 200204-B8310104-002
Selected Batches
😫 (All Data)
÷ 200204-B8310104-003
Filename
EnvisionSample.QTX
Browse OK Cancel Help

Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} can export/import samples to/from QTX files. A file always contains a standard and its batch(es). It is not possible to select more than one standard. In this case, you must specify multiple export files.

ſ	$\equiv h$
	<i>H</i> #=
k	

#### Note

If you select only batches, the dialog box closes when you click "OK". No samples are then exported.

# **Backing Up Using Datacolor MATCH**^{Textile}

The backup function saves the database to the selected target drive and folder.

	Action	Result
1	On the "Tools" menu, select <b>Backup</b> .	The "Backup" dialog box appears.
2	Specify target drive and path (or use the browse button), and click <b>OK</b> .	The contents of the database are saved.

#### Caution

STOP

Before the backup is made all databases are validated. This may take up to several minutes depending on the size of the databases. If there is a problem with one of the databases, a message is displayed and the backup is not made. An old backup must be restored in this case.

### **Backing Up Using Sybase Utilities**

The backup utility is used to store running databases, database files, transaction logs, and write files.

You can access the backup utility ...

- using Sybase Central, or,
- using the system command line to call the **dbbackup** utility. This utility can be used for specifying batch or command files.

The backup utility copies the database file and the transaction log of a single database.

### **Backing Up Using Sybase Central**

### **Backing Up A Running Database**

	Action	Result
1	Start Sybase Central.	
2	Connect the database.	
3	Right-click the database and select <b>Backup</b> on the context-sensitive menu.	
4	Follow the instructions of the wizard.	

### Backing Up A Database File or A Running Database

	Action	Result
1	Start Sybase Central.	
2	Open the "Utilities" folder in the left panel.	
3	Double-click the <b>Backup Database</b> in the right panel.	
4	Follow the instructions of the wizard.	

### The dbbackup Command

#### Syntax

Dbbackup [switches] path

#### Switches

Switch	Description	
-c "keyword=value"	Database connection parameters. If the connection parameters are not specified, the parameters of the SQLCONNECT environment variable will be used (if they are set). Parameters: eng=engine dbn=database name uid=user ID The user must have DBA authority or REMOTE DBA authority.	
	pwd=password	
-d	Only stores the main database file.	
-l file name	Stores the transaction log file to a file with the specified name.	
-n	The switch is only active, if the switch -r is set.Changes the name of the transaction log file to the following format:yymmddnn.logyyyearmmmonthdddaynnnumber in the range of 00 to 99.	
-o file name	Creates a file for the log output.	
-q	Quiet mode: Messages are not printed.	
-r	Rename and start a new transaction log.	
-t	Only stores the transaction log.	
-W	Only stores the write file.	
-X	Deletes and restarts the transaction log.	
-X0	Deletes and restarts the transaction log without backup.	
-у	Replaces files without confirmation.	

### Importing and Exporting Print Forms (Tools Menu)

Caution

If the print form database is to be replaced, the old print forms must be exported first.

Your print forms will not be lost, if you have not exported them. The existing database is renamed by the setup program. The user can access the database by changing the database connection in the ODBC settings for the print form DSN.

### **Exporting Print Forms (Tools Menu)**

	Action	Result
1	On the "Tools" menu, select <b>Export</b> <b>Print Form</b> .	The "Form maintenance" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Form Maintenance Dialog Box on page 7-136</i> .
2	Select the print forms to be exported, and click <b>Export</b> .	The "Save as" dialog box appears.
3	Specify a file name, and click <b>Save</b> .	

### Importing Print Forms (Tools Menu)

	Action	Result
1	On the "Tools" menu, select <b>Import</b> Print Form.	The "Open" dialog box appears.
2	Select the print form export file (*.pfe) to be imported, and click <b>Open</b> .	The "Save as" dialog box appears.

### **ASCII Output (Option)**

The ASCII output option supports writing data to an ASCII file when you can print data. This option includes specifying, modifying and deleting ASCII forms.

### Specifying ASCII Forms

Action	Result
1 On submenu "ASCII Forms" of "Tools" menu, select <b>New</b> .	the The "ASCII Output Definition" dialog box appears.
ASCII OUTPUT Definition	×
LabDyelot       ▼         LabDvelot       ▲         Operation       Parameter         ProdCorr       QC-Cie94         QC-Cie94       QC-Cie1ab         QC-Cmc       QC-Din6175         QC-Din99       QC-Fmc2         QC-Jpc79       QC-Ms89	Select a template you want create an ASCII form from.
	ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel Help

2 Select a template from the list, and The "Data" dialog box appears. click **Next**.

Field not selected,	, double-click to select it.	
	Field not selected	Field not selected, double-click to select it.

- Folder without selected fields. Click the folder to open or to close it.
- Folder with selected fields (signed by red dots). Click the folder to open or close it.
- Non-selected field with opened properties. Double-click the icon to select the field. Click the icon to close the field properties.
- Selected field with closed properties. Double-click the icon to deselect the field. Click the icon to open the field properties.
- Select the fields to be written to the ASCII file.
   The corresponding field properties are displayed.
   The number of decimal digits can be altered for all fields of type "double".
  - Click **Next.** The "Options" dialog box appears.

4

Options					×
Field Delimiter: <u>R</u> ecord Delimiter: <u>S</u> tring Delimiter:	Fi	ield Descriptio eld Descriptic le <u>n</u> ame:	_	-File ● <u>A</u> ppend ● Overwrite	
		< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	Cancel	Help

Field Delimiter		If necessary, change the field delimiter.	
Record Delimiter		If necessary, change the record delimiter.	
String Delimiter		If necessary, change the string delimiter.	
Field [	Description Line	Check the box if a field description line is required.	
Field Description Prefix		If necessary, type a field description prefix.	
File Name		Type the path and the file name.	
File		Select "Append" if the new records should be added to an existing file, or,	
		select "Overwrite" if the existing file should be overwritten.	
5	Click Next.	The "ASCII Form Name" dialog box appears.	
6 Type the name of the form, and click <b>Finish</b> .		the form, and click	

### **ASCII Output of Recipes**

	Action	Result
1	In the "Recipe List" window, double- click the recipe that should be printed to an ASCII file.	The "Show Full Recipe" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Show Full Recipe Dialog Box</i> <i>on page 5-75</i> .
2	Click <b>ASCII</b> .	The file is saved to the place specified in the ASCII form.

#### Example: ASCII output of a laboratory recipe

@"Recipe_ID","Recipe_Name","SubstrateDelivery_Name","CombProcess_ID","CombProcess_Name","ColorType_
Name","Trial","Weight","Quality_ID","Quality_Name"
"129", "Ref. Beige", "", "REA-BEZ", "Reactive Bezema Exhaust", "Rec. Beige SM", 1,10.00, "1", "Cotton bleached "
@"Product_ID","Product_Name","RecipeAmount","RecipeUnit","ActualCost","Amount","Unit"
"NaCl", "Common Salt", 30.00, "g/l", 0.00, 3.00, "g"
@"Product_ID","Product_Name","RecipeAmount","RecipeUnit","ActualCost","Amount","Unit"
"SoCar", "Sodium Carbonate", 5.00, "g/l", 0.00, 0.50, "g"
@"DyeSet","dEIlluminant","dE","MetamerismText1","Metamerism1","MetamerismText2","Metamerism2"
"Reactive Exhaust","dE (D65)",0.00,"Metamerism (A)",0.07,"Metamerism (F11)",0.30

### **ASCII Output of Basic Data**

	Action	Result
1	In the corresponding list window, select the object that should be printed to an ASCII file.	
2	On the basic data menu, click <b>ASCII</b> .	The file is saved to the place specified in the ASCII form.

#### Example: ASCII output of an affinity

"5 @	@"ID","Name","FiberGroup" 55PES/45CV WASH","55PES/45CV washed 70° C","PES/VI" @"Fiber","Part" Polyester",55.00
@ "\ @	9"Fiber","Part" Viscose",45.00 9"QualityID","QualityName"
**	55PES/45CV LICL","55PES/45CV Libero Classic" **** @"ID","Name","FiberGroup"
<i>a</i>	CO3","C04200 (BASF) gebl.BW-RENFORC","CO" "Fiber","Part" Cotton",100.00
a	"QualityID", "QualityName" \$4", "C04200 (BASF) gebl.BW-RENFORC"

Note

### Calibrating the Monitors Using Datacolor SPYDER2



This function is enabled if the Datacolor SPYDER2 is connected to the USB port.

This function is used to perform the monitor calibration for adjusting the color of the monitor. After calibrating the monitor, all color patches displayed on the screen are more similar to the color of the measured sample. A calibrated monitor enables you to judge and compare colors more correctly before dyeing.

	Action	Result
1	In the "Tools" menu, select	The assistant for monitor calibration
	Calibrate Monitor.	appears.

Monitor Calibration	
Please click on your monitor type:	

2 Follow the advises on the screen.

### Sending E-mails

All print files can be sent as an e-mail if a mail program is installed that meets the MAPI standard, e.g., MS Outlook.

### Mailing Basic Data, Lab Dye Lots, Colorant Sets

	Action	Result
1	In the corresponding list window, select the objects that should be mailed.	
2	On the "Basic data" menu, select <b>Display</b> .	The Print Preview appears.
3	Click the <b>e-mail</b> button.	The e-mail form appears. The pages of the print preview are converted to the JPEG format and attached to the e-mail.
4	Fill in the form with e-mail address and mail text, and send the e-mail.	

### **Mailing Recipe Tables**

	Action	Result
1	On the context-sensitive menu of the recipe table, click <b>Mail Table</b> .	The e-mail form appears. The recipe table is converted to the JPEG format and attached to the e- mail.
2	Fill in the form with e-mail address and mail text, and send the e-mail.	

### **Specifying Print Forms Using the Pager**

The pager is used to specify print forms. A set of forms is delivered by Datacolor. The user can modify these forms or specify new ones.

### Starting the Pager



 On the Windows start menu or the desktop, click the Pager icon. The "Pager" window appears.

### Specifying A New Print Form

Refer to Pager Window on page 7-137 for more information about the parameters.

	Action	Result
1	In the toolbar or on the "File" menu, select <b>New</b> .	The "Template Identification" dialog box appears.
2	Select "Application", "Option" (object type), "Language", and "Version", and click <b>OK</b> .	An empty form appears containing all sections available for the selected option.
3	Click the section to be specified.	
	<i>Inactivate an unused section:</i> On the Edit menu, select Hide Cur- rent Section, or select the requested section on the "Sections" menu.	The check mark is removed and the section is not used in the current print form.
	Specifying a text field:	
	1. In the toolbar, select the text tool.	
	2. Draw and place the requested text field.	
	3. In the toolbar, select "Toggle Properties."	The "Properties" box appears.
	4. Specify the text and change the other parameters if requested.	
	Specifying a database field:	
	<ol> <li>In the toolbar, select "Toggle Properties."</li> </ol>	The "Fields" list box opens displaying all available fields.
	2. Select and place the requested database field. The parameters of the fields can be altered using the "Properties" box.	A text field for the description and a field for the data is displayed.

4

Draw rectangles and ellipses:

	<ol> <li>In the toolbar, select the rectan- gles or ellipses tool.</li> <li>Draw and place the graph. The parameters of the graph can be altered using the "Properties" box.</li> </ol>
	Enter a bitmap graph:
	<ol> <li>In the toolbar, select the "Bit- map" tool and click the selected section.</li> </ol>
	<ul> <li>2. Search and select the graph (supported are *.bmp, *.pcx, *.jpg graph), and click <b>Open</b>.</li> <li>The "Open" box appears.</li> </ul>
	<ol> <li>Place the graph. The parame- ters of the graph can be altered using the "Properties" box.</li> </ol>
	Specifying date/time, page num- ber or form (file) name:
	<ol> <li>In the toolbar, select the re- quested tool and place the field.</li> </ol>
	Remove all field from the current section:
	<ol> <li>In the toolbar, select the requested tool and place the field.</li> </ol>
	<ul> <li>Deleting a field:</li> <li>1. Select the field and press Ctrl + Del.</li> </ul>
5	In the toolbar or on the "File" menu, The "Form Name" dialog box appears. select <b>Save (As)</b> .
6	Specify a form name, and click <b>OK</b> . The new print form is created.

### Modifying A Print Form

Refer to *Pager Window* for more information about the parameters.

	Action	Result
1	In the toolbar or on the "File" menu, select <b>Open</b> .	The "Template Identification" dialog box appears.
2	Select "Application", "Option" (object type), "Language", and "Version", and click <b>OK</b> .	The selected form appears.
3	Alter the form as requested. Refer to <i>Specifying A New Print Form on page 4-26</i> .	
4	In the toolbar or on the "File" menu, select <b>Save</b> , and click <b>OK</b> .	The print form is altered.

### **Deleting or Renaming A Print Form**

	Action	Result
1	In the toolbar or on the "File" menu, select <b>Delete/Rename</b> .	The "Form Maintenance" dialog box appears.
2	Select the requested form.	
3	<i>Rename:</i> Click the form name, alter the name, and press <b>ENTER</b> .	The name is altered.
	<b>Deleting:</b> Select <b>Delete</b> , and con- firm the deletion.	The selected print form is deleted.

### **Importing Print Forms**

	Action	Result
1	On the "File" menu, select Import.	The "Open" dialog box appears.
2	Search and select the form to be imported, and click <b>Open</b> .	The selected file is imported.

### **Exporting Print Forms**

	Action	Result
1	On the "File" menu, select <b>Export</b> .	The "Form Maintenance" dialog box appears.
2	Select the form to be exported and click <b>Export</b> .	The "Save as" dialog box appears.
3	Select the path, specify a file name, and click <b>Save</b> .	The selected form is exported.

### **Customizing Graphs**

The background color of all graphical displays and printouts is white, while text and curves are black with different line styles and the grid is activated by default.

You can have different settings for background and text color of the graphical displays and the printout. Modification of these settings are stored in the registry table of the database.

You can only modify the graphical settings in programs with graphical options such as the colorant set or the measurement program.

#### Reset 3hoose background color ? 🗙 Shoose text color ? × Change Color. Basic colors: Basic colors: 2 Change Printer Color Г Г With Origin ✓ Grid Eont. Points Log View More .. Visible Curves . Custom colors: Custom colors: Г 16 . Define Custom Colors >> Define Custom Colors >> **G** OK 4 OK Cancel Cancel

<b>Setting Colors</b>	for Graphs
-----------------------	------------

	Action	Result
1	On the context-sensitive menu, select <b>Change Color ①</b> (for the dis- play) or <b>Change Printer Color ②</b> (for color printers).	The "Choose Background Color" dialog box of appears.
2	Select the background color and click <b>OK @</b> .	The "Choose Text Color" dialog box <b>G</b> appears.
3	Select the text color and click OK @.	

# Setting Line Style and Color

	Reset Change Color Change Printer Color With Origin Grid Font Points Log View More	Graphic Options     Points       General     Curves       Styles     Color       Solid line     Text color       Change every line     Change every line       Line width:     1
	Action	Result
1	On the context-se select <b>More ①</b> .	nsitive menu, The "Graphic Options" dialog box <b>@</b> appears.
2	In the "Curves" ta color, and line wid	-
3	Click OK @.	

5

# Using Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}

### **Basics**

### Starting Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}



On the Windows start menu or the desktop, click the Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} icon. The Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} explorer with the "Overview" window appears.

### **Data Handling**

### **Browse and Selecting**

#### Using the object tree

All objects are displayed in a structured list on the left of the "Explorer" window. *Opening and closing structure levels:* 

- + A + sign indicates that there are hidden subordinate folders and/or objects. Click the + sign to open the next structure level.
- Click the sign to close all subordinate structure levels.

1

#### Selection of objects:

Action		Result/Notes
1	Select the requested object folder using the left mouse button.	The object folder data is displayed in the corresponding view.

#### Context-sensitive menu:

New Folder	Adds a new subfolder to the selected folder. <i>Type a meaning- ful name.</i>
Delete	Deletes the selected folder (only if the folder is empty).
New Root Folder	Adds a new root folder. Type a meaningful name.
Rename	Is used to rename the selected folder.
Data Type in this Folder	Opens the "Data in Folder" dialog box used for searching data types and the corresponding data in the selected folder. Refer to <i>Data in Folder Dialog Box on page 7-13</i> .
Find in Folder	Opens the "Find <data type=""> in Folder" dialog box used for searching data records with a determined name or part of the name. The <data type=""> of the opened list window is used. Refer to <i>Find in Folder Dialog Box on page 7-14</i>.</data></data>

Searching data types and the corresponding data in the selected folder Refer to *Data in Folder Dialog Box on page 7-13*.

#### Searching objects of a determined data type

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On the context sensitive menu, select <b>Find in Folder</b> .	The "Find <data type=""> in Folder" dialog box is displayed. The data type of the opened list window is selected.</data>
2	Type the name (or a part of the name) of the searched data records, select the search restrictions, and click <b>Search</b> .	Refer to <i>Find in Folder Dialog Box on page 7-14</i> . The corresponding data is displayed.
3	Select one or more of the items in the "Search Result" box and right- click to display, print, or to make an ASCII output of the data.	



#### Note

The number of data records to be displayed is limited to 1000. A message is displayed, if the limit is exceeded

#### Using the overview window

Clicking a button opens the corresponding list window. Refer to chapter *Windows and Dialog Boxes on page 7-1*, section *Overview Window on page 7-2*.

#### Using the list windows

A mouse double-click in an object opens a window, dialog box, or property sheet, that is used to alter or delete the corresponding object data. Refer also to *General table func-tions on page 5-7*.

#### Using special browse functions and the query designer

"Operations" and "Combined Processes" are windows with special browse functions:

#### **Quick search**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On the "Select" menu, click <b>Quick</b> Search.	The "Quick Search" box appears. Refer to <i>Quick Search Dialog Box</i> .
2	Select the "Search Type", check the "Quick Search Column(s)" and "Glo- bal Search."	
3	Specify search criteria (* is wildcard for unknown leading characters and/ or for unknown characters between known ones), and click <b>OK</b> .	In the corresponding browse window, the objects found are displayed. A mouse double-click in the requested object opens a window, dialog box, or property sheet, that is used to alter or delete the corresponding object data.



#### Note

You can reduce the result list using the "Search in result set" function and more specific search criteria.

#### Example



#### Default query

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select <b>Default Query</b> .	In the corresponding browse window, all objects are displayed. A mouse double-click in the requested object opens a window, dialog box, or property sheet, that is used to alter or delete the corresponding object data.

#### **Custom query**

For advanced "ITM Process" users only. Refer to the ITM Process documentation.

#### **Field-specific functions**



#### Switch between selection and input mode (1)

Click to switch between selection and input mode.



Selection mode



Input mode

The input mode is locked.

#### Data selection step by step (2)

The upper partial button selects the values step by step in descending order (previous), the lower partial button in ascending order (next).

#### Browse buttons (3, 4)

The upper browse button (3) opens the "Directory" dialog box used for folder selection. The lower browse button (4) opens a list or search box to select data corresponding to the field.

#### Selection aids for fields and table column headers

The following selection aids are implemented for input fields with a link to another object (drop-down combo boxes or fields with a browse button):

Typed characters are used for search criteria. In front of the field, they are displayed in red and into disappointed brackets. The following wildcards are available:

% (percent)		Replaces an undefined number of characters. % is set per default at the end of the search string.		
_ (underscore)		Replaces any single character.		
[	]	The characters (or a range of characters) between the square brackets are to be included in the data found.		
Examples:		[or]	Displays only names that contain the characters <b>o</b> or <b>r</b> .	
		[b-h]	Displays only names that contain the characters of the range <b>b</b> to <b>h</b> .	
[^	]	The characters (or a range of characters) between the square brackets are not to be included in the data found.		

If you scroll using search criteria, only the corresponding objects are displayed.

#### General table functions

#### Selecting columns for sorting and filtering:



Click the column title to be selected. The column is marked with sorting sign and arrow.

Data is sorted using two criterias:

1st priority has the column you have clicked in;

2nd priority always has the object name (if it is selected in "User's Browser Definition".).

#### Changing the order:

Click the column title of the selected column for changing the order between ascending and descending.

#### A selection filter can be defined for each column:

- 1 If necessary, select the column title field.
- 2 Type the characters to be used as selection criteria. A binocular sign is displayed and the data is selected according to the criteria.
  - The wildcard % can be used.
  - The selection criteria can be changed as long as the column is selected.
  - Use **Backspace** to remove the character on the left of the cursor.
  - Use Shift + Backspace to remove the entire selection criteria.

#### Examples:





The names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to chapter *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

#### **Tool tips**

In many places tool tips are implemented: Setting the cursor to this place, a contextsensitive information appears (refer to figure below).

Calibration			Formulation		
ngth	dE	Method	Min. Con	Max. Conc	
)0	0.0	Measured	0	5.6	
)0	0.0	Measured	0	4	
)0	0.0	Measured	0	8	
)0	0.0	Measured	0	4	
)0	0.0 _N	Measured	0	4	
)0	0.0 h	Manaurad		reflectances and the calculated reflectances	
)0	0.0	Weasureu		4	

#### **Opening context-sensitive menus**

Context-sensitive menus are available in different windows, dialog boxes, and fields (Refer to the corresponding descriptions.). For opening, set the mouse cursor into the corresponding field or table column and click the right button.

### Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects

Ħ.

#### Note

The delete, move, copy, and rename functions are only available for users having the corresponding access rights.

Specify or modify an object, you can specify new objects of another linked object type using the corresponding tab or selection field.

**Example:** In the "Quality/Style Property Sheet", you can specify a new affinity as follows:

- Use the "Affinity" tab.
- In the "Affinity" field of the "Quality/Style" tab, use the "Input Form" function of the context-sensitive menu.

Affinity	No Folder				
		<u> </u>	Ctrl+F		
Grey Quality		<u>B</u> rowse	Ctrl+B		
Lab. Note:		Input form			_
		New code	Ctrl+N V		_
Prod. Note:					

#### Opening the input form

	Action	Result/Notes
1	If available, select the corresponding tab, or, right-click the selection field where the new object should be entered.	A context-sensitive menu appears.
2	Select Input Form.	The requested tab, box, or window appears.
Specifying	objects	
------------	---------	
------------	---------	

Ī

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select a folder, if necessary.	
2	Switch to the input mode.	The input mode icon appears.
3	Specify the new object name or overwrite the existing name with the new one.	
4	Specify the other data.	Fields marked with a red <b>*</b> are man-
		datory.
		Refer to the corresponding description in chapter <i>Windows and Dialog Boxes</i> <i>on page</i> 7-1 for more information about the parameters.
5	Click Insert.	The new object is created.

### Modifying and Deleting Objects

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the object data to be modified or deleted.	Refer to <i>Browse and Selecting on page</i> 5-2.
2	<i>Modifying:</i> In the requested fields, change the object data, and click <b>Save</b> .	The input mode icon appears. The object is altered.
3	<b>Deleting:</b> Click <b>Delete</b> and confirm the deletion.	The object is deleted.



### Note

An object cannot be deleted, if it is linked to other objects. If the system cannot delete an object, all valid links are listed in the "Delete Check" info box.

Note

# **Calibration and Measurement**



- For further details about your spectrometer refer to the manual supplied with your system.
- It is not possible to re-measure color types if they are linked to other tables.

### **Calibrating Your Spectrophotometer**

Your spectrophotometer must always be calibrated after switching on. It is recommended to calibrate at least every eight hours. Different types of spectrophotometers have different settings. This section gives a general description of the calibration.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Check that your spectrophotometer	

is switched on.



### Note

1

Leave the spectrophotometer to warm up for a few minutes. Datacolor recommends that for the greatest accuracy you should wait thirty minutes before calibrating.

2 If you select the Measure Directly

Refer to *Measurement Main Window* on page 7-15.

button missing calibrations are requested automatically.

For an intentional calibration, click

the **Measure** ... button and in the opened "Measurement" dialog box, select the "Calibrate" tab. After specifying the parameter values according to your spectrophotometer, click **Calibrate**.

3 Follow the advice on the screen.

### **UV** Calibration

#### **Calibration Methods**

	>
₩	

#### Note

There are several methods that can be used to calibrate the adjustable UV filter position. Please refer to the whiteness standard you are using to determine the method to be used.

**Ganz/Griesser:** This procedure uses the Ganz/Griesser calibration method. The light source is filtered to simulate the D65 Illuminant and the Ganz Griesser parameters are used to calculate the filter position. In addition, the target whiteness value is based on 10¼ standard observer data.

**CIE using D65/10:** The light source is filtered to simulate the D65 illuminant. This is the procedure used to perform a CIE Whiteness evaluation.

**ISO Brightness (C):** The light source is filtered to simulate Illuminant C. This is the procedure used to perform an ISO Brightness evaluation.

Note

#### Example using the Ganz/Griesser method



The UV calibration is only available for instruments with the whiteness option.

The UV calibration is necessary to ensure a constant UV emission of the bulb.

#### Definition of the Ganz/Griesser whiteness parameters

This definition is necessary if a bulb or an other part of the optical illumination system has been replaced.

Measurement Main Window	×
Measurement conditions:         2         Aperture:         LAV         3           4         UV % :         68.0         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         6         <	Flashes: 2 Cut-off: NONE
☑ Multiple       ☑ Until Tol.       ☑ Calibrate       ♥ Instruments Setup       ● General Options         Periodical Illuminant checker:	s UV Calibration
Whiteness Difference:	UV Calibration Methods: D65/10 (Ganz-Griesser) D65/10 (CIE Whiteness) C (ISO Brightness)
Accept Auto-Calibrator	Close
SF600 COM1:19200,N, 8,2 Mult.:=4 Tol.:=CieLab F=1.00,DE=1.0	Time left=4:40

#### Action

**Result/Notes** 

- 1 In the "Measurement Main Window", select the **UV Calibration** tab.
- 2 Select specular **Excl**.
- 3 Set aperture LAV.
- 4 Click Whiteness Parameters. The "Ganz/Griesser Calibration" dialog box appears.

Ganz/Griesser Calibration	×	
Instrument-specific parameters de Current <u>U</u> V 87.2953 <u>N</u> ominal whiteness 174.5	Illumination check sample         Sample No.:	
Color Coord.: Cond.:		
Action	Result/Notes	
5 In the "Ganz/Griesser Ca dialog box, specify the "N Whiteness", and click <b>Me</b>	lominal	
6 Repeat step 5 for all samp whiteness scale.	bles of your	
7 Click Calculate.	The calibration results are displayed.	
- Calibration Results:		



	Action	Result/Notes
8	<ul> <li>8 Re-calibrate until "dW/dS" is</li> <li>4000 ±10 (You must measure all samples again for each Re-calibration.).</li> </ul>	The program optimizes the UV filter position for each re-calibration.
		dw/dS= 4002.38
		The value of this example is ok.
9	If the value is ok, click <b>Accept</b> .	The "Instrument-specific Formula Parameters" dialog box appears.

"Instrument-specific Formula Parameters" dialog box:

Instrument-specific formula parameters 🛛 🗵		
Whiteness Ganz-Parameters:           Phi         Bandwidth         D           15         0.0008         1           P         Q         C           -1869.44         -3697.89         1818.04           m         n         k           -1016.49         727.495         79.3263	OK Cancel Manual Change	

#### Checking the UV part of the bulb

The periodical check of the UV emission of the bulb is done using an "Illuminant Checker" sample. The Ganz/Griesser whiteness is calculated and the UV filter is adjusted.

🐐 Measurement Main Window 💦	×
Measurement conditions:	7
1 Specular: EXCL. 2 Aperture: LAV 3 Flashes: 2	
4 UV %: 68.0 6 Cut-off: NONE	
🛛 Multiple 🛛 🕷 Until Tol. 🖢 Calibrate 🖓 Instruments Setup 🖗 General Options 🗟 UV Calibration 🗎 💻	
Periodical Illuminant checker: Whiteness parameters	]
Nominal Whiteness: UV Filter Position [%]:	븱
Whiteness of test- tile: 150 Position to set [%]: 70 Re-Calibrate parameters	-
Whiteness found: using position [%]:	
Whiteness Difference:	
UV Calibration Methods	1
Color Coord: Cond.: D65/10 (Ganz-Griesser)	
D65/10 (CIE Whiteness	
C (ISO Brightness)	11
	비
Accept Auto-Calibrator	
Close	
SF600         COM1:19200,N, 8,2         Mult.:=4         Tol.:=CieLab F=1.00,DE=1.0         Time left=4:40	_

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Measurement Main Window", select the UV Calibration tab.	
2	Select the "UV Calibration Method".	
3	Specify the whiteness of your "Illumi- nant Checker" sample in the "White- ness of Test Tile" field, and click <b>Auto-Calibrator</b> .	The whiteness difference is calculated and the UV filter is adjusted automati- cally (if the instrument supports it).
4	Repeat the "Auto Calibration" until the "Whiteness Difference" is in the range of 1.5, then click <b>Accept</b> .	

### Instrument Correlation

There is always some variation in performance between different instruments. This difference becomes a part of each color evaluation if the standard and batch measurements are carried out using different instruments. While the inter-instrument agreement specification for Datacolor instruments is very tight when working with very small acceptability tolerances, small variations in instrument performance may have a significant impact on all the color evaluations. Maestro offers the additional "correlation" feature to reduce these performance differences further.

Correlation allows you to adjust the performance of an instrument in order to match it to another reference or "master" instrument. This adjustment is carried out by the application of "correlation" factors calculated using the results of the spectral test. Using the differences between the master measurement and the current measurement, the program calculates a set of factors that are applied to each measurement, and which reduce the color difference between the two measurements. By generating correlation factors for every instrument used in the supply chain, the measurements made by each unit can be adjusted to simulate the performance of a single master unit. The result of this is that the Pass/Fail decisions will reflect the differences in the samples rather than in the instruments used to measure them. These correlation factors are generated using Maestro. The instrument correlation feature is enabled through the instrument driver module, however, which is accessible using any Datacolor program, including Maestro.

Once the correlation factors have been generated, they can be applied to raw measurement data to compensate changes in instrument performance. The adjusted measurement data should then closely resemble the measurement data produced by the master unit.

By designating a single instrument as "master", and generating correlation factors for every instrument used in the supply chain, you can minimize any color differences caused by differences in instrument performance. This allows you to share color data electronically, and you will have the confidence that the instruments' Pass/Fail decisions are accurate evaluations, regardless of the instrument(s) used for the measurement.

#### **Configuring and Enabling the Maestro Correlation Feature**



#### Notes

- **Master Instrument:** You must identify the master instrument. This is the instrument used to generate the master measurements for the reference tile set. When you select "Install" in the Maestro correlation feature, the information about the reference instrument will become available here.
- If the instrument correlation is enabled, all measurement data displayed and stored will be adjusted data.
- Instrument correlation can be enabled/disabled using any Datacolor program. The "Measurement Main Window" is accessed using either an "Instrument" menu or an instrument icon of the Datacolor program you are running.

Measurement Main Window	N	
	<u></u>	
Measurement conditions:         1       Specular:       INCL.       2         4       UV %:       100.0         Image: Single Measurement       Until Tol.       Image: Construction         Image: Options       Single Measurement         Image: Options       Image: Construction         Image: Option       Image: Construction	Aperture:	LAV       3       Flashes:       2         6       Cut-off:       NONE         Instruments Setup       General Options       ☑       UV         Correlation setup:         Correlation setup:         Master instrument:       SF500 228         Manufacturer:       Datacolor         Model:       SF500         Serial number:       228         Geometry:       d/8         Firmware version:       SCI&SCE         Specular:       SCI&SCE         Aperture:       LAV         UV:       UVINC
	Correlatio	n file: C:\Program Files\Datacolor\Correlation Files
Save options		
		Close
SF600 COM1:19200,N, 8,2 Mult.:=4	Tol.:=Cie	eLab F=1.00,DE=1.0 Time left=7:42
Action		Result/Notes
1 In the "Measurement Main W select the General Options		
2 In the left box, click "Correlat	tion".	The "Correlation setup" box appears on the right.
3 Select the master instrument	t.	All information about the master instru- ment selected appears in the corre- sponding fields.
4 Click the button <b>ON</b> to enable correlation feature, resp., the <b>OFF</b> to disable it.		When enabled, each measurement made will be adjusted based on the cor- relation data in the file identified at the bottom of the window.

5 Click **Save options** to save your settings.

### **Green Tile Test**

The green tile test checks the instrument after the calibration. If the test fails the instrument must be calibrated again.

Configure	the	green	tile	test
-----------	-----	-------	------	------

Measurement Main Window	×
Measurement conditions:	
1 Specular: INCL. 2	Aperture: Normal 3 Flashes: 100
4 UV % : 0	6 Cut-off: NONE
🖸 Single 🛛 🛛 Multiple 🛛 🕷 Until Tol. 🖙 C	Calibrate 🛛 🦞 Instruments Setup 👘 General Options 📔
Single Measurement Multiple Measurement	Green Tile Test
	Performs diagnostic tile test after ALWAYS
🦾 🦏 Green Tile Test	Limit for diagnostic tile test 0.5
	Keeps the test results (reflectance)
	Treat failed diagnostic tile test like uncalibrated
	Folder for the green tile data
	Delete diagnostic tiles:standardssamples
	Diagnostic tile test:performs
	Save options
	Close
SIM2000 Com1:9600,N, 8,2 Mult.:=4	Tol.:=CieLab F=1.00,DE=1.0 Time left= 5:5

#### Parameters

Perform diagnostic tile	Values:	ALWAYS	The test is performed after each calibration.
			The test can be skipped. The test is not performed.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the <b>General Options Tab</b> of the "Measurement Main Window", select <b>Green Tile Test</b> .	
2	Set the parameter values, and click <b>Save Options</b> .	

#### Test results:

Diagnostic Test Result		×
Instrument: SIM1000	123455 Moyal Ltd	OK
Reference diagnostic tile:		Print
TEST SIM2000123455 SCI NOR.UVEXC		
Sample diagnostic tile TEST SIM2000123455 SCI NOR.UVEXC 020815 15:08		
Illuminant:         D65/10           Formula:         CMC         L = 2.0         C = 1.0         TF= 0.50		
Brightness L: Chromacity C: Hue h:		
Reference         56.84         31.82         152.23	8	
Sample 56.80 31.76 152.07		
Difference 0.04 0.06 0.16		
CMC delE 0.06		



### Note

- Only CMC 1:2 is used for the test.
- If the test fails, the traffic light is red. If configured, the status of the instrument is set to "not calibrated".

The samples are named as follows:

Green tile test (Standard): ____TEST SF3008 SCI UVINC

Green tile test (Batch): ____TEST SF3008 SCI UVINC 010321 11:46

The name contains the type (SF300), the serial number (8), the measurement condition (SCI UVINC), and (only for samples) the date and the time of the measurement.

The instrument settings and the measurement conditions are displayed in the status bar of the "Measurement Main Window".

Note

### Measurement



The program stores the type (tab) of the last measurement. The tab used for the last measurement appears for each new one.

#### Single measurement using the "Measure Directly" button

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Check that your spectrophotometer is switched on and calibrated.	Refer to Calibrating Your Spectropho- tometer on page 5-10
2	Place the sample into the spectro- photometer.	
3	For a single measurement and if you do not need any parameter alterations, click the <b>Measure Directly</b> button.	The measurement is executed.
4	Click <b>Insert</b> to save the measure- ment.	Inserts a substrate delivery measure- ment into the substrate deliveries, for example.

#### Measurement using the "Measure" button

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Check that your spectrophotometer is switched on and calibrated.	Refer to Calibrating Your Spectropho- tometer on page 5-10.
2	Click the <b>Measure </b> button, or, on the context-sensitive menu, select <b>Measure</b> .	The "Measure" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Measurement Main Window on page 7-15</i> .
3	Select the "Single" tab for a single measurement.	Refer to <i>Single measurement on page</i> 5-20.
	Select the "Multiple" tab for a multiple measurement.	Refer to <i>Multiple measurement on page</i> 5-21.
	Select the "Until Tolerance" tab for an until tolerance measurement.	Refer to Until tolerance measurement on page 5-22.

#### Single measurement

	Action	Result/Notes
4	Place the sample to the spectropho- tometer, and click the <b>Measure</b> but- ton.	The results of the measurement are displayed in the subordinate tabs.
5	Click Close.	The "Measurement" dialog box is closed.
6	Click <b>Insert</b> to save the measure- ment.	Inserts a substrate delivery measure- ment into the substrate deliveries, for example.

#### Multiple measurement

	Action	Result/Notes
4	Place the sample to the spectropho- tometer, and click the <b>Measure</b> but- ton.	The results are displayed in the graph and in the table. Average and deviation are calculated continually.
	For each additional measurement, move the sample and click <b>Measure</b> again.	Refer to <i>Multiple Tab on page 7-16</i> (Measurement Dialog Box.)
5	In the table, cancel the unusable measurements using the mouse. Click <b>Accept Now</b> to save the mea- surement before the specified num- ber is done.	Average and deviation are calculated continually.
6	If the specified number of measure- ments is done, the "Measure" button changes to "Accept". Click <b>Accept</b> to save the measure- ment.	Inserts a substrate delivery measure- ment into the substrate deliveries, for example.
7	Click <b>Close</b> .	The "Measurement" dialog box is closed.

#### Until tolerance measurement

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "General Options" tab, select the <b>Until Tolerance</b> option.	The "Until Tolerance" data box appears.

酱 🛛 Measurement Main Window	
Measurement conditions:         1       Specular:       INCL.       2         4       UV %:       71.9         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement         Image: Single Measurement       Image: Single Measurement<	Aperture:       LAV       3       Flashes:       2         6       Cut-off:       NONE         Calibrate       ♥ Instruments Setup       ● General Options       ⊇       UV         Until Tolerance:       Tolerance Factor       0.8         CieLAB       I = 2.0 c = 1.0         Datacolor       FMC2         Jpc79       M&S89         CIE94       DIN99
	Save options
	Close
SF600 Com1:19200,N, 8,2 Mult.:=4	· · ·

- 2 Select the formula, set the tolerance factor, and click **Save Options**.
- 3 Select the **Until Tolerance** tab.

Measurement Main Window
Measurement conditions:         1         Specular:         INCL.         2         Aperture:         LAV         3         Flashes:         2           4         UV % :         68.0         6         Cut-off:         NONE
🖸 Single 🛛 Multiple 📓 Until Tol. 📲 Calibrate 🖓 Instruments Setup 🖗 General Options 🔹 UV 💶 🕨
< 2 >> DEL. Refresh Color : Nr : L: C: h:
₽ ^{R[%]} 2 78.85 9.65 155.37 2 78.85 9.65 155.38
Brightness L: Chromacity C: Hue     h:
Average : 78.847 9.649 155.377
EDeviation:0.001 0.002 0.006
450 500 550 600 650 700 Total : 2 Selected : 2
Accept now         Dev. (dE):         Accept         Open 2001           0.00146484         Accept         Image: Comparison of the second
Close
SF600 Com1:19200,N, 8,2 Mult.:=4 Tol.:=Cmc F=0.80,l=2.0:c=1.0 Time left= 7:59

4 Place the sample on the spectrophotometer, and click the **Measure** button.

For each additional measurement, move the sample and click **Measure** again.

5 In the table, cancel the unusable measurements using the mouse. Click **Accept Now** to save the measurement before the specified number is done. The results are displayed in the graph and in the table. Average and deviation are calculated continually.

Refer to *Multiple Tab on page 7-16* (Measurement Dialog Box.)

Average and deviation are calculated continually.

# Manual Input and Modification of Samples

Samples can be inserted manually, and existing samples can be modified using the "Sample Input" dialog box.

### **Manual Input of Samples**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On context-sensitive menu of the "Sample" list box, select <b>Sample</b> .	The "Sample Input" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Sample Input Dialog Box on</i> <i>page 7-72</i> .
2	Type the new sample name.	
3	Specify the data to the "Spectral" or the "Coordinates" tab, and click <b>Save</b> .	The new sample is inserted.



#### Note

You can copy an existing sample using the **Save As** button.

### **Modification of Samples**



# Note

Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} synchronizes color type and sample name. If you rename a color type, the sample name will also be modified. The same happens to the color type name if you change a sample name.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On context-sensitive menu of the "Sample" list box, select <b>Sample</b> .	The "Sample Input" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Sample Input Dialog Box on</i> page 7-72.
2	Search and select the sample.	
3	Modify the data in the "Spectral" or the "Coordinates" tab, and click <b>Save</b> .	A warning appears.
4	Confirm the saving.	The sample is overwritten with the mod- ified data.

# Specifying Basic Data

The Basic Data application is used to manage basic data, e.g., substrates, dyestuffs, auxiliaries, etc. The basic data together with the colorant set definitions are prerequisites for the recipe calculation. The basic data is managed using property sheets. Basic data include:

- Quality/Style: Data related to the substrates.
- **Product:** Data related to the dyestuff and auxiliary.
- **Customer:** Data related to the customer.
- **Color Type:** Measured dye sample.
- **Parameters:** Definition of parameters with value ranges for the dyestuff properties.

## **Recommended Sequence of Basic Data Input**

- 1 **Qualities/styles** with the related objects. Refer to *Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Quality/Style on page 5-26.*
- 2 **Products**. Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Product on page 5-34.
- 3 **Customers**. Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Customers on page 5-39.
- 4 **Parameters**. Refer to *Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Parameters on page 5-*40.
- 5 **Color Types**. Refer to *Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Color Type on page 5-*43.

If these data is defined, the colorant sets can be specified. Refer to *Specifying Colorant Sets on page 5-47*.

Note

# Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Quality/Style



The delete, move, copy, and rename functions are only available for users having the corresponding access rights.

Quality/Style is a summary of all data in relation to the substrate and contains:

- Quality/style and substrate
- Affinity (quality/style subgroup)
- Fiber group
- Fiber
- Customer
- Substrate blank dyeing
- Special composition.



This link can be specified in the "Affinity" tab of the "Quality/Style Property" sheet, *if the colorant set is specified*. Refer to *Excluding/Including Colorant Sets from/into An Affinity on page 5-29*.



#### Note

The affinity is used to group qualities/styles. Qualities/styles linked to the same affinity should have the same dye behavior or should be dyed with the same combined process.

Customer	A customer can be assigned to each quality/style.
Substrate - blank dyeing	Reflectance measurement of the substrate and quality/style effect factor.
Colorant set	All related colorant sets are assigned per default. The list can be displayed using the <b>Search Colorant Set</b> button. In the list, colorant sets can be selected and excluded using the <b>Exclude</b> button.

Special composition

Used for altering the parts of a composed quality. *Example:* In a composition of polyester, cotton and Lycra, the Lycra cannot be dyed. If you do not set the Lycra part to 0%, a recipe is also calculated for the Lycra part.

				C	Dista	- 11777g
ĪD	Special Composition for Qu	ality/	Style			×
<u>A</u> uxID	Quality/Style Mungo Stretch					ĺ
Customer	Affinity PES/CO/LYC 70/25/5	_				
	Fibers		Fiber Name	Fiber Part		
Affinity		1	Polyester	70.00		
		2	Cotton	25.00		
Grey Quality			Lycra	0.00	)	
Lab. Note:						
Prod. Note:						
Туре			Reset	jave	Clos	e
SpecialComp-	Modify		S <u>u</u> bstrateDelive	ery	Sub	ostrate - <u>b</u>

### Specifying A New Quality/Style

It is recommended to specify the objects in the following sequence:

- 1 Fiber
- 2 Fiber group
- 3 Affinity
- 4 Customer

#### Caution

When using the "Affinity SmartMatch" matching method, it is imperative that only qualities with the same dye behavior are linked to an affinity. Otherwise, the results of matching will be unusable.

- 5 Quality/style
- 6 Substrate blank dyeing

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Quality/Style Property" sheet.	Refer to <i>Quality/Style Property Sheet</i> on page 7-22 for information about the parameters.
2	Select the "Fiber" tab. Open the fiber list using the browse button. If the list is not complete, specify the additional fibers in the "Fiber" tab.	Refer to Browse and Selecting on page 5-2 and Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects on page 5-8.
3	Specify the fiber group.	Refer to Fiber Group Tab on page 7-25.

- 4 Affinity: If there is more than one fiber in the fiber group, specify the parts (in%, *the summary must be* **100%**) of the single fibers.
- 5 In the "Affinity" tab, exclude colorant set(s), if requested.
- 6 Specify the data of the "Quality/ Style" tab and click **Insert**.
- 7 If the Substrate Blank Dyeing button is activated, you have not measured a substrate. Click Substrate - Blank Dyeing to measure the first substrate delivery.

If you have to measure a new substrate delivery, click **Substrate Delivery**.

- 8 Measure a sample of the delivered substrate.
- 9 Click Save.

Refer to Excluding/Including Colorant Sets from/into An Affinity on page 5-29.

If requested, refer to Using SmartMatch Points for other Qualities on page 5-31.

The quality/style is created. The **Sub**strate - **Blank Dyeing** and the **Sub**strate **Delivery** are activated.

The "Substrate Delivery Dialog" box appears. Refer to *Substrate Delivery Dialog Box on page* 7-27 for information about the parameters.

Refer to *Substrate Delivery: Example on page 5-30* for an example.

Refer to Calibrating Your Spectrophotometer on page 5-10 and Measurement on page 5-20.

The new quality/style is created.



### Note

Fields marked with a red * are mandatory.

ID F	PES-TEX			1		
					Creation Date Modification User ID	4/8/99 2/9/00 DCI
Fiber <u>G</u> roup	PES	Fiber Part		···· ,	•S Dyeset	earch Dyesets
Polyester		100.00	Total 1	*Foron RD PES (108) *Disperse Dispersol *Disperse Terasil *Foron E <b>Foron RD</b> *Palanil	k	

### Excluding/Including Colorant Sets from/into An Affinity



### Note

The possible links from colorant sets to affinities are not displayed immediately if you scroll through the list of affinities. Instead, click the **Search Colorant Sets** 

Search Dyesets button to see which links are defined or excluded (marked with *).

### an *).

It can take several minutes to find all colorant sets valid for an affinity, depending on the number of items in the database. The list of affinities and colorant sets is filtered to avoid the definition of incorrect links.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	<b>Exclude:</b> Select an included colo- rant set ( <i>not</i> marked with an *) and click <b>Exclude</b> .	
	Include: Select an excluded colo- rant set (marked with an *) and click Include.	



### Note

The number of colorant sets linked to the current affinity is displayed under "Total."

### Substrate Delivery: Example

Example for Blends PES/CO 70/30. Refer to *Substrate Delivery Dialog Box* for more information.

SubstrateDelivery Dialog	×
Quality/Style Q17642 PES/CO 70/30	Creation Date 2/9/00 Modification
SubstrateDelivery           New         Q17642 PES/CO 70/30 2:9:00           Sample         Sample	User ID DCI
Fibers Fiber Name	Effect Measure
Cotton Polyester	
	te Close

If you want to measure only the total substrate, it is sufficient to do it only once. No measurements are needed for an individual fiber.

If you have burned out the cotton, you can measure the polyester skeleton, pressing the **Measure** button in the fiber row "Polyester."

Substrate	Delivery Dialog		×	
Quality	Q17642 PES/CO 70/30	Creation Date Modification	2/9/00	
- Substrat <u>N</u> ew	eDelivery Q17642 PES/CO 70/30 2:9:00 Sample Sample Measure	User ID		Total Substrate
Fibers				
Color	Fiber Name	Effect	Measure	
	Cotton		👩	PES
2	Polyester	[		skeleton
				Choroton
	<u>S</u> ave <u>D</u> elete		Close	

In the example above, the total substrate is measured and stored with the substrate delivery and the polyester skeleton is stored together with the substrate delivery fiber "Polyester." These substrate delivery measurements are used for recipe calculations.

# Note

- If it is possible to separate all fibers, you can measure all.
- The **Measure** buttons become inactive if the substrate delivery is linked to a recipe.

### Substrate Delivery with Colorant Set Dependent Effects

Substrate deliveries can be used with colorant (dye) set dependent effects:

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Substrate Delivery" dialog box, click the <b>Effect</b> button.	The "Substrate Delivery Effect" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box</i> .
2	Select the colorant set(s) (colorant set) and click <b>Insert</b> .	The selected colorant set is added to the table.
3	Type the requested effect into the "Effect" column.	
4	Click Close.	The "Substrate Delivery Effect" dialog box closes.

s	ubstral	te Delivery Effect Dialog		×
		teDelivery 2 PES/CO 70/30-1		
		Fiber Name	Dyeset	Effect
	1	Cotton	Levafix SPB (Soda)	1
	2	Cotton	Remazol SPB (Silicate)	1
	Inser	t an new Effect for a Dyeset		
		📓 💳 Remazol SPB (Silicate)		Insert
		Save	Delete	Close

### Using SmartMatch Points for other Qualities

Check "Use Affinity SmartMatch", if SmartMatch points of all the qualities linked with the same affinity should be used.



•

When this method of SmartMatch matching, it is imperative that only qualities with the same dye behavior are linked to an affinity. Otherwise, the results of matching are unusable.

Note

### **Overwriting Measurements of Substrate Deliveries**



Overwriting a measurement of a substrate delivery is only possible if the substrate delivery is not linked to other data such as recipes etc. If a sample is linked to a recipe and the measurement is not correct, you will have to delete the recipe, correctly remeasure the sample and calculate the recipe again.

#### Example:



	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Quality/Style Property" sheet.	Refer to <i>Quality/Style Property Sheet on page</i> 7-22 for information about the parameters.
2	<i>Modifying:</i> Select the quality/style, alter the data, and click <b>Save</b> .	
	You can specify an additional sub- strate using the "Substrate Delivery" button.	
	<b>Deleting:</b> Select the quality/style, click <b>Delete</b> , and confirm the deletion.	

### Modifying and Deleting A Quality/Style

#### Deletion of substrate delivery samples



#### Note

- If you delete a substrate delivery from the quality, you can also delete the reflectance sample. Check the corresponding check box.
- If you delete a substrate delivery in the explorer view, the sample is not deleted.
- Remember that the substrate delivery can only be deleted if there is no link to other data.

# Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Product



The delete, move, copy, and rename functions are only available for users having the corresponding access rights.

A Product is either a dyestuff or an auxiliary.

#### Dyestuff

Note



* Supplier dye name, dyestuff type, dye description, and dyestuff color can be used to compose the product name.

### **Specifying A New Product**

It is recommended to specify the subordinate objects first.



- The stock solution defines dilutions used to optimize pipetting in the laboratory. Refer to *Specifying A Stock Solution on page 5-36* for new stock solution tables.
- Stock solutions can be specified for dyestuffs and auxiliaries, for "exhaust" and "continuous" processes.
- Stock solutions are only selectable if the "Stock Solution" is checked in the "Options" dialog box.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Product Property" sheet.	Refer to <i>Product Property Sheet on page</i> 7-31 for information about the parameters.
2	Specify the parameters of a new dyestuff in the "Dyestuff" tab or the parameters for a new auxiliary in the "Auxiliary" tab. The other tabs are used to specify new subordinate objects.	Refer to <i>Browse and Selecting on page</i> 5-2 and <i>Specifying, Modifying and</i> <i>Deleting Objects on page</i> 5-8.
3	Click Insert.	The new product is created.



### Note

Fields marked with a red * are mandatory.

### Modifying and Deleting A Product

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Product Property" sheet.	Refer to <i>Product Property Sheet on page 7-31</i> for information about the parameters.
2	<i>Modifying:</i> Select the product, alter the data, and click <b>Save</b> .	
	<i>Deleting:</i> Select the product, click <b>Delete</b> , and confirm the deletion.	

### **Specifying A Stock Solution**



### Note

- The stock solution defines dilutions used to optimize pipetting in the laboratory.
- Stock solutions can be specified for dyestuffs and auxiliaries, for "exhaust" and "continuous" processes.
- Stock solutions are only selectable if the "Stock Solution" is checked in the "Options" dialog box.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Stock Solution" of the "Prod- uct Property" sheet, specify a name for the new stock solution.	
	Refer to <i>Stock Solution Tab on page</i> 7-41 for information about the parameters.	
2	Insert the values according to your needs.	
3	Click Insert.	The new stock solution is created.



### Note

Fields marked with a red * are mandatory.

# Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Dye Process



Note

The delete, move, copy, and rename functions are only available for users having the corresponding access rights.

The dye process contains dye class and process type.

### **Specifying A New Dye Process**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Dye Process Property Sheet."	Refer to <i>Dye Process Property Sheet</i> on page 7-29 for information about the parameters.
2	Specify name and identification of the new dye process.	
3	Specify the parameters of the "Dye Process" and the "Process Factor" tabs.	Refer to Specifying dye fiber groups on page 5-37, Browse and Selecting on page 5-2, and Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects on page 5-8.
4	Click Insert.	The dye process is created.

#### Specifying dye fiber groups

<ol> <li>In the table of the "Dye Process" tab (Dye Process Property Sheet), dou- ble-click into an empty row.</li> <li>Select the fiber(s) that can be dyed in the same bath, and click <b>OK</b>.</li> <li>Repeat steps 1 and 2 to define addi- tional dye fiber groups.</li> <li>The "Dye Fiber Group for Dye Process" dialog box appears.</li> <li>The dialog box closes and the selected fiber(s) are displayed in the table row.</li> </ol>		Action	Result/Notes
<ul> <li>in the same bath, and click <b>OK</b>. fiber(s) are displayed in the table row.</li> <li>Repeat steps 1 and 2 to define addi- Refer to the note below.</li> </ul>	1	(Dye Process Property Sheet), dou-	
	2		•
	3		Refer to the note below.



### Not

Each row defines a dye fiber group to be dyed in the same bath.

inter the byenbergroups, (throup of fiber(s) ayed in the same bath.				
	Fibers(s)			
1	co	MO		
2	VI			
3	CO			
4				

Fields marked with a red * are mandatory.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Dye Process Property Sheet."	Refer to <i>Dye Process Property Sheet</i> <i>on page</i> 7-29 for information about the parameters.
2	<i>Modifying:</i> Select the dye process, alter the data, and click <b>Save</b> .	
	<i>Deleting:</i> Select the dye process, click <b>Delete</b> , and confirm the dele-tion.	

### **Modifying and Deleting A Dye Process**

# Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Dye Class

### Specifying A New Dye Class

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Dye Class" tab of the "Product Property Sheet."	Refer to Dye Class Tab on page 7-36.
2	Specify name and identification of the new dye class.	Refer to Browse and Selecting on page 5-2 and Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects on page 5-8.
3	If necessary, specify the parameters in the table.	Refer to <i>General table functions on page 5-7</i> .
4	Click Insert.	The dye class is created.



### Note

Fields marked with a red ***** are mandatory.

## Modifying and Deleting A Dye Class

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Product Property Sheet."	Refer to <i>Dye Process Property Sheet</i> <i>on page 7-29</i> for information about the parameters.
2	<i>Modifying:</i> Select the dye class, alter the data, and click <b>Save</b> .	
	<i>Deleting:</i> Select the dye class, click <b>Delete</b> , and confirm the deletion.	

# Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Customers

The customer data contains name, identification, tolerance details, and status.

#### Specifying A New Customer

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Customer Property Sheet."	
	Refer to <i>Customer Property Sheet</i> <i>on page 7-43</i> for information about the parameters.	
2	Specify name, identification, and data of the new customer.	Refer to Browse and Selecting on page 5-2 and Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects on page 5-8.
3	Click Insert.	The data of the new customer is creat- ed.
4	Click the <b>Address</b> button.	The "Address" dialog box appears Refer to <i>Address Dialog Box on page 7-</i> <i>44</i> .
5	Specify the address, and click <b>Save</b> and <b>Close</b> .	The address is inserted and the "Address" dialog box closes.



# Note

Fields marked with a red * are mandatory.

### Modifying and Deleting A Customer

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Customer Property" sheet.	Refer to <i>Customer Property Sheet on</i> page 7-43 for information about the parameters.
2	<i>Modifying:</i> Select the customer, alter the data, and click <b>Save</b> .	
	<b>Deleting:</b> Select the customer, click <b>Delete</b> , and confirm the deletion.	

# Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Parameters

The parameter values (e.g. "fastness") are defined in a colorant set for each dye, and used to set limits for the recipe calculation.

### **Specifying A Parameter**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Parameter Definition Dia- log" box.	Refer to <i>Parameter Definition Dialog</i> <i>Box on page</i> 7-57 for information about the parameters.
2	Specify the parameter name, the type, and the values.	Refer to Browse and Selecting on page 5-2 and Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects on page 5-8.
3	Click Insert.	The data of the new Parameter is creat- ed.



### Note

The "Formula Setting" button is used for production. Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} uses only the **Calculate without Print** button to exclude the parameters from printing.

Fields marked with a red * are mandatory.

### Modifying and Deleting A Parameter

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Parameter Definition Dia- log" box.	Refer to <i>Parameter Definition Dialog</i> <i>Box on page</i> 7-57 for information about the parameters.
2	<i>Modifying:</i> Select the parameter, alter the data, and click <b>Save</b> .	
	<i>Deleting:</i> Select the parameter, click <b>Delete</b> , and confirm the deletion.	

### **Parameter Examples**

#### Parameter type "String Value"

Parameter Defini	tion				×
<u>N</u> ame	€ No Folder ≓Lightfastness 1/1				
ĪD	L 1/1			Creation Date	6/22/99
AuxID				Modification User ID	DCI
Parameter Type	String value				
Unit		~			
Note	Seve	Delete	<u></u> lear		Close

This fastness parameter is used in the colorant set program:

н				 
ļ	2	Lightfastness 1/1	L 1/1	5

#### Parameter type "List Box"

Parameter Definit	ion		×
Name	Lolored discharge dark		
ĪD	COL DISCH D	Creation Date Modification	6/22/99
AuxID		User ID	DCI
Parameter Type	Listbox	Text Lis	t
Unit	1 Yes 2 Partly		
Note			
	<u>Gave</u> <u>D</u> elete <u>D</u> elete	]	Close

This fastness parameter is used in the colorant set program:

10	Colored discharge dark	COL DISCH D	Yes	ľ
			Partly	
			No	

#### Parameter type "Value"

Parameter Defin	ition					×
Name	🛃 No Folder 🚍 Batching Time					
ĪD	BAT-T			Creation Date Modification	2/9/00	
<u>A</u> uxID				User ID	DCI	
Parameter Type	Value	•				
Unit	h					
Note	Save	Delete	<u></u> [ear			
						Close

This parameter is used for a rule: The batching time depends on a combined process.

# Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Color Type

Measured color pattern. A color type is substrate-independent. A color type is a standard and can be linked to a recipe.

### Specifying A New Color Type

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Color Type Property Sheet."	Refer to <i>Color Type Property Sheet on page 7-45</i> for information about the parameters.
2	Specify the name and the additional parameters.	Refer to Browse and Selecting on page 5-2 and Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects on page 5-8.
3	Measure the sample.	Refer to Measurement on page 5-20.
4	If the measurement is finished, click <b>Insert</b> .	The data of the new color type is creat- ed.



### Note

Fields marked with a red * are mandatory.

### Modifying and Deleting A Color Type

	h
	γ
+IIE	
19	

### Note

Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} synchronizes color type and sample name. If you rename a color type the sample name is also modified. The same happens to the color type name if you change a sample name.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Color Type Property" sheet.	Refer to <i>Color Type Property Sheet on page 7-45</i> for information about the parameters.
2	<i>Modifying:</i> Select the color type, alter the data, and click <b>Save</b> .	
	<i>Deleting:</i> Select the color type, click <b>Delete</b> , and confirm the deletion.	

# Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances

### Specifying A New Tolerance

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Tolerance Block Program" dialog box.	Refer to <i>Tolerance Block Program Dia-</i> <i>log Box on page</i> 7-46 for information about the parameters.
2	Specify the tolerance name	
3	Select the requested tab and specify the tolerance values.	Refer to <i>Browse and Selecting on page</i> 5-2 and <i>Specifying, Modifying and</i>
	For Datacolor pass/fail formula refer to the following section.	Deleting Objects on page 5-8.
4	Click <b>Save</b> .	The new tolerance is created.
### Datacolor pass/fail formula

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the "Datacolor" tab.	
2	Specify the tolerance name	
3	<ul> <li>Click Datacolor Block Training for tolerance block calculation based on visually excepted stan- dards and the related batches.</li> </ul>	The "Datacolor Tolerance Block" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>CieLab Tab on page 7-47</i> for information about the parameters.
	<ul> <li>For changing the formula, click Diff. Formula and select the for- mula.</li> </ul>	The "Select Difference Formula" dialog box appears.
	Select or measure the standard and the related batches.	In the table, the batches are listed. All batches with a CMC color difference <= 1 are selected automatically. Click the refused batches to select.
	Select other colors (standards and batches) to specify a color- independent tolerance block.	Select at least all colors you want to proof to get a useful tolerance block.
	Click <b>Apply</b> .	The "Datacolor Tolerance Block" dialog box closes.
	<ul> <li>Click Block Manual Input for a manual input of tolerance values.</li> </ul>	The "Manual Input of Tolerance Values" dialog box appears Refer to <i>Manual Input of Tolerance Val-</i> <i>ues Dialog Box on page 7-56</i> for infor- mation about the parameters.
	Select or measure the standard and specify the tolerance values.	
	Click <b>Apply</b>	The "Manual Input Tolerance Values" dialog box closes.
4	Click Save.	The new tolerance is created.



# Note

A Datacolor tolerance block can be modified by adding more standards and batches.

# **Displaying Datacolor Tolerance Values**

	Action	Result/Notes		
1	Select the requested "Datacolor" tol- erance.			
2	Click Tolerance Values.	The "Tolerance Value Output" dialog box appears.		
		Refer to Tolerance Block Program Dia- log Box on page 7-46.		
3	Select or measure the requested batch.	The tolerance values are displayed.		

# Modifying and Deleting Tolerance Values

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Tolerance Block Program" dialog box.	Refer to <i>Tolerance Block Program Dia-</i> <i>log Box on page</i> 7-46 for information about the parameters.
2	<i>Modifying:</i> Select the tolerance, alter the data, and click <b>Save</b> .	
	<i>Deleting:</i> Select the tolerance, click <b>Delete</b> , and confirm the deletion.	

# **Specifying Colorant Sets**

Note



The delete, move, copy, and rename functions are only available for users having the corresponding access rights.

# Introduction

A colorant set is a set of color information about the substrate and dyes the system uses to produce match and correction recipes. It contains...

- information about the overall colorant set, e.g., the substrate and process that will be used with the dyes;
- product information about each dye, e.g., strength, minimum and maximum concentrate;
- color information about each dye;



# **Specifying A Colorant Set**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Colorant Set List" window.	
2	On the "Colorant Set" or the context-	The "Colorant Sets" window appears.
	sensitive menu, select New → Textile.	Refer to <i>Colorant Set Window on page</i> 7-77 for information about the parame- ters.
		For the colorant set type
		• "Textile, Alternate Substrate" refer to Specifying A Colorant Set for An Alternate Substrate on page 5-55.
		• "Textile Printing with Dyes": In addi- tion, an extender must be selected. Refer also to <i>Completing An</i> <i>Imported Textile Printing Colorant</i> <i>Set on page 5-57</i> .
3	Specify the name and the identifica- tion of the new colorant set.	Refer to <i>Browse and Selecting on page</i> 5-2 and <i>Specifying objects on page</i> 5-9.
4	A click in the "Dye Process", "Sub- strate Delivery" and "Operation" field opens the corresponding selection box.	
	Select <b>Input Form</b> on the context- sensitive menu of the selection box to specify a new object.	Refer to Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects on page 5-8.
5	Click Store.	The new colorant set is created.
		The fiber is saved as a "Dye Fiber Group" in the dye process.
		Continue with <i>Specifying Colorants and Calibration Samples on page 5-50.</i>



### Note

If you want to store the auxiliaries used for the calibration dyeings, you can define an auxiliary recipe before you start to prepare dyestuffs. These auxiliaries are used for all dyestuffs added to the colorant set later on. If the concentration of a product depends on the dyestuff concentration, however, you must adjust it individually.

Refer to Auxiliary Recipes on page 5-49.

### **Auxiliary Recipes**

If you want to store the auxiliaries used for the calibration dyeings, you can define an auxiliary recipe before you start to prepare dyestuffs. These auxiliaries are used for all dyestuffs added to the colorant set later on. If the concentration of a product depends on the dyestuff concentration, however, you must adjust it individually.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Colorant Sets" window, click <b>Auxiliary Recipe</b> .	The "Introduce Your Complementary Components in Calibration Series" dia- log box appears.
2	Click <b>New</b> to select or specify a product.	The corresponding selection box appears.
Edi	t / replace 'Product'	×
×	{All Data}	
÷		
	ОК	Cancel
-		
3	Select the product and click <b>OK</b> . To specify a new product, select <b>Input Form</b> on the context-sensitive menu of the selection box.	
4	Select the corresponding field and press the space bar to specify the values.	The unit is set automatically if a default unit is specified for the selected product in the "Formula Setup" dialog box.
		Refer to <i>Product Property Sheet on</i> page 7-31 and <i>Formula Setting Dialog</i> Box on page 7-42
5	Click <b>OK</b> if finished.	The auxiliaries are displayed for each calibration sample in the "Components of One Calibration Series" dialog box. You can change the concentration or add other auxiliaries here. These modifications are only valid for the selected calibration dyeing. Refer to <i>Specifying Colorants and Calibration Samples on page 5-50</i> .

	Action	Result/Notes
1	If the header information is filled in and an auxiliary recipe is defined, click <b>New</b> to add colorants to the col- orant set.	The "Create Calibration Series" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Create Calibration Series Dia-</i> <i>log Box on page</i> 7-82.
2	Select the colorant you want to cali- brate.	
	If the colorant is new, click <b>New</b> to specify a dyestuff.	Refer to Specifying A New Product on page 5-35.
3	Type in the concentrations of your calibration samples, separated by a blank or a comma.	The colorant name plus the concentra- tion is used for sample name (field "Sample"). You can modify the sample name in the "Prefix" field.
4	Click <b>Measure</b> to measure the cali- bration samples.	
5	If all calibration samples have been measured, press <b>Accept</b> to return to the "Colorant Set" window.	The K/S values are calculated automat- ically using the default method "Mea- sured".

### **Specifying Colorants and Calibration Samples**

If you open a Colorant set containing colorants not calibrated, a message box appears for a few seconds when you open the colorant set the next time.



### Note

- You can select a range of colorants. Click **Accept** to save the colorants without measuring the calibration samples. The colorants are saved to the colorant set.
- -1.0000 and a red background color in the dE field indicate that no calibration samples are assigned to the colorant.
- If you click one of the colorants without calibration samples, the "Create Calibration Series" dialog box appears and you can select the calibration samples from the database or measure the samples.
- If you open a colorant set containing colorants that are not calibrated, a message box appears for a few seconds.

### **Re-measure, Deleting or Move Calibration Samples**

The calibration samples are listed automatically by ascending concentration.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the calibration sample and open the context-sensitive menu.	
2	Select the requested action.	The move works like the moving of colorants. Refer to <i>Moving Colorants on page 5-51</i> .

### **Moving Colorants**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the required colorant and move it using the <b>Up</b> and <b>Down</b> but-tons.	

RGB	Product [17]
1	Remazol Brilliant Yellow 4GL Gran.
2	Remazol Yellow GR
3	Remazol Yellow R Gran.
4	Remazol Golden Yellow RNL gran. 150%
5	Remazol Red 3B
6	Remazol Brilliant Red F3B Gran.
7	Remazol Brilliant Red 3B5 Gran.
8	Remazol Red RB gran. 133%
9	Remazol Brilliant Blue BB gran. 133%
10	Remazol Brilliant Blue R Spec. Gran
11	Remazol Brilliant Blue RN New.
12	Remazol Blue RR Gran.
13	Remazol Navy Blue R-GB Gran.
14	Remazol Navy GG gran.
15	Remazol Black B gran. 133%
16	Remazol Black RL
	Remazol Brilliant Green 6B
18	H2O

- 2 Repeat the actions 1 to 2 until all colorants are placed correctly.
- 3 Click **OK**.

The new sequence of the colorants is saved.

### Using the Graphical Display

Click anywhere in the green fields of the Product control grid to obtain the context-sensitive menu for all graphical options.

### Examples



### Using two graphs

This option shows two graphs boxes with either graphical displays of two products or two different graph types for one product. The option toggles between one and two graphical displays.



### Note

The function "Use 2 graphs" works only if a graph is being displayed, e.g., if you have selected the function "Show tables", the function "Use 2 graphs" does not work.

#### Examples

The left graph always shows the curves of the currently selected colorant. The right graph shows the curves of the previously selected colorant.



You can display two different types of curves for one colorant.



Note

# **Remove A Dyestuff from A Colorant Set**



Generally, you can only remove a colorant from a colorant set if the colorant (as a component of this colorant set) is not linked to other data.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the colorant and open the context-sensitive menu.	
2	Select Delete Colorant.	The program checks wether the colo- rant is linked to other data and removes it from the colorant set if there are no links.
		If the dyestuff is linked, a dialog box with the names of the first 20 linked items appears.
		Click <b>Show All</b> to search the entire database for linked data. This may take some time. All linked data will be listed when the search process is finished.
		If you are sure that the colorant should be removed from the colorant set, click <b>Delete All</b> to delete all linked data now. Linked data could be: current recipes, matching tables, correction tables and SmartMatch points.
		Caution: You cannot undo this action.

# Specifying A Colorant Set for An Alternate Substrate



Note

This function can build a colorant set with information based on a few calibration dyeings made on the new substrate. The colorant should cover the complete spectrum in order to generate enough information about the colorant build-up on the new substrate.

The calculation of the "correlated" colorant set is based on an existing colorant set and on the information calculated from the calibration dyeings on the new substrate.

The quality of such a colorant set depends strongly on a similar dyeing behavior of all colorants to the colorant used to calculate the correlation parameters.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Colorant Set List" window.	
2	On the "Colorant Set" or the context- sensitive menu, select New → Textile, Alternate Substrate.	The "Alternate Substrate Information" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Alternate Substrate Information</i> <i>Dialog Box on page</i> 7-84.
3	Select the reference colorant set.	The best colorant for calibration is auto- matically selected.
4	Select or specify the new substrate.	
5	Click <b>Sample</b> to measure the cali- bration samples.	Substrate.Dialog Box on page 7-84.e colorant set.The best colorant for calibration is automatically selected.e new substrate.The "Create Calibration Series" dialog box appears. Refer to Create Calibration Series Dialog Box on page 7-82.on samples from easure them.The "Create Calibration Series" dialog box closes. Results are displayed in the graph and in the table. Refer to Review of the results on page 5-56.
6	Select the calibration samples from the database or measure them.	
7	Click <b>Accept</b> .	box closes. Results are displayed in the
8	Check the results.	
9	Click <b>Accept</b> , if the results are OK.	ated when you accept the correlation data. The type of interpolation is set to

# Review of the results

### Graphs:

### Scattering versus concentrationScattering versus wavelength



The smaller the standard deviation of the scattering, the better the correlated data.

### Table:

- The columns dE2* and dE Model2* are normally empty. They are only filled in if the calibration series (colorant set) of the new substrate exists for the same colorants as the ones to be correlated. In this case, you will be given information about the quality of the correlation. Refer to *Alternate Substrate Information Dialog Box on page 7-84*.
- The dE1* is the mean CIELab color difference of the colorants in the source colorant set.
- The dE2* is the mean CIELab color difference of the colorants in the colorant set for the alternative substrate (does not exist normally).
- The dE Model2* represents the mean CIELab color difference and standard deviation for the correlated data.

С

# **Completing An Imported Textile Printing Colorant Set**

The extender used by Datamatch printing colorant sets is not transferred during database conversion. These colorant sets can be completed in Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} with the "colorant set" program if the extender should be used in recipe calculation. The extender is a normal product with price etc. It is printed in the laboratory recipe printout in the matching program.

Dye Class       Acid         dE [Sigma]       0.00 [ 0.0]         Jinit       g/kg         Dye Process       * Keine Angaben. Muß noch ein         Creation Date       09.11. 1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       09.11. 1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       09.11. 1999 11:44:05         Industry Type       * Textil         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS 0000 Seide         LiqRatioOrPlickup       c         Operation       c         Colorant Calibration         Operation       c         Dye Class       Acid         dE [Sigma]       0.00 [ 0.0]         Unit       g/kg         Dye Class       Acid         dE [Sigma]       0.00 [ 0.0]         Unit       g/kg         Dye Process       * Printing Silk         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         industry Type       * Textil	ColorantSet	Values		-			
dE [Sigma]       0.00 [ 0.0]         Jnit       g/kg         Ope Process       * Keine Angaben. Muß noch ein         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Industry Type       * Textil         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS 0000 Seide         LiqRatioOrPickup       © Colorant calibration         Operation       © ColorantSet       Values         AuxID          Type       Continue         Dye Class       Acid         dE [Sigma]       0.00 [ 0.0]         Unit       g/kg         Dye Process       * Printing Silk         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Modification Date       * Presting Silk         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide	Туре	Continue	e				
Unit g/kg Dye Process * Keine Angaben. Muß noch ein Creation Date 09.11. 999 11:44:05 Modification Date 09.11. 999 11:44:05 Industry Type * rextil Substrate Delivery * PRSMS 0000 Seide LigRatioOrPickup C 000 Operation Deperation ColorantSet Values AuxID Type Continue Dye Class Acid dE [Sigma] 0.00 [ 0.0] Unit g/kg Dye Process * Printing Silk Creation Date 09.11.1999 11:44:05 Modification Date 09.11.1999 11:44:05 Modification Date 11.02.2002 15:17:48 <i>industry Type</i> * rexPrinting (dyestuff) × Substrate Delivery * PRSMS0000 Seide	Dye Class	Acid					
Dye Process       * Keine Angaben. Muß noch ein         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Industry Type       * Textil         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS 0000 Seide         LigRatioOrPickup       C.000         Colorant calibration         Operation         ColorantSet       Values         AuxID         Type       Continue         Dye Class       Acid         dE [Sigma]       0.00 [ 0.0]         Unit       g/kg         Dye Process       * Printing Silk         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         AuxID       * Tex-Printing (dyestuff) *         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide	dE [Sigma]	0.00 [	0.0]				
Creation Date 09.11. 999 11:44:05 Modification Date 09.11. 999 11:44:05 Industry Type * Textil Substrate Delivery * PRSMS 0000 Seide LigRatioOrPickup C.000 Operation Deperation ColorantSet Values AuxID Type Continue Dye Class Acid dE [Sigma] 0.00 [ 0.0] Unit g/kg Dye Process * Printing Silk Creation Date 09.11.1999 11:44:05 Modification Date 11.02.2002 15:17:48 Modification Date 11.02.2002	Unit	g/kg					
Wodification Date 09.11.   Industry Type *   Textil •   Substrate Delivery *   PRSMS 0000 Seide     LiqRatioOrPickup C.000   Operation Colorant calibration     ColorantSet Values     AuxID   Type   ColorantSet   Values   AuxID     Type   ColorantSet   Values     AuxID     Type   ColorantSet   Values     AuxID     Type   Continue   Dye Class   Acid   dE [Sigma]   0.00 [ 0.0]   Unit   g/kg   Dye Process   *   Printing Silk   Creation Date   09.11.1999 11:44:05   Modification Date   11.02.2002 15:17:48   Modification Date   Substrate Delivery   *   Extender	Dye Process	* Keine Ar	ngaben. Muß noch ein…				
Industry Type * Textil Substrate Delivery * PRSMS 0000 Seide  IgRatioOrPickup Operation  Colorant Calibration  ColorantSet Values  Colorant ColorantSet Values  Colora	Creation Date	09.11.19	999 11:44:05				
Substrate Delivery       *       PRSMS D000 Seide         LigRatioOrPickup       C.000       Colorant calibration         Operation       ColorantSet       Values         AuxID       Values         AuxID       Values         Operation       Values         ColorantSet       Values         AuxID       Values         Operation       Values         ColorantSet       Values         AuxID       Values         Operation       Values         ColorantSet       Values         AuxID       Values         Operation       Values         AuxID       Values         Operation       Values         Operation       Values         Operation       Values         Operation       Values         Operation       Values         Operation       Operation	Modification Date	09.11.19	999 11:44:05				
Jobstitute Delivery       Principation Sector Sector         LigRatioOrPickup       C.000         Operation       Colorant calibration         ColorantSet       Values         AuxID       Values         Type       Continue         Dye Class       Acid         Depression       Printing Silk         Dye Process       * Printing Silk         Oreation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Industry Type       * Tex-Printing (dyestuff)         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide         Extender       * Extender 1	Industry Type	* Textil	-				
Color ant Council Control         Color ant Set       Values         AuxID       Type         Type       Continue         Dye Class       Acid         dE [Sigma]       0.00 [ 0.0]         Unit       g/kg         Dye Process       * Printing Silk         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Industry Type       * Tex-Printing (dyestuff)         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide         Extender       * Extender 1	Substrate Delivery	* PRSMSD	000 Seide				
ColorantSet   AuxID   Type   Continue   Dye Class   Acid   dE [Sigma]   0.00 [ 0.0]   Unit   g/kg   Dye Process   Printing Silk   Creation Date   09.11.1999 11:44:05   Modification Date   11.02.2002 15:17:48   Substrate Delivery   PRSMS0000 Seide   Extender	.iqRatioOrPickup	0.000	Colorant calibrati	on			
AuxID I   Type Continue   Dye Class Acid   dE [Sigma] 0.00 [ 0.0]   Unit g/kg   Dye Process * Printing Silk   Creation Date 09.11.1999 11:44:05   Modification Date 11.02.2002 15:17:48   Substrate Delivery * PRSMS0000 Seide   Extender * Extender 1	Operation						
Type Continue   Dye Class Acid   dE [Sigma] 0.00 [ 0.0]   Unit g/kg   Dye Process * Printing Silk   Creation Date 09.11.1999 11:44:05   Modification Date 11.02.2002 15:17:48   Industry Type * Tex-Printing (dyestuff)   Substrate Delivery * PRSMS0000 Seide   Extender * Extender 1			ColorantSet		Values		-
Dye Class       Acid         Dye Class       Acid         dE [Sigma]       0.00 [ 0.0]         Unit       g/kg         Dye Process       * Printing Silk         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide         Extender       * Extender 1			AuxID				
dE [Sigma]       0.00 [ 0.0]         Unit       g/kg         Dye Process       * Printing Silk         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Industry Type       * Tex-Printing (dyestuff)         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide         Extender       * Extender 1					Continue		
Unit       g/kg         Dye Process       * Printing Silk         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Industry Type       * Tex-Printing (dyestuff)         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide         Extender       * Extender 1							
Dye Process       * Printing Silk         Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Industry Type       * Tex-Printing (dyestuff)         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide         Extender       * Extender 1			dE [Sigma]		0.00 [ 0.0]		
Creation Date       09.11.1999 11:44:05         Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Industry Type       * Tex-Printing (dyestuff)         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide         Extender       * Extender 1			Unit		g/kg		
Modification Date       11.02.2002 15:17:48         Industry Type       * Tex-Printing (dyestuff)         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide         Extender       * Extender 1			Dye Process	*	Printing Silk		
Industry Type       * Tex-Printing (dyestuff)         Substrate Delivery       * PRSMS0000 Seide         Extender       * Extender 1			Creation Date		09.11.1999 11:44:05		
Substrate Delivery * PRSMS0000 Seide			Modification Date		11.02.2002 15:17:48		
Extender * Extender 1			industry Type	- +	Tex-Printing (dyestuff)	-	
Exterider T			Substrate Delivery		PRSMS0000 Seide		
			Extender	*			-
			it / replace 'Pro	duc	ct'		>
Edit / replace 'Product'		Ed					
Edit / replace 'Product'		Ed	(All Data)				

- The "Industry Type" of a printing colorant set imported from Datamatch during database conversion has the value "Textile". You can now change the type to "Tex. Printing (dyestuff)".
- Do not forget to select a process; continuous processes are used for printing colorant sets.
- The program asks for an extender as soon as you select "Tex. Printing (dyestuff)" as "Industry Type". Select or specify one.

The program completes all the calibration components automatically, and calculates the concentration of the extender. If the unit is g/kg, this is the addition to 1000:

Conc._{Colorant}- 1000 = Conc._{Extender}

#### Examples

Product [2]	Туре	concentration	Unit	Product [2]	Туре	Concentration	Un
GL Turquoise Sirius	Colorant	0.750	g,kg	GL Turquoise Sirius	Colorant	30.000	g,k
Extender 1	Extender	999.250	g,/kg	Extender 1	Extender	970.000	g/k
New		1000.000		New	1	1000.000	



### Note

You must recalculate all colorants of the colorant set. If they have all been calculated with the same method (measured or smoothed), you can click **All**.

# **Comparing Colorants**

1 2

3

This option is used to compare colorants delivered from different dyestuff manufacturers, or to analyze the influence of dyeing processes and auxiliaries on the build-up of the colorant.

Action	Result/Notes
Open the "Colorant Set List" window.	
Open the requested colorant set and select the colorant.	
On the context-sensitive menu, click <b>Compare with Other Colorant</b> .	The "Compare Colorants" dialog box appears. The selected colorant is listed in the box.
Select the colorants you would like	If necessary, change the colorant set.

4 to compare.



### Example:

The "Brilliant Blue BB" is selected from two different colorant sets: The first colorant set (R48) • is dyed at 40°C and 80 g/l salt, the second (R45) **2** is dyed at 40°C and 50 g/l salt. As you can see in the graph, the slope of the dyeing with 50 g/l 2 is not as steep as that with 80 g/l **0** salt.

5	Click the corresponding button to display the different graphs.	Refer to the example below for "K/S". Refer to the examples on the following page for "Log(KS)" and "Strength".

### LogK/S



### Strength



# **Specifying Combined Processes**

Note



The delete, move, copy, and rename functions are only available for users having the corresponding access rights.

## Introduction

The user has to define combined processes and operations



### **Combined process**

A combined process is used to describe the entire dyeing process either for laboratory or production. A treatment is generated for each calibration dye process type (,e.g., Exhaust, Continuous,) linked to the combined process.

### Treatment

A treatment consists of one or more operations describing the dyeing process for laboratory and/or production.

### Operation

The operation specifies the sequence of actions to be done during the dyeing. Actions may be parameters (,e.g., temperature, volume,) or products (,e.g., chemicals, etc.).



### Note

If Datacolor PROCESS is not installed,

- only one operation is possible for each treatment.
- the operation supports XY-tables (decision tables) and fixed parameter values only.

Note

# Specifying, Modifying, Deleting A Combined Process



Refer to the Datacolor PROCESS documentation for more information.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Overview" window, click <b>Combined Process</b> .	The "Combined Process List" window appears.
2	On the context-sensitive or "Basic Data" menu of the "Combined Pro- cess List" window, select <b>Combined</b> <b>Process</b> . or	The "Combined Processes" browse window appears. (Refer to <i>Combined</i> <i>Processes Browse Window on page</i> 7- <i>58</i> and <i>Quick Search Dialog Box on</i> <i>page</i> 7- <i>59</i> .) It is used to search com- bined processes or open the "Com- bined Process" dialog box for specifying a new combined processe. Defer to Defer
	Double-click the corresponding table row to select a combined process for modifying or deletion.	a new combined process. Refer to <i>Data Handling on page 5-2</i> .
		The "Combined Process" window appears. Refer to <i>Combined Process Window on page 7-61</i> for information about the parameters.
Nev	v combined process:	
3	In the "Combined Processes" browse box, click <b>New</b> for specifying a new combined process. In the "Combined Process" window, click the <b>+ button</b> .	The "Combined Process" dialog box appears. The selected data is displayed.
	In the "New Combined Process" selection box, select the process type.	
Note		
•	The calibration dye process(es) of the combined process and colorant set(s).	colorant set(s) set up the link(s) between
•		ust select the dye processes representing he order of selection specifies the position rocess. Refer to the <i>Example of a new</i>
4	In the "Dye Process" selection box, select the dye process(es).	The treatment is generated.
5	Specify (or modify) data of the "Treatment", "Recipe", and "Prod- ucts" tabs.	
6	Click <b>OK</b> .	The "Combined Process" dialog box is closed and the data is saved.

1

#### Example of a new combined process

Select the type of combined process you like to specify.



2 Select the Dye Process(es).

D	Dyeprocess 🔀							
	<u>S</u> e	arch Characters						
I					7			
ľ								
		DyeProcess_ID	DyeProcess_Name	DyeClass_ID				
		11	Reactive exhaust	REA				
		34	Vats Exhaust	VAT				
		45	Disperse Exhaust (Dispers	DISP				
		46	Disperse Exhaust (Terasil	DISP				
		BAS-EXH	Basic exhaust	BAS	-1			
		DISP 105	Disperse Exhaust 105° C	DISP				
		Dispers (Foron)	Disperse Exhaust (Foron)	DISP				
		DispExh110	Dispers Exh 110 °C	DISP				
		ND	Never Dyesd	BAS				
		REA EX CI H	Reactive Exh. Cibacron H	REA H DY				
		REA EXH MIG	Reactive Exh. Migration	REA H DY	-			
ľ								
			🧹 ок	X Cancel				
			· - ·	•••				

The dye processes are the links to the colorant sets. This combined process points to two dye processes (colorant sets.) It can be used for blends of polyester and cotton (refer to the fiber group list box.) The combined process exists of one treatment because both dye processes are of type "Exhaust."

	ProcessType	Name		
►	Discontinuous	46/11		
Γ				
			-	

If you specify a combined process of type "Half continuous," two treatments are created:

		ProcessType	Name	
		Discontinuous	45	
I	►	Continuous	23	
I				•

# Specifying, Modifying, Deleting An Operation



Note

eral" tab.

Refer to the Datacolor PROCESS documentation for more information.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Overview" window, click <b>Operation</b> .	The "Operation List" window appears.
2	<ul> <li>Double-click the correspond- ing table row to select an operation for modifying or deletion.</li> </ul>	The "Operation" window appears. Refer to <i>Operation Window on page</i> 7-67 for information about the parameters.
	<ul> <li>On the context-sensitive or "Basic Data" menu of the "Operation List" window, select <b>Operation</b>.</li> </ul>	The "Operations" browse box appears. It is used to search operations or open the "Operation" dialog box for specifying a new operation. Refer to <i>Data Han-</i> <i>dling on page 5-2</i> .
3	New operation:	
	<ul> <li>In the "Operations" browse box, click <b>New</b>.</li> </ul>	The "Operation" window appears.
	<ul> <li>In the "Operation" dialog box, click the + button for specify- ing a new operation.</li> </ul>	
4	Specify (or modify) data in the "Gen-	

5 In the "Control Line" tab, specify the sequence of actions. Using the context-sensitive menu or the insert key, new actions are inserted before the selected one. Using the "cursor down" key, an action is inserted at the end of the table.

### Possible actions:

Call off:

Specifies a group of products (dyestuffs and auxiliaries) that can be used together (weighted, dispensed) and defines a new bath (if the dye class is selected in the call off). Call offs must contain the dye class if the liquid ratio or pickup is not the same for all color recipes of the operation.

**Dye Class:** *Mandatory.* Dyestuff specification (place-marker). Opens a selection window for dye classes.

**Product:** Opens a selection window for products.

**Parameter:** Opens a selection window for parameters.

**Note:** Inserts a row for additional notes.

6 Click **OK**.

### Notes

•

- In the "ID" field, other dye classes, products, and parameters can be selected: Click the corresponding table cell and open the pull-down list.
  - In the value field, click the browse button to specify formulae.

Refer to *Specifying Formulae on* page 5-66.

The "Operation" dialog box is closed and the data is saved.

# **Specifying Formulae**

Formulae are specified in the "Formula Edit" window. Refer to *Formula Edit Window on page 7-71*.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select dye class or product for the X axis and liquor ratio or pick up for the Y axis.	
2	Using the cursor keys, you can add rows or columns. Specify the limits of the ranges.	
3	Specify the absolute values into the corresponding table cells.	
	If you need intermediate values, check the corresponding box(es).	

### Example:

	l Formula_Edit							
x	O Dye	class	(	) Produ	uct	Disperse 🗾 Interpolate on X		
						Dye class: Disperse		
	4x4	≤.1	≤.5	≤1	>1			
	≤5	4	7	10	13			
	≤ 10	5	8	11	14			
	≤ 20	6	9	12	15			
	>20	6.5	9.5	12.5	15.5			
Liquor ratio				C Dislu				
1	Y C Liquor ratio C Pickup							
		Round	l to					
		🔲 Rais 🔲 Rais			minimum maximum	OK Cancel Apply		

# **Recipe Calculation (Matching)**

Note



The delete, move, copy, and rename functions are only available for users having the corresponding access rights.

# Introduction



### Selection:

- Quality/style (data of the substrate)
- Combined process
- Substrate delivery (only for deliveries with data different to the blank dyeing substrate)
- Dyed substrate (over-dyeing only)
- Dyestuff group with dyes pre-selected from the assigned colorant set. The dyestuff group is used to optimize the recipe calculation.

### Selection criteria:

- Dyes from the list
- Parameter values, e.g., fastness information
- Concentration values, e.g., min., max., conc.
- Settings (parameters for calculation control)
- Standard: Color to be matched.

Match:	The recipes are calculated according to the selections and the results are displayed.
Review:	The recipes can be reviewed according to the different crite- ria (various color difference values, coordinates, price, etc.).
Further use:	The recipes can be saved, printed and/or sent to a dispenser.

Datacolor

# **Calculation of A New Recipe Series**

### **Preliminary Work**



Note

- The **Save** button is used to save a manually inserted recipe. Refer to *Selecting dyestuffs for matching on page 5-71* for a re-dyeing.
- If the parameter "Fixed" is used and the recipe is saved before the calculation, the dyestuff concentrations are used as default values and can be altered. *A correction is possible.*
- If the parameter "Fixed" is used and the recipe is calculated without saving, the specified dyestuff concentrations are constant values and cannot be changed. A correction is restricted or impossible.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Open the "Recipe List" window.	
2	On the "Recipe" or the context-sen- sitive menu, select <b>Calculate</b> , or press <b>F5</b> .	The "Match" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Match Dialog Box on page 7-116</i> for a parameter description.
3	Select the quality/style and the com- bined process.	Dye process and colorant set are dis- played.
		Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Delet- ing a Quality/Style on page 5-26 and Specifying Combined Processes on page 5-61.
4	If necessary, select the substrate delivery.	You can measure a new substrate delivery using the "New" button. Refer to <i>Substrate Delivery: Example on page 5-30</i> .
5	Select the colorant set(s)	
6	Select the "Standard" to be matched.	Refer to Measurement on page 5-20.
7	If you have to re-dye, select the dyed substrate or re-measure it.	Refer to Measurement on page 5-20.



### Note

- In the "Used Colorant Set(s)" table, you can temporarily modify the percentage, the process factors and/or the substrate effect factors.
- In case of a multi-fiber quality/style, you have to select the fiber parts to be matched. Refer to *Multi color matching (for multi color qualities/styles) on page 5-70*.
- In case of re-dyeing (dyed substrate), recipes cannot be corrected. To enable corrections, measure the dyed substrate as substrate delivery and select it for the recipe calculation.
- 8 In the "Colorant Set" tab, select the dyestuffs to by used, and select or specify a dyestuff group.

Refer to Selecting dyestuffs for matching on page 5-71.



### Note

You can check the dyestuff selection using the "Lab Graph" tab. Refer to Lab Graph Tab on page 7-119.

- 9 In the "Settings" tab, select the parameters for the matching process. Refer to Settings Tab on page 7-120.
- 10 Click **Calculate** to immediately start Refer to *Matching on page 5-74*. the recipe calculation. The recipe table appears.
- 11 Select the recipes you want to dye.
- 12 Click **Close**, or **Save** to save the recipe.

### Multi color matching (for multi color qualities/styles)

You can assign its own standard or dyed substrate to each colorant set in the table (process and substrate of the same row are assigned). In this way, the different recipes are calculated together.



	Action	Result/Notes
1	Check the "Multi Color Matching" box.	The "List of Standards" box appears.
2	In the "Standard" selection box, select the requested standards one by one, and move each to the "List of Standards" box using the <b>Move</b> button.	You can remove standards from the list using the <b>Remove</b> button.



### Note

In the "Colorant Set" tab, you can switch between the selected colorant sets. The current colorant set name is displayed on the top of the tab.

### **Rules for re-dyeing**

Re-dyeing needs the following prerequisites:

- The dyed substrate must by darker than the pure substrate of the colorant set (Solution if lighter: Specify the dyed substrate as a delivery);
- No component of the dyed substrate must be darker than the standard (Solution: Bleach and measure again).

#### Selecting dyestuffs for matching

Match											
Standard BAT1											
Process Data for matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic Settings										Save	
Dyeset Disperse Terasii Part [%] 100											
Group System Delete Save	System Delete the dyestuff if it must be used.										
A mouse click displays one by						ι	Jsed for	manual	l input		
one: all (A), the selected (S), or the not selected (N) dyestuffs.								nput fie baramet	lds for ter values		
Selection:											
<mark>1</mark> /1	stuff						-	ntration	-		
A/S/N Shown : 8 selected : 0	L 1/1	WSH 60	WSH 95	PRES AL	Comp	ul Fix	xed Min.(*	1 Max.(10	Relation		
Accept Limits >>	ļ				_						
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	7 7	5 5	5 5	5 5				0.8 2	=		
Terasil Red 5G	, 6-7	5	4	5				2			
4 Terasil Red R	6-7	5	5	5	-			2.5			
5 Terasil Brill. Blue BGE 200%	7-8	5	5	5	Γ			5			
6 Terasil Brill. Blue 3RL	6-7	5	5	5	Г			4	_		
Terasil Violet BL	7	5	5	5	Γ		Ĩ	6	~		
				1111					>	Cancel	

#### You can select dyestuffs ...

- by clicking on the dyestuff (multiple choices are possible).
- by inserting parameter values used for limits. Accepted operators: <, >, =, <=, >=
  - If "Compulsory" is checked the dyestuff must be used in all combinations.



### Note

•

If you have not selected any dye, all dyes of the list are selected.

1 Click Accept Limits to activate the selection.

#### You can define the concentration ...

by inserting fixed values (manual recipe input). The dyestuff is used with this concentration for all combinations.

Note

- If the parameter "Fixed" is used and the recipe is saved before the calculation, the dyestuff concentrations are used as default values and can be altered. *The correction is possible.*
- If the parameter "Fixed" is used and the recipe is calculated and saved after calculation, the specified dyestuff concentrations are constant values and cannot be changed. *The correction is restricted or impossible.*
- by setting a minimum and/or a maximum. The maximum amount displayed automatically is the value specified in the colorant set program.
- by setting a fixed relation.



### Note

- You can check the dyestuff selection using the "Lab Graph" tab. Refer to Checking the dyestuff selection.
- In the "Group" section, you can select, save or delete predefined dyestuff selections with all settings.

### Checking the dyestuff selection

The "Lab Graph" tab is used to check that a recipe can be calculated with the selected dyestuffs.



### Note

The graphical view cannot check the quality of a recipe.



### Graph

The graph may be rotated by dragging the left mouse button, and be zoomed by drawing the right mouse button.

The standard is displayed as a sphere on the top of a line. *The dyestuff selection is OK if the standard sphere is completely inside the color space.* 

1 Check the possible dyestuff selections by rotating the color space. *The standard sphere must not leave the color space at any position of the color space.* 



### Note

- If a selection is not OK, you can change the selection of dyestuffs.
- If a recipe is not possible, you must add dyestuffs or use (specify) another colorant set.

### Parameters

Take all/NoneUsing this check box, you can select or deselect all dyestuffs.<br/>The single dyestuffs are selected or deselected with a mouse<br/>click.

Group

Selection or definition of dyestuff groups.

### **Settings for Recipe Match**

Refer to Settings Tab on page 7-120.

# Matching

	Action	Result/Notes					
1	Click <b>Calculate</b> or press <b>F5</b> to start the recipe calculation.	According to the settings in the "Set- tings" tab, the recipes are calculated and the best recipes are displayed in a table.					
2	In the table, you can change the order of the recipes according to different criteria, e.g., price, metamerism.	Refer to <i>Review (recipe table) on page</i> 5-76 for a description of the different review help functions.					
	Select one ore more recipes using the "Trial" function of the context-sensitive menu.						
3	If finished, close the recipe table.	The "Recipe Database Operation" dia- log box appears.					
4	If necessary, change recipe name and identification(s).	The recipe is saved and the "Show full Recipe" dialog box appears. Refer to					
	Click Yes for saving the recipe.	Show Full Recipe Dialog Box on page 5-75 on the following page.					
	Click "No" for returning to the "Match" dialog box for altering dyestuff selection and settings and recalculate the recipe.	5-75 on the following page.					
5	Edit the "Curr. Pickup (%) / Curr. Liquor Ratio" value, if necessary						
	Click <b>Show</b> to displays the complete recipe.						
	Click <b>Print</b> to print the complete recipe.						
	Click <b>Dispense</b> to send the recipe to a connected dispenser.						
	Select the recipe output(s) according your needs, and close the "Show Full Recipe" dialog box.						

### Show Full Recipe Dialog Box

Show full recipe for V0006 PISTACHE - 1710									
Modified 04.04.2000 17:10:26 Status									
Trial list	Dyeset	Weight	Part	Туре	orig. Pickup (%)	curr. Pickup (%)	Liquor		
1		g				curr. Liquor ratio	ml	]	
2	Disperse Terasil	10.00	100	Exhaust	10.00	15.00	150.00		
Show	Show Print Dispense ASCII Use Pickup Close								
Trial List		L	ist of	f the a	dded Trials.				
		С	rig.		Default valu	es from the d	lye pr	ocess.	
	Orig Default values from the dye process. Curr Editable value. You can specify a current value.								ıe.
Table	Table Colorant set and recipe values.								
Show	how Opens the print preview of the recipe								

Show	Opens the print preview of the recipe.
Print	Prints the recipe.
Dispense (option)	Sends recipe data to a connected dispenser.
ASCII (option)	Export the recipe data in the ASCII format.
Close	Closes the "Show Full Recipe" dialog box.

### **Review (recipe table)**

Column for weighting the colorimetric values and the price

Standard		PANTON	E 19-13	33 TC						1						
Quality/Style 100.00 [%]		Trevira 2	2000													
Substrate (factor)		Trevira	2000 - 99	90210 (1	.10)						Recipe	Info	matio	n		
Process (factor)		Disperse	e Exhaus	t (Disper	sol) (1.0	וכ				$\mathbb{R}$	Recipe		matio			
Formula	V	•	)efault[D			-/				. 0						
dE* D65	1	0.00	0.00	0.01	0.01	0.00	0.01	0.00	0.01	0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.50	2.15
dL*	0	0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.00	0.0	0.00	-0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.02	-0.01
da*	0	0.00	0.00	-0.01	-0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.01	0.0	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	0.00	-0.29	1.47
db*	0	-0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.01	0.00	-0.01	-0.00	-0.00	-0.0	0.00	-0.00	0.00	0.00	0.40	-1.57
dC*	0	0.00	0.00	-0.01	-0.01	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.01	0.0	0.00	-0.00	0.00	0.00	0.04	0.18
dH*	0	-0.00	-0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.00	0.00	0.00	-0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.49	-2.14
dE* A	Ö	1.05	1.89	1.90	1.94	2.11	2.71	2.75	2.88	3.1	3 3.77	3.81	3.82	3.98	4.34	1.39
dE* F11	0	0.86	0.47	2.35	2.30	2.64	1.78	1.96	2.15	0.6	3 1.11	1.12	0.61	0.94	1.36	1.69
dE* F07	0	0.12	0.22	0.27	0.26	0.30	0.24	0.26	0.27	0.3	3 000		0.05	0.04	0.65	2.16
dE* Average	0	0.51	0.64	1.13	1.13	1.26	1.18	1.24	1.33	1.0		ulated			1.71	1.85
Metamerism A	0.7	1.06	1.89	1.90	1.94	2.11	2.71	2.75	2.88	3.1	Colo	rimeti	ric val	ues	3.93	3.32
Metamerism F11	0	0.86	0.47	2.35	2.29	2.64	1.78	1.96	2.14	0.6	and	prices	3		0.96	2.07
Metamerism F07	0	0.12	0.22	0.27	0.26	0.30	0.25	0.26	0.27	0.3			0.00	0.04	0.36	0.25
CMCCON02 A	0	4.23	4 01	4 39	4.31	4.41	4.32	4.42	4.47	4.1		4.80	4.68	4.88	4.83	4.89
CMCCON02 F11	0	Colo	r Inco	nstan	CY 3.68	4.07	3.09	3.31	3.51	1.0	5 2.44	2.44	1.86	2.26	2.32	3.16
CMCCON02 F07	0	2.17	2.04	2.34	2.31	2.36	2.17	2.21	2.22	1.8	3 2.09	2.08	1.99	2.05	2.06	2.21
Sensitivity (Hue)	0	1.93	2.37	0.51	1.53	0.70	1.68	0.41	0.78	0.8	4.05	1.56	0.63	1.40	0.70	0.71
Price	0	19.40	21.14	19.09	16.99	18.22	18.72	20.86	20.31	24.8	1 23.90	23.92	22.53	24.52	24.76	20.94
Total concentration [%]		0.9363	0.9856	0.8794	0.8591	0.8579	0.9064	0.9245	0.9112	1.158	3 1.0668	1.0634	1.0814	1.0931	1.1021	0.9244
Trial 1		XX							R	low(s	s) for u	ser-de	fined	selec	tion n	harks
Dyestuff		1(3)	2(3)	3(3)	4(3)	5(3)	6(3)	7(3)	8(3)	9(3	10(3)	11(3)	12(3)	13(3)	14(2)	15(2)
Dispersol Yellow C5G		0.2109	0.2059	0.0576				0.0374		0.179	3					
Dispersol Orange CRN (G)					0.3782	0.1421	0.3691		0.0929		Info	rmatic	n abc	out dv	estuff	
Dispersol Scarlet C2R				0.7389		0.6341		0.8223	0.7542			centra				0.8623
Dispersol Red C4G (G)		0.6455	0.7174		0.3983		0.4731			0.820	31 5 5			useu	101	
Dispersol Blue (G)			0.0623				0.0641	0.0648	0.0641		the	recipe	es			0.0621
Dispersol Green C6B										0.158	7 0.1424	0.1334	0.1613	0.1627	0.1666	
Dispersol Navy C2G		0.0799		0.0829	0.0825	0.0817					0.0107					
Recipe with D65											Color	[.] Disp	lay			
Standard with D65																
Standard with A																
Recipe with A																

The following help functions for review are implemented:

- "Table" menu and context-sensitive menu:
  - Evaluate Print / ASCII Prints colorimetric details using a predefined form.
  - Theoretical reflectance

Opens the "Insert a Theoretical Sample" dialog box used for saving theoretical reflectance values (E.g., for Datacolor Envision). Datacolor TOOLS can send this data to a user with a Datacolor Envision system to check the color, for example. Refer to *Specifying Theoretical Reflectance Values on page 5-96*.

- View Configuration Opens the "View Configurations" dialog box used to define the display of the calculated values and the number of decimal places for colorimetric and concentration data.
- Reset Sort Order Resets the sort order of the recipes.
  - Add Trial Up to five recipes can be marked. After closing the table, the selected recipes are saved for further use.
- Remove Last Trial Removes the last trial mark.
- Hide recipes not selected

The recipe table only shows the selected recipes.

- Show all recipes Shows all recipes.
  - Mail TableOpens the mail form with an attached screen shot of<br/>the recipe table (JPEG format).
  - Modify Refer to Manual Recipe Modification (Recipe Table) on page 5-81.
- Round Refer to Round the Dyestuff Concentration (Recipe Table) on page 5-81.
- Manually Change Refer to *Manual Graphical Correction on page 5-101*.
- Pressing the **Ctrl** key and clicking in the recipe number field selects the recipes.
- Clicking in a parameter name (first column) in the table with the calculated values sorts the recipe table according to the values of the corresponding row.
- Alteration of weighting (*only possible for metamerism*): If you have altered the weighting, you have to close the window and match again.

### **Color inconstancy**

View configuration		×
Visible data         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓         ✓ <t< td=""><td>Decimal places colorimetric: Decimal places concentration:</td><td>2</td></t<>	Decimal places colorimetric: Decimal places concentration:	2
✓ dE2     ✓ CM     ✓ dE3     ✓ CM	CCON02 2 CCON02 3 CCON02 4 Cancel	

Color inconstancy is the change in color of a single sample under different light sources. The magnitude of color inconstancy can be defined by DE CMC (or any other color difference formula) of the sample between two light sources.

To activate the calculation of the color inconstancy,

- calculate a recipe,
- open the context-sensitive menu, select the function "View configuration" and check the corresponding boxes (CMCxxx).

### Color display for two illuminants

To activate the display of two Illuminants,

- calculate a recipe,
- open the context-sensitive menu, select the function "View configuration" and check the box "2 illuminants banks".

The selection becomes active after saving the recipe. If you open the recipe table again or match a new recipe, the colors for the first two illuminants are displayed.

# **Modifying Recipes**

### **Recipe Editor**

Recipe parameters can be altered using the Recipe Editor.



### Modification Rules for adding and removing dyestuffs:

The dyestuff selection of a recipe can only be altered if ...

- the recipe is approved;
- it is not in use by the laboratory and a modification may influence the laboratory correction.

### Note

Data that can be modified is displayed with a green background.

Recipe Editor	X
Recipe structure	Values
P Header	Y0002 ELEFANT - 040400 - 1105
Recipe Name	V0002 ELEFANT - 040400 - 1105
Recipe ID	275-2
Creation Date	04.04.2000 11:03:04
- Modification Date	26.07.2002 09:38:52
Color Type	V0002 ELEFANT
Quality Name	Cotton knitted not mercerised
CombinedProcess	Remazol Pad Batch Silicate
Batch	BAT 15
Customer Name	
🖓 Color Recipe	CO [100 %]
Dye Process Name	Reactive Cold Pad Batch (Silicate)
Colorant Set Name	Remazol SPB (Silicate)
LiquorRatioOrPickup	60.0
- Dyestuffs	g/l
Remazol Yellow R Gran.	0.930881
Remazol Red 3B	2.853106
Remazol Brilliant Blue BB gran. 133%	2.574659
Add Dyestuff	Add Dyestuff
Manual Correction	
CO [100 %] Co Expand Collaps UnDo	Save Cancel



### Note

The **Go** (Manual Correction) button is used for a manual graphical correction. Refer to *Manual Graphical Correction on page 5-101*.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Recipe List" window, select the requested recipe and the menu function <b>Edit</b> .	Refer to <i>Recipe List Window on page</i> 7- 91. The "Recipe Editor" dialog box appears. <i>Recipe Editor Dialog Box on page</i> 7- 124
2	<b>Replacing header data:</b> Double-click the corresponding green table cell.	A selection box with the available data appears.
	<i>Altering Data:</i> Click the green table cell, type the value, and confirm the data with the <b>Return</b> key.	
	Adding dyestuffs: Click Add Dyestuff.	A selection box with the available dye- stuffs appears.
	<i>Removing Dyestuffs</i> Select the dyestuff and press the <b>Delete</b> key.	The dyestuff is removed from the recipe without confirmation.



### Note

As long as you have not saved the recipe, you can cancel the last modifications by clicking the **Undo** button.

3 If the data is altered, click **Save**. The altered recipe is saved.
### Manual Recipe Modification (Recipe Table)

The concentration calculated by Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} may be modified in the recipe table.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the recipe table, select the requested recipe.	
2	In the "Table" or the context-sensi- tive menu, select <b>Modify</b> .	
3	Change the concentrations of the dyestuffs. <i>It is possible to specify concen- trations for dyestuffs that are not used for the recipe.</i>	<ul> <li>The recipe is marked with an M character to indicate that the rec- ipe has been modified.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>The values for color difference and metamerism are continually recalculated.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>The recipe price is not re- calculated.</li> </ul>

### Round the Dyestuff Concentration (Recipe Table)

Another way to modify the concentrations is the "Round" function. You can round the concentrations of all recipes corresponding to the setting in the "Options" dialog box. Refer to *Options Dialog Box on page 7-112*.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Table" or the context-sensi- tive menu, select <b>Round</b> .	<ul> <li>The recipe is marked with an R character to indicate that the rec- ipe has been rounded.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>The values for color difference and metamerism are continually recalculated.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>The recipe price is not re- calculated.</li> </ul>

### **Replace Dyestuffs in Recipes**

Dyestuffs can be replaced in all recipes, recipe tables and trials, but not in SmartMatch populations.

Concentrations can be modified using a factor.

The dyestuffs are replaced in all recipes, but a selection is possible with filters. The filters can limit ...

- the range of recipes
- the location of the approved recipes
- the recipe type
- the color type
- the affinity
- the quality.

Change one p	roduct in Recipes		×
	Type of product     O Dyestuff     C Chemical		
Old product	All Data}	 Strength	150
New product	😭 {All Data} ➡ Şezaktiv Yellow S-8G	 Strength	100
	Filter recipes and continue	Factor	1
	Cancel	Applied factor	1.5

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Recipe List" window, select the menu function <b>Change Dyestuff in Recipes</b> .	Refer to <i>Recipe List Window on page 7-91</i> . The "Change One Product in Recipes" dialog box appears.
2	Select the old and the new product.	The calculated factor for concentration is displayed in the field "Applied Factor".
3	If necessary, type your own factor to correct the strength.	The final factor (using the dyestuff strength and the user's factor) is displayed in the field "Applied Factor".
4	Click Filter Recipes and Continue.	The "Search Recipes with Filter (using a filter)" dialog box appears.

Search recipes with filter	×
Change product 'Bezaktiv Yellow S-3R 150%' to 'Bezaktiv Yellow S-8G' with factor ' 1.00'	
🔀 System/Recipe	
Recipe range	
Approved recipe Recipe ty	pe
C No C Yes O All C Exha	aust 🔿 Continuous 💿 All
All Data}	
Color Type	
All Data}	<u> </u>
Affinity	
Datamatch	
Quality/Style	
Combined Process	<b>_</b>
Continue	Cancel

5 Select the search conditions for recipes that have to be modified. Refer to "Possible (restrictive) search conditions".

- 6 Click Continue.
- The dyestuff is replaced in the selected recipes.



### Note

A log file is created with a list of all recipes where the product exchange was not possible. The file is located in the Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} folder.

The file name is "ErrorsChangeProducts.log"

#### Possible (restrictive) search conditions:

Recipe Range	Select all recipes that have to be modified in the browse box.
Approved Recipe	Select the requested group.
Recipe Type	Select the requested type.
Color Type	In the browse box, select the color type.
Affinity	Select the affinity in the browse box.
Quality/Style	Select the quality/style in the browse box.
Combined Process	Select the combined process.

# **Printing Recipe Lists**

A print form with the most reasonable data for recipe lists is stored in the print form database.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the recipes to be printed in the "Recipe List" window.	
2	On the context-sensitive menu, select <b>Recipe List</b> .	A print preview appears.

# Approving

You can approve a laboratory recipe using the **Approve** button in the "Correct or Approve your Recipe" dialog box (refer to *Correct or Approve Your Recipe Dialog Box on page 7-95*) or in the "Laboratory Correction" dialog box (refer to *Laboratory Correction Dialog Box on page 7-96*).



If you approve a recipe, all other trials and the recipe table will be deleted. The recipe location is set to "Laboratory" and the recipe lock level is set to "green": The recipe can be used for production.

• Recipes approved without measuring the batch are saved without SmartMatch information. These recipes cannot be use for recipe search.

### **Recipes Inserted Manually by Datacolor PROCESS**

Recipes created using Datacolor PROCESS can be listed, printed and corrected with Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} if a colorant set has been selected in Datacolor PROCESS. Missing data is added automatically.

The recipe has the status 1 (created by Datacolor PROCESS). CMC is stored as tolerance.



### Note

- If a colorant set is not selected in Datacolor PROCESS, an error message appears. The colorant set must be added in Datacolor PROCESS.
- All dyestuffs of the recipe must be calibrated in the colorant set.

# SmartMatch

# Introduction

The SmartMatch facility is used to improve first-time matching and correction. Standard color prediction uses the Kubelka-Munk theory, which assumes that dyes behave in the same way when used together or stand-alone. However, this is not the case: dyes interact with one another. The SmartMatch facility overcomes this problem by taking into account the performance of previous predictions, e.g., learning by experience.

SmartMatch stores information about the concentrations used to dye a sample and the results of dyeing, and uses this data to correct the first attempt made by Kubelka-Munk calculations in future matching. It stores information about previous predictions as SmartMatch points.

Once you set your system to SmartMatch, it runs automatically. However, you can also examine the SmartMatch points the system is using and alter them to refine Smart-Match performance. For example, if you suspect that one of the SmartMatch points being used is based on a bad dyeing, you can remove this point. This way, it is no more used in the calculations.

The number of similar points is reduced by grouping them. In addition to the automatic SmartMatch housekeeping a powerful graphical tool supports to check the SmartMatch population for SmartMatch points to be deleted or grouped.

All recipes calculated using the "Match" option will use SmartMatch when SmartMatch is turned on and if relevant populations are available. The number of SmartMatch points used in a recipe calculation are shown at the bottom of the dye concentration column in the recipe table.



### Note

You can still store SmartMatch points for later use, if the SmartMatch facility is switched off.

### Automatic SmartMatch Maintenance

A regular housekeeping of the database is necessary to optimize the SmartMatch function. SmartMatch points with a color difference that is too large must be removed. This is possible using the "Automatic SmartMatch Housekeeping" function. If you want to remove bad SmartMatch points manually, refer to *Reviewing SmartMatch Points on page 5-87*.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select <b>SmartMatch List</b> on the "Basic Data" or the context-sensitive menu.	The "SmartMatch List" window appears.
2	On the "Tools" menu, select Auto- matic SmartMatch Housekeeping.	The tool removes all SmartMatch points with a an excessive color difference (> DE CieLAb 160) and groups similar SmartMatch points.
		The "Automatic Housekeeping" box informs you about the current statement of the program run.

Automatic housekeeping				
Total initial size	22416 Progress %	Release groups Start Abort Close		
Current populat	ion  118 AST. YELL 7GLL 100%~H20~136 AST. RED GTLI	N 100%~159 MAX BLUE U-TRL 100%		
Quality	B16 1.7 DEN B16 FABRIC PACKAGE	Initial size 50 Current size		
Sortiment	BASIC	Comment Build		

# **Reviewing SmartMatch Points**

The aim of the housekeeping function is to eliminate poor points (points with a color difference greater than 16 DE CieLab) and to reduce the number of similar points by grouping them.

This is a very complicated mathematical task for the program and, generally, not all points can be recognized for grouping. For this reason, we still have a very powerful graphically supported part in the program to check the population for further points to be deleted or grouped. The human brain is better suited to this tasks than many program lines.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select <b>SmartMatch List</b> on the "Basic Data" or the context-sensi- tive menu.	The "SmartMatch Result List" window appears. Refer to <i>SmartMatch Result List Window on page</i> 7-94.
2	Double-click the SmartMatch point to be reviewed.	The "Current Population" dialog box appears. If a group is selected, a message appears with the group ID. You can open the group using the "Open Popu- lation by SM-Id" function and this ID. Refer to <i>Current Population Dialog Box</i> <i>on page 7-125</i> .
3	Search SmartMatch points for another population, if necessary.	
4	Click <b>After Analyses</b> to automatically delete bad points, and to automatically merge points to be merged. Otherwise, click <b>Quick</b> .	The "Population" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Population Dialog Box on page</i> 7-127.
5	Check the values and delete Smart- Match points, if necessary.	
6	Close the "Population" dialog box.	A confirmation is requested, if the "Delete" boxes have been checked.



### Note

dE_S values should always be lower than the corresponding dE_K values. If not, the population contains bad points that should be deleted.

### **Release SmartMatch Points from the Group**

Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} does not delete the original points if they are used to build a SmartMatch group point. You can release (re-establish) the original points if you select a group point in the explorer view. The menu function "Release points from group" is only enabled if the selected point is a group point. Executing this function brings back all points used to build the group point and the group point is deleted.

Use the "Release Groups" button in the "Automatic SmartMatch Housekeeping" dialog box (Refer to *Automatic SmartMatch Maintenance on page 5-86.*) to release the SmartMatch points of all groups.

# Saving A Batch as A Sample

A color sample can be specified using a SmartMatch point.



	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select <b>SmartMatch List</b> on the "Basic Data" or the context-sensi- tive menu.	The "SmartMatch Result List" window appears. Refer to <i>SmartMatch Result List Window on page 7-94</i> .
2	Select the SmartMatch point to be saved.	
3	On the "Smart" or the context-sensi- tive menu, select "Save Batch as Sample".	The "ID's Point for Creation of Sample" dialog box appears.
4	If necessary, correct the ID, and click <b>OK</b> .	The "Shown Reflectance Will Be Stored as Sample" dialog box appears.
5	Accept the default name, or, correct it.	
6	Click Insert.	

# Manual Input of SmartMatch Points

The "Fast Correction'	" function can be	used for entering	SmartMatch points
The rast conection	TUTICIUT Call De	e used for entering	Smartiviatori points.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On the context-sensitive menu, select <b>Fast Correction</b> , or press <b>F8</b> .	The "Fast Correction Recipe Input" dia- log box appears. Refer to <i>Fast Correc-</i> <i>tion Recipe Input Dialog Box on page 7-</i> <i>105</i> for a detailed description of the parameters.
2	Specify any standard, the quality and substrate delivery.	
3	Select the "Colorant Set" tab.	In the "Colorant Set" tab, the fields and buttons used for manual input will be activated.
4	Specify the batch name and mea- sure the batch that represents the dyeing of the SmartMatch point (Laboratory or Production).	
5	Check the "SM Insert" box, and the type of "SmartMatch's Point."	
	Specify the "Machine" and the "Pick- up/L. Ratio" for production Smart- Match points.	
6	In the dyestuff table, specify the con- centrations and click <b>Save</b> .	Only the SmartMatch point will be inserted.

# Manual Input of SmartMatch Points together with the Recipe

	Action	Result/Notes
1 to		
4)		
5	Do not check the "SM Insert" box.	
	Specify the "Machine" and the "Pick- up/L. Ratio" for production Smart- Match points.	
6	In the dyestuff table, specify the con- centrations and click <b>Save</b> .	The SmartMatch point <i>and the recipe</i> are inserted.

# Correction

### Introduction



### Selection of correction type:

- Laboratory The existing recipe is altered and saved again.
- Production
- An additional recipe is calculated that is used to change color of the dyed batch to the correct color.

### Data input:

.

- Recipe to be corrected
- Batch (color of the dyed substrate to be corrected)
- Dyestuffs are pre-selected by the recipe to be corrected. Additional dyestuffs can be selected. Concentration and parameters can be defined.
- The acceptance limit settings can be altered.

#### Caution!

A production correction is not saved. It must be printed before closing the "Production Correction" dialog box. Otherwise, the recipe will be lost. 

# Laboratory Correction

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the recipe to be corrected in the "Recipe List" window.	
2	On the context-sensitive menu, select <b>Pass Fail and Laboratory</b> <b>Correction</b> , or press <b>F6</b> .	The "Correct or Approve Your Recipe" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Correct or</i> <i>Approve Your Recipe Dialog Box on</i> <i>page 7-95</i> for a detailed description of the parameters.
3	Click Pass Fail and Correction.	The "Laboratory Correction" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Laboratory Correction</i> <i>Dialog Box on page</i> 7-96 for a detailed description of the parameters
4	In the "Batch and Color Difference" field, measure or select the sample.	
5	If necessary, alter the data in the dyestuffs table.	Refer to <i>Matching on page 5-74</i> , sec- tion <i>Selecting dyestuffs for matching on</i> <i>page 5-71</i> .
6	Click <b>Save</b> to save a manual correc- tion.	The correction recipe is saved.
7	Click Laboratory.	The "Recipe Correction" table appears.
8	In the "Recipe Correction" dialog box, you can look at the result of the	Refer to Laboratory Correction Table on page 7-98.
	matching. The color differences between "Standard" and "Batch" are displayed.	The "Laboratory Correction Table" can be configured. Refer to <i>View Configura-</i> <i>tion Dialog Box (Laboratory Correction</i> <i>Table) on page 7-100</i> .
9	If finished, close the recipe table.	A save request appears.
10	Click <b>Yes</b> .	The "Save Your Recipe" dialog box appears.
11	Select the recipe output(s) accord- ing your needs, and/or close the "Show Full Recipe" dialog box.	The "Show Full Recipe" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Matching on page 5-</i> 74, section <i>Show Full Recipe Dialog</i> <i>Box</i> .

### Example:

Trial Number		ndard 005 ORANGE					Approve
Dyeset Settin	 as]						<u>S</u> ave
Dyeset		Part [%] 100					Laboratory
R[%]		Batch and co No Fold (no NOO) dE 3.03	er 05 ORANO dC -2.		.71 dL 0.1	18 da 0.05 db 3.02 erences standard/batch g to the formula used fo lculation.	
0/1	Dyestuff				Concentrati	ion [%]	
	Shown : 7 selected : 2		%	Min.	Max.	Relation	
1 Bezakti	v Yellow S-3R 150%		2.7748				
	v Red S-3B 150%		0.1081				
	v Yellow S-8G				6.4		
	v Blue S-GN 150%				9.6		
	v Green S-48				6.4		
	v Navy Blue S-BL				6.4		
6 Bezakti	v Black S-GR						Color <u>T</u> ools

Table:

DCIMatch - [¥00)	D2 ELEFANT]							
🔜 File Correct To	ols Instrument	Window Help	ı.	~				_ 8
🔄 🍞 💥 🖝 🖁	5 🛅 🛃 🖬	8 🖬 🔋	66 😭					
- Standard	V0002 ELEFAN	Т	-					
Batch	N0002 ELEFAN	ΤN						
Quality/Style 100.00 [%	Trevira 2000							
Unit [%s]	%							
Substrate (factor)	Trevira 2000 - 9	990210 (1.10)						
Process (factor)	Disperse Exhau	ist (Dispersol) (1	.00)					
Formula	CieLab Default[	D65]						
Type of dE	Modified	Modified	Modified		Theory	Theory	PassFail	
dE*	0.00	0.31	0.07		0.00	0.00	2.12	
dL*	-0.00	0.26	-0.01		-0.00	-0.00	2.04	
da*	-0.00	0.00	-0.02		-0.00	-0.00	-0.05	
db*	-0.00	-0.17	0.07		-0.00	-0.00	-0.59	
dC*	0.00	0.16	-0.07		0.00	0.00	0.55	
dH*	-0.00	-0.04	0.00		-0.00	-0.00	-0.20	
MetamerismA	0.14	0.19	0.12		0.71	0.62	0.35	
MetamerismF11	0.05	0.06	0.06		0.31	0.29	0.09	
MetamerismF07	0.05	0.07	0.05		0.11	0.15	0.11	
Price	2.23	2.18	2.23		1.61	1.90		
Dyestuff	SmartMatch	Additiv	Multiply	Performance	Batch	Standard	Original	
Dispersol Yellow C5G	0.0127	0.0122	0.0128	0.7802	0.0078	0.0100	0.0100	
Dispersol Red C4G (G)	0.0506	0.0495	0.0506	0.8472	0.0363	0.0429	0.0429	
Dispersol Navy C2G	0.0585	0.0576	0.0585	0.8762	0.0449	0.0512	0.0512	
Recipe with D65								
Standard with D65								
Standard with A								
Recipe with A								-
● \ Disperse Dis	persol	4		•				•
For Help, press F1								DCI

Selection of corrected recipes using different correction methods

#### **Color inconstancy**

View configuration	
	Pecimal places colorimetric: 2 Pecimal places concentration: 4 Correction table ✓ Smartmatch ✓ Batch ✓ Additiv ✓ Standard ✓ Multiplicative ✓ History ✓ Performance If empty boxes, show the best correction, effects and history Cancel

Color inconstancy is the change in color of a single sample under different light sources. The magnitude of color inconstancy can be defined by DE CMC (or any other color difference formula) of the sample between two light sources.

To activate the calculation of the color inconstancy,

• open the context-sensitive menu, select the function "View configuration" and check the corresponding boxes (CMCxxx).

#### Color display for two illuminants

To activate the display of two Illuminants,

• open the context-sensitive menu, select the function "View configuration" and check the box "2 illuminants banks".

The selection becomes active after saving the recipe. If you open the recipe table again or match a new recipe, the colors for the first two illuminants are displayed.



### Note

For the two illuminants, the colors can be very different.

### **Specifying Theoretical Reflectance Values**

You can save theoretical reflectance values of a laboratory correction or a laboratory recipe. Datacolor TOOLS can send this data to a user with a Datacolor Envision system to prove the color, for example.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the laboratory recipe or the cor- rection table, select the requested recipe.	
2	On the context-sensitive menu, select <b>Theoretical Reflectance</b> .	The "Insert a Theoretical Sample" dia- log box appears. Refer to <i>Insert A Theoretical Sample</i> <i>Dialog Box on page 7-123</i> .
3	Click Insert.	The sample name is a proposal. Alter it if necessary.

# **Production Correction**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the recipe to be corrected in the "Recipe List" window.	
2	On the context-sensitive menu, select <b>Pass Fail and Production Correction</b> , or press <b>F7</b> .	The "Production Correction" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Production Correction Dialog Box on page</i> 7-101 for a detailed description of the parameters.
3	Click Production.	
4	You can optimize the result of the matching by adding dyestuffs and concentrations and by specifying tol- erances.	Refer to <i>Production Correction Table on page 7-103.</i>
5	When finished, you can display and print the recipe.	
6	Click <b>Close</b> to close the "Production Correction" dialog box.	
Note		



After closing, the production correction recipe can no longer be displayed or printed using Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}

#### Production correction examples (continuous)

Result using the "Production" button:

Producti	on correcti	on for Rem	-Brilla	nt Blue BB	3 133% Gra	ın.	2.0				×
Standard	Re	:m-Brillant Blue B	3B 133% (	Gran. 2.0	Batch		R	em-Brillar	nt Blue BB	133% Gran. 1.0	
	,										
Fibre											
	w dyestuff(s)					D	t add	D <b>1</b>	itive add	Reset	
User se	lected				<b>-</b>	<u>B</u> es		Best Dos	kive add	<u>H</u> eset	
RGB		Dyestuff		Recipe	+ Amount		Effect	Rel. %			
	Remazol Brillia	int Blue BB gran	n. 133%	20.000	10.190	g	0.50	50.95			
	Diturnat			10.000	0.000						
	Diluent Batch to drop			0.000	0.000	1					
I									_	_	
Liquor	10	I <u>▼</u> _Ne	w liquor	10		Picku	ир (%)	60	<u>U</u> se F	Pickup 🗖	
СМС		Use ;	as propos	al		R[	%]				
						E	;~~~	N.		1	
Illumin		New delE/MI	delL/ML			3		All and	~		Show
dE D65	3.26	0.65	0.14	0.13	-0.62			`			
Met A	1.07	0.19	0.08	-0.16	-0.05					Ē	Print
Met F11	0.79	0.08	0.04	-0.07	0.01					[편] 700	
							5	500	600	700	ASCII Export
	E <u>v</u> aluate	Con	nputer add	1							
-				Min.Add./			. In				
User ac			ptimal d <u>E</u>	Min.Add/o	L <u>C</u> ompute		nit >= <b>1</b> 0		dE Limit		Close
Scale	back by 0	%			<u> </u>						

In this example, it is recommended to use the "Match Batch" button, because the batch was already dark and the color difference too large. The correction tells you to dilute the dye batch.

_					3 133% Gr		1.0				×
Standard	Rem-Br	illant Blue BB	3 133% (	àran. 1.0	Batch		R	em-Brilla	nt Blue BB 13	3% Gran. 2.0	
Fibre											
Addine	w dyestuff(s)										
Usier se	lected				•	Bes	add :	Best <u>p</u> o:	sitive add	<u>R</u> eset	
RGB	Dyes	stuff		Recipe	+ Amount		Effect	Rel. %			
	Remazol Brilliant Bl	ue BB gran.	133%	20.000	0.000	g	1.00	0.00			
	Diluent			10.000	10.017	Т					
	Batch to drop			0.000							
Liquor			liquor	20.0167	· •		1.1.7	60	Use Pick		
Liquor CMC	10   I		liquor propos	- I	· ·		up (%) %]	60	Use Pick		
CMC Illumin	ant   delE/MI   Nev	Use as	: propos	delC.MC de	нлмн <u></u>		1.1.7	60	Use Pict		<u>S</u> how
CMC Illumin dE D65	ant delE/MI Nev	Use as v delE/MI de 0.00	: propos eIL/ML 0.00	delC.MC de	нлмн с	R	1.1.7	60	Use Pict		<u>S</u> how
CMC Illumin dE D65 Met A	ant delE/MI Nev 3.35 1.07	Use as v delE/MI de 0.00 0.00	eil./ML 0.00 -0.00	delC.MC de -0.00 0.00	нимн -0.00 -0.00	R	1.1.7	60	Use Pict	[]	<u>S</u> how <u>P</u> rint
CMC Illumin dE D65	ant delE/MI Nev	Use as v delE/MI de 0.00	: propos eIL/ML 0.00	delC.MC de	нлмн с	R	%]		$\sim$	[]	 Print
CMC Illumin dE D65 Met A	ant delE/MI Nev 3.35 1.07 0.79	Use as v delE/MI de 0.00 0.00 0.00	ell./ML 0.00 -0.00 -0.00	delC.MC del -0.00 0.00 0.00	нимн -0.00 -0.00	R	%]	60	Use Piol	[uuu]	
CMC Illumin dE D65 Met A	ant delE/MI Nev 3.35 1.07	Use as v delE/MI de 0.00 0.00 0.00	eil./ML 0.00 -0.00	delC.MC del -0.00 0.00 0.00	<u>-0.00</u> -0.00 -0.00	R	%]		$\sim$	[]	 Print

Note

# Production Correction (Access from Datacolor PROCESS)



If the production correction is accessed from Datacolor PROCESS, the additions already done (using Datacolor PROCESS) can be taken into account for the batch. The user can define what percentage of the previous adds should be taken.

#### Result if the previous adds are not taken in account:

	Dyestuff	Recipe	+ Amount		Effect	Rel. %	New rec.[%]
	Terasil Yellow 4G	65.781	2.601	g	1.01	3.95	0.0471
	Terasil Brill. Blue BGE 200%	32.276	1.309	g	1.00	4.05	0.0231
	Tenasil Violet BL	58.707	4.636	g	1.00	7.90	0.0436
	Total	156.763	8.545			5.45	
4							•

#### The previous adds are taken into account with 100%



#### Result if the previous adds are taken in account:

	Dyestuff	Recipe	+ Amount		Effect	Rel. %	New rec.[%]
	Terasil Yellow 4G	68.381	2.655	g	0.98	3.88	0.0489
	Tenasil Brill. Blue BGE 200%	33.585	1.358	g	0.96	4.04	0.0241
	Terasil Violet BL	63.343	4.945	g	0.93	7.81	0.0470
	Total	165.309	8.959			5.42	
•							•

# **Fast Correction**

The "Fast Correction" function is used for production or laboratory corrections without an existing recipe. It is based on a theoretical calculated recipe of the standard or a recipe typed in manually. This task is mainly used for production correction.



### Data input:

- Quality/style, combined process, colorant set, and standard.
- Batch (color of the dyed substrate to be corrected).
- Dyestuffs must be selected. Concentration and parameters can be defined.
- The acceptance limit and color difference equitation settings can be altered.
- The recipe can be entered manually or a theoretical recipe can be calculated.



### Caution!

Only fast corrections of laboratory recipes can be saved. Fast corrections of production recipes must be printed before closing the "Production Correction" dialog box. Otherwise, the recipe will be lost.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On the context-sensitive menu, select <b>Fast Correction</b> , or press <b>F8</b> .	The "Fast Correction Recipe Input" dia- log box appears. Refer to <i>Fast Correc-</i> <i>tion Recipe Input Dialog Box on page 7-</i> <i>105</i> for a detailed description of the parameters.
2	In the "Process Data for Matching" tab, select Quality/Style, Com- bined Process, Colorant Set and Standard.	
3	In the "Colorant Set" tab, select the dyes the recipe is dyed with. If you know the concentrations, you can specify them (either concentra- tions or absolute amounts). In case of amounts, you must specify the dye lot weight and the weight unit.	
4	Measure or select the batch to be corrected.	
5	Click Laboratory for a laboratory correction.	The "Recipe Correction" tab appears.
	Continue with chapter <i>Laboratory Correction on page 5-92</i> .	
	Click <b>Production</b> for a production correction.	The "Production Correction" table appears.
	Continue with chapter <i>Production Correction on page 5-96.</i>	



### Note

The "Fast Correction" function can be used for entering SmartMatch points manually. Refer to *Manual Input of SmartMatch Points on page 5-90*.

# **Manual Graphical Correction**

The manual graphical correction recalculates the recipe in the basis of the altered dyestuff concentrations.

You can start the manual graphical modification of recipes from ...

- the recipe table
- the laboratory correction table
- the production correction table
- from the "Recipe Editor" dialog box.

The tolerance sphere, the standard and the position of the current recipe are displayed. To visualize the modification in the tolerance sphere, the a/b path (trajectory) of each dyestuff of the recipe is also drawn in the graph.

The concentration displayed at the end of the dyestuff lines represents the position of the color you would get in the tolerance sphere if you took this concentration for the modified recipe. The third concentration is the lowest concentration that results in a recipe at the tolerance limit.



- Position of the standard (grey).
- Position of the recipe (black).
- Dyestuff line:

• The length of the line shows all positions of the recipe between the concentrations of 0.7616% and 0.8636%.

• The concentration 0.7808 is the minimum concentration matching the tolerance limit.

Action	Description
Click and hold down the right mouse button.	Moving the mouse forward zooms in, moving the mouse backward zooms out.
Click and hold down the left mouse button.	Moving the mouse left, right, up or down rotates the graphic in the corresponding directions. The rotation center is the batch.
Press F2	Switches to a two-dimensional graph (a* / b*).
Press F3	Switches to a two-dimensional graph (L* / b*).
Press F4	Switches to a two-dimensional graph (L* / a*).
Double-click the graph using the right mouse button.	The graph view switches between parallel and perspective projection.

### Navigation in the graph

#### Modification

- You can change the concentration either by typing or using the buttons in the column "New Recipe" or the column "+Amount" to modify the recipe.
- If you click **Set** in the columns "Proposition", the recipe is set to the minimum amount of dyestuff to match the tolerance limit.

You can see the result of the modification in the graph. The recipe moves to the tolerance limit when you click **Set**.

# Search and Correct An Existing Recipe for A New Standard

Existing recipes that are based on a batch have a small color difference in relation to a newly measured standard that has been searched and corrected.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On the "Recipe" or the context-sen- sitive menu of the "Recipe List Win- dow", select <b>Search Recipe</b> , or press <b>F9</b> .	The "Search and Correct" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Search and Correct</i> <i>Dialog Box on page</i> 7-109 for a detailed description of the parameters.
2	Select the new measured standard.	
3	Select the search criteria, and click <b>Search</b> .	<ul> <li>If recipes are found, the "Search Results" dialog box appears.</li> <li>Refer to Search Results Dialog Box on page 7-110 for a detailed description of the parameters.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Recipes found that cannot be used are displayed in the "Found Recipes without SmartMatch Information" box.</li> </ul>
4	In the "Search Results" dialog box, select the base recipe for the calcu- lation.	
5	• If the color difference is small enough, select "Save as new recipe" on the context-sensi- tive menu.	<ul> <li>The selected recipe is saved for the new standard.</li> </ul>
	• If a new recipe is to be calcu- lated, select "Correct and Save" on the context-sensitive menu.	• The new recipe is calculated based on the selected recipe and saved for the new standard.

# **Displaying and Printing Existing Recipes**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the recipe in the "Recipe List" window.	
2	On the context-sensitive menu, select Lab Dyelot, or, press Enter.	The "Show Full Recipe Dialog Box" dia- log box appears. Refer to <i>Matching</i> , section <i>Show Full Recipe Dialog Box on</i> <i>page 5-75</i> .

### **Recipe Output**

### New output features

- Colorimetric data is printed (color difference and metamerism for standard, batch and standard, theoretical batch of correction).
- Information if the recipe was manually modified.
- Water volume to be added to get the final volume.
- The last measured batch.
- The modification number of the recipe (starting with No. 0 for the 1st recipe).

Reci Reci	pe R€ peID 141	ef. Gree 1	n								т	rial 1	
Stan	dard Re	c. Green	:01			Dy	yed Sam	ple					
Qual	ity Cot	tton blea	ched			-	Subst	-					
Com	bPro Rea	active Be	ezema Exha	ust			We	ight		10.00(	1		
		E	)yestuff Price	e 0.0	3 Cher	nical Price	e	0.00		]	,		
0	Toleranci	e Name	CMC 2:1						ŀ	Factor	1.00		٦
	DyeSet		Reactive E	Schaust			0	Recip	e Mo	dified	No		
	-			Measu	red			Predic	ted				
	dE(D65)			0.84				0.00					
	Metamén	ism (A)		0.32				0.01					
	Metamen	ism (F11)		0.22				0.06					
Note calor		1		Volun		<i>Dyeing</i> 100.00 m	ıl						
iVlatie r	Θı	Nater to	add							85.36			
	1	Temperat	ure						60.	00 °			
Note				C	hemik	alien zuge	eben						
MERNX	1	/ //					1.5000	g/l		1.50	ml	1:10	
81A109	E	Biavin 10	9				0.3000	g/l		3.00	ml	1:100	
NaCI	(	Common	Salt				70.0000	g/l		7.000	g		
	Dyeset		Reactive	Evhaust					Pai		100	00	
	Dyeset Dve Proc	988	Reactive						Fac	-		00	
4	LastMea												
	Liquor Ra	atio / Pick	up 10.00	Sub	strate f	Factor 1	(.00	0	Мс	odificatio	n No	1	
18	E	Bezaktiv	Yellow S-8G				0.3727	%		3.73	ml	1:100	
14	E	Bezaktiv	Yellow S-3R	150			0.1458	%		1.46	ml	1:100	
	E	Bezaktiv	Green S-4B				2.7595	%		2.76	ml	1:10	
				-						2.76			



### Calculation of the stock solution

### Note

The single volumes of the stock solution are checked. If they exceed the target volume, another stock solution is used.

# **Recipe History**

If a Batch exists, Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} saves all corrections and modifications of a recipe. Modifications done with the "Edit" option are also saved. In addition to the recipes, a dLab graph is displayed.

#### Displaying the history:

• Select the function **History** on the **Recipe** or the context-sensitive menu.

### Printing the history:

Select **Print** on the **History** menu.



### Note

٠

The graph is not to be printed.

iber	Trial	Dyestuff	Fisrt recipe	Correction nr 1	Correction nr 2	Correction nr 3	Correction nr 4
/isc [100%]	1	Date [Unit]	3/19/2001 4:30	3/19/2001 4:30:17	3/19/2001 4:30:52 P	3/19/2001 4:31:23	3/19/2001 4:33:03 PM [%]
		SIRIUS ORANGE K-CF	0.05719	0.04880	0.05246	0.05397	0.0571
		SIRIUS ROUGE F4BL 154%	0.08082	0.05963	0.05122	0.04644	0.0664
		SOLOPHEN. MARINE BLE 250%	0.86884	0.68023	0.62866	0.52311	0.8647
		Type of dE	PassFail	PassFail	PassFail	PassFail	PassFa
		dE	1.46	0.80	1.53	2.19	1.0
		-2 • Corr=3 • Corr=4 • C -0.8 -0.6 -0.4 -C	db*	0.2 0.4 0.6	0.8 1.0	1.2 1.4	dL* 1,6 -0.6 -0.8 -1.0
			db*	0,4 0,6	0.8 1.0	1.2 1.4	**************************************
			db*	0,2 0,4 0,6	0.8 1.0	12 14	dL* 
1			db*		0.8 1.0		**************************************
			db*		0.8 1.0		1.6 -0.6 -0.8 -1.0 -1.2 -1.4 -1.6 -1.8 -2.0 -2.2 -2.4 -2.6 -2.8
1					0.8 1.0		1.6 1.6 - 0.8 - 1.0 - 1.0 - 1.2 - 1.4 - 1.4 - 1.6 - 1.8 - 2.0 - 2.2 - 2.4 - 2.8 - 3.0
			- 4b - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0		0.8 1.0		* dL* 0.6 1.6 - 0.8 - 1.0 - 1.0 - 1.2 - 1.4 - 1.4 - 1.6 - 1.8 - 2.0 - 2.2 - 2.4 - 2.6 - 2.8

# **Datacolor MONITOR (Option)**

Datacolor MONITOR is a color quality control software product that was designed to easily acquire color measurement data and pass/fail decisions for production quality control. The program is designed to compare side-center-side for fabrics. The major task was to design a software module that is easy to operate. Datacolor MONITOR is an option for Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}.

# **Specifying A Script**

If you are starting the program for the 1st time, you must define a script to be able to measure a batch series. A script describes the measurements, the tolerances and the relations for the comparison.

Batch Serie Script Name	}	×
	Name Script für M&S	
	Delete Script	
Description Side Center Side für M&S		
< Back	Next > Cancel Help	-

1 On the **Batch Series** menu, select **New Script**.

2 Specify a name, a description (not mandatory), and click **Next** to continue.

Batch Series Type				×
Use <u>r</u> eference	V	Tag <u>1</u>	Left	
<u>O</u> ne line only		Tag <u>2</u>	LeftCenter	
		Tag <u>3</u>	RightCenter	
Measurements per <u>l</u> ine:	4	Tag <u>4</u>	Right	
Measurements per piece:	2			
	Data}			
- Moo	.3			
	_			
< <u>B</u> a	ck <u>N</u>	lext>	Cancel	Help

#### This dialog is very important.

- 3 You have to decide ...
  - wether the measurements should be compared to a reference sample;
  - how many measurements should be taken in the horizontal direction (measurements per line: maximum is 4), and;
  - how many measurements per piece should be done in the vertical of a fabric.

The measurements in horizontal direction are called "Tag 1", "Tag 2", "Tag 3", and "Tag 4". For each tag, you can give a name describing the position of the measuring. This name is stored together with the spectrum and is used to identify the position.



### Note

These names cannot be modified if a batch series exists using that script. Refer to *Diagram: Measurement distribution on page 5-109*.

Up to four tags may be defined.

If you check "Only one line" the measurement program stops if the measurements defined in "Measurements per line" are done.

- 4 Select the Pass/Fail formula.
- 5 Click **Next** to continue.

Batch Serie Relation		×
Releation with standard:		
Tag	Standard	Tolerance Facto 🔺
Left	Standard	
LeftCenter	Standard	1.0
RightCenter	Standard	1.0
Diala	Clondord	<b>_</b>
Relation with previous bat	reh:	
		Tolerance Facto
Tag	Previous Tag	
LeftCenter	LeftCenter	1.0
RightCenter	RightCenter	1.0
🗹 Right	Right	1.0
•		
, <u> </u>		
Relation with <u>b</u> atch on sa	me line:	
Tag	Tag	Tolerance Facto 🔺
🗹 Left	LeftCenter	1.0
LeftCenter	RightCenter	
RightCenter	Right	
Diala	Lat	10 2
< [	<u>B</u> ack Finish	Cancel Help

6 Set the measurements you want to compare. You can set an individual tolerance factor for each relation.

There are three different types of relations:

- Relation with Standard (only if "Use reference" is checked in the previous dialog);
- relation with previous batch (vertical);
- relation with batch on the same line (horizontal).
- 7 Click **Finish** to save the script.



### Diagram: Measurement distribution

This graph represents one piece of fabric, with three horizontal measurement positions (e.g. left - center - right) and three positions per piece (e.g. at the beginning, in the middle and at the end of the piece). In addition, the reference is included in the pass / fail task.

# **Specifying A Batch Series**

Create b	atch seri
Name:	M&S Lot 173652
Folder	CS-Series
Script:	M&S-CSQC
Standard:	CS-Series
Batch name:	M&S Lot 173652
Batches:	···
Description:	Here you can write down some notes.
	OK Cancel

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On the <b>Batch Series</b> menu, select Measure New Series.	The "Create Batch Series" dialog box appears.
2	Type the name of the batch series, select the folder and the script.	
3	If a reference is defined in the script, select or measure the reference sample.	If a reference is not defined, the section for the standard is disabled.
4	Click <b>Ok</b> to start the measurement.	The measurement table and the "Mea- sure Control" dialog box appears.
Note		



### Note

The name of the batch series is used as batch name together with an extension for the number of lines measured, e.g.,

M&S Lot 1173652_001 M&S Lot 1173652_002 M&S Lot 1173652_003 M&S Lot 1173652_004,

Each sample contains the spectra for the readings made at the positions left, center and right.

5 Type the name or number for the 1st • piece of fabric and click **Measure** to start the 1st measurement.

The position you have to measure is displayed in the dialog box.

•

- The program asks for the next reading as soon as the measurement is done.
- If all measurements defined for a piece of fabric have been done, you can type the name of the next piece of fabric.
- If you forget it, the program asks for a new name.
- If your instrument is equipped with a feature button, you can trigger the measurement from the instrument.
- If the measurements of a line have been done, the color differences will be displayed.

# Adding A Graph Panel

You can add graph panels to the graphical display of all measurement positions and color difference values.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On the Batch Series menu, select	Graph panels <b>0</b> are displayed for each

Add Graph Panel.

Graph panels **0** are displayed for each measurement.

Add Graph Pane       Remove Graph Pane       Re	Remove Graph Pa Save Layout Save Layout As Load Layout Delete Layout Settings Print Preview	ane	іт 0.0 0.0	TF	0.8 0.4 1.5 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.1 1.9 0.3	-0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 -0.1 0.6 -0.1	dC -0.1 0.0 -0.9 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 -0.7 -0.2 0.0	dH 0.1 0.0 -1.0 0.8 0.3 0.7 0.1 -1.7 -0.2 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.5	0.4	-0.0	dC -0.0 0.5	dH -0.0 0.3	0.0	0.5
Image: Save Layout       if       TF       dE       old       dC       dH       if       TF       dE       dL       dC       dI       dI       dI       dI       dI       dI       dI       dI       dI	Save Layout Save Layout As Load Layout Delete Layout Settings, Print Preview		0.0		0.8 0.4 1.5 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.1 1.9 0.3	-0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 -0.1 0.6 -0.1	dC -0.1 0.0 -0.9 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 -0.7 -0.2 0.0	dH 0.1 0.0 -1.0 0.8 0.3 0.7 0.1 -1.7 -0.2 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.5	0.4	-0.0	dC -0.0 0.5	dH -0.0 0.3	0.0	0.5
Image: Save Layout       0.8       -0.0       -0.1       0.1       0.0       0.4       -0.0       -0.0       -0.0       0.0         Save Layout       Load Layout       0.0       0.4       0.0       0.0       0.4       -0.0       0.0       0.4       -0.0       -0.0       0.0         Delete Layout       Delete Layout       0.0       0.4       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0       0.5       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0         Settings       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0         Print Preview       Print       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0 <td< th=""><th>Bave Layout As Load Layout Delete Layout Bettings Print Preview</th><th></th><th>0.0</th><th></th><th>0.8 0.4 1.5 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.1 1.9 0.3</th><th>-0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 -0.1 0.6 -0.1</th><th>-0.1 0.0 -0.9 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 -0.7 -0.2 0.0</th><th>0.1 0.0 -1.0 0.8 0.3 0.7 0.1 -1.7 -0.2 0.0</th><th>0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0</th><th>0.5</th><th>0.4</th><th>-0.0</th><th>-0.0</th><th>-0.0 0.3</th><th>0.0</th><th>0.5</th></td<>	Bave Layout As Load Layout Delete Layout Bettings Print Preview		0.0		0.8 0.4 1.5 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.1 1.9 0.3	-0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 -0.1 0.6 -0.1	-0.1 0.0 -0.9 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0 -0.7 -0.2 0.0	0.1 0.0 -1.0 0.8 0.3 0.7 0.1 -1.7 -0.2 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.5	0.4	-0.0	-0.0	-0.0 0.3	0.0	0.5
Load Layout       0.0       0.1       0.0       0.0       0.1       0.0       0.1       0.0         Delete Layout       0.0       0.4       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0       0.5       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0         Settings       0.0       0.4       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0       0.5       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0         Print Preview       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0         Print Preview       0.0       0.5       0.1       -0.1       0.0       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1 <td< td=""><td>Load Layout Delete Layout Bettings Print Preview</td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td>0.5</td><td>1.5 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.1 1.9 0.3</td><td>0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 -0.1 0.6 -0.1 0.4</td><td>-0.9 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.0 -0.7 -0.2</td><td>-1.0 0.8 0.3 0.7 0.1 -1.7 -0.2 0.0</td><td>0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0</td><td>1.2</td><td>0.5</td><td>0.2</td><td>0.5</td><td>0.3</td><td>0.0</td><td></td></td<>	Load Layout Delete Layout Bettings Print Preview		0.0	0.5	1.5 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.1 1.9 0.3	0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 -0.1 0.6 -0.1 0.4	-0.9 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.0 -0.7 -0.2	-1.0 0.8 0.3 0.7 0.1 -1.7 -0.2 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	1.2	0.5	0.2	0.5	0.3	0.0	
0.0       0.4       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0       0.5       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0         Settings         Print Preview         Print       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.2       0.5       0.3       0.0         Print Preview         Print       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       <	Bettings Print Preview	A 2	0.0	0.5	0.6 0.1 1.9 0.3	0.2 0.3 -0.1 0.6 -0.1	0.5 0.5 0.0 -0.7 -0.2	0.3 0.7 0.1 -1.7 -0.2	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	1.2					0.0	
Print Preview         0.0         0.5         0.1         -0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5         0.1         0.0         0.5				0.5	1.9 0.3	0.6	-0.7	-1.7 -0.2	0.0	1.2	0.1	0.0	0.0	-0.1		
1       Print       0.0       0.5       0.1       -0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.0       -0.1       0.0       0.5         1       9       0.6       -0.7       -1.7       0.0       1.2       0.0       0.5       0.1       0.0       0.0       -0.1       0.0       0.5         0.3       -0.1       -0.2       -0.2       0.0       0.5       0.4       0.2       0.0       0.5         0.4       -0.2       -0.4       -0.2       -0.0       0.6       0.4       0.2       0.0       0.5         0.4       -0.2       -0.4       -0.2       -0.0       0.6       0.4       0.2       0.0       0.5         0.4       -0.2       -0.4       -0.2       -0.0       0.6       0.4       0.2       0.0       0.5         0.4       -0.2       -0.4       -0.2       -0.4       -0.2       0.0       0.4       0.2       0.0       0.5         0.4       -0.2       -0.4       -0.2       -0.4       -0.2       0.4       0.2       0.0				0.5	1.9 0.3	0.6	-0.7	-1.7 -0.2	0.0	1.2	0.1	0.0	0.0	-0.1		
Center: Stand ard			<u> </u>			0.1	0.2	0.0			0.4	0.2	0.0	0.2	•	
Center Stand ard									-	051	0.4	1 2	0.0	0.7	-	
	-dE(M&S)	:		-+												-
	— dE(M&S)															

2 In the graph panel, click the right mouse button.

The "Difference Graph Settings" dialog box appears.

Difference Graph	Settings	×
General Height 95		
- Relation		
	C Center - Center	
C Left - Center	C Center - Right	C Right - Left
	Center - Standard	
Value ▼ dE(MS)  □ dL(MS) □ da  □ db	Г dC(MS) Г dH(M Г iT	5)
	OK	Cancel
surement position	els, select the mea- ns to be compared ne difference value.	"iT" is the normalized tolerance (dE/TF) This value is important if you work with different tolerance factors for the sam- ple relations.

4 Save the screen using the **Save** Layout As function of the **Batch** Series menu. Refer to *Batch Series Window on page* 7-139 for an overview of all functions.

# **Printing A Batch Series**

The printout or print preview is based on print forms created with the "Print View Designer". Two default forms are provided with the database "Printform.db".

In the task "Options" of the menu "Batch Series", you can select wether all pass/fail decisions or only failed ones are to be printed.

#### Example of the default printouts

20.02.2001							<u>data</u>	color		
		Cente	r - Si	de - Q	C Det	ails				
Name	M&S Lot 1	73652			s	cript	M&S-C	SQC		
Description I	Here you can	write down	) some no	tes.						
Standard	M&S Blue 45	4			D	yelot				
Illuminant	msTL84-10	Fo	rmula I	MS89	T	olerance	MS89			
	dE	(M&S)	dL(	M&S)	dC(	M&S)	dH(	M&S)	<u>iT(</u> N	1&S)
	Mean	Std Dev	Mean	Std Dev	Mean	Std Dev	Mean	Std Dev	Mean	Std Dev
Center-Stand	<i>lar</i> 1.52	0.58	0.09	0.30	-0.91	0.44	-0.99	0.73	0.00	0.00
Center-Cente	er 0.75	0.68	-0.05	0.21	-0.09	0.57	0.06	0.82	0.00	0.00
Left-Center	0.36	0.45	-0.00	0.20	-0.00	0.46	0.01	0.29	0.00	0.00
Center-Right	0.36	0.45	0.00	0.20	-0.01	0.46	0.00	0.29	0.00	0.00
Right-Left	0.37	0.45	-0.00	0.20	-0.02	0.47	-0.00	0.29	0.00	0.00
Name Piec	e No: 1 <u>dE(M&amp;S)</u>	<u>dL(M&amp;S) d</u>	IC(M&S) (	1 <u>H(M&amp;S)</u>		Ĺ	<u>7(M&amp;S)</u>	<u>7F</u>	<u>Decision</u>	2
Center-Cente	r 0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00			0.00	0.00	Pass	
Left-Center	0.09	0.02	-0.08	0.03			0.00	0.50	Pass	
Center-Right	0.1 <b>1</b>	-0.07	0.03	0.08			0.00	0.50	Pass	
Right-Left	0.1 <b>1</b>		0.02	-0.11			0.00	0.50	Pass	
Center-Standa	an 1.91	0.57	-0.65	-1.70			0.00	1.20	Pass	

# **Datacolor TICKET (Option)**

Datacolor TICKET has been designed for customers needing software to easily specify production recipes and Datacolor TICKETs to run on their production plant.

Datacolor TICKET is based on the "Entry Level Datacolor PROCESS". The big advantage of the new module is that you can generate Datacolor TICKETs without a combined process.

Datacolor Ticked consists of three major tasks: dye lot, production recipe and administration.

# **Datacolor TICKET - Production Recipe**

The "Production Recipe" task is used to specify production recipes from approved laboratory recipes.



Note

The advantage of creating production recipes without combined process means that the recipe is completely unique. There is no rule for adjusting the concentrations of chemicals or for adding process dependent chemicals and/or parameters, even if an operation is used to set up the production recipe. The production recipe is a flat recipe built up from dyestuffs, chemicals, and parameters. The generated recipe has no link to a combined process or operation.

Datacolor TICKET uses the combined process if it is used in Datacolor MATCH-^{Textile}. In this case, it is not necessary to specify the generated recipe in the "Production Recipe" task. The program behaves as the normal "Datacolor PROCESS Entry Level".

Recipe : MB1209 (	Old Gold Yellow 1630 (9728-001)	×
File Edit Recipe		
<b>H F</b>	▶	
ID:	9728-001 AuxID:	-1
Name:	MB1209 Old Gold Yellow 1630	
Color type	7-42-00 MB1209 Old Gold Yellow 1630	-
💏 Quality	1 Cotton bleached	3
Affinity	CO-SPZ Cotton bleached	
-		_
CombProcess		1
Location:	Laboratory	
8	Dy Dye process Part DyeFiberGroup Colorant set	
	1 Reactive exhaust     100% CO     1/10 Reactive Exhaust	
	# Product ID Product Name Conc Old Conc Unit Actual	
	0 14 Bezaktiv Yellow S-3R 150 0.7683 0.0000 % 150 %	j.
	1 15 Bezaktiv Red S-3B 150 0.1128 0.0000 % 150 %	
	2 4 Bezaktiv Green S-4B 0.2301 0.0000 % 100 %	
PassFail		-
P	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	2
👸 M	fodify Template	
User : DCI cri	reated 03.10.2002, modified 03.10.2002 by DCI	//

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Overview" window, click <b>Pro-</b> duction Recipe.	The "Recipes" list window appears. Refer to <i>Recipe List Window on page 7- 145</i> .
2	Select the requested recipe and open it.	The "Recipe" window appears. Refer to <i>Recipe Window (Datacolor PROCESS)</i> on page 7-147.
3	Click <b>Load and Modify Template</b> to add chemicals.	The "Root Recipe" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Root Recipe Dialog Box on</i> <i>page 7-149</i> for more information.
4	Click New Dye Lot.	The "New Dye Lot" dialog box appears. Continue with <i>Datacolor TICKET - Dye</i> <i>Lot on page 5-117</i> .



### Note

The "Root Recipe" contains all the dyeing steps with the related products and their relative amount (%, ml/l, or g/l).
# Datacolor TICKET - Dye Lot

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Recipe Selection" tab of the "New Dye Lot" dialog box, type the dye lot ID, the dye lot name, and select the recipe.	The "Recipes" list window appears. Refer to <i>Recipe List Window on page 7-</i> <i>145</i> .
2	In the "Machine Selection" tab, select the machine and type the absolute amounts. <i>Liquor ratio or pickup are not con-</i> <i>trolled by this program.</i>	Refer to the Datacolor PROCESS help. Press <b>F1</b> .
3	Click <b>Generate</b> to calculate the dye lot.	

## **Datacolor TICKET - Administration**

In the Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} "Overview" window, click **Administration** to specify and maintain the other data of Datacolor PROCESS such as products, qualities, combined process, etc.

Refer to the Datacolor PROCESS help. Press F1.

ITMProcess v2.2 (2.2.1.19) 31.12.2002	_ 🗆 🗙
🖻 🗅 Recipe Management	<b>^</b>
-B Recipe	
🖹 Color type	
🕀 - 🖺 Quality	
⊡- 🖺 CombProcess	
🖻 🗅 Product and Dyes Management	
Product	
⊕- 🖺 Dyestuff	
🖺 Delivery	
🖺 Product supplier	
🔄 🖳 🖺 Unit	-
•	
🗸 Open: Recipe	
Licenced to G.ROSENBERGER till 2002	

# **Datacolor SORT (Option)**

### Introduction

Traditional "555 shade sorting" is a system for sorting samples into a 3-dimensional array of blocks (centered around the standard) in order to subdivide the "acceptable" matches to the standard into smaller groups. Each group is described using a three digit code. Each digit varies from 1-9 and represents the distance to the standard for each color difference dimension. The center block (containing the standard) is assigned a sort code of "555". Each member of a group is close enough to other members of the same group in color to prevent any noticeable color variation between them. The "size" of each block is set by the user (by means of a tolerance value) to limit the amount of shade variation within each group. The tolerance is a set of three numerical values that control the dimensions of each block, typically in dL*, dC*, and dH* - although variations exist using dL*, da*, and db* as well as HunterLab dL, da, and db.

The selection of the tolerances by the user is critical to the performance of the system. Tolerances that are too large will produce shade groups with excessive shade variations within each group. Tolerances that are too small will result in too many subdivisions of the population, with many of the shade blocks containing only one or two samples.

An alternative to the "555 shade sorting" system is a dynamic sorting system that we will call "clustering" or "grouping". This alternative is realized in the new Datacolor SORT module.

### Clustering

Clustering is an alternative to "555 shade sorting", whereby all the samples (rolls, pieces, garments, cones) are placed into groups such that all members of the group may be shipped or cut together. The members of the group have minimal color differences from the overall group average . As described below, there are usually two steps in the process:

- 1 Clustering or grouping the entire population of samples into a manageable number of distinct groups, then:
- 2 a sequencing or tapering process to put the members of the group in the correct order for shipment or cutting.

Jarvis and Aspland at Clemson first developed clustering in the early nineties. The Apparel Research Dept. has a fully functioning garment assembly plant, and shade sorting has always been one of their specialties. Simon developed the original 555 concept there in 1955. Sorting by 555 has certain drawbacks:

- The fixed grid in CIELab or CIELCH results in large numbers of boxes,
- boxes with few members, and
- the corners present problems in that samples can be very similar to a neighbor but are sorted into different boxes.

Clustering eliminates all of these problems by grouping them according to their proximity to each other in a logical fashion, in much the same way you would group them visually. The use of CMC-based ellipsoids for the clusters helps to insure that samples are placed into clusters that best correspond to visual shade grouping. The center of the ellipsoid is taken to be the average of the cluster. Clustering definitely produces fewer groups and a better color agreement within the group. The only disadvantage is that clustering does not provide a color relationship to the original standard, whereas 555 does. This is not usually a problem, because the clusters can be plotted in color space relative to the standard, and the samples have already been screened for Pass/Fail in the production QC process.

In clustering and tapering methods, there are user-defined criteria that determine the taper sequence(s), the number of clusters, and color differences. These are described in the section below. It must be remembered that there will be samples within a taper or clustering process that fall outside the limits established by the user. In the case of tapering, these samples are "outliers", and are listed as such. In clustering, there may be outliers that do not belong in any cluster. The object is to include all samples, but not to compromise the user's tolerances.

Since clustering usually precedes tapering, the cluster program must be dynamic rather than static. A population may be clustered and the results can be saved as a table, printed, etc. However, as new samples are added to the population, the entire table will change accordingly. If the new samples fall very close to an existing cluster, they will become part of that cluster, and the average of the cluster will be re-calculated. If enough samples fall elsewhere, but are very similar to each other, a new cluster may be formed and the entire population re-clustered.

#### Tapering

It is best to think of tapering as a sequencing method. A series of dye lots (typically rolls of fabric or cones of yarn) are to be shipped to a given location for cutting and assembly. It is important that the rolls are sent in a sequence such that there is minimal color difference from roll to roll. The rolls are usually cut as they are received. The cutter will therefore have a much easier job if the fabric supplier has already provided the optimum sequence of rolls.

In many dyeing processes, the processes themselves will result in a tapering effect, especially in continuous dyeing of woven fabrics. Factors such as roller pressure and dye tank feeds cause variations in the run, but this variation is gradual. We would expect the variation to occur more often in lightness/darkness and in chroma. Differences in hue can occur, but less frequently, and are associated with the differences in dye substance to the fiber rather than mechanical effects.

## **Start Datacolor SORT**

Sorting with Datacolor SORT is performed using a sort job according to a sort script. Sort criteria is specified in a sort script.



Note

Before you can use the program to cluster and / or taper samples, you have to define "Sort Scripts". A "Sort Script" contains the conditions and limitations (sort criteria) that are used to build clusters and tapers.

Datacolor SORT can either be installed as a stand-alone application or as a module of Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}.

### Starting the Standalone Version

1



On the Windows start menu or the desktop, click the Datacolor SORT icon. The "SORT job" window appears.

### Starting from Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}

1

👫 🛛 Datacolor Sort

In the "Overview" window of the Datacolor MATCH-^{Textile} explorer, click the Datacolor SORT icon. The "SORT job" window appears.

# Open a SORT job

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Double-click the job in the "SORT job" window.	The "Job load progress" message box shows the progress of the loading.
		Job load progress
		Batch load progress:
		Clustering progress
		Tapering progress: Cluster: 0 Taper: 0
		If the loading is finished, the "Job Result" window appears.
		Refer to <i>Job Result Window on page</i> 7- 154.

# Specifying a New SORT job

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select either the option <b>New Sort</b> <b>Job</b> from the "Datacolor Sort" menu or from the context-sensitive menu.	The "New Sort Job" wizard starts. The sort job name may be modified and a description can be entered into the description field. Refer also to <i>Sort Job Maintenance</i> <i>Dialog Box on page 7-160</i> .



### Note

Depending to the settings in the "Sort Job Definition Options", you may not see all pages of the wizard. Refer to *SORT job Definition Options on page 5-133*.

New Sort Job Wizard	X
Welcome to the New Sort Job Wizard	
This wizard helps you create a new job for sorting and/or tapering samples. You will be able to save this sort job and retrieve, show and modify it later.	
Type a name for this new sort job	
Note: If you select an existing job from the database, you can modify it with this wizard.	
Description	
< Back Next	> Cancel Help

2 Click Next.

The following dialog box appears.

ript and Filter					
Script Name and Filter The Sort Script defines the sort operatio	n, and with the	e filter yo	u select wi	nich batches will be proposed for the sort.	
Sort Script (All Data) Group and Taper CMC Group and Taper; CMC 2:1 F 1.0; Sorted by Color both group and taper; Maximum distance batch to group center 0.2; taper limit 0.3; Taper linear path					
	_				
✓ I want to use a <u>ColorTools</u> Standard (AIData) Standard Note: If you leave the standard	indard empty, a		·	e new batches	
	indard empty, a		ated average	Measure       ge will be used	
itandard All Data) Control Control Con	indard empty, a	a calcula	ated average	Measure       ge will be used	
itandard All Data) Cordo Note: If you leave the sta see only Batches with these properties Batch Property Use only batches from this folder	indard empty, a	a calcula	ated average	Measure       ge will be used	
Landard All Data) 2 ordo Note: If you leave the sta se only Batches with these properties Batch Property Use only batches from this folder BAT_IMAGE (ImageMaster Batch Image)	indard empty, a : Type	a calcula	ated average	Measure       ge will be used	
Landard All Data) 2 ordo Note: If you leave the sta se only Batches with these properties Batch Property Use only batches from this folder BAT_IMAGE (ImageMaster Batch Image) Length (Length of fabric)	Type Ab	a calcula	ited average	Measure       ge will be used	
Jandard All Data) Jandard Jordo Note: If you leave the sta	Indard empty, a Type Ab 3.1	a calcula	er Value	Measure       ge will be used	

3 Select the **Sort Script** containing the sort conditions you need.

For more information about selecting data from the database, refer to *Data Handling on page 5-2*.

The sort script defines the sort operation. All parameters defined in the sort script are used as defaults. Depending on your access rights, you can modify these default values. Refer to *Specifying a New SORT job on page 5-122* and *Modifying a Sort Script on page 5-130*.

If you do not select a standard, the program calculates the average of all batches and uses this as the theoretical standard for the pass/fail decision.

- Select a standard from the database or click the Measure button. The "Measurement" dialog box appears. Refer to *Calibration and Measurement on page 5-10.*You can set filters to reduce the
- 5 You can set filters to reduce the number of batches that are displayed for selection. A filter might be a specific folder or any user defined field you have created either with Datacolor TOOLS or with Datacolor SORT.



#### Notes

- If you check "I want to use a Datacolor TOOLS Standard" only Datacolor TOOLS standards are displayed to select from. The batches linked to this standard are listed on the next page. They are already selected if "Automatically include new batches" is checked. In this case, it is not possible to remove batches from the list. This is only possible if "Automatically include new batches" is not selected.
- Click the Measure button to measure more batches.

Or         Name         Date           Color         Name         Date           2020204-C1440107-001         2003-09-29-16:41           2020204-C1440207-009         2003-09-29-16:41           2020204-C1440207-009         2003-09-29-16:41           2020204-C1440207-013         2003-09-29-16:41           2020204-C1440207-013         2003-09-29-16:41           2020204-C1440207-017         2003-09-29-16:41           2020204-C1440207-017         2003-09-29-16:41           2020204-C1440207-021         2003-09-29-16:41           2020204-C1440207-023         2003-09-29-16:41	
200204-C1440107-005       2003-09-29-16:41         200204-C1440207-009       2003-09-29-16:41         200204-C1440207-013       2003-09-29-16:41         200204-C1440207-017       2003-09-29-16:41         200204-C1440207-017       2003-09-29-16:41         200204-C1440207-017       2003-09-29-16:41         200204-C1440207-017       2003-09-29-16:41	
200204-C1440207-009     2003-09-29-16:41       200204-C1440207-013     2003-09-29-16:41       200204-C1440207-017     2003-09-29-16:41       200204-C1440207-017     2003-09-29-16:41       200204-C1440207-021     2003-09-29-16:41	
200204-C1440207-013         2003-09-29-16:41           200204-C1440207-017         2003-09-29-16:41           200204-C1440207-021         2003-09-29-16:41           200204-C1440207-021         2003-09-29-16:41	
200204-C1440207-017 2003-09-29-16:41 200204-C1440207-021 2003-09-29-16:41	
200204-C1440207-021 2003-09-29- 16:41	
200204-C1440207-023A 2003-09-29- 16:41	
200204-C1440207-024A 2003-09-29- 16:41	
200204-C1440207-024B 2003-09-29- 16:41	
200204-C1440307-025 2003-09-29- 16:41	
200204-C1440307-029 2003-09-29-16:41	
200204-C1440307-033 2003-09-29- 16:41	
200204-C1440307-037 2003-09-29- 16:41	
200204-C1440407-041 2003-09-29- 16:41	
200204-C1440407-045 2003-09-29-16:41	

6 The next pages of the SORT job wizard are the same as described in chapter *"Specifying A New Sort Script"*.
Depending on your access rights set in the sort job definition options. You can now modify all grouping and tapering parameters.

Refer to Specifying A New Sort Script on page 5-126.

Refer to SORT job Definition Options on page 5-133.

# Modifying a SORT job

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select either the option <b>Maintain</b> <b>Sort Job</b> on the "Datacolor Sort" menu or on the context-sensitive menu.	The "Sort Job Maintenance" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Sort Job Maintenance Dialog Box on page</i> 7-160.
2	Modify the data and click <b>OK</b> .	



### Note

The data you can change depends on your access rights and the job itself.

# Specifying A New Sort Script

	Action	Result/Notes
	Select either the option <b>New Sort</b> <b>Script</b> on the "Datacolor Sort" menu or on the context-sensitive menu.	The "New Sort Script" wizard starts. The sort job name may be modified and a description can be entered into the description field.
		Refer also to <i>Sort Script Maintenance</i> <i>Dialog Box on page</i> 7-167.
int l	Name	>
	Icome to the New Sort Script Wizard	
	wizard helps you create a new script for sorting and/or tapering your sample script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will t	
The This		pe sorted / tapered.
The This Type	script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will t wizard is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please pre e a name for the new script (All Data)	pe sorted / tapered.
The This Type	script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will t wizard is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please pre e a name for the new script (All Data) New Script 25.09.2003 13:19:27	ss Cancel now.
The This Type Mote	script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will t wizard is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please pre e a name for the new script (All Data) New Script 25.09.2003 13:19:27 e: If you select an existing script from the database, you can modify it with th	ss Cancel now.
The This Type Mote	script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will t wizard is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please pre e a name for the new script (All Data) New Script 25.09.2003 13:19:27 e: If you select an existing script from the database, you can modify it with th scription	ss Cancel now.
The This Type Note	script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will t wizard is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please pre e a name for the new script (All Data) New Script 25.09.2003 13:19:27 e: If you select an existing script from the database, you can modify it with th	ss Cancel now.
The This Type Note	script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will t wizard is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please pre e a name for the new script (All Data) New Script 25.09.2003 13:19:27 e: If you select an existing script from the database, you can modify it with th scription	ss Cancel now.
The This Type Note	script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will t wizard is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please pre e a name for the new script (All Data) New Script 25.09.2003 13:19:27 e: If you select an existing script from the database, you can modify it with th scription	ss Cancel now.

2 You can modify the name (default is New Script <date and time>) of the script and you can describe the script.

Click Next.

3

Refer to *Script Name Tab on page 7-167*.

The following dialog box appears.

General Settings	×
General Settings Do you want to group or taper or both? What are your fundamental colorimetric conditions?	
Method C Group only C Japer only	
Illuminant	
Tolerance (All Data)	
Maximum distance (CMC) Batch to <u>S</u> tandard	
	< Back Next > Cancel

4 Define which sorting method, illuminant, tolerance formula and tolerance factor you would like to use. Refer to *General Settings Tab on page* 7-168.

The following dialog box appears.



5 Click Next.

6 Select the sorting type.

The grouping parameters you can select are dynamic and depend to the selected tolerance formula.

7 Click Next.

The following dialog box appears.

Group Limits			×
Group Limits Define the limits for this sort operation			
☞ Limit the number of batches in one group to:	Minimum Maximur	m	
C Limit the total Bat_Fabric_Wwidth ☑ in one group to:		]	
C Limit the number of Groups:	2 2	2	
		< Back Next >	Cancel Help

#### Parameters

Limit the number of batches in one group to:

You can define a minimum and a maximum number of

batches in a group. If no maximum is given, there is no limit.

Limit the total (XXX) in one group to

Here you can limit the group to the value of a user defined field, e.g., fabric length, quality level, etc.

Limit the number of groups

This limits the number of groups to the range you type in.

- 8 Select the group limits.
- 9 Click Next.

The following dialog box appears.

Tapering Parameters		×
Tapering Parameters You have decided to taper	What type of tapering do you prefer?	
Sort by Color dL(CMC)	Tapering Method <u>N</u> ext Neighbour Linear Path <u>Minimum</u> Path	
C dC(CMC)		
Start a new taper sequence if di	stance (CMC) greater than	
		<u>&lt; B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel

10 Select the tapering parameters.

Click Next.

11

The parameters can be different than selected for clustering. In addition to the sort type you must select a tapering method.

Refer to *Tapering Parameters Tab on* page 7-163.

The following dialog box appears.

View Options View Options Define the c Table Options L* a* b* C* h WI(GG) T(GG) V(CIE) Property	Holumns you want to see in the result wind dE(CMC) dL(CMC) dC(CMC) whiteness Ganz Griesser Whiteness CIE	w and the graphical display modus Graph Options C Lab <u>G</u> raph Difference Graph
		< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel

12 Define what you would like to see in the results window.

Refer to View Options Tab on page 7-165.

13 Click Next.

The following dialog box appears.

Print Output Sort Order-				1	
By Group/Taper cooperation	le				
O By Sample <u>Name</u>					
Group Codes				1	
C <u>1</u> , 2, 3					
⊙ <u>А</u> , В, С	First Group Code	A			
◯ <u>L</u> *a*b* code					
Taper Codes			 	1	
● 1, <u>2</u> , 3					
С А, <u>В</u> , С	First Taper Code	1			
Group/Taper <u>S</u> eparator				_	

The last wizard page is used to set up the output and to select the coding you would like to use for groups (clusters) and tapers. The print output sort order is linked to individual print forms. One is used to print the job ordered by Group/Taper code, and the second is sorted identically to the order you have displayed in the output screen. You can change the order in the output screen by clicking in the table columns.

14 Click **Next** to finish the wizard.

### Modifying a Sort Script

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select either the option <b>Maintain</b> <b>Sort Script</b> on the "Datacolor Sort" menu or on the context-sensitive menu.	The "Sort Script Maintenance" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Specifying A New Sort Script</i> <i>on page 5-126</i> and <i>Sort Script Mainte-</i> <i>nance Dialog Box on page 7-167</i> for more information about the settings.
2	Modify the data and click <b>OK</b> .	



### Note

Existing sort jobs are not modified automatically if you change the sort script. Modifications are taken into account if you recalculate the sort job.

## Maintain the Sample Property

With the "Maintain Sample Property" function, you can add or modify a sample property and its value (user defined field).

In the "Property" tab, it is possible to specify or modify a property.

In the "Sample Property" tab, you can set the values.

Properties and values are assigned to the batch selected in the table. The new property is added to the Datacolor file USER.FLD.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the option <b>Maintain Sample</b> <b>Property</b> either on the "Datacolor	The "Sample Property" dialog box appears.
	Sort" menu or on the context-sensi- tive menu.	Refer to Sample Property Dialog Box on page 7-169.

2 Modify the data and click **OK**.



### Note

If you have installed Datacolor TOOLS, do not add or modify properties in Datacolor SORT. This may affect your Datacolor TOOLS desktop data. Properties may be used as input fields by screen forms in Datacolor TOOLS. Make all modification with Datacolor TOOLS Form Editor instead.

## **Pre-Selections of User Defined Fields**

The "User.fld" file may contain many fields that cannot be used by Datacolor SORT. This task is used to select only relevant user defined fields for Datacolor SORT.

Batch Properties	Pre-Selection Properties
BAT_IMAGE BRAND_LABEL BRAND_LABEL BRAND_MANAGER BRAND_MNGER_EMAIL BUYER CHROMA_BRIGHT_EXTREME CHROMA_BRIGHT_SLIGHT CHROMA_DULL_EXTREME CHROMA_DULL_SUGHT COMMENTS_1 COUNTRY_ORIGIN DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_1005 DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_1205 DCC_CAL_1_1205 DCC_CAL_1_1304 DCC_CAL_1_13_05 DCC_CAL_1_14_04	BAT_QUALITY_LEVEL FABRIC_SUPPLIER
Add All >> Add >	< Remove << Remove All
	Save Cancel

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the fields in the "Batch Properties" list box and click <b>Add</b> to move them into the "Pre-Selection Properties" list box.	Datacolor SORT shows only the pre- selected fields to filter the sample list according your field settings or to input the batch property field value when you measure new batches.

## **SORT job Definition Options**

This function program is used to create or modify tolerances. Refer to *Specifying, Modi-fying or Deleting Tolerances on page 5-44*.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select either the option <b>Sort Job</b> <b>Definition Options</b> on the "Datacol- or Sort" menu or on the context-sen- sitive menu.	The "Sort Job Definition Options" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>Sample Property Dialog Box</i> <i>on page 7-169</i> .
2	Modify the data and click <b>OK</b> .	

Check the input pages you want to see when a new SORT job is defined. The default settings for the sort job definition are:

Sort Job Definition Options	x
Check the input pages you want to see when a new job is defined, or ar Invisible pages are filled with the values from the Sort Script.	n existing job is maintained.
Grouping Parameters	
🔽 Group Limits	
Tapering Parameters	
View Options	
🔽 Output Options	
	OK Cancel



### Note

If you want to be sure that a user works only with the predefined settings of the Sort Script, you have to limit the access rights, respectively.

Login as User "DCI" and run the option "User Administration" (Menu Tools  $\rightarrow$  User Manager  $\rightarrow$  User Administration).

# **Datacolor BLEND (Option)**

Datacolor BLEND is a color recipe prediction software, especially designed to assist users in the complex process of fiber-blending.

Datacolor BLEND is a powerful tool for calculating the required amounts of pre-dyed fiber material to be used in the fiber-blending process, for both laboratory and production use. Datacolor BLEND is designed with user-friendliness in mind. Each color can be calculated as a mixture of any fiber material, and from any shade. An important additional function is that dyeing recipes can be predicted with Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}, in order to calculate the dyestuff amounts for dyeing fibers not currently in stock.

The functions for recipe creation and correction help the user to calculate blends with maximum efficiently, and, where required, at the lowest cost.

Datacolor BLEND is based on Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}, the most comprehensive color recipe software for textile processing.

The application of fiber blending (melanges) requires different mathematics in order to calculate the amounts of individual colored fibers required to specify a melange fabric (felt, garment, etc.).

Companies that are involved in this application either use dyed fiber skeins only, and mix them in various percentages to obtain the desired mixture, or have their own (fiber) dye house for producing the "raw" material themselves, and are capable of carrying out supplementary dyeing if a mixture of existing colored fibers does not result in the target color. In addition to the demand for blending and dyeing, several fabrics are also created by mixing different materials (CO/PES).

The Datacolor BLEND module for Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} is able to serve all the process demands of fiber blenders, as it offers the capability of calculating the required percentages of pre-colored fibers and of calculating the "supplementary dyeing".

The data set preparation for fiber blending is different from the calibration series for dyeing. It is necessary to have a set of black and white fiber mixtures and a 100%-representative sample of each color. The data set preparation of Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} has been modified to reflect these requirements, and, in addition, the matching and correction user interfaces have been adapted.

## Starting Datacolor BLEND

Datacolor BLEND can either be installed as a stand-alone application or as a module of Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}.

### Starting Datacolor BLEND



On the Windows start menu or the desktop, click the Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} or the Datacolor BLEND icon.

The Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} explorer with the "Overview" window appears.

Click the Fiber Blending icon.
 The "Recipe List Window" with the existing blend recipes appears.
 Refer to *Recipe List Window on page 7-91*.

### Specifying A New Fiber Set

Similar to Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} colorant sets, you must specify fiber sets before you can calculate fiber recipes. The colorant set preparation program (Colibri) contains therefore a new option to build such fiber sets.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the option <b>General Calibra-</b> tion on the "File" menu.	The "Colorant Set List" window with the existing fiber sets appears. Refer to <i>Colorant Set List Window on page 7-76</i> .
2	On the "Colorant set" or the context- sensitive menu, select New $\rightarrow$ Fiber Mixing.	The "Fiber Set" window appears. Refer to <i>Blend Fiber Set Window on</i> <i>page 7-173</i> .
3	Specify the fiber set name	<ul> <li>The ID is built using the 24 lead- ing characters and can be modi- fied.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Automatically, the "Industry Type" is set to "Fiber blending" and the process is created.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>The default "Calibration Method" is "Rohner Function". You can select "Approximation".</li> </ul>
4	<b>Continue</b> with <i>Black and White Fibers on page</i> 5-136.	

### Black and White Fibers

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the table column "Product", click <b>New</b> .	The "White Fiber" dialog box appears.

Product	Yalues	
Мате	* White-Wool	OK
Product Supplier ID	DC	
Product Type	Black or White	- Cance
Note		
Actual Price	1	
Creation Date		
Modification Date		

2 Specify name, product supplier, and actual price.

3

Click **OK**. The "Black Fiber" dialog box appears.

Product	Values	
Name	Black-Wool	OK
Product Supplier ID	DC.	
Product Type	Black or White	- Cancel
Note		
Actual Price	4	
Creation Date		
Modification Date		

- 4 Specify name, product supplier, and actual price.
- 5 Click **OK**.

The "Create Calibration Series" dialog box appears.

reate calibration serie								×
All Data}				<u>N</u> ev	v <u>M</u> odify			
Product Wool-white-felt Black-wool-felt	#. 4 4	Quantity 100.00 0.00	[2] 95 5.00	[3] 90 10.00	[4] [ 70 30.00			
Type of sample input				ze mixture to	▶   100			
Measurements      Measure with inputs of o      Prefix     Wool-white-I      Sample     Wool-white-I	conncent felt	ration values		te mixture to	100			
New calibration's serie	ation Sam	ple	Conc.	Stren	gth			
						<u>R</u> eset	Acce <u>p</u> t	<u>C</u> ancel

6 Fill in the concentration of the white fiber part.Click then Complete mixture to.

The program completes the black fiber concentrations.

<b></b>	Data}					λ <u>ξ</u>		-Relat %]	ive str	ength			
White	e-Wool				New	Modify	1 ğí	[%]			~	~	
#. Quant	tity [2]	[3]	[4]	[5]	[6]	[7]	ī ^m						
6	0.00 50.00	70.00	90.00	95.00	100	.00	C 0						
6 10	00.00 50.00	30.00	10.00	5.00	) (	0.00	20000		/				
							~		1				
								- 1					
•						•	1 <mark>1000</mark>	_/_					
			Norma	alize mixtu	ure to 1	100	- <mark>우</mark>						
	ample input							1					
C Measu	urements 💿 From	database	Comp	olete mixtu	ire to	100		/					
									_	10	60	00	
							-		20	40	60	80	100
										40	60	80	100
							E	Stren		40	60	80	100
							( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren		40		80	100
	d e ser e la s						( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren		40		80	100
Use stored							( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren		40		80	100
	😥 Fibramix	100.00/	0.001				( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren		40	80	80	100
Use stored Sample		fek [100.00/ (	0.00]				( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren		40	80	80	100
Sample	Fibramix Kw>White-wool-	feit (100.00/ (	0.00]				( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren		40	50	80	100
Sample ew calibrat	Fibramix Kw>White-wool-		0.00]		Strength	ALCOLOGICAL POLIS	( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren		40		80	100
Sample ew calibrat	Fibramix Kw>White-wool- tion's serie	mple	Conc.		Strength	21620.	( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren		40		80	
Sample lew calibrat	Fibramix Kw>White-wool- tion's serie Calibration Sat	mple lt [ 70.00/ 30.	Conc.		Strength	ALCOLOGICAL POLIS	0001500025000	Stren		40		80	
Sample lew calibrat	tion's serie Calibration Sa White-wool-fe	mple It [ 70.00/ 30. It [ 90.00/ 10.	Conc. 70.000 90.000		Strength	21620.	( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren [K/S]	ingth				
Sample lew calibrat	Kionis serie Calibration Sa White-wool-fe White-wool-fe	mple It [ 70.00/ 30. It [ 90.00/ 10. It [ 95.00/ 5	Conc. 70.000 90.000 95.000		Strength	21620. 26035.	( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren [K/S]		40	60	80	
	Fibramix     woWhite-wool     Calibration Sa     White-wool-fe     White-wool-fe     White-wool-fe	mple It [ 70.00/ 30. It [ 90.00/ 10. It [ 95.00/ 5	Conc. 70.000 90.000 95.000		Strength	21620. 26035. 27169.	( C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Stren [K/S]	ingth		60		

- 7 Select or measure the samples and click **Accept**.
- 8 **Continue** with Colored Fibers on page 5-140.

The "Fiber Set" window appears with the specified fibers.

### **Colored Fibers**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the table column "Product", click <b>New</b> .	The "Create Calibration Series" dialog box appears.
2	Click New.	The "Product Definition" dialog box appears.

'alues <i>Vool Yellow</i> Color Fiber ▼ 70	OK Cancel
Color Fiber	
Color Fiber 📃	Cancel
	Cancel
0	

- 3 Specify name, product supplier, and actual price.
- 4 Click **OK**.

The "Create Calibration Series" dialog box appears.

Create calibration serie	×
Product       Yell Data       Yellow         New	Modify
Product     #.     Quantity       Copy of Wool Yellow     1     100.00	
Type of sample input • Measurements C From database	
Measure with inputs of conncentration values Prefix Copy of Wool Yellow Sample Copy of Wool Yellow [100.00]	
New calibration's serie	
RGB Calibration Sample Conc. Strength	
	Reset Accept Cancel
5 <b>Measure</b> the sample.	Refer to Calibrating Your Spectropho- tometer on page 5-10 and Measure- ment on page 5-20.

The new color fiber is added to the fiber set. The program goes back to the "Fiber Set" window.

7 Specify the other colored fibers in the same way.

Click Accept.

6

## **Recipe Calculation**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On the context-sensitive menu of the "Recipe List" window, click <b>Match</b> .	The "Match" dialog box appears. Refer to <i>BLEND Match Dialog Box on</i> <i>page 7-176</i> .

Standard       Image: Constraint of the set of t	Match				
Used     Fiberset       Wool Fet     Calculate       KSP Burnwolle     Approx       Jay 1     Jay 1	Standard		47		
Available fibersets	Olive-Wool				
Used     Fiberset       Wool Fett	Process Data for fiber matching	Oyeset Lab-Graphic Settings			Save
Wool Fett       Wool Fett       Wool Fett       Approximation       KSP Brumwolle       KSP Barmwolle - Approx       Jay 1	Available fibersets				Calculate
WoolVett - Approximation       KSP Brumwolle       KSP Barmwolle - Approx       Jay 1		Fiberset			
KSP Brumwolle KSP Barmwolle - Approx Jay 1					
KSP Baamwolle - Approx		on			
		0X			
Vvool Set					
	VVool Set				
Used fiberset Wool Felt Part [%] 100 Current total [%] 0	Used fiberset Wool Felt	Part [%]	100 Current total [%]	0	
Standard	Standard				
Fibramix	Fibramix	a			
Cancel					Cancel

- 2 Select the standard.
- 3 Select a fiber set by double-clicking the name.

The fiber set appears in the list box "Used fiber set". The "Part" is set to 100%.

i <mark>tch</mark> Standard			6					
Olive-W	/ool							
rocess D	ata	for fiber matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic S	ettings					Save
Fiberset	Γ	Wool Felt Part [%] 100						Calculate
	eory	Batch and co Batch and co E 500 600 700	lor difference — II Data} Share		Max OI	Share	> R%	
0/1		Dyestuff			Con	centration [%]		
A/S/N	3355	Shown : 14 selected : 5	Compul	Fixed	Min.(100%)	Max.(100%)	Relation	
1	2	Wool-white-felt				100		
2	5	Black-wool-felt				100		
3	ন	Yellow-wool-felt				100		
4		Orange-wool-felt				100		
5	5	Red-wool-felt				100		
6	2	Blue-wool-felt				100		
7	Г	Navy-wool-felt				100		
8		Grey-wool-felt				100		
Taxable International Property lies in the local division of the l		Brown-wool-felt				100		Cancel

In the "Dye Set" tab, select the fibers Refer to Dye Set Tab on page 7-177 4 you want to use.

and Lab Graphic Tab on page 7-178.

<u>―</u> ト
74

#### Note

The fiber selection is more important for this application than with Datacolor MATCH^{Tex-}

^{tile}, because the program may calculate many recipes with a good colorimetric result, but the visual effect depends strongly to the fiber colors of the standard. The measurement of the standard is an average of all colors used for the standard.

5	Set the parameters of the "Settings" tab, if necessary.	Refer to Settings Tab on page 7-120.
6	Click Calculate.	The "Recipe List" appears.
		Refer to <i>BLEND</i> Recipe Calculation Result Table on page 7-179 and Review (recipe table) on page 5-76.
7	Select the recipe in the table and save it.	

Datacolor

·····································	5 💥	er 💹 🛛	🖬 🤛		1 8	66 🖻	1. N. S.									
Standard		Olive-Woo	ol													
Formula		CieLab De	fault[D65,	A,F11]												
dE* 065	1	0.56	0.57	0.62	0.62	0.63	0.67	0.67	0.74	0.76	0.79	1.49	1.70	1.85	2.29	2.4
dE* A	0	0.56	0.55	0.61	0.58	0.58	0.63	0.65	0.70	0.78	0.70	1,44	1.56	1.69	2.28	2.45
dE* F11	0	0.66	0.61	0.70	0.67	0.67	0.71	0.73	0.78	0.82	0.78	1.49	1.71	1.87	2.35	2.44
dE* Average	0	0.57	0.58	0.64	0.63	0.63	0.67	0.68	0.74	0.79	0.76	1.47	1.66	1.80	2.31	2.43
Metomerism A	0.7	0.05	0.07	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.09	0.10	0.10	0.08	0.22	0.23	0.13	0.15
Metamerism F11	0	0.17	0.17	0.18	0.17	0.17	0.16	0.16	0.16	0.17	0.14	0.09	0.06	0.04	0.25	0.25
CMCCON02 A	0	3.00	2.99	2.98	2.98	2.98	2.97	2.97	2.97	2.98	2.95	2.91	2.82	2.79	2.97	3.00
CMCCON02 F11	0	2.11	2.12	2.14	2.13	2.13	2.11	2.11	2.09	2.13	2.10	2.06	2.05	2.04	1.86	1.9
Price	0	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.65	1.66	1.60	1.82	1.83	1.67	1.68
Total concentratio	n [%]	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00
Trial		XX														
Dyestuff		1(3)	2(4)	3(3)	-4(2)	5(4)	6(4)	7(4)	8(4)	9(4)	10(4)	11(4)	12(4)	13(4)	14(2)	15(3)
Nool-white-feit	12632		1000	0.0000	10.000			0.0001	1000		0.1306	0.0014		0.0001		
Black-wool-fet		29.4717	29.7363	30.1544	30.3211	30.2186	28.0384	27.6538	26.0062	28.9741	30.7579	26.4411	25.9293	25.5401		
Yellow-wool-felt		69.5161	69.5665	69.8456	69.6789	69,6881	69.8763	69.9470	70.0170	69.1112	69.1113	66.0323	63.9749	63.2585	72.3544	73.0672
Orange-wool-feit	62.38								0.0000	0.0005	0.0002					
Red-wool-felt	-		0.0000													
Blue-wool-feit		1.0122	0.6972													0.0003
Navy-wool-felt	-					0.0927	2.0817	2.3991	3.9768						27.6456	26.9325
Grey-wool-felt							0.0036			1.9142		7.5252	0.0112			
Brown-wool-feit						0.0005							10.0846	11.2013		

#### **Result Table of Recipe Calculation**

#### **Recipe Calculation with several Fiber Sets**



If you want to calculate a recipe for several fibers, e.g., Polyester/Wool, you must change the "Part" to the percentage used for fiber set 1. If the "Part" is not equal 100%, the program asks for a 2nd, 3rd, ... Fiber sets as soon, as the recipe for the 1st fiber set is calculated.

The recipes are calculated one after the other, because the 2nd fiber recipe is influenced by the first. This behavior of Datacolor BLEND is a different to Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}.

8 Select the next fiber set and repeat the calculation procedure starting with instruction 3.

#### **Recipe Calculation with An Existing Production Lot of Used Fibers**

If an existing production lot should be used as fiber for the recipe calculation, you must measure or select a sample of the production lot as batch. The program asks, if you like to specify a new fiber (based on that measurement) and gives a proposal for the maximum percentage this fiber can be used. This value is very rough information. In reality, you should start with smaller concentration. If no recipe can be calculated, you can switch back to modify the concentration again.

Match ⊢Standard•		k					
Coffee							
Process D	ata for fiber matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic S	iettings					Save
Fiberset	Wool Felt Part [%] 10	0					Calculate
8 ^{F[%]}		olor difference — pramix >Stone-Wool		<u>í</u>			
\$	ColorLab			×			
400	500 6i 😲 You really like to	create a new fit	per with 's	5tone-Wool'	Share	-> R%	
	eory to standard Yes	No			ystem	Delete	
Selection	r			Ê		Save	
0/1	Dyestuff			Conce	entration [%]	<b>^</b>	
A/S/N	Shown : 11 selected : 0	Compul	Fixed	Min.(100%)	Max.(100%)	Relation	
1	Vool-white-felt				100		
	Black-wool-felt				100		
3	Yellow-wool-felt				100		
4	Orange-wool-felt				100		
5	Red-wool-felt				100		
6	Blue-wool-felt				100		
1					100		
8	Grey-wool-fett				100		
19	Brown-wool-fett				100		1 Cancel

#### Example

The program asks to specify a new fiber on base of the batch measurement "Stone-Wool". A fiber with the name "FIB_Stone-Wool" is created.

These automatically created fibers cannot be used in the normal matching routine. They are hidden.

Match ┌─Standard		R	1				
Coffee							
Process Data	for fiber matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic Settin	igs					Save
Fiberset	Wool Felt Part [%] 100						Calculate
E/Mitheory dE/Mitheory	dE*17.36 dL* 600 600 700 to standard 17.36/17.49	ix one-Wool		4.00 Max Of	Share 48	172 → R%	
0/1	Dyestuff			Con	centration [%]		
A/S/N	Shown : 11 selected : 5	Compul	Fixed	Min.(100%)	Max.(100%)	Relation	
	Black-wool-felt				100		
3	Yellow-wool-felt				100		
4	Orange-wool-felt		1.00		100		
	Red-wool-felt				100		
11	FIB_Stone-Wool		14		100		
							Cancel

The proposal (Max Of Share) for the "Batch-Fiber" is given with 48.72%. For this example the share is reduced to 14.00%. Some information can be get in the graph. The blue curve represents the batch, the green curve the standard and the red curve is the theoretical curve representing the part that is used (share). Very important is that the red curve is below the green curve of the standard.

Calculated recipes with 14% of the batch already produced.

File Table	Tools	Instrument	Window	v Help
1997 🔛 🖬 🖬	• <u>~</u>	e. 92	🗒   🛃 I	
Standard		Coffee		
Formula		CieLab De		
dE* D65	1	0.02	0.26	2.13
Metamerism A	0.7	0.22	0.29	0.81
Metamerism F11	0	0.12	0.14	0.65
CMCCON02 A	0	1.18	1.22	2.02
CMCCON02 F11	0	0.81	0.80	0.76
Sensitivity (Hue)	0	0.42	0.32	0.21
Price	0	1.10	1.10	1.26
Total concentratio	n [%]	100.00	100.00	100.00
Trial		XX		
Dyestuff		1(4)	2(3)	3(4)
Black-wool-felt		45.8852	45.8604	39.6500
Yellow-wool-felt		1.0780		19.6466
Orange-wool-felt		39.0368	40.1396	
Red-wool-felt				26.7034
FIB_Stone-Wool		14.0000	14.0000	14.0000
Recipe with D65				
Standard with	D65			
Standard with A				
Recipe with A				

#### Calculation of the Theoretical Color Needed to Correct the Filer Lot

Instead of calculating a recipe using a part of the existing lot, it is possible to calculate the theoretical reflectance curve of the color that is necessary to correct the existing lot. The theoretical reflectance curve is used in Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} to calculate a recipe for dyeing a new fiber. This new fiber is blended later with the existing lot.

r Standard	
Standard	
Coffee	
Process Data for fiber matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic Settings	<u>S</u> ave
Eiberset Wool Felt Part [%] 100	<u>C</u> alculate
$\begin{array}{c} Batch and color difference \\ \hline \\ $	
0/1 Dyestuff Concentration [%]	
A/S/N Shown : 8 selected : 5 Comput Fixed Min.(100%) Max.(100%) Relation	
2 Black-wool-felt □ 100	
3 Vellow-wool-fett 100	
4 🗸 Orange-wool-fett	
Red-wool-fett	
9 🔽 FIB_Stone-Wool 🔲 14 100	
	Cancel

1 Click -> R% to calculate the theoretical reflectance curve.

Action

The "Insert a theoretical sample" dialog box appears.

**Result/Notes** 



2 Accept or modify the sample name and click **Insert** to save the sample

The sample can now be used for matching in Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}.

### **Recipe Correction**

The Datacolor BLEND correction task does not distinguish between laboratory and production correction. Both corrections are calculated. The new recipe is saved as soon as the correction is saved. In the correction printout are both, the new recipe and the addition, if a production correction is required.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	In the "Recipe List" window, select the recipe and on the context-sensi- tive menu select <b>Pass Fail and Cor-</b> <b>rection</b> (or press <b>F7</b> ).	The "Correction Dialog" box appears. Refer to <i>BLEND Correction Dialog Box</i> <i>on page</i> 7-179.

Correction fo	r 'Wool-Olive'				k ↓	
Standard					Ч	1
_	Graphic   Settings					-
dE/Mi theory	500         600         700           y to standard         600         700	Data} e·Wool (1)/1		M[D65,]  3 da*-0.06 db*-0	56	Correction
Selection:	Dyestuff			Concentration [%	•	I
	Shown : 14 selected : 3	%	Min.(100%)	Max.(100%)	Relation	
	Black-wool-fett	29.471	111111.(10070)	100	Keludon	
2	Yellow-wool-felt	69.516		100		
3 7	Blue-wool-felt	1.0122		100		ColorTools
4	Wool-white-felt			100		Evaluate
	Orange-wool-felt			100		Print
	Red-wool-felt			100		
The second se	Navy-wool-felt			100		ASCII
	Grey-wool-felt			100		
	Brown-wool-feit			100		Cancel

- 2 In the "Batch and Color Difference" field, measure or select the sample.
- 3 If necessary, alter the data in the dyestuffs table.
- 4 Click **Correction**.

Refer to *Matching on page 5-74*, section *Selecting dyestuffs for matching on page 5-71*.

The "BLEND Correction Recipe Dialog Box" appears. Refer to *Specifying, Modifying and Deleting Objects on page 5-8.* 

	'Wool-Oli		madadal			ei die		r Sm	atmatch		
tandard		<u>102692999</u>		Oliv	ve-Wool			In	- 🕅	(All Data)	
atch			7.1.1.1.1.1	Olive-Wo	or (1)/1			Me	Total batch		First dyeing
bre											
Add new dy	estuff[s]										
User selecte	ы				-	B	est add Be	oq tae	sitive add	Reset	
	Dyest	uff	R	ecipe	New recip	•	+ Amount	800	Effect	Rel. %	
Black-woo	ol-feit			147.359	134.1	191	-0.000	kg	1.08	-0.00	
Yellow-w		10000		347.581	352.8		39.902	kg	0.98	11.48	
Blue-wool	i-fet			5.061	12.5	351	9.162	kg		181.03	
Total				500.000	500.0	000	49.06327	8g			
Batch to d	rop			0.000							
Total batchsis SieLab Defaul	(D65,)		lew batch	]	549.063	15	7[%]	+			
Huminant	-	New delEMI			1000	읃		1			Cancel
E D65	1.20	0.27	-0.10	0.14	0.20			1			Cancer
	0.05	0.07	0.02	-0.04	-0.01	ŝ			-		Show
	0.00	0.04	0.00	-57.04			400	-		700	E Print
							400	500	600	/0.	PIN
det F11	1. Survivos	. Cor	on the ad-								and Contractor second
Met A Met F11 Evaluate Print	AS	cu and a second	mputer add		well						ASCI
Vet F11 Evaluate	AS		nputer add Iotimel dC Ianual Cor	MinAdd	- English	08.10	kni >- 0		dE Limit		TALL CONTRACTOR OF THE

5 In the "BLEND Correction Recipe Dialog Box" dialog box, you can look at the result of the matching. The color differences between "Standard" and "Batch" are displayed.

Click Show for displaying a print

Click **Print** to print the recipe data.

Refer to *BLEND Recipe Calculation Result Table on page 7-179.* The "BLEND Correction Recipe" can be

configured. Refer to View Configuration Dialog Box (Laboratory Correction Table) on page 7-100.

6 Click Save.

preview.

The corrected recipes (laboratory and production) are saved.

# **BLEND Fast Correction**

The "Fast Correction" function is used for corrections without an existing recipe. It is based on a theoretical calculated recipe of the standard or a recipe typed in manually. This task is mainly used for production correction.

	Action	Result/Notes
1	On the context-sensitive menu, select <b>Fast Correction</b> , or press <b>F8</b> .	The "Fast Correction Recipe Input" dia- log box appears. Refer to <i>BLEND Fast</i> <i>Correction Dialog Box</i> for a detailed description of the parameters.
2	In the "Process Data for Fiber Matching" tab, select the <b>Fiber Set</b> , accept or modify the <b>Part</b> for the selected fiber set and select the <b>Standard</b> .	
3	In the "Colorant Set" tab, select the fibers used for the recipe and specify the concentration.	
4	Select the fibers and type the con- centrations valid for the current batch.	
5	Measure or select the batch to be corrected.	
6	Click Correction.	The "Recipe Correction" tab appears.
	Continue with chapter <i>Recipe Cor-</i> rection on page 5-148.	

# **Displaying and Printing Existing BLEND Recipes**

	Action	Result/Notes
1	Select the recipe in the "Recipe List" window.	
2	On the context-sensitive menu, select Lab Dyelot, or, press Enter.	The "Show Full Recipe Dialog Box" dia- log box appears.

### **Recipe Output**

#### New output features

- Colorimetric data is printed (color difference and metamerism for standard, batch and standard, theoretical batch of correction).
- Information if the recipe was manually modified.
- The last measured batch.

07.02.2005 15:03 DCI



# Blend Recipe

Recipe_ID 654	ne-Wool 3 ne-Wool		Weight 10	).00 g
[	Fiber price	1.37		
Tolerance_Name Ci	eLab Default		Factor	1.00
DyeSet Wo	ool Felt	0	Modified No	
	Measured		Predicted	
dE(D65)	1.49		2.68	
Metamerism (A)	0.31		0.49	
Metamerism (F11)	0.19		0.33	
Dyeset_Name	Wool Felt		Part 100.00	
€ LastMeasuredBatch	Stone-Wool (1)/1			
vVool-white-felt <b>Wool-wh</b> i	te-felt		55.19 %	5.52 g
Black-wool-felt Black-wo	ol-felt		28.64 %	2.86 g
Yellow-wool-felt Yellow-w	ool-felt		4.00 %	0.40 g
Orange-wool-felt Orange-w	vool-felt		12.17 %	1.22 g

## **Recipe History**

•

•

Note

If a Batch exists, Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} saves all corrections and modifications of a recipe. Modifications done with the "Edit" option are also saved. In addition to the recipes, a dLab graph is displayed.

#### Displaying the history:

Select the function **History** on the **Recipe** or the context-sensitive menu.

#### Printing the history:

Select Print on the History menu.



The graph is not to be printed.

Fiber	Trial	Dyestuff	Fisrt recipe	Correction nr 1	Correction nr 2	Correction nr 3	Correction nr 4
/isc [100%]	1	Date [Unit]	3/19/2001 4:30	3/19/2001 4:30:17	3/19/2001 4:30:52 P	3/19/2001 4:31:23	3/19/2001 4:33:03 PM [%
		SIRIUS ORANGE K-CF	0.05719	0.04880	0.05246	0.05397	0.057
		SIRIUS ROUGE F4BL 154%	0.08082	0.05963	0.05122	0.04644	0.0664
		SOLOPHEN. MARINE BLE 250%	0.86884	0.68023	0.62866	0.52311	0.8647
		Type of dE	PassFail	PassFail	PassFail	PassFail	PassF
		dE	1.46	0.80	1.53	2.19	1.0
Corr=1		=2 • Corr=3 • Corr=4 • 1 -0,8 -0,6 -0,4	0.2 (0	0,2 0,4 0,6	0,8 1,0	1 2 1 4	dL*-0.6 -0.8
Corr=1				0 ¹ 2 0 ¹ 4 0 ¹ 6	0,8 1,0	1,2 1,4	1,6 -0.6
Corr=1			db*	2 ¹ 2 0 ¹ 4 0 ¹ 6	0.8 1.0	1 2 1 4	1.6 ¹⁰ -0.6 -0.8 -1.0 -1.2 -1.4 -1.6 -1.8
Corr=1					08 10		-0.6 -0.8 -1.0 -1.2 -1.4 -1.6
Corr=1					0.8 1.0		1.6         0.6           0.8         1.0           1.12         1.14           1.15         1.18           2.0         2.24           2.24         2.24           2.28         2.28
					0.8 1.0		1.6         0.6           0.08         -0.08           -1.2         -1.4           -1.6         -1.8           -2.0         -2.2           -2.4         -2.6
6

# Maintenance and Error Handling

## Maintenance of the Spectrophotometer

Refer to the manual of your spectrophotometer.

# Maintenance of the Database



#### Note

The delete, move, copy and rename functions are only available to users having the corresponding access rights.

## **Deleting Data**

You can delete data objects in the corresponding windows and boxes.



## Note

An object cannot be deleted, if it is linked to other objects. If the system cannot delete an object, all valid links are listed in the "Delete Check" info box.

## Backup

Refer to Backing Up Using Sybase Utilities on page 4-17.

## **Error Handling**

- 1 Note the error message and what you were doing before the error occurred.
- 2 Try to execute the advice of the error message. *Example below:* Specify a minimum of one batch before clicking **Save** again.
- 3 Log out of Datacolor MATCH^{Textile} and restart Windows.
- 4 Restart Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}.

If the error occurs again, contact your Datacolor representative for further advice.

## **Error Messages**

If an error message appears while you are using your system, you should follow the advice above.

#### Example of an error message:



7

# Windows and Dialog Boxes

# Explorer

## **Overview Window**

Datacolor Match - [Overview]     Fie Tools Instrument Window Help	Title bar Menu Bar	_8×
	Toolbar	
Recipe     Modules       Contractor       Outlot       Contined Process       SubstrateDelivery       Attinity       Fiber       Dependion       Dependion	loolbar	
Dyelot Production Recipe Administration	or .TRUM f solutions	
For Help, press F1	Status Bar	DCI

## Title bar

The title bar contains the title of the program, the title of the current window and, if a list window is opened, the number of data records.

#### Menu bar

Refer to *General Menu Functions on page* 7-4 for the general functions or to the related window descriptions for window specific functions.

## Toolbar

Refer to Toolbar Functions on page 7-7.

#### Status bar

Display of messages.

Buttons in the overvi	ew window
Fiber:	
Quality/Style	Opens the "Quality/Style List" window. Refer to <i>Quality/Style List Window on page</i> 7-87.
Substrate Delivery	Opens the "Substrate Delivery List" window. Refer to <i>Sub-strate Delivery List Window on page 7-87</i> .
Affinity	Opens the "Affinity List" window. Refer to <i>Affinity List Window</i> on page 7-88.
Fiber Group	Opens the "Fiber Group List" window. Refer to <i>Fiber Group</i> <i>List Window on page</i> 7-87.
Fiber	Opens the "Fiber List" window. Refer to <i>Fiber List Window on page</i> 7-86.
Process:	
Combined Process	Opens the "Combined Process List" window. Refer to Com- bined Process List Window on page 7-93.
Operation	Opens the "Operation List" window. Refer to <i>Operation List Window on page</i> 7-93.
Dye Process	Opens the "Dye Process List" window. Refer to <i>Dye Process List Window on page 7-88</i> .
Auxiliary	Opens the "Auxiliary List" window. Refer to <i>Auxiliary List Win-</i> <i>dow on page 7-89</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a</i> <i>Product on page 5-34</i> .
Parameter	Opens the "Parameter List" window. Refer to <i>Parameter List Window on page</i> 7-86, <i>Parameter Definition Dialog Box on page</i> 7-57, and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Product on page</i> 5-34.
Recipe:	
Color Type	Opens the "Color Type List" window. Refer to <i>Color Type List Window on page 7-85</i> .
Recipe	Opens the "Recipe" application (used for matching, correc- tion and printing recipes) and displays the "Recipe List" win- dow. Refer to <i>Matching on page 5-74</i> , <i>Correction on page 5- 91</i> , <i>Displaying and Printing Existing Recipes on page 5-104</i> , and <i>Recipe List Window on page 7-91</i> .
Colorant Set	Opens the "Colorant Set" application (used for colorant set preparation) and displays the "Colorant Set List" window. Refer to <i>Specifying Colorant Sets on page 5-47</i> , and <i>Colorant Set List Window on page 7-76</i> .
Dyestuff	Opens the "Dyestuff List" window. Refer to <i>Dyestuff List Win- dow on page</i> 7-89.
Sample	Opens the "Sample List" window. Refer to Sample List Win- dow on page 7-85.

#### Buttons in the overview window

#### Modules: (Options)

Fiber Blending	Refer to Datacolor BLEND (Option) on page 5-134.
Color Fiber	Refer to Datacolor BLEND (Option) on page 5-134.
Monitoring	Refer to Datacolor MONITOR (Option) on page 5-106.
Sorting	Refer to Datacolor SORT (Option) on page 5-118.
Conting	Refer to Butabolor Correct (option) on page of the.

## Production: (Option)

Buttons used for Datacolor TICKET. Refer to Datacolor TICKET (Option) on page 5-115.	
Dye Lot	Opens the "Dye Lot List" window. Refer to <i>Datacolor TICKET</i> - <i>Dye Lot on page 5-117</i> .
Production Recipe	Opens the "Production Recipes List" window. Refer to <i>Data-</i> color TICKET - Production Recipe on page 5-115.
Administration	Opens the "Datacolor PROCESS Administration" dialog box. Refer to <i>Datacolor TICKET - Administration on page 5-117</i> .

#### Status bar

Display of messages.

## **General Menu Functions**

File	
Datacolor Sorting	Refer to Datacolor SORT (Option) on page 5-118.
Batch Series	Opens the "Batch Series List" window. Refer to <i>Datacolor MONITOR (Option) on page 5-106</i> .
SmartMatch	Opens the "SmartMatch List" window. Refer to <i>SmartMatch</i> <i>Result List Window on page</i> 7-94, <i>Approving on page</i> 5-84, and <i>Manual Input of SmartMatch Points on page</i> 5-90.
Fiber Blending	Opens the "Recipe List" window. Refer to <i>Recipe List Win- dow on page 7-91</i> and <i>Datacolor BLEND (Option) on page 5- 134</i> .
Basic Data	Opens the list window last opened. The context-sensitive menu is used to open the other basic data windows. Refer to <i>Specifying Basic Data on page 5-25</i> .
General Calibration	Opens the "Colorant Set" application (used for colorant set preparation) and displays the "Colorant Set List" window. Refer to <i>Specifying Colorant Sets on page 5-47, Colorant Set</i> <i>List Window on page 7-76,</i> and displays the basic data list of the last session.
Recipe	Opens the "Recipe" application (used for matching, correc- tion and printing recipes) and displays the "Recipe List" win- dow. Refer to <i>Recipe Calculation (Matching) on page 5-67, Cor-</i> <i>rection on page 5-91, Displaying and Printing Existing Reci-</i> <i>pes on page 5-104, and Recipe List Window on page 7-91.</i>
Overview	Opens the "Overview" window (main screen).

Save	Saves the current data.
Close	Closes the currently active window. If data is altered, the pro- gram requests the data be saved.
Close All	Closes all opened windows except the "Overview" window.
Print	Prints data of the currently opened "Colorant Set List" or "Recipe" window using the default Windows printer.
Print Setup	Is used for setting up the default Windows printer.
Send Mail	Is used to send e-mails. Refer to <i>Sending E-mails on page 4-25</i> .
Scan Mail	Is used to receive and select e-mails.
Exit	Closes the program.
Tools	
Toolbar	Switches the toolbar on (check mark) and off.
Status Bar	Switches the status bar on (check mark) and off.
User Manager	Change Password: Refer to <i>Changing the Password on page</i> 4-2.
	User Administration: Refer to <i>Specifying, Modifying and Deleting User's Data on page 4-2.</i>
User's Browser Definitio	n Opens the "Browse Columns for Explorer" dialog box. Refer to <i>Browser Customizing on page 4-6</i> .
Define Units	Opens the "Unit" dialog box. Refer to <i>Defining Units on page</i> 4-11.
Automatic SmartMatch F	Housekeeping Refer to <i>Automatic SmartMatch Maintenance on page 5-86</i> .
Options	Opens the "Options" dialog box. Refer to <i>Options on page 4-11</i> .
Import	Opens the "Import" dialog box for sample import. Refer to <i>Import and Export on page 4-12.</i>
Export	Opens the "Export" dialog box for sample export. Refer to <i>Exporting Data on page 4-12.</i>
Import Print Form	Imports print forms without using the Page View Designer. Refer to <i>Importing Print Forms on page 4-29</i> .
Export Print Form	Exports print forms without using the Page View Designer. Refer to <i>Exporting Print Forms on page 4-29</i> .
ASCII forms	New:Opens the "ASCII Output Definition" dialog box.Change:Opens the "ASCII Output Definition" dialog box.Delete:Opens the "Delete ASCII Form" dialog box.Refer to ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20.
Backup	Opens the "Backup" dialog box. Refer to <i>Backing Up Using Sybase Utilities on page 4</i> -17.
Calibrate Monitor	Function for calibrating monitors using Datacolor SPYDER2. Refer to Calibrating the Monitors Using Datacolor SPYDER2 on page 4-24.

Instrument	
Calibrate Instrument	Opens the "Calibration Conditions" dialog box. Refer to <i>Calibrate Tab on page 7-18</i> and <i>Calibration and Measurement on page 5-10</i> .
Instrument Setup	Opens the "Instrument Setup" tab of the "Measurement Main Window". Refer to <i>Instruments Setup Tab on page 7-19</i> and <i>Calibration and Measurement on page 5-10</i> .
Measurement Setup	Opens the "General Options" tab of the "Measurement Main Window". Refer to <i>Instruments Setup Tab on page 7-19</i> and <i>Calibration and Measurement on page 5-10</i> .
Diagnostic Instrument	<b>Only if the green tile test is installed</b> . Opens the "Prepare for Diagnostic" dialog box. Refer to UV Calibration Tab on page 7-21 and Green Tile Test on page 5-18.
UV Calibration	<b>Only for instruments with whiteness option.</b> Opens the "Measurement Main Window". Refer to UV Calibration Tab on page 7-21 and UV Calibration on page 5-11.
Ganz/Griesser Calibratior	<b>Only for instruments with whiteness option.</b> Opens the "Measurement Main Window". Refer to UV Calibration Tab on page 7-21 and UV Calibration on page 5-11.
Ganz/Griesser Parameter	rs
	<b>Only for instruments with whiteness option.</b> Opens the "Measurement Main Window". Refer to <i>UV Calibration on page 5-11</i> .
Window	
New Window	Creates a copy of the currently selected window.
Cascade	Arranges the overview and the opened windows as a cas- cade.
Tile	Arranges the overview in the upper and the opened window in the lower part of the explorer.
Help	
Help Topics	Opens the Acrobat Reader with the "Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} Dye Lot User's Guide".
About ColorLab	Opens the "About ColorLab" information box with release, copyright and user information.
Note	
Pefer to the related wind	ow description for window specific many functions

Refer to the related window description for window specific menu functions.

# **Toolbar Functions**

!:	<pre> 5% 32 % &amp; e*  4 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 </pre>	
0.		
<b>Ge</b>	neral toolbar Overview	Opens the "Overview" window.
2	Datacolor SORT	Refer to Datacolor SORT (Option) on page 5-118.
3	Datacolor MONITOR	Opens the "Batch Series List" window. Refer to <i>Datacolor</i> <i>MONITOR (Option) on page 5-106</i> .
4	SmartMatch	Opens the "SmartMatch List" window. Refer to <i>SmartMatch</i> <i>Result List Window on page</i> 7-94, <i>Approving on page</i> 5-84, and <i>Manual Input of SmartMatch Points on page</i> 5-90.
5	Datacolor BLEND	
6	Basic Data	Opens the basic data application and displays the basic data list of the last session. Refer to <i>Browser Customizing on</i> <i>page 4-6</i> and <i>Browse and Selecting on page 5-2</i> .
7	Calibration (colorant se	
		Opens the "Colorant Set" application (used for colorant set preparation) and displays the "Colorant Set List" window. Refer to <i>Specifying Colorant Sets on page 5-47, Colorant</i> <i>Set List Window on page 7-76</i>
8	Recipe	Opens the "Recipe" application (used for matching, correc- tion and printing recipes) and displays the "Recipe List" win- dow. Refer to <i>Recipe Calculation (Matching) on page 5-67,</i> <i>Correction on page 5-91, Displaying and Printing Existing</i> <i>Recipes on page 5-104, Recipe List Window on page 7-91.</i>
9	Instrument Calibration	Opens the "Calibration Conditions" dialog box (corresponds to the "Calibration" tab of the "Measurement" dialog box). Refer to <i>Calibrate Tab on page 7-18</i> , and <i>Calibration and Measurement on page 5-10</i> .
10	Save	<i>Only active in recipe application.</i> Saves recipes and laboratory corrections.
11	Print	Prints data of the currently opened "Colorant Set List" or "Recipe" window using the default Windows printer.
12	Close	Closes the currently displayed window and asks for saving if some data has been altered.
13	Help	Opens the Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} User's Guide.

### Recipe toolbar

14 Match	Opens the "Match" dialog box. Refer to <i>Match Dialog Box on page</i> 7-116.
15 Laboratory Correction	Opens the "Correct or Approve Your Recipe" dialog box. Refer to <i>Laboratory Correction on page 5-92</i> .
16 Production Correction	Opens the "Production Correction" dialog box. Refer to <i>Pro-</i> <i>duction Correction on page 5-96</i> .
17 Fast Correction	Opens the "Fast Correction" dialog box. Refer to <i>Fast Correction on page 5-99</i> .
18 Search and Correct	Opens the "Search and Correct" dialog box used for search- ing recipes. Refer to <i>Search and Correct Dialog Box on page</i> 7-109.

## **Folder Structure**



## Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu

Product	Opens the "Product Property Sheet". Refer to <i>Product Property Sheet on page 7-31</i> and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Product on page 5-34</i> .
Quality/Style	Opens the "Quality/Style Property Sheet". Refer to <i>Quality/</i> <i>Style Property Sheet on page 7-22</i> and <i>Specifying, Modifying</i> <i>or Deleting a Quality/Style on page 5-26.</i>
Dye Process	Opens the "Dye Process Property Sheet". Refer to <i>Dye Process Property Sheet on page 7-29</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Dye Process on page 5-37</i> .
Customer	Opens the "Customer Property Sheet". Refer to <i>Customer</i> <i>Property Sheet on page 7-43</i> and <i>Specifying, Modifying or</i> <i>Deleting Customers on page 5-39</i> .
Color Type	Opens the "Color Type Property Sheet". Refer to <i>Color Type</i> <i>Property Sheet on page 7-45</i> and <i>Specifying, Modifying or</i> <i>Deleting a Color Type on page 5-43</i> .
Parameter Definition	Opens the "Parameter Definition" dialog box. Refer to <i>Parameter Definition Dialog Box on page 7-57</i> and <i>Specify-</i> <i>ing, Modifying or Deleting Parameters on page 5-40</i> .
Tolerance	Opens the "Tolerance Block Program" dialog box. Refer to <i>Tolerance Block Program Dialog Box on page</i> 7-46 and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances on page</i> 5-44.
Combined Process	Opens the "Combined Processes" window. Refer to <i>Combined Processes Browse Window on page</i> 7-58 and <i>Specifying Combined Processes on page</i> 5-61.
Operation	Opens the "Operations" browse window. Refer to <i>Operations</i> <i>Browse Window on page 7-65</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying,</i> <i>Deleting An Operation on page 5-64</i> .
Sample	Opens the "Color Sample Calculator" dialog box. Refer to Sample Input Dialog Box on page 7-72.
Browse Data	Opens a submenu with the following functions:
Refer to <i>Browser Custom</i> information about the use	<i>izing on page 4-6</i> and <i>Browse and Selecting on page 5-2</i> for of the list windows.
Illuminant List	Opens the "Illuminant List" window. Refer to <i>Illuminant List Window on page 7-85</i> .
O success to this t	

Sample List	Opens the "Sample List" window. Refer to <i>Sample List Win-</i> dow on page 7-85, and <i>Manual Input and Modification of</i> <i>Samples on page 5-24</i> .
Color Type List	Opens the "Color Type List" window. Refer to <i>Color Type List Window on page</i> 7-85, and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Color Type on page</i> 5-43.
Tolerance List	Opens the "Tolerance List" window Refer to Tolerance List

Tolerance ListOpens the "Tolerance List" window. Refer to Tolerance List<br/>Window on page 7-86, and Specifying, Modifying or Deleting<br/>Tolerances on page 5-44.

Deremeter List	On one the "Deverse ter List" window Defende Deverse ter List
Parameter List	Opens the "Parameter List" window. Refer to <i>Parameter List Window on page 7-86</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Parameters on page 5-40</i> .
Fiber List	Opens the "Fiber List" window. Refer to <i>Fiber List Window on page 7-86</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Quality/ Style on page 5-26</i> .
Fiber Group List	Opens the "Fiber Group List" window. Refer to <i>Fiber Group List Window on page</i> 7-87, <i>Fiber Group Tab on page</i> 7-25, and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Quality/Style on page</i> 5-26.
Substrate Delivery List	Opens the "Substrate Delivery List" window. Refer to <i>Sub-</i> strate Delivery List Window on page 7-87, Substrate Delivery Dialog Box on page 7-27, and Specifying, Modifying or Delet- ing a Quality/Style on page 5-26.
Quality/Style List	Opens the "Quality/Style List" window. Refer to <i>Quality/Style List Window on page</i> 7-87, <i>Quality/Style Property Sheet on page</i> 7-22, and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Quality/ Style on page</i> 5-26.
Affinity List	Opens the "Affinity List" window. Refer to <i>Affinity List Window on page 7-88, Quality/Style Property Sheet on page 7-22,</i> and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Quality/Style on page 5-26.</i>
Dye Process List	Opens the "Dye Process List" window. Refer to <i>Dye Process</i> <i>List Window on page 7-88</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or</i> <i>Deleting a Dye Process on page 5-37</i> .
Dyestuff Class List	Opens the "Dyestuff Class List" window. Refer to <i>Dyestuff</i> <i>Class List Window on page 7-88</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying</i> <i>or Deleting a Dye Class on page 5-38</i> .
Dyestuff List	Opens the "Dyestuff List" window. Refer to <i>Dyestuff List Win-</i> <i>dow on page 7-89</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a</i> <i>Product on page 5-34</i> .
Auxiliary List	Opens the "Auxiliary List" window. Refer to <i>Auxiliary List Win-</i> <i>dow on page 7-89</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a</i> <i>Product on page 5-34</i> .
Color Fiber List	Opens the "Product List" Window. Refer to <i>Product List Win-</i> <i>dow on page 7-90</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a</i> <i>Product on page 5-34</i> .
Supplier List	Opens the "Supplier List" window. Refer to <i>Supplier List Win-</i> <i>dow on page 7-90</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a</i> <i>Product on page 5-34</i> .
Customer List	Opens the "Customer List" window. Refer to <i>Customer List</i> <i>Window on page 7-91</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying or Deleting</i> <i>Customers on page 5-39</i> .
Combined Process List	Opens the "Combined Process List" window. Refer to <i>Com- bined Process List Window on page</i> 7-93, and <i>Specifying</i> <i>Combined Processes on page</i> 5-61.

Operation List	Opens the "Operation List" window. Refer to <i>Operation List Window on page 7-93</i> , and <i>Specifying, Modifying, Deleting An Operation</i> .
General functions:	
Display	Displays a list with the selected objects.
Print	Prints list with the selected objects.
ASCII Output	Creates a text file if a corresponding form exists. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20</i> .
User's Browser Definitio	n Opens the "Browse Columns for Explorer" dialog box. Refer to <i>Browser Customizing on page 4-6</i> .



## Note

The delete and rename functions are only available to users with the corresponding access rights.

Rename	Is used to rename the selected object.
Delete	Deletes the selected object after confirmation.
Move to	Moves a selected object to another folder.
Filter	Refer to Browse Filters on page 4-8.
Reset Filter	Resets the selected filter.

# Data in Folder Dialog Box

Used to search for data types and the corresponding data records stored in the folder selected in the folder structure.

Datatypes	Folder: Datamatch			
🖗 Affinity	Data			
Color Type	Affinity Name	Affinity ID	Fiber Group Na	Modification
🖥 Colorant Set	Cotton bleached	CO-SPZ	CO	1999-04-20 11:01:33
Combined Process	Cotton knitted not mercerised	CO-Norm	CO	1999-04-20 11:01:33
Customer	Cotton merc	CO-MERC	CO	1999-04-20 11:01:33
Dye Process	Cotton Modal	CO/MO	CO/MO	1999-04-20 11:01:33
Fiber Group	Polyester textured Q17642 PES/CO 70/30	PES-TEX PES/CO/	PES CO PES	1999-04-20 11:01:33 1999-04-20 11:01:33
Ø Operation	Polvester Micro	PES-MIC	PES	1999-04-08 18:45:42
@ Parameter	PES Blanc Dyeing	PES-Norm	PES	1999-04-08 08:38:16
Product	Cotton knitted blanc. n. merc	CO-KNIT	CO	1999-04-08 08:35:29
Quality/Style	Cotton blea. blanc dyeing (Rem)	CO1	CO	1999-04-08 08:35:16
Substrate Delivery	Cotton blea. blanc dyeing (Lev)	CO2	CO	1999-04-08 08:34:55
Substrate Delivery	CO (BASF)	CO3	CO	1999-04-08 08:34:40

Data type box:	Shows all data types that the folder selected in the folder
	structure contains.
Data box	Shows all data records of selected data type.

## Context-sensitive menu of the Data box:

User's Browser Definition Opens the "Browse Columns for Explorer" dialog box. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.



## Note

The delete and rename functions are only available to users with the corresponding access rights.

Rename	Is used to rename the selected object.
Delete	Deletes the selected object after confirmation.
Move to	Moves a selected object to another folder.
Filter	Refer to Browse Filters on page 4-8.
Reset Filter	Resets the selected filter.

# Find in Folder Dialog Box

Used for searching data records with a determined name or part of the name. The data type of the opened list window is used. Refer to *Searching objects of a determined data type on page 5-3*.

Find 'Product' in folder						
Search Search result						
Name or part of the name:	Name	$\nabla$	Folder		Modified	
	Terasil Yellow 4G		Datam	atch	01.12.2003 15:18	
Telas	Terasil Violet BL		Datam	atch	01.12.2003 15:18	
	Terasil Red R		Datam	atch	01.12.2003 15:18	
find with any leading text	Terasil Red 5G		Datam	atch	01.12.2003 15:18	
find with any trailing text	Terasil Orange 2RL	Display		tch	01.12.2003 15:18	
	Terasil Brill. Blue BGE	Print		itch	01.12.2003 15:18	
	Terasil Brill. Blue 3RL	ASCII out	put	itch	01.12.2003 15:18	
Modified (yyyy/mm/dd hh:mm):	Terasil Black SRL 200%	,	Datam	atch	01.12.2003 15:18	
▶ before:           2004/11/16           10:20           ■ after:           2004/11/16           10:20           Search						
Stop Clear						
						Close

#### Search criteria:

You can type a complete name or a part of it. If you are typing a part it is necessary to check one or both of the boxes for leading or trailing text.



## Note

Wildcards cannot be used.

Additionally, you can select the time range of the last modification.

Buttons:

Search	Starts the search.
Stop	Stops the current search.
Clear	removes all data from the input and list boxes.

#### Context-sensitive menu in the "Search Result" table:

Display	Displays a print preview of the selected object.
Print	Prints data of the selected object.
ASCII Output	Saves data of the selected object into a ASCII output.

## **Measurement Main Window**

The "Measurement" dialog box is used for selection and setting up the instrument, calibration, and measurement. Refer to *Calibration and Measurement on page 5-10*.

## Single Tab (Example)



Refer to the manual of your spectrophotometer for instrument specific information.

"Color" tab	Shows the color of the measured sample.
"Reflectance" tab	Shows the reflectance values of the measured sample.
"Coordinates" tab	Shows the color coordinates (e.g., yxz Lab) of the measured sample.
"Conditions" tab	Shows the measurement conditions.

## **Multiple Tab**



#### Parameters

Used for a measurement series.

The graph and the fields show the result of the measurement. Average and deviation are calculated according to the selected measurements.

In the table, the measurements can be selected or canceled using the mouse.

Measurements can also be canceled using the measurement selection and the **DEL** buttons at the top of the graph.

Accept now Selects	s all measurements.
--------------------	---------------------

Measure Executes the measurement.
-----------------------------------

Close Closes the "Measurement" dialog box and saves the currently calculated values.

## **Until Tolerance Tab**

* Measurement Main Window	×				
Measurement conditions:					
🕣 Single 🛛 🛛 Multiple 📓 Until Tol. 📴 Calibrate 🖓 Instruments Setup 🗐 🗊 General Options 📓 UV 💶 🕨					
< 2 >> DEL. Refresh Color : Nr : L: C: h:					
₽ ^{R[%]} 2 82.31 88.53 88.53					
Brightness L: Chromacity C: Hue					
Average : 82.214 88.398 88.461					
Deviation: 0.136 0.182 0.101					
450 500 550 600 650 700 Total : 2 Selected : 2					
Accept now         Dev (dE):         Accept         Open 200           0.0787894         Accept         Image: Contract of the second sec					
Close					
SF600 Com1:19200,N, 8,2 Mult.:=4 Tol.:=Cmc F=0.10,l=2.0:c=1.0 Time left= 4:57					

#### Parameters

Used for multiple measurement until the color differences do no longer exceed the tolerance values.

The graph and the fields show the result of the measurement. *Averages and deviation are calculated according to the selected measurements.* 

Measurements can be selected or canceled in the table using the mouse.

Measurements can also be canceled using the measurement selection and the **DEL** buttons at the top of the graph.

Accept now	Selects all measurements.
Measure	Executes the measurement.
Close	Closes the "Measurement" dialog box and saves the cur- rently calculated values.

## **Calibrate Tab**

Calibration conditions			×	
Specular		UV-Filter		
Include	<mark>1 - 2 - 1</mark>	C 100 % UV (Filter off)	Calibrate	
C Exclude		O % UV (Filter FL40)	Cancel	
C Gloss		C Filter FL42		
C Extra Large	]	C Filter FL46		
C Large		C Calibrator		
C Medium				
🗌 🔿 Small		% remaining part of UV		
🔿 Ultra Small		partorot		
🔿 Extra Ultra Small		UV-Excl.filters options	Abs.white	
Auto-Zoom		Transmission		
Calibration time interval (hours) : 8				
,				

Opens the "Calibration Conditions" dialog box.

Refer to the manual of your spectrophotometer.

# Instruments Setup Tab

Measurement Main Window	X
Measurement conditions:         1         Specular:         INCL.         2         Aperture:         LAV         3         Flashes:         2           4         UV % :         71.9         6         Cut-off:         NONE	
Single   🛛 Multiple   📓 Until Tol.   🖶 Calibrate 🦞 Instruments Setup   🗊 General Options   🖬 UV _     Instrument type: SF600 : DCI Spectraflash 600	• • _
Driver requested Unispef32.dll	
Communication parameters     Com1:19200,N, 8,2       Communication port:     Com1	
Bits per Seconds 19200 Advanced Data bits: 8	
Parity bit: N Stop bit: 2	
Serial Number 132	
Save Setup	
Close	]
SF600 Com1:19200,N, 8,2 Mult.:=4 Tol.:=Cmc F=0.10,I=2.0:c=1.0 Time left= 4:54	

#### Parameters

Caution



An alteration of these parameters can interrupt the communication between the PC and the spectrophotometer.

Refer to the manual of your spectrophotometer.

## **General Options Tab**

Measurement Main Window	×
Measurement conditions:	
1 Specular: INCL. 2	Aperture: Normal <u>3</u> Flashes: 100
4 UV %: 100	6 Cut-off: NONE
	alibrate 🌳 Instruments Setup 률 General Options
Options Single Measurement Multiple Measurement Until Tolerance Instrument Calibration Correlation Green Tile Test	Single Measurement:
	<u>Save options</u>
	Close
SIM1000 COM1:19200,N,8,1 Mult.:=4	Tol.:=CieLab F=1.00,DE=1.0

### Parameters

Definition of general parameters for single measurement, multiple measurement, until tolerance, calibration, and green tile test (Refer to *Green Tile Test on page 5-18.*).

Until tolerance Select the formula and specify the tolerance to be accepted.

Correlation Refer to Configuring and Enabling the Maestro Correlation Feature on page 5-16.

## **UV** Calibration Tab

Note

#### **Calibration Methods**



There are several methods that can be used to calibrate the adjustable UV filter position. Please refer to the whiteness standard you are using to determine the method to be used.

**Ganz/Griesser:** This procedure uses the Ganz/Griesser calibration method. The light source is filtered to simulate the D65 Illuminant and the Ganz Griesser parameters are used to calculate the filter position. In addition, the target whiteness value is based on 10% standard observer data.

**CIE using D65/10:** The light source is filtered to simulate the D65 illuminant. This is the procedure used to perform a CIE Whiteness evaluation.

**ISO Brightness (C):** The light source is filtered to simulate Illuminant C. This is the procedure used to perform an ISO Brightness evaluation.

🔹 Measurement Main Window
Measurement conditions:
1 Specular: EXCL. 2 Aperture: LAV 3 Flashes: 2
4 UV %: 68.0 6 Cut-off: NONE
🛛 Multiple 🛛 🐻 Until Tol. 🛛 🖶 Calibrate 🛛 🦞 Instruments Setup 🛛 🗊 General Options 🛛 UV Calibration 📄 💶 🕨
Periodical Illuminant checker: Whiteness parameters
Nominal Whiteness: UV Filter Position [%]:
Whiteness of test- tile: 150 Position to set [%]: 70 Re-Calibrate parameters
Whiteness found: using position [%]:
Whiteness Difference:
UV Calibration Methods: ¬
Color Coord.: Cond.: D65/10 (Ganz-Griesser)
D65/10 (CIE Whiteness)
C (ISO Brightness)
Accept
Close
SF600 COM1:19200,N, 8,2 Mult.:=4 Tol.:=CieLab F=1.00,DE=1.0 Time left=4:40

#### **Example Using the Ganz/Griesser Method**

Refer to UV Calibration on page 5-11.

# **Quality/Style Property Sheet**

Buttons	
Save	Saves the displayed quality definition.
Delete	Deletes the displayed quality definition after confirmation.
Clear	Clears the fields of the currently displayed tab.
Close	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

# **Quality/Style Tab**

uality/Style A	ffinity   Fiber Group   Fit	per				
<u>N</u> ame	🛃 Datamatch 🚽 Polyester 2025					
ID AuxID	PES 2025			Creation Date Modification User ID	21.04.1999 15.09.2004 DCI	
Customer	阕 {All Data} 🕂 Red Bull Dyers			Exhau	ss Type <mark>*</mark> st uous / Printing	2
Affinity	🔀 Datamatch 🕂 Polyester textured		<u></u> 		finity Smartmatch	
Grey Quality						
Lab. Note:					cteristics	_
Prod. Note:				Weigh		
Туре			•	Width	165	
SpecialComp-	,			Weft		
Г	<u>M</u> odify	S <u>u</u> bstrateDelivery		Warp		
	Save	<u>D</u> elete	<u>C</u> lear			

ID Lingue identification of the quality/atyle
ID Unique identification of the quality/style.
AuxID Additional identification of the quality/style.
Creation Date Date of creation.
Modification Date of last modification.
User ID Identification of creating or modifying user.
Customer Name of the customer.
Affinity Name of the affinity.
Grey Quality/Style Note on the raw quality/style.
Lab. Note Additional notes for the laboratory.
Prod. Note Additional notes for production.
Type Quality/style type.
Special Comp. If checked, the composition of quality/style is modified.

Modify (button)

Opens the "Special Composition for Quality/Style" dialog box used for changing the fiber parts.

**Example:** In a composition of polyester, cotton and Lycra, the Lycra cannot be dyed. If you do not set the Lycra part to 0%, a recipe is calculated for the Lycra part too.

				O	D	117870
ĪD	Special Composition for Qu	ality/	Style			×
AuxID	Quality/Style Mungo Stretch					
Customer	Affinity PES/CO/LYC 70/25/5	_				
	Fibers		Fiber Name	Fiber Part		
Affinity		1	Polyester	70.00		
		2	Cotton	25.00		
Grey Quality			Lycra	0.00	)	
Lab. Note:						
Prod. Note:		1				
Туре		(	Reset	<u>S</u> ave	Clos	:e
SpecialComp-	<u>M</u> odify		S <u>u</u> bstrateDeliv	ery	Sut	bstrate - <u>E</u>

Substrate Delivery (button)

Opens the "Substrate Delivery Dialog" box to measure a new substrate delivery. Refer to *Calibration and Measurement on page 5-10*, *Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Quality/Style on page 5-26*, and *Substrate Delivery: Example on page 5-30*.

Substrate Blank Dyeing (button)

	If this button is activated, you have not measured a sub- strate. Opens the "Substrate Delivery Dialog" box to measure the first substrate delivery. Refer to <i>Calibration and Measure-</i> <i>ment on page 5-10, Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Qual-</i> <i>ity/Style on page 5-26, and Substrate Delivery: Example on</i> <i>page 5-30.</i>
Process Type	Check boxes: Exhaust, Continuous / Printing.
Use Affinity SmartMatch	If checked, SmartMatch points of all qualities linked with the same affinity are used.

#### Caution



It is indispensable when this method of SmartMatch matching that only qualities with the same dye behavior are linked to an affinity. Otherwise, the results of matching are unusable.

Characteristics

(Notes) Weight: weight Width: width Weft: weft material Warp: warp material.

# Affinity Tab

			pertySheet inity Fiber Group	Fiber					×
	<u>N</u> a	me	🧑 {All Data} 💳 ⊒17642 PES/C	0 70/30					<u></u>
	ID <u>A</u> u	хID	PES/C0/70/30				Creation Date Modification User ID	08.04.1999 20.04.1999 DCI	
	Fib Fib		Datamatch	CO_PES		***	S Dyeset —	earch Dyesets	:
1		Cotton Polyester	iber Name	30.00 70.00	Total 4	Levafix SPB (Soda)		-	Exclude
		Polyester		70.00	2	Disperse Dispersol			Exclude
			Save	<u>D</u> elete		<u>C</u> lear			
								[	Close

## Parameters of the "Affinity" tab

Name	Unique name of the affinity.			
ID	Unique identification of the affinity.			
AuxID	Additional identification of the affinity.			
Creation Date	Date of creation.			
Modification	Date of last modification.			
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.			
Fiber Group	Selection of the fiber group.			
Search Colorant Sets (bu	utton)			
	Displays in the "Colorant Set" field the selection boxes for colorant sets.			
Fibers:				
Fiber Name	Name of the fiber.			
Fiber Part	Share of the fiber in percent. <i>The summary of all parts must be 100%</i> .			
Colorant Set				
Is used to set the link between colorant set and affinity.				

# Fiber Group Tab

<u>N</u> ame	<b>&amp;⊒</b> Datamatch ∰ 20_PES					
<u>I</u> D <u>A</u> uxID	CO_PES			Creation Date Modification User ID	08.04.1999 20.04.1999 DCI	
Modal Polyacryl Polyacryl Viscose Wool	Available Fibers	>>	Cotton Polyest	{Cotton/Modal}	ed Fibers	
	Save	Delete	<u>C</u> lear			

## Parameters

Name	Unique name of the fiber group.
ID	Unique identification of the fiber group.
AuxID	Additional identification of the fiber group.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Available/Selected Fibers	In the "Available Fibers" list box, all available fibers are listed. In the "Selected Fibers" list box, the fibers are listed used for the current quality/style definition.

The fibers of the two boxes can be selected and moved from one to the other box using the move buttons between the boxes (or double-click the fiber name).

## Fiber Tab

Qua	lity/Style Pro	pertySheet		×
Q	uality/Style   Af	finity Fiber Group Fiber		1
	<u>N</u> ame	aa {All Data}		
		E Dotton		
	ĪD	CO	Creation Date Modification	
	<u>A</u> uxID		User ID	
l				
		<u>Save</u> Delete	<u><u>C</u>lear</u>	
—			Г	Classe
			L	Close

Unique name of the fiber.
Unique identification of the fiber.
Additional identification of the fiber.
Date of creation.
Date of last modification.
Identification of creating or modifying user.

# Substrate Delivery Dialog Box

Substrate	Delivery Dialog		×
Quality/ Q17642	Style PES/CO 70/30	Creation Date Modification User ID	25.07.2002 DCI
Substrat	eDelivery Q17642 PES/CO 70/30-1 Sample Sample Measure		*
Fibers			
Color	Fiber Name	Effect	Measure
	Cotton Polyester		<u></u>
	<u>S</u> ave <u>D</u> elete		<b>C</b> lose

Substrate Delivery	
Combo box	Selection of existing substrate deliveries.
Table columns	
Color	Color display.
Fiber Name	Unique name of the fiber.
Effect	Opens the "Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog" box. Refer to <i>Calibration and Measurement on page 5-10, Specifying, Modifying or Deleting a Quality/Style on page 5-26, and Substrate Delivery: Example on page 5-30.</i>
Buttons	
New	Click to specify a new substrate delivery.
Sample	Opens a dialog box to select an existing sample.
Measure	Opens the "Measure" dialog box. Refer to <i>Calibration and</i> <i>Measurement on page 5-10</i> .
Measure Directly	Executes the measurement.
Insert	Enters the currently displayed substrate delivery.
Delete	Deletes the currently displayed substrate delivery.
Close	Closes the "Substrate Delivery Dialog" box. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

# Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog Box

Subst	ate Delivery Effect Dialog		×
	trateDelivery 642 PES/CO 70/30-1		
	Fiber Name	Dyeset	Effect
1	Cotton	Levafix SPB (Soda)	1
2	Cotton	Remazol SPB (Silicate)	1
  n	ert an new Effect for a Dyeset		Insert
	🚍 Remazol SPB (Silicate)		Insert

## Table columns

Fiber Name	Fiber name.
Colorant Set	Unique name of the colorant set (colorant set).
Effect	Effect factor for the recipe calculation (little correction).
Insert a New Effect for a	Colorant Set.
	Selection box for the colorant set (colorant set). The browse
	button opens a browse dialog box used to search for colorant
	sets.



## Note

It is possible to create different effects for different colorant sets. The effects must be defined in the "Effect Using" column.

Refer to Substrate Delivery: Example on page 5-30.

#### **Buttons**

Insert	Adds the current colorant set to the table.
Save	Saves the currently displayed effect.
Delete	Deletes the currently displayed effect.
Close	Closes the "Substrate Delivery Effect Dialog" box. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

# **Dye Process Property Sheet**

# **Dye Process Tab**

e <b>Process Prop</b> )ye Process Pr							
<u>N</u> ame	🛃 Datamatch 💳 Reactive Cold I	Pad Batch (Soda)					
ID AuxID	22				Creation Date Modification User ID	08.04.1999 04.06.1999 DCI	
Dye Class	🙀 (All Data) 🕂 Reactive						··· *
Process Type C <u>E</u> xhaust © C <u>o</u> ntinuou	s Pickup			И			*
-	ergroups. (Group of fi Fibers(s)	ber[s] dyed in the s	ame bath. ie C	:0,COVI)			
1 CO 2 CO	MO						
	<u>S</u> ave	Del	ete	<u>C</u> lear	]		
							Close

## Parameters

Name	Unique name of the fiber.
ID	Unique identification of the fiber.
AuxID	Additional identification of the fiber.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Dye Class	Selection box for the dye class.
Process Type	Selection of process type, liquor ratio/pickup, and unit.
Table:	

Shows the dye fiber group: fibers or fiber groups dyed in the same bath and using the same recipe. Refer to *Specifying dye fiber groups on page 5-37*.

## **Process Factors Tab**

Used to name process factors.

DyeProcess I	PropertySheet				×
Dye Process	Process Factors				
<u>N</u> ame	<b>6</b>				*
ĪD				Creation Date Modification User ID	
Factor	2	*			
	Save	Delete	<u>C</u> lear		
					Close

Name	Unique name of the factor.
ID	Unique identification of the factor.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Factor	Input of a process factor.

# **Product Property Sheet**

Buttons	
Save	Saves the displayed product definition.
Delete	Deletes the displayed product definition after confirmation.
Clear	Clears the fields of the currently displayed tab.
Close	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

# **Auxiliary Tab**

uct PropertyShee	et				
Dyestuff Auxiliary	Type(Form) Product Supplier	Dyestuff	ye Description Dyeclass	Supplier Dyename	Stock Solution
		Dyestun		Supplier Dyename	
Name a	All Data} Cibatex APS				
	IB-APS			Creation Date	15.04.1999
AuxID C	IB-APS			Modification	04.04.2000
				User ID	DCI
Product Supplier	😫 {All Data}				
	CIBA			*	
Product Type	Auxiliary		Product Form	Solid	<b>_</b>
Default Delivery	CIBA-1999.06.03	l		•	
Product Strength	100	[%]		Specific Gravity	0
Lab Strength Facto	r [1	Actual Price	1.7	Invent Unit	kg 💌 *
Special Stock Solul	ion Default Auxilary			•	
и. Г				_	FormulaSetting
Note					g
	<u>S</u> ave	<u>D</u> elete	<u>C</u> lear		
					Close

Name	Unique name of the product.
ID	Unique identification of the product.
AuxID	Additional identification of the product.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of the creating or last modifying user.
Product Supplier	Unique name of the product supplier.
Product Type	Product type, e.g., Auxiliary (default).
Product Form	Product form, e.g. liquid or solid.
Default Delivery	Date of the default delivery selected from the delivery list. Data are imported from Datacolor Process.

Product Strength	Currently supplied concentration.
Specific Gravity	Specific weight.
Lab Strength Factor	Current laboratory strength factor.
Actual Price	Current price (per inventory unit).
Invent. Unit	Unit for the calculation of costs. This unit is defined in the "Unit Selection" tab of the "Options" dialog box together with a weight or volume. It is necessary because the sample weight and the batch volume are normally too low for the cal- culation of the costs.
Special Stock Solution	Special stock solution. If stock solution is activated in the options, the default stock solution is selected. If a specific stock solution is required for a product, you must define it in the "Stock Solution" tab.
Note	Field for additional notes.
Formula Setting (button)	Opens the "Formula Setting" dialog box for product settings used by the production software. Refer to <i>Formula Setting Dialog Box on page 7-42</i> .

# **Product Supplier Tab**

Dyest. Auxiliary	uff Type(Form) Product Supplier	Dyestuff	Dye Description		Gupplier Dyename	Stock Solution	ff Color
<u>N</u> ame	🛃 (All Data) 🗄 CIBA						
ĪD	СІВА				Creation Date Modification	08.04.1999 03.06.1999	
AuxID					User ID	DCI	
Contact person	Mr. Müller						
Address	Klybechstrasse 141						
Address 2							
City	BASEL						
Zip code	4002						
State							
Country	Switzerland						
Phone number							
Fax number							
E-Mail							
	Save	<u>D</u> elete		lear			
							Close

Name	Unique name of the product supplier.
ID	Unique identification of the product supplier.
AuxID	Additional identification of the product supplier.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Contact Person	Name of the contact person.
Address	Address of the product supplier.
Address 2	Additional address of the product supplier.
City	Address: Name of the city.
Zip Code	Zip code.
Country	Name of the country.
Phone Number	Phone number of the product supplier.
Fax Number	Fax number of the product supplier.
E-Mail	E-mail address of the product supplier.

# **Dyestuff Tab**

duct PropertySi	neet	
Dyesti Auxiliary	uff Type(Form) Dye Description Stock Solution Product Supplier Dyestuff Dyeclass Supplier Dyename Dyestuff	Color
<u>N</u> ame	ka_ (All Data) ⊒Bezaktiv Red S-3B 150%	 *
ID <u>A</u> uxID	BRD S3B         Creation Date         08.04.1999           BRD S3B         Modification         04.04.2000           User ID         DCI	
Supplier Dyename	Bezaktiv Dye Description	
Dyestuff Color	Dyestuff Type (Form)	
Dyename Ext.	Dyestuff Strength [50 [%]	]
Dyeclass	★     All Data       ☐ Reactive     *	lame
Product Supplier	Image: Segret a AG       Product Type         Image: Segret a AG       Image: Segret a AG         Product Form       Product Form	•
Default Delivery	<no delivery=""> Solid</no>	-
Lab strength Facto	or 1 Actual Price 28 Specific Gravity 0 ColorIndex Special Stock Solution	
Note	Default Dyestuff           Save         Delete         Clear	•
		Close

Parameters	
Name	Unique name of the dyestuff.
ID	Unique identification of the dyestuff.
AuxID	Additional identification of the dyestuff.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Supplier Dye Name	Dye name of the supplier.
Dye Description	Description, e.g., Brilliant.
Dyestuff Color	Name of the color.
Dyestuff Type (Form)	Dyestuff type, e.g., Light.
Dye Name Ext.	Dyestuff name extension.
Dyestuff Strength	Currently supplied strength.
Dye Class	Dye class, e.g., Disperse.
Compose Name (button)	If activated a dyestuff name is composed using "Supplier Dye Name," "Dye Description", "Dyestuff Color, and "Dyestuff Type."
Product Supplier	Unique name of the product supplier.
Product Type	Product type, e.g., Dyestuff (default).
Default Delivery	Date of the default delivery selected from the delivery list. Data are imported from Datacolor Process.
Product Form	
---------------------	
Lab Strength Factor	

Product form, e.g. liquid or solid. Current laboratory strength (differences to the default delivery).



### The Lab Strength Factor is a divisor.

### Example:

Note

Original: 100%. New delivery: 97%. Lab Strength Factor: 0.97 The original quantity is **divided** into 0.97.

Exception: If the recipe is sent to a laboratory dispenser the concentration is corrected.

Actual Price	Current price (per inventory unit).
Invent. Unit	Inventory unit.
Specific Gravity	Specific gravity.
Color Index	Refer to Color index on page 8-2.
Note	Field for additional notes.
Special Stock Solution	Special stock solution.

## **Dye Class Tab**

	Dyestuff Type(Form)		Dye Description			Stock Solution	
Au	ixiliary Product Supp	plier   [	Dyestuff Dyeclass	Su	applier Dyename	Dyestu	iff Color
<u>N</u> ar	me 🛃 {All Data} 💳 Reactive						
ID <u>A</u> u>	REA				Creation Date Modification User ID	08.04.1999 20.04.1999 DCI	
No	ta						
ech	nical Data						
ech	··· ]	ID		Proto	type		<b>^</b>
ech	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1 <i>1</i> 6	<b>ID</b> L 1 <i>1</i> 6		Proto	<u>.</u>		
ech 1	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1 <i>1</i> 6	L1/6 L1/1			ng		
1	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/1	L 1/6 L 1/1 WSH C2		Rati	ng ng		
1 2 3	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/1 Washing C2	L 1/6 L 1/1 WSH C2 WSH E2		Rati Rati	ng ng ng		
1 2 3	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/1	L 1/6 L 1/1 WSH C2 WSH E2 PRES AL		Rati Rati Rati	ng ng ng ng		
1 2 3 4	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/1 Washing C2 Washing E2 Prespiration alkaline Prespiration acid	L 1/6 L 1/1 WSH C2 WSH E2 PRES AL PRES AC		Ratii Ratii Ratii Ratii	ng ng ng ng ng		
1 2 3 4 5 5 7	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/6 Washing C2 Washing E2 Prespiration alkaline Prespiration acid Hypochlorite bleaching mild	L 1/8 L 1/1 WSH C2 WSH E2 PRES AL PRES AC HYPO M		Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati	ng ng ng ng ng ng ng ng		
1 2 3 4 5 7 7 3	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/6 Washing C2 Washing E2 Prespiration alkaline Prespiration acid Hypochlorite bleaching mild White discharge dark	L 1/8 L 1/1 WSH C2 WSH E2 PRES AL PRES AC HYPO M WT DISCH D		Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Listbox: Yes	ng ng ng ng ng ng ng ng ng s Partiy No		
1 2 3 4 5 5 7 3 9	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/6 Washing C2 Washing E2 Prespiration alkaline Prespiration acid Hypochlorite bleaching mild White discharge dark Colored discharge pale	L 1/6 L 1/1 WSH C2 WSH E2 PRES AL PRES AL PRES AC HYPO M WT DISCH D COL DISCH P		Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Listbox: Yes Listbox: Yes	ng ng ng ng ng ng ng ng s Partiy No s Partiy No		
1 2 3 3 4 5 5 7 7 3 3 9	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/6 Washing C2 Washing E2 Prespiration alkaline Prespiration acid Hypochlorite bleaching mild White discharge dark	L 1/8 L 1/1 WSH C2 WSH E2 PRES AL PRES AC HYPO M WT DISCH D		Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Listbox: Yes	ng ng ng ng ng ng ng ng s Partiy No s Partiy No		
1 2 3 3 4 5 5 7 7 7 7 3 9 9 10	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/6 Washing C2 Washing E2 Prespiration alkaline Prespiration acid Hypochlorite bleaching mild White discharge dark Colored discharge pale	L 1/6 L 1/1 WSH C2 WSH E2 PRES AL PRES AL PRES AC HYPO M WT DISCH D COL DISCH P		Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Listbox: Yes Listbox: Yes	ng ng ng ng ng ng ng ng s Partiy No s Partiy No		
1 2 3 3 4 5 5 7 7 3 3 9	nical Data Parameter Name Lightfastness 1/6 Lightfastness 1/6 Washing C2 Washing E2 Prespiration alkaline Prespiration acid Hypochlorite bleaching mild White discharge dark Colored discharge pale	L 1/6 L 1/1 WSH C2 WSH E2 PRES AL PRES AL PRES AC HYPO M WT DISCH D COL DISCH P		Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Rati Listbox: Yes Listbox: Yes	ng ng ng ng ng ng ng ng s Partiy No s Partiy No		

#### Parameters

Name	Unique name of the dye class.
ID	Unique identification of the dye class.
AuxID	Additional identification of the dye class.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Note	Field for additional notes.
Technical Data:	

Table with the parameter sequence assigned to all dyestuffs of a colorant set with this dye class. The values are to be assigned to the colorant set program.

## Supplier Dye Name Tab

Dy	estuff Type(Form)		Dye Description	Sto	ck Solution
Auxiliary	Product Supplier	Dyestuff	Dyeclass	Supplier Dyename	Dyestuff Colo
<u>N</u> ame	🛃 🚽 Bezaktiv				
ID ∆uxID	B			Creation Date Modification User ID	
Supplier	📓 {All Data} 🗄 Bezema AG			*	
DyeClass	😫 (All Data) 🚍 Reactive			*	
	Save	<u>D</u> elete	<u>C</u> lea	ar	

#### Parameters

Name	Unique supplier dye name, e.g., Terasil, Remazol.
ID	Unique identification of the supplier dye name.
AuxID	Additional identification of the supplier dye name.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Supplier	Unique name of the supplier.
Dye Class	Dye class, e.g., Disperse.

## **Dyestuff Color Tab**

duct Property	ōheet		
Dye: Auxiliary	stuff Type(Form) Product Supplier	Dye Description	Stock Solution Supplier Dyename Dyestuff Color
<u>N</u> ame	€ 	1	····*
ĪD	BOR		Creation Date
AuxID			Modification User ID
	Save	Delete	<u>C</u> lear
			Close

Parameters	
Name	Unique name of the dyestuff color.
ID	Unique identification of the dyestuff color.
AuxID	Additional identification of the dyestuff color.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.

# Dyestuff Type (Form) Tab

roduct Property	Sheet		×
Auxiliary Dyes	Product Supplier stuff Type(Form)	Dyestuff Dyeclass Dye Description	Supplier Dyename Dyestuff Color Stock Solution
<u>N</u> ame	ब्द च Conc.		
ĪD	С		Creation Date Modification
<u>A</u> uxID			UserID
	<u>S</u> ave	Delete	<u>lear</u>
			Close

#### Parameters

Name	Unique name of the dyestuff type, e.g. gran., conc., supra.
ID	Unique identification of the dyestuff type.
AuxID	Additional identification of the dyestuff type.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.

## **Dye Description Tab**

uct Propert	ySheet			
Auxiliary Dy	Product Supplier yestuff Type(Form)	Dyestuff Dyeclass Dye Description	Supplier Dyename	Dyestuff Color ck Solution
<u>N</u> ame	ब्द ⊒ Brilliant			***
ĪD	BR		Creation Date Modification	
<u>A</u> uxID			User ID	
	Save	<u>D</u> elete	<u>C</u> lear	

Parameters	
Name	Unique name of the dye description, e.g., Brillant, Dark.
ID	Unique identification of the dye description.
AuxID	Additional identification of the dye description.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.

## **Stock Solution Tab**

Auxiliary Dye	Product Sup estuff Type(Form)		Dyeclass )ye Description	Supplier Dyenam	ne Dyestuff Color Stock Solution
<u>N</u> ame	🛃 🔂 Default Aux	ilary			
ĪD	DEFAUX			Creation Date Modification	94.04.2000
<u>A</u> uxID				User ID	DCI
Exhaust			Continuous		
Arr	nount • than [g]	Stock Solution 1:	Continuous Amo smaller ti		Stock Solution 1:
Am smaller	<b>than [g]</b> 0.5	<b>1:</b> 10	Amo smaller ti	han [g]	<b>1:</b> 10
Arr smaller	than [g] 0.5 0.1	1: 10 100	Amo smaller ti 1	han [g] 5	1: 10 100
Am smaller	<b>than [g]</b> 0.5	<b>1:</b> 10	Amo smaller ti	han [g] 5	<b>1:</b> 10
Am smaller	than [g] 0.5 0.1 0.01	1: 10 100 1000	Amo smaller ti 1	han [g] 5	1: 10 100
Am smaller	than [g] 0.5 0.1 0.01	1: 10 100 1000	Amo smaller ti 1	han [g] 5	1: 10 100
Am smaller	than [g] 0.5 0.1 0.01	1: 10 100 1000	Amo smaller ti 1	han [g] 5	1: 10 100

Parameters	
Name	Unique name of the stock solution.
ID	Unique identification of the stock solution.
AuxID	Additional identification of the stock solution.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Description	Field for an additional description.
Exhaust/Continuous	Input fields for the stock solutions in relation to the amount in g. Refer to <i>Specifying A Stock Solution on page 5-36</i> .

# Formula Setting Dialog Box

Fo	rmula Setting				×
_	Note: TI	hese settings ar	e used in producti	ion softwar	e only !
	Formula Setting for 'Per	rsoftal L'			
	Default Unit	<mark>∕≷</mark> ≓ ¦nl/l			
	Auxiliary calculation wit	th supplier dyest	uff strength		<b>-</b>
	🔲 Print if zero	Γ	Print only with	price	- Totalize quantities C Minimum
	Calculate without p	rint E	Use small fonts	\$	Maximum
	🔲 Repeat value				🔘 Total
	-	0.000000	Max. deci	mal places	0
	ErrorMessage				
			Save		Close

#### Parameters

Default Unit	Unit for the formula.
Save (button)	Saves the current settings.
Close (button)	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

All other parameters are only used for production.

# **Customer Property Sheet**

Buttons	
Save	Saves the displayed customer definition.
Delete	Deletes the displayed customer definition after confirmation.
Clear	Clears the fields of the currently displayed tab.
Close	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

## **Customer Tab**

Cus	stomer Property	/Sheet	×
ſ	Customer		
	<u>N</u> ame	L {All Data} Marks & Spencer	*
	ID AuxID	M&S Modification Date 14.04.1999 Modification 16.11.1999 User ID DCI	
	ToleranceName ToleranceFactor	System MS89	
		Add <u>r</u> ess	
		<u>Save</u> <u>D</u> elete <u>Clear</u>	
		Close	

#### Parameters

Name	Unique name of the customer.
ID	Unique identification of the customer.
AuxID	Additional identification of the customer.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Tolerance Name	Unique name of the tolerance definition. Using the context- sensitive menu, you can open the "Option" input form to specify tolerances.
Tolerance Factor	Tolerance factor.
Address (button)	Opens the "Address" dialog box.

# **Address Dialog Box**

ddress				×
Name	All Data} Marks & Spencer			
ID MuxiD	4&S	Creation Date Modification User ID	14.04.1999 16.11.1999 DCI	
Address	Boldstreet			
Address 2				
City	London			
ZipCode				
State				
Country	United Kingdom			
ContactPerson	Ms. Lookes			
PhoneNum	004 1454 8212121			
FaxNum	004 1454 8212128			
E-Mail				
	<u>S</u> ave <u>C</u> lose	e		

Parameters	
Name	Unique name of the customer.
ID	Unique identification of the customer.
AuxID	Additional identification of the customer.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Address	Address of the product supplier.
Address 2	Additional address of the product supplier
City	Address: Name of the city.
Zip Code	Zip code.
Country	Name of the country.
Contact Person	Name of the contact person.
Phone Number	Phone number of the product supplier.
Fax Number	Fax number of the product supplier.
E-Mail	E-mail address of the product supplier.
Buttons	
Save	Saves the displayed address.
Close	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

# **Color Type Property Sheet**

iolorType PropertyShee	et			×
<u>N</u> ame <b>&amp; {</b> All Da ≓ITM Re			••••	
ID 27 AuxID		Creation Date Modification User ID	08.04.1999 04.04.2000 DCI	
Sample		 eranceFactor hite	1	
LabNote ProdNote				
ToleranceName 🚆	System Datacolor Default <u>S</u> ave <u>D</u> elete	<u></u> le	 	
		 	Close	

### Buttons

Prod. Note

White

Save	Saves the displayed color type definition.
Delete	Deletes the displayed color type definition after confirmation.
Clear	Clears the fields of the currently displayed tab.
Close	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.
Parameters of the "Colo	or Type" tab
Name	Unique name of the color type.
ID	Unique identification of the color type.
AuxID	Additional identification of the color type.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Lab Note	Additional Notes for the laboratory.

Additional Notes for the production.

Tolerance Name Unique name of the tolerance.

Tolerance Factor Tolerance factor.

Check it, if the sample is a measurement of a blank substrate or an optical brightened sample.

## **Tolerance Block Program Dialog Box**

General p	parameters
-----------	------------

Name	Unique name of the tolerance.
Modification	Date of last tolerance.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Description	Text field.
Buttons	
Delete	Deletes the selected tolerance.
Default	Sets the default values in the selected tab.
Save	Saves the current tolerance.
Close	Closes the dialog box.

Refer the following pages for information about the tabs.

## CieLab Tab

olerance Block Program 🛛 🛛 💌							
Name System *							
Creation Date 01.04.1999 Modification 04.04.2000 User ID DCI							
Description	Description          Image: Constraint of the second seco						
Illuminant	dE*	dL* max	da* max	db* max	dC* max	dH* max	
All Illuminants	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Symmetric tolerances							
						<u>C</u> lose	

#### Parameters

TableInput values for minimum and maximum tolerances.Symmetric TolerancesMinimum and maximum values are symmetric.Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances on page 5-44.

### **CMC** Tab

Tolerance I	Block Program					×
Name	System					*
					Creation Date Modification User ID	01.04.1999 DCI
Descript	,					
🚺 CieLa	ab 🚦 CMC 🚺 Datad	color 🛛 🍸 F	MC2   📒 J	PC79   🖪	MS89 🛛 👯 Cie 9	4 📕 DIN 99
	Illuminant	L	с	Limit	T	
	All Illuminants	2.00	1.00	1.00		
				relete	Default	Save
						<u>C</u> lose

#### Parameters

TableInput values for minimum and maximum tolerances.Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances on page 5-44.

### **Datacolor Tab**

Tolerance Block Program	2
Name System	*
	Creation Date 01.04.1999 Modification User ID DCI
Description	
II CieLab BCMC Datacolor FMC2 B JPC79	MS89   St Cie 94   DIN 99   Datacolor Block Training
	Block Manual Input
Sigma [LCH]	Tolerance Values
Delete	Default Save
	Close

#### Parameters

Datacolor Block Training Opens the "Datacolor Tolerance Block" dialog box.

Block Manual Input

Opens the "Manual Input of Tolerance Values" dialog box. Opens the "Tolerance Values Output" dialog box used for

Tolerance Values

Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances on page 5-44.

information about tolerance values.

### FMC2 Tab

lerance Block	( Program				
<u>N</u> ame	System ∓ FMC-2				*
				Creation Date Modification User ID	01.04.1999 DCI
Description					
📘 CieLab 🛛 🖁	СМС 🔁 D	atacolor 😗 FM(	2 📲 JPC79 🕻	🛿 MS89 🛛 🏭 Cie 9	14 📕 DIN 99 🛛
	uminant	Limit			
	lluminants	1.00			
			Delete	Default	Save
					Close

#### Parameters

Table

Input for tolerance value.

Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances on page 5-44.

## JPC79 Tab

Folerance Block Program				]
Name 😺 System				*
			Creation Date Modification	01.04.1999
Description			User ID	DCI
CieLab	atacolor 🛛 🗴 FMC2	: 📕 JPC79 📴	MS89 ី 👯 Cie 9	4   📕 DIN 99
Illuminant	Limit			
All Illuminants	1.00			
<b>9</b>		Delete	Default	Save
				Close

#### Parameters

Table

Input for tolerance value.

Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances on page 5-44.

### MS89 Tab

Folerance Block Program	1			×				
Name 💽 Syste				*				
	Creation Date 01.04.1999 Modification							
			User ID	DCI				
Description								
🚺 CieLab 🔡 CMC 🖬	Datacolor 🛛 🖌 FMC2	: 📜 JPC79 🛽	🛚 MS89 🛛 👯 Cie	94 📕 DIN 99 🛛				
	34-10, msD65-10 and ms							
Illuminant	dE*	DH	'DC'	'DL'				
msTL84-10	1.20	0.60	0.80	0.80				
msD65-10	1.50	0.75	1.00	1.00				
msA-10	1.50	0.75	1.00	1.00				
Delete Default Save								
				Close				

### Parameters

TableInput of dE values. The other tolerance values are calculated.Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances on page 5-44.



### Note

The user can only modify the dE values. DH, DC and DL are calculated automatically. These values are displayed after saving the tolerance, and closing and opening the dialog box.

## Cie 94 Tab

Folerance Block Program	
Name System	*
	Creation Date Modification User ID
Description	MS89 🌃 Cie 94 📕 DIN 99
DE:     1       CIE94 (I: c: h)       KI:       Ko:       Kh:	
Delete	DefaultSave
	Close

#### Parameters

Table

Input for tolerance values.

Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances on page 5-44.

### **DIN99** Tab

Tolerance Block Program		
Name 💽 System		
	м	reation Date Iodification Iser ID
Description	2 FMC2   📒 JPC79   🖪 M	S89   5 Cie 94 ■ DIN 99 ]
DIN99 Parameters:	Ke = 1 Ch	ange Kch = 1
DE(99):		
Deltas:	Low	High
L(99):	0	0
a(99) :	0	0
b (99):	0	
C(99):	0	0
H(99):	0	0
DIN	Delete	Default Save
		Close

#### Parameters

Table

Input for tolerance values.

Refer to Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Tolerances on page 5-44.

# **Datacolor Tolerance Block Dialog Box**

Datacolor	Tolerance	Block:				×
Standard:	<mark>⊚</mark> {All Dat <mark>≺djv&gt;</mark> DJ	a} IV01 Blue reference				
Batches:	<pre>{All Dat <dj>DJC</dj></pre>	a) 003 Blue 3			···· *	
STANE	DARD :	BATCH :	CMC 2:1 D65/10		NAME of BATCH	
			1.16	DJ013 Blue 13		~
			1.15	DJ015 Blue 15		
			0.97	DJ016 Blue 16		
			0.93	DJ018 Blue 18		
			0.90 0.87	DJ009 Blue 9 DJ020 Blue 20		
			0.87	DJ020 Blue 20 DJ014 Blue 14		
			0.84	DJ019 Blue 19		
			0.82	DJ021 Blue 21		
			0.68	DJ022 Blue 22		
			0.56	DJ012 Blue 12		
			0.53	DJ006 Blue 6		
			0.51	DJ004 Blue 4		
			0.50	DJ005 Blue 5		
			0.50	DJ003 Blue 3		
			0.41	DJ017 Blue 17		
			0.33	DJ007 Blue 7		
			0.31 0.23	DJ011 Blue 11 DJ008 Blue 8		~
			0.23	DJUUU DILLE O		
Total of sa	moles:	20				
		Diff.For	mula Can	cel	Other color	Apply
Selected s	amples:	17				

#### Standard

Selection or measurement of the standard.

Batch

Selection or measurement of the batch.

Diff. Formula (button)

Opens the "Select Difference Formula" dialog box for the selection of the formula.

Select difference	e formula	<u> </u>
	Tolerance Factor	OK
CieLAB		Cancel
СМС	l = 2.0 c = 1.0	
Datacolor		
FMC2		
Jpc79		
M&S89		
CIE94		
DIN99		

# Manual Input of Tolerance Values Dialog Box

Manual Input of Tolerance	values		×
Standard: All Data}	Plum		
Brightness L :	.ow4	High	.6
	.ow .1	High	.8
	.ow4	High	.7

# **Parameter Definition Dialog Box**

The parameter values are defined in a colorant set for each dye, and are used to set limits for the recipe calculation. Examples: Fastness parameter, operation parameter, etc.

Parameter Defin	ition			×
<u>N</u> ame	€2 {All Data} ➡Colored discharge dark			*
ID AuxID	COL DISCH D		Creation Date Modification User ID	25.03.1999 14.04.1999 DCI
Parameter Type Unit	Listbox 1 2 3	Yes Partly No	Text List	t
	EormulaSetting			
Note	Save Delete	Clear		
				Close

#### **Buttons**

Formula Setting	Opens the "Formula Setting" dialog box for product settings used by the production software. Refer to <i>Formula Setting Dialog Box on page 7-42</i> .
Save	Saves the displayed parameter definition.
Delete	Deletes the displayed parameter definition after confirmation
Clear	Clears the fields of the currently displayed tab.
Close	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.
Parameters	
Name	Unique name of the parameter.
ID	Unique identification of the parameter.
AuxID	Additional identification of the parameter.
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification	Date of last modification.
User ID	Identification of creating or modifying user.
Parameter Type	Parameter type: Value for numeric values String for a string value List box for a list box.
Unit	Unit. Only used for "Parameter Type Value."
Text List	Text input for a list box.
Note	Field for additional notes.

Note

## **Combined Processes Browse Window**



Refer to the Datacolor Process documentation for more information.

Browse window for combined processes. Refer to *Specifying Combined Processes on page 5-61*.

CombProcess_ID	CombProcess_AuxID	CombProcess_Name	RecipeLoc	Process type
DISP-Disp		Disperse Exhaust (Dispersol)	•	Discontinu
DISP-Ter		Disperse Exhaust (Terasil)	•	Discontinu
DISP/REA-2B		Disperse Exhaust (Terasil)_Reactive exhaust		Discontinu
REA-BEZ		Reactive Bezema Exhaust		Discontinu
REA-LEV-PB		Levafix Pad Batch		Continuous
REA-REM-PB-Sil		Remazol Pad Batch Silicate		Continuous
VAT-Exh		Vats Exhaust	•	Discontinu

Functions of the "Select" menu			
Quick Search	Opens a dialog box used to search combined processes. Refer to <i>Quick Search Dialog Box on page</i> 7-59.		
Default Query	Selects all combined processes.		
User Query	<b>Only for advanced database users.</b> Opens the "Query Designer." <i>Refer to the Datacolor Process documentation.</i>		
Functions of the "View'	' menu		
Find in Value	Switches the search bar on and off.		
Reset	Resets the search bar.		
Record Count	Displays the number of records in the title bar.		
Buttons			
New	Opens the "Combined Process" window for specifying a new combined process. Refer to <i>Specifying, Modifying, Deleting A Combined Process on page 5-62</i> .		
Open	Opens the "Combined Process" window with the selected combined process. Refer to <i>Specifying, Modifying, Deleting A Combined Process on page 5-62</i> .		
Delete	Deletes the currently selected combined process after confir- mation.		
Quick Search	Opens a dialog box used to search combined processes. Refer to <i>Quick Search Dialog Box on page 7-59</i> .		
Duplicate	Duplicates the currently selected combined process.		
Close	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.		

#### Functions of the "Select" menu

# **Quick Search Dialog Box**

Quick search	×
Search Type Starts with	Enter your search values : Pant. 14
	Pant. 19
QuickSearch Columns ID ID AuxID	QuickSearch Rows  Search in result set  Global search
🗸 ок	X Cancel ? Help
Search Type	Values: Exact match, Start with, Ends with, Contains, Use Wildcards.
Enter your search values	
	The values can be removed using the button on the left.
Quick Search Column	Check to activate table columns for searching.
Note	
Refer to the Datacolor Pr	rocess documentation for more information.

### Table columns

CombProcess_ID	Unique identification of the combined process.
CombProcess_AuxID	Additional identification of the combined process.
CombProcess_Name	Unique name of the combined process.
Context-sensitive menu	
Refresh Grid	Refreshes the grid.
Select All	Selects all displayed combined processes.
Unselect All	Deselect all combined processes.
Locate	Opens the "Locate" dialog box. Refer to <i>Specifying Com-</i> bined Processes on page 5-61.
Filter	Opens the "Filter" dialog box. Refer to <i>Specifying Combined Processes on page 5-61</i> and to the Datacolor Process documentation.
Show/Hide Columns	Opens the "Selected Fields" dialog box. Using the move buttons, you can move the field columns to be displayed to the "Selected Fields" and remove the field columns that are not to be displayed.
Set Font	Opens the "Font" dialog box used to define the font for the table.

# **Combined Process Window**

Note



Refer to the Datacolor Process documentation for more information.

Only available for users with full access.

🔲 CombProcess : Le	vafix Pad Batch (REA-LE¥-PB)	? ×			
File Edit					
H	▶ <b>+ -</b> 🖺 Apply <b>√</b> <u>0</u> K <b>X</b> Cancel	? <u>H</u> elp			
General Treatments	Products/Parameters References / Settings				
ID:	REA-LEV-PB AuxID:	- <u>*</u>			
Name:	Levafix Pad Batch	- 🏊 🛛			
Process type:	Continuous CombProcessGroup: Dyeing				
Dye process:	FiberGroup:				
Type DyeProcess	s_ID DyeProcess_Name 📃 🔺 🕨 CO				
C 22	C 22 Reactive Cold Pad Batch (Soda)				
		_			
Lab note:	Production note:				
	<u>_</u>				
	<u></u>	<b>_</b>			
User : DCI	created 08.04.1999, modified 24.09.1999 by DCI				

#### Functions of the "Edit" menu

New	Prepares the window for specifying a new combined process.
Delete	Deletes the currently displayed combined process.
Duplicate	Duplicates the currently displayed combined process.

#### Buttons

I	First	Jumps to the first combined process of the list.
->	Previous	Jumps to the previous combined process.
	Next	Jumps to the next combined process.
►I	Last	Jumps to the last combined process of the list.
+	New	Prepares the window for specifying a new combined process.
-	Delete	Deletes the currently displayed combined process.
Apply	Apply	Saves the currently displayed data. The window is not closed.
<b>√</b> <u>0</u> K	ОК	Saves the currently displayed data and the window closes.
X Cancel	Cancel	Closes the window without saving.

#### Parameters of the "General" tab

ID	Unique identification of the combined process.
CombProcess_AuxID	Additional identification of the combined process.
CombProcess_Name	Unique name of the combined process.
Process Type	Displays the process type the combined process is used for.
Dye Process:	
Туре	Type of the dye process.
DyeProcess_ID	Unique identification of the dye process.
Dyeprocess_Name	Unique name of the dye process.
Fiber Group	List of the fiber groups.
Lab Note	Additional Notes for the laboratory.
Production Note	Additional Notes for the production.



#### Note

In the "Lab Note" and "Production Note" fields, a context-sensitive menu is used for changing data. The **Cut**, **Copy** and **Paste** functions are used to copy notes from a combined process to others.

lit	CombProcess : Levafix Pad Batch (REA-LEV-PB)				
<ul> <li>▲</li> <li>▶</li> <li>▶</li> </ul>	+ -	📑 Apply	<b>√</b> <u>0</u> K	🗶 <u>C</u> ancel	<b>?</b> <u>H</u> elp
al Treatments Produ	cts/Parameters 🗍	References / Setti	ngs		
Process type     Name       Continuous <ul> <li>Continuous</li> <li>Continuous</li></ul>					
ations					
Name			LabOperation_ID	ProdOperation_ID	
PAD			REA-LEV-PB	REA-LEV-PB	
BATCHING				BTCH	
RINSE				RNS-CNT	
ACIDIFICATION				ACD-CNT	
SOAPING				SP-CNT	
7 TOTAL TIME T-T					
UseTrialBath TrialBathSize: Location:					
- Valid machinegroup for the treatment					
MachineGroup_ID     MachineGroup_Name     FOUL     FOULARD					
		Image: Products / Parameters       Image: Products / Parameters       Image: Products / Parameters       Image: Parameters			Interactions     Interaction     Interact

#### Parameters of the "Treatments" tab

Process Type	Process type.		
Name	Unique process name.		
Visible Operations:			
Regular	The normal operation list is displayed.		
Additions	The operation list for an addition process is displayed.		
Operations:			
#	Ordinal number.		
Name	Description of the operation. Default: No operation name.		
LabOperation_ID	Unique identification of the operation used in the laboratory.		
ProdOperation_ID	Unique identification of the operation used for production.		
	If the calculator is highlighted, the operation is based on a formula. A double-click on the calculator opens the "Formula Edit" window. Refer to <i>Specifying Formulae on page 5-66</i> .		
Valid machine group for the treatment:			
MachineGroupID	Unique identification of the machine group.		
MachineGroupName	Name of the machine group.		

#### Context-sensitive menu of the "Operations" table

Open Operation	Opens the "Treatment Operation" dialog box. Refer to <i>Speci- fying, Modifying, Deleting A Combined Process, and Specify</i> <i>ing, Modifying, Deleting An Operation on page 5-64.</i>
Edit Operation Count	Opens the "Formula Edit" window. Refer to <i>Specifying For-</i> <i>mulae on page 5-66</i> .
Clear Operation Count	Refer to Specifying, Modifying, Deleting An Operation on page 5-64.
Context-sensitive menu	ı of the "Machine Group" table
Edit Criteria	Opens the "Formula Edit" window. Refer to <i>Specifying For-</i> <i>mulae on page 5-66</i> .
Delete Criteria	Deletes the selected criteria after confirmation.
Parameters of the "Proc	duct/Parameters" tab
Product table:	
Product_ID	Unique identification of the product.
Product_Name	Unique name of the product.
Value	Numeric value.
Unit_ID	Unit.
Parameter table:	
Parameter_ID	Unique identification of the parameter.
Parameter_Name	Unique name of the parameter.
String Value	String value.
Value	Numeric value.
Parameters of the "Refe	erences/Settings" tab
Default Prod. Form Data/	Default Lab. Form Data Display of the corresponding data.
Table:	Name of the linked form and number of records.

Open (button) Opens the selected form.

## **Operations Browse Window**

Note



Refer to the Datacolor Process documentation for more information.

Browse window for operations. Refer to, *Browse and Selecting on page 5-2* and *Specifying, Modifying, Deleting An Operation on page 5-64*.

<u>N</u> ew <u>O</u> pen	Telete Quick Search	Close		
Operation_ID	Operation_Name	Operation_AuxID	Lab F	Prod
1	Reactive	DM		
2	Vat	DM	▼	$\checkmark$
3	Disperse	DM		$\mathbf{V}$
ACD	Acidification			$\mathbf{V}$
ACD-CNT	Continous Acidification			$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$
втсн	Batching		<b>V</b>	$\overline{}$
DISP-HT	Disperse HT Dyeing			$\mathbf{V}$
FN-CTT-AT Cottoblanc Aftertreatment				V
REA-BZ-XH	Bezema Exhaust Isotherme Method		▼	$\checkmark$
REA-LEV-PB	Levafix Pad Batch			$\checkmark$
REA-REM-PB-Sil	Remazol Pad Batch Silicate			V
RED-CL	Reduction Clear			V
RNS-50	Rinse 50			V
RNS-70	Rinse 70			$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$
RNS-CLD	Cold Rinse			V
RNS-CLD-OFL	RNS-CLD-OFL			V
RNS-CNT	Continous Rinse			

#### Functions of the "Select" menu

Quick Search	Opens the "Quick Search" dialog box used to search opera- tions. <i>Quick Search Dialog Box on page 7-59</i> .
Default Query	Selects all operations.
Custom Query	<b>Only for advanced database users.</b> Opens the "Query Designer." <i>Refer to the Datacolor Process documentation.</i>
Operations used by a give	en comb. process Opens the "ITM" dialog box that is used for specifying a CombProcess_ID. After clicking OK, the operations found are listed.
Operations used by a give	en Dye lot Opens the "ITM" dialog box that is used for specifying a Dye Lot_ID. After clicking OK, the operations found are listed.
Functions of the "View"	menu
Find in Value	Opens a search bar in the window footer. Click a table col- umn, specify a search value and hit the tabulator key.
Reset	Resets the search bar in the window footer.
Record Count	Displays the number of records found.
Buttons	
New	Opens the "Operation" window used to specify a new opera- tion. Refer to <i>Specifying, Modifying, Deleting An Operation</i> <i>on page 5-64</i> .
Open	Opens the "Operation" window with the data of the selected operation.

Delete	Deletes the selected operation after confirmation.
Quick Search	Opens the "Quick Search" dialog box used to search opera- tions. <i>Quick Search Dialog Box on page</i> 7-59.
Duplicate	Duplicates the currently selected operation. Refer to <i>Specify-ing, Modifying, Deleting An Operation on page 5-64.</i>
Close	Closes the "Operation" window.
Table columns	
Operation_ID	Unique identification of the operation.
Operation_AuxID	Additional identification of the operation.
Operation_Name	Unique name of the operation.
Lab	If checked, the operation is used in the laboratory.
Prod.	If checked, the operation is used in production.
Context-sensitive menu	1
Refresh Grid	Refreshes the grid.
Select All	Selects all operations of the list.
Unselect All	Removes the selections.
Locate	Opens the "Locate" dialog box. It is used to search data records containing the entered string in the "Field Value" field.
Filter	Opens the "Filter" dialog box used for defining search filters. Refer to <i>Browse and Selecting on page 5-2</i> .
Show/Hide Columns	Opens the "Selected Fields" dialog box. Using the move but- tons, you can move the field columns to be displayed to the "Selected Fields" and remove the field columns that are not to be displayed.
Set Font	Opens the "Font" dialog box used to define the font for the table.

# **Operation Window**



Refer to the Datacolor Process documentation for more information.

### **General Parameters**

Note

### Functions of the "Edit" menu

New	Prepares the window for specifying a new operation.
Delete	Deletes the currently displayed operation.
Duplicate	Duplicates the current operation. This function can be used for specifying a new operation with only small differences to the current operation.

### **Buttons**

	First	Jumps to the first operation of the list.
•	Previous	Jumps to the previous operation.
•	Next	Jumps to the next operation.
►I	Last	Jumps to the last operation of the list.
+	New	Prepares the window for specifying a new operation.
-	Delete	Deletes the currently displayed opera- tion.
📴 Apply	Apply	Saves the currently displayed data. The window is not closed.
<b>√</b> <u>0</u> K	OK	Saves the currently displayed data and the window closes.
X Cancel	Cancel	Closes the window without saving after confirmation.

Parameters of the General Tab

🔲 Operation : Bezem	na Exhaust Isotherme Method (REA-BZ-XH)		
File Edit			
H F	🕨 🛨 🗕 🖺 Apply 🗸 <u>O</u> K 🗶 <u>C</u> ancel <b>?</b> <u>H</u> elp		
General Control Line	References		
ID:	REA-BZ-XH AuxID:		
Name:	Bezema Exhaust Isotherme Method		
	✓ LabOperation		
	✓ Prod operation		
	Note:		
	<u> </u>		
User : DCI	created 14.04.1999, modified 31.03.2000 by DCI		
ID	Unique identification of the energian		
	Unique identification of the operation.		
AuxID Additional identification of the operation.			
Name	Unique name of the operation.		
Lab operation If the box is checked the operation is used in the lab			
Prod. Operation	If the box is checked the operation is used for production.		
Note	Field for additional notes.		



### Note

A context-sensitive menu for each input field is used for changing data.

## Table Columns of the "Control Line" Tab

•	<ul> <li>▲</li> <li>▶</li> <li>▶</li> </ul>	🔸 🗕 🖺 Apply 🖌 🗸 🔍 🗠	🔰 🗶 <u>C</u> ano	el	🥐 <u>Н</u> еір
en	eral Control Line Refer	ences			
1				REA	
2	VOL	Volume	<formula></formula>	I	
3	D-TEMP	Dyeing Temperature	60	°C	
4		Add Chemicals			
5	MERNX	Meropan	1.5	g/l	
6	BIA109	Biavin 109	0.3	g/l	
7		Add Salt within 5 min			
8	NaCl	Common Salt	<formula></formula>	g/l	
9	W-T	Waiting Time	10	min	
10	REA	Reactive	<formula></formula>		
11	W-T	Waiting Time	10	min	
12	Soda	Soda	5	g/l	
13	W-T	Waiting Time	10	min	
14	NaOH38	NaOH Caustic 38* Bé	<formula></formula>	ml/l	
15	D-T	Dyeing Time	55	min	
16	AcAc	Acetic Acid	1	ml/l	

ID	Identification of the object.
Name	Name of the object.
Value	Numeric value. The button opens the "Formula Edit" window. Refer to <i>Specifying Formulae on page 5-66</i> .
Unit	Unit belonging to the numeric value.



### Note

A context-sensitive menu is used for specifying new control lines. Refer to *Specifying, Modifying, Deleting An Operation on page 5-64.* 

Parameters of the References Tab

🔲 Opera	tion : Bezema Exhaust Is	otherme Method (REA-BZ-X	:H)		? ×
File Edit					
H	< ► ► +	- 📑 Apply	✓ <u>о</u> к	🗙 <u>C</u> ancel	<b>?</b> <u>Н</u> еlp
General	Control Line References				
	References	References count			
	CombProcess Lab.	1		🐼 Open	
	CombProcess Prod.	2			
	Parameter	4			
	Product	7			
	•	Þ			
User : DCI	created 14.04	.1999, modified 31.03.2000 by	DCI		///
Referen	ces R	eferenced objects.			
Reference		umber of objects.			

	Number of objects.
Open	Opens the corresponding Datacolor Process window with the
	referenced objects.
# Formula Edit Window

	Formu	la_Edit	į			
x	⊙ Dye	e class	(	) Produ	ıct	Disperse  Interpolate on X
						Dye class: Disperse
	4×4	≤.1	≤.5	≤1	>1	
	≤5	4	7	10	13	
	≤ 10	5	8	11	14	
	≤ 20	6	9	12	15	
	>20	6.5	9.5	12.5	15.5	
	© Lig	uor ratio		C Picku	In	□ Interpolate on Y
·	. Liqu			Гіски	ib.	
		Round				
	Raise error if result < minimum     Raise error if result > maximum     Apply					

Refer to Specifying Formulae on page 5-66.

#### Parameters

Combobox	Selection of dye class or product (X axis).			
Interpolate on X/Y	If checked, the linear interpolation of intermediate values is switched on.			
Liquor Ratio/Pick Up	Selection for the Y axis.			
Decision Table:	Set the range limits in the X and Y axis. Set the absolute values in the corresponding table cells.			
Round to	Rounds to the entered number of units. <i>Example</i> "Round to" value is 5, unit is kg: The result is calculated in steps of 5 kg.			
Raise error if result < min	imum			
	If checked and the result is lower than the minimum value, an error message appears and the matching is stopped. If not checked, the minimum value is set.			
Raise error if result > maximum				
	If checked and the result is higher than the maximum value, an error message appears and the matching is stopped. If not checked, the maximum value is set.			

### Context-sensitive menu

Add Row/Column	Adds a row/column after the selected one.
Delete Row/Column	Deletes the selected row/column.
Build Formula	Opens the "Expression Wizard" dialog box used for creating formulae.

## Sample Input Dialog Box

The "Sample Input" dialog box is used for the manual input of samples based on reflectance values or color coordinates.

General parameters					
Name	Unique name of the color sample.				
Description	Additional description of the color sample.				
Data Information		Input	Specular		
	Reflectance	Manual	Included		
	Transmission Instrumental		Excluded		
Date <b>Buttons</b>	Date of the input.				
Insert/Save	Used to insert a new or save an existing sample.				
Clear	Clears the input fields.				
Save As	Used to save a modification.				
Close	Closes the "Color Sample Calculator." If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.				

## **Spectral Tab**

Sampl	e In	put												×
Name		Demo BAT1	o Data/Ba 2	atches			<u>í</u>	] *	Descrip	otion:				
Data information				Input			Spe	cular					1	
					Manual     Manual     Included     Instrumental     C Excluded		Date: Wed Mar 27 16:12:15 2002							
Spe	ctral	Coord	linates											
_	<u>1</u> . ' La	ta Input: Waveler st Wavel avelengt	ngth: length: h <u>I</u> nterval	400 700 • 10 (		<u>М</u> 8 8 8 8	anual D ] 	500	ry 550	600	650	00 ⁴ Lambda[nm]		
		0	10	20	30	40	50	60	70	80	90			
51	00	4.87 6.42 37.30 74.04	4.85 6.92 51.63	4.83 7.31 61.88	4.87 7.77 68.06	4.89 8.75 71.50	4.97 10.57 73.27	5.08 13.07 74.06	5.24 15.65 74.33	5.52 18.26 74.44	5.91 24.46 74.29		<u>Clear</u> <u>Save</u> Save As	
	Checksum: 905.01 ± Delta R 0 + Close													

### Parameters

### Data Input

First Wavelength	Starting wavelength for data input.				
Last Wavelength	Ending wavelength for data input.				
Wavelength Interval	Wavelength steps for data input.				
Spectral Data Length	Number of values.				
Graph					
Graphical view of the result.					
Context-sensitive Menu					
Deast	Depate the last manual data entry				

Reset	Resets the last manual data entry.
Change Color	Opens the "Color" window twice to define the colors of the graph. The first definition is for the background, the second for the lines.
With Origin	If checked, the current graph is displayed with the coordinate zero point.
Grid	If checked, a grid is displayed.
Fonts	Opens the "Font" dialog box used to define the font for the graph.
Points	If checked, the interval points are displayed.
Log View	Logarithmic view.

More	Opens the "Options" dialog box that allows changes to the graph display.		
Visible Curves - Manual I	Data Entry		
	If checked, it is possible to alter the values in the table or the points of the curve manually. If finished, click "Calculate" to recalculate the curve.		
Table			
The results of the calculation are displayed.			
Checksum	Summary of all values.		

+ Delta R	Clicking the + button adds positive or negative values to the
	fields.

### **Coordinates Tab**

Sample Input				×
Name 🕵 DemoData.	/Batches	Description:		
Data information Reflectance Transmission	Input © Manual © Instrumental	Specular ⓒ Included ⓒ Excluded	<b>Date:</b> Wed Mar 27 16:12:15 2002	
Spectral Coordinates	]			
	Type         Image: Syze of the system           Image: Coordinates of the system         Y           Image: System of the system         Y	С хуY С CIE LCH Z 5.49808		
	Illuminant: D65710	<b>_</b>	Clear	
			<u>Save</u> Save <u>As</u> Close	

### Parameters

Used for specifying recipes manually:

eeee ie opeenjing ieelp	
Туре	XYZ:
	xyZ
	CIE Lab
	CIE LCH
Coordinates	Coordinate values. The result depends on type selection.
Illuminant	Name of the illuminant.
Color	Color display.

### **Colorant Set List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browse and Selecting on page 5-2*.

ColorantSet_Name Unique colorant set name.

SUBSTRATEDELIVERY_NAME

Unique substrate delivery name.

CREATIONDATE Date of creation.

A mouse double-click opens the "Colorant Set" tab of the "Colorant Set" window (Refer to *Specifying Colorant Sets on page 5-47*).

#### Functions of the "Colorant Set" and the context-sensitive menu

New	Opens the Colorant Set" window to specify a new colorant set of the selected type (submenu): <b>Textile / Textile, alter-</b> <b>nate substrate / Textile Printing with Dyes</b> (Refer to <i>Speci-</i> <i>fying Colorant Sets on page 5-47.) /</i> <b>Fiber Mixing</b> . (If option "Datacolor BLEND" is installed. Refer to <i>Datacolor BLEND (Option) on page 5-134</i> .
Сору	Opens the Colorant Set" window with a copy of the selected colorant set.
Edit	Opens the Colorant Set" window with the selected colorant set.
Show	Displays a print preview of the header or the complete colorant set (submenu).
Rename	Used to rename the currently selected colorant set.
Delete	Used to delete the currently selected colorant set.
Filter	Refer to Browse Filters on page 4-8.
Reset Filter	Refer to Browse Filters on page 4-8.
Users Browser Definition	Refer to Browser Customizing on page 4-6.

# **Colorant Set Window**

Colorant Set	Values			Actual colorant : 'Te					1.1.1	1 A T	. 1
Name		se Terasil	Ē	Actual colorant : 16	erasii Yellow 4G			Show <u>a</u> n	d print	Auxiliary	recipe
ID	* TERAS	SC 1 CI (15)		R[%]							
AuxID	TERMJ								-		
Туре	Exhaust			8							
Dye Class	Disperse					/	147 -				
dE [Sigma]	0.00 [					[i	13				
Jnit	%	0.03				//	131				
Dive Process		Exhaust (Terasil)				- 14	4				
Creation Date		999 08:14:08				-748	ý –				
Modification Date		000 17:05:28		1/2-	$\sim$	- 1 11	7				
Industry Type	* Textil		Ī		`	111					
Substrate Delivery		ic Dyeing			<u> </u>	- 13					
.igRatioOrPickup	10.000			EARLES	``-`···						
Oneration			-	400	450	500	550	600	650	700	75
RGB Product [8]		Created	Modif		dE	Min Conc	Max Conc	Interpol.	A	ny s Subs	Strength
Terasil Yello		08.04.1999 08:14:08		.1999 11:03:11	0.000	0.000	0.800	Measured 🚽	Horiocol	7	100.000
Terasil Oran		08.04.1999 08:14:08		.1999 11:03:11	0.000	0.000	2,000	Measured -		7	100.000
Terasil Red		08.04.1999 08:14:08		.1999 11:03:11	0.000	0.000	2,000	Measured -		7	100.000
Terasil Red		08.04.1999 08:14:08		.1999 11:03:12	0.000	0.000	2,500	Measured -		7	100.000
		08.04.1999 08:14:08		.1999 11:03:12	0.000	0.000	5.000	Measured 🚽		7	200.000
	Blue BGE 200%						4 000			7	100.000
Terasil Brill.	Blue BGE 200% Blue 3RI	08.04.1999.08.14.08	08.04	1999 11:03:12	0.000	0.000		Measured _			
Terasil Brill. Terasil Brill			08.04	1999 11:03:12	0 000						
Terasil Brill. Terasil Brill alibration serie		N8 N4 1999 N8·14·N8				Comp	onents in one ca	libration serie			
Terasil Brill. Terasil Brill	Blue 301	08.04.1999.08:14:08 Sample [6]	dE	Strength	0 000 Don't use	Comp	onents in one ca luct [1]	libration serie		Concentration	Unit
Terasil Brill. Terasil Brill Calibration serie RGB	Blue 3RI Terasil Yello	08.04.1999.08+14+08 Sample [6] ww.4G.0.016%	dE 0.000	Strength 100.000		Comp	onents in one ca luct [1] sil Yellow 4G	libration serie			Unit
Terasil Brill. Terasil Brill Calibration serie RGB 1 2	Blue 3BL Terasil Yello Terasil Yello	08.04.1999.08+14+08 Sample [6] w 4G 0.016% w 4G 0.048%	dE 0.000 0.000	Strength 100.000 90.476		Comp	onents in one ca luct [1]	libration serie		Concentration	Unit
Terasil Brill. Terasil Brill Calibration serie RGB 1 2	Blue 301 Terasil Yello Terasil Yello Terasil Yello	Sample [6] Sample [6] w 4G 0.016% w 4G 0.048% low 4G 0.16%	dE 0.000 0.000 0.000	Strength 100.000 90.476 86.383		Comp	onents in one ca luct [1] sil Yellow 4G	libration serie		Concentration	Unit
Terasil Brill. Terasil Brill Calibration serie	Rhue 381 Terasil Yello Terasil Yello Terasil Yello Terasil Yel	Sample [6] Sample [6] ww 4G 0.016% ww 4G 0.048% low 4G 0.16% low 4G 0.16%	dE 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	Strength 100.000 90.476 86.383 79.249		Comp	onents in one ca luct [1] sil Yellow 4G	libration serie		Concentration	Unit
Terasil Brill. Terasil Brill Calibration serie	Blue 381 Terasil Yello Terasil Yello Terasil Yel Terasil Yel Terasil Yel	Sample [6] Sample [6] w 4G 0.016% w 4G 0.048% low 4G 0.16% low 4G 0.16% low 4G 0.40% low 4G 0.56%	dE 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	Strength           100.000           90.476           86.383           79.249           71.733		Comp	onents in one ca luct [1] sil Yellow 4G	libration serie		Concentration	Unit
Terasil Brill. Terasil Brill Calibration serie	Blue 381 Terasil Yello Terasil Yello Terasil Yel Terasil Yel Terasil Yel	Sample [6] Sample [6] ww 4G 0.016% ww 4G 0.048% low 4G 0.16% low 4G 0.16%	dE 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	Strength 100.000 90.476 86.383 79.249		Comp	onents in one ca luct [1] sil Yellow 4G	libration serie		Concentration	Unit

### Color codes of the fields

Green	Values that can be modified. Select the field and press the space bar.
Blue	Values calculated while opening the window.
Pale yellow	Values that cannot be modified.
Red *	Mandatory fields.

### **Buttons**

Show and Print	Prints the complete set of data. The print-out is based on a print form.
Auxiliary Recipe	Saves the current list of auxiliaries. If an auxiliary recipe exists, the auxiliaries are added to each new colorant. The concentrations may be edited individually.
Calculate	
Single	The selected colorant is recalculated.
All	All colorants of the colorant set are recalculated.
Store	Saves the colorant set.
End	Closes the window. If data has been changed, a dialog box with a save request appears.

### **Header Information**

Unique name of the colorant set.
Unique identification of the colorant set.
Additional identification of the colorant set.
Dye process type "Continuous" or "Exhaust".
Dye class, e.g., Disperse.
Delta E: color difference (sample - theory) and standard deviation dependent to the calibration method.
Unit used for the concentration.
Name of the dye process.
Date of creation.
Date of last modification.
Type of the dyeing process.
Name of the currently used substrate.
Liquor ratio or pickup value.
Name of the operation.

### **Graphical Display**

Graphical view of the calibration results: Values and units of the axis are displayed according to the selected analysis.

Context-sensitive menu	IS	
Reset	Resets the "Zoom" and "With Origin" settings.	
Change Color	Refer to Customizing Graphs on page 4-30.	
Change Printer Color	Refer to Customizing Graphs on page 4-30.	
With Origin	If checked, the current graph is displayed with the coordinate zero point.	
Grid	If checked, a grid is displayed.	
Fonts	Opens the "Font" dialog box used to define the font for the graph. Useful for "R% and K/S vs. Wavelength" graph.	
Points	If checked, the measurement points are displayed.	
Log View	The graph is based on logarithmic values.	
More	Refer to Customizing Graphs on page 4-30.	
Visible Curves	List of all curves. The curves may be selected or the selection can be canceled using a mouse click.	

Clicking on a curve:	
Select	Selects a curve. The measurement points are displayed with a greater diameter.
Hide	Hides the selected curve.
Do not use this point/Use	this point (not used for colorant set program) The selected point is either used or not used for calibration. The point is displayed in a red color if it is not used.
Restore all points	Resets all points. Only used for "Reflectance of Calibration Samples" and "Absorptions of Calibration Samples" graphs.

### **Colorant Table**

Product	Unique name of the product. The header contains the number of listed products.
Created	Date and time of creation.
Modified	Date and time of the last modification.
dE	Delta E: color difference between current samples and the theoretical values. <i>A red background indicates that there are no selected or</i>
	measured calibration samples.
Min. Conc.	Specification of the minimum concentration.
Max Conc.	Specification of the maximum concentration.
Interpol.	Calibration method: Measured, Smoothed, Automatic.
Monotony	Check to set the "monotony" interpolation.
No_samples_Subs.	Number of calibration samples plus substrate.
Strength	Product strength in percents.
New (button)	Click to add a new product.
Functions of the contex	xt-sensitive menu:
R. vs Wavelength	Displays the reflectance in relation to the wavelength.
K. vs Wavelength	Displays the absorption (K/S) in relation to the wavelength.
K vs Concentration at Ma	aximum Value
	Displays the absorption (K/S) in relation to the concentration.
K vs Concentration at Ma	aximum Value Logarithmically displays the absorption in relation to the dye- stuff concentration (K/S versus concentration.)
Fix your Wavelength	Opens a dialog box used to select the wavelength for the following absorptions curves.
Show Tables	Displays the numeric tables (K table and S table if the two constant method is used.).
Show/Edit Parameters	Displays the parameter values.

KS: Relative Strength	Displays the strength in relation to the dye concentration for selected dyes (in the "Colorant Set" tab). = (strength at first calibration sample) * 100 / (strength at cal- ibration sample)
KS: Absolute Strength	Displays (in the "Colorant Set" tab) the absolute strength for selected dyes. Strength is the summary of norm absorptions of the sample.
Add Colorant	Opens the "Create Calibration Series" dialog box. Refer to Specifying Colorant Sets on page 5-47.
Move Colorant	Refer to Moving Colorants on page 5-51.
Delete Colorant	Removes the selected colorant from the colorant set after confirmation. Refer to <i>Remove A Dyestuff from A Colorant Set on page 5-54</i> .
Compare with another Co	olorant
	Opens the "Compare Colorants" dialog box. Refer to <i>Comparing Colorants on page 5-59</i> .
Use two Graphs	Splits and resets the graphical display.

### **Calibration Series Table**

Results of the calibration	series. The first column displays the color of each sample.
Sample	Unique name of the sample. The header contains the number of listed samples.
dE	Delta E: color difference dependent to the calibration method.
Strength	Relative strength in percents.
Do not use	If checked, the sample is not used for the calculation.
Context-sensitive menu	
Re-measure Calibration S	Sample
	Refer to Calibration and Measurement on page 5-10.
New Calibration Sample	Refer to Specifying Colorants and Calibration Samples on page 5-50.
Move Calibration Sample	Refer to Moving Colorants on page 5-51.
Delete Calibration Sample	e
	Removes a calibration sample from the colorant set.
New (button)	Click to add a new calibration sample.

## **Components in One Calibration Series (Table)**

Product	Unique name of the product. The header contains the num- ber of listed products.
Туре	Product type.
Concentration	Numeric value of the concentration.
Unit	Unit used for the concentration.
New (button)	Click to add a new product.
Context-sensitive men	u
New Calibration Compor	nent
	Is used to add a product.
Move Calibration Compo	onent
	Is used to change the order of the products.

Delete Calibration Component

Removes the selected product from the colorant set.

# **Create Calibration Series Dialog Box**

Dialog box for specifying new calibration samples:

Refer to Specifying Colorants and Calibration Samples on page 5-50.



#### Parameters

Product	Selection of the product.
New (button)	Opens the "Product" property box to insert a new product. Refer to <i>Specifying A New Product on page 5-35</i> .
Modify (button)	Opens the "Product Edition" dialog box used to modify the selected product.

Product		Values
Name	*	Bezaktiv Blue S-GN 150%
ID	*	BBU SGN
AuxID		BBU SGN
Creation Date	*	08.04.1999 08:11:57
Modification Date	*	04.04.2000 10:12:58
User		DCI
Product Supplier ID	*	Bezema AG
Product Type		Colorant
Product Form		Solid 🔹
Specific Weight		0.000
Note		
Actual Price		42.000
Actual Supplied Conc	*	150.000
Actual Lab Strength	*	1.000
Default delivery		

Fields with a green background can be edited.

Type of Sample Input	Selects the source of the samples.
Measure with Input of Concentration Values (Measurements) Table with the samples to be measured. Concentrations be entered (or corrected) before the measurements. Pre- and sample name can be edited.	
Used Stored Samples	(From database) Selection of samples.
New Calibration's Series	Table with the measured or selected sample(s).
Reset (button)	Removes all samples from the "New Calibration's Series" table.
Accept (button)	Accepts all samples from the "New Calibration's Series" table.

# **Alternate Substrate Information Dialog Box**

Reference colorant set       Name       U.M.F. Interlock	P <u>r</u> int Results Cano	cel
Data for construction of the correlated colorant set          Substrate       Best product to dye on         Name       Cotton Ricki - blank dyeing         Single input       Name	substrate Black V-RSD 75 (liq.)	Sampl <u>e</u> s
Plots on RGB Product	dE1 dE* Mean [/Sigma] 0,	L* dE2* <u>*</u>
—Lam[400] —Lam[440] —Lam[480] —Lam[520] —Lam[560] —Lam[600] BEZAKTIV O		.00 0.00
	-	
BEZAKTIV R	ed V-BT 0.	.00
+sigmasigma		.00
Su2 BEZAKTIV BI	ue V-R (spec.) 0.	
Su2 BEZAKTIV BI	ue V-R (spec.) 0. Irquoise V-G 50 (liq.) 0.	00
Su2 BEZAKTIV BI BEZAKTIV TI BEZAKTIV G	ue V-R (spec.) 0. urquoise V-G 50 (liq.) 0. een V-6B 0.	00
Su2 BEZAKTIV BI BEZAKTIV TI BEZAKTIV G	ue V-R (spec.) 0. Irquoise V-G 50 (liq.) 0. een V-6B 0. en S-4B 0.	00
Su2 BEZAKTIV BI BEZAKTIV G BEZAKTIV G BEZAKTIV G BEZAKTIV G BEZAKTIV V BEZAKTIV V BEZAKTIV V	ue V-R (spec.) 0. urquoise V-G 50 (liq.) 0. een V-6B 0. en S-4B 0. olet V-5R 0.	00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00
Su2 BEZAKTIV BI BEZAKTIV BI BEZAKTIV GRE BEZAKTIV GRE BEZAKTIV V	ue V-R (spec.) 0. urquoise V-G 50 (liq.) 0. een V-68 0. en S-48 0. olet V-5R 0. e S-GN 150 0.	00 00 00 00 00

Reference Colorant Set	Selection of the existing colorant set used for base of calcula- tion.
Accept (button)	Click <b>Accept</b> if the result is OK.
Substrate	Selection of the new substrate.
Single Input (button	Used to select or specify a quality.
Best Product	Selection of the dyestuff. The best dyestuff is selected auto- matically.
Sample (button)	Used to measure or select the calibration samples. Refer to <i>Specifying Colorants and Calibration Samples on page 5-50</i> .
Plots on	Graph of the results.
Table	Results of the calculation.

### **Illuminant List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Illuminant Name Observer Name Unique name of the Illuminant.

Degree observer. Values: 10 or 2.

Date of creation.

Creation Date

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

### **Sample List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Name	Unique name of the sample.
RGB Color	Display of the color.
Sample Id.	Unique identification of the sample.
Modification Date	Date of last modification.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

## **Color Type List Window**

#### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Color Type Name	Unique name of the color type.
RGB Color	Display of the color.
Color Type Id.	Unique identification of the sample.
Name	Name of the color Type.
Modification Date	Date of last modification.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu Refer to *Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.* 

### **Tolerance List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Name Unique name of the tolerance definition.

Tolerance Id. Unique identification of the tolerance definition.

Modification Date Date of last modification.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu Refer to *Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page* 7-10.

### **Parameter List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Parameter Name	Unique name of the parameter.
Parameter Id.	Unique identification of the parameter.
Param. Unit	Related Unit.
Modification Date	Date of last modification.

**Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu** Refer to *Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.* 

### **Fiber List Window**

#### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Fiber Name Unique name of the fiber.

Fiber Id. Unique identification of the fiber.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

## Fiber Group List Window

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Fiber Group Name Unique name of the fiber group.

Modification Date Date of last modification.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu Refer to *Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.* 

## **Substrate Delivery List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Substrate Delivery Name Unique name of the delivered substrate.

			<b>.</b>	
Substrate Deliverv	ld Ur	lique Identification	າ of the de	elivered substrate.

Quality Name Unique name of the quality/style.

Modification Date Date of last modification.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

### **Quality/Style List Window**

#### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Quality Name	Unique name of the quality/style.
Quality Id.	Unique identification of the quality/style.
Affinity Name	Unique name of the affinity.
Affinity Id.	Unique identification of the affinity.
Modification Date	Date of last modification.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

### **Affinity List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Affinity Name Unique name of the affinity.

Affinity Id. Unique identification of the affinity.

Fiber Group Name Unique name of the fiber group.

Modification Date Date of last modification.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

### **Dye Process List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Dye Process Name	Unique name of the dye process.
Dye Process Id.	Unique identification of the dye process.
Dye Class Name	Unique name of the dye class.
Dye Class Id.	Unique identification of the dye class.
Modification Date	Date of last modification.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

## **Dyestuff Class List Window**

#### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Dyestuff Class Name Unique identification of the dye class.

Dyestuff Class Id. Unique name of the dye class.

Modification Date Date of last modification.

**Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu** Refer to *Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page* 7-10.

### **Dyestuff List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

-
•

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

### **Auxiliary List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Product Name	Unique name of the product.
Product Id.	Unique identification of the product.
Product Supplier Name	Unique identification of the product supplier.
ACTUAL_PRICE	Current price.
ACTUAL_CONC	Currently supplied concentration.
Modification Date	Date of last modification.

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu Refer to *Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.* 

### **Product List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu.

Product Name	Name of the product.
Product ID	Unique identification of the product.
Product Supplier Name	Name of the product supplier.
ACTUEL_PRICE	Actual price of the product.
ACTUAL_CONC	Current concentration of the product.
Modification Date	Country of the contact person.
Eurotions of the "Desig	Deta" and the contact consitive many

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu Refer to *Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page* 7-10.

## **Supplier List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu.

-

Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

### **Customer List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Specifying, Modifying or Deleting Customers on page 5-39.* 

Customer Name	Unique name of the customer.
Contact Person	Name of the contact person.
Phone Number	Phone Number of the contact person.
Fax Number	Fax Number of the contact person.
Address	Address of the contact person.
City	City of the contact person.
Country	Country of the contact person.

**Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu** Refer to *Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.* 

### **Recipe List Window**

#### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Recipe Name	Recipe name.		
Recipe Id.	Unique identification of the recipe.		
Batch Id.	Unique identification of the batch.		
Status	Recipe status. <i>Values:</i>		
	-1	Recipe Manual Input in Datacolor Pro-	
	cess		
	1	Ready for calculation	
	2	No solution	
	4	Calculated	
	5	Manually modified or inserted	
	6	Modified by dyestuff exchange	
Modification Date	Date of last modif	fication.	
Quality Name	Quality/style name.		
Combined Process Nam	e Unique identificat	ion of the combined process.	
Functions of the "Reci	pe" and the conte	xt-sensitive menu	
History	Displays the histo	ory of recipe generation and corrections.	
Match	Opens the "Match" dialog box.		
	Refer to Match Dialog Box on page 7-116.		
Match in Background	Used if several standards are defined for calculation. (Is only enabled if there are recipes of status 2.)		
ReMatch	Re-calculation of a recipe.		

Pass Fail and Laboratory	Correction			
	Opens the "Correct or Approve Your Recipe" dialog box. Refer to <i>Laboratory Correction on page 5-92</i> .			
Pass Fail and Production	Correction			
	Opens the "Production Correction" dialog box. Refer to <i>Pro-</i> <i>duction Correction on page 5-96</i> .			
Fast Correction	Opens the "Fast Correction" dialog box. Refer to <i>Fast Correction on page 5-99</i> .			
Search Recipes	Opens the "Search and Correct" dialog box used for search- ing recipes. Refer to Search and Correct An Existing Recipe for A New Standard on page 5-103.			
Search Results	Lists the current result list.			
Lab Table Display	Displays the matching results of the selected recipe.			
Lab Dye Lot	Opens the "Show Full Recipe" dialog box used for displaying, printing, and dispensing recipe data.			
Edit	Opens the "Edit Recipe" dialog box for altering color type and combined process of a recipe. Refer to <i>Modifying Recipes on page 5-79</i> .			
Recipe List	Prints the recipe list of all selected recipes.			
Change Dyestuff in Recip	es			
	Opens the "Change one Product in Recipe" dialog box used for changing the product. Refer to <i>Replace Dyestuffs in Reci- pes on page 5-82</i> .			
User's Browser Definition	Opens the "Browse Columns for Explorer" dialog box. Refer to <i>Browser Customizing on page 4-6</i> .			
Rename	Used to rename a selected recipe.			
Delete	Deletes the selected recipe after confirmation.			
Filter	Refer to Browse Filters on page 4-8.			
Reset Filter	Resets the selected filter.			

### **Combined Process List Window**

#### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the menu "Tools." Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Combined Process Name Unique name of the combined process.

Combined Process Id. Unique identification of the combined process.

Modification Date Date of last modification.

**Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu** Refer to *"Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page* 7-10".

## **Operation List Window**

#### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the menu "Tools." Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Operation Name	Operation name. A mouse double-click opens the "Opera- tion" window. Refer to <i>Specifying Combined Processes on</i> <i>page 5-61</i> .	
Operation Id.	Unique identification of the operation.	
Modification Date	Date of last modification.	
Functions of the "Basic Data" and the context-sensitive menu		

Refer to Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10.

## SmartMatch Result List Window

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

SM Result AK	Identification of the SmartMatch point.
DE_KS	Color difference dependent to the calibration method.
DE_SM	Color difference of the recalculated SmartMatch point.
Modification Date	Date of last modification.
Quality Name	Unique name of the quality/style.
List Products Name	List of dyestuffs used for the SmartMatch point.
Colorant Set Name	Unique name of the colorant set.
Functions of the "Smar	t" and the context-sensitive menu
Open Population by SM I	D
	Opens the "Open population for given ID" dialog box. Type the ID and click <b>OK</b> to open the "Current Population" dialog box. Refer to <i>Current Population Dialog Box on page 7-125</i> .
Show Population of Marke	
	Opens the "Current Population" dialog box. Refer to <i>Current Population Dialog Box on page 7-125</i> . If a group is selected, a message appears with the group ID. You can open the group using the "Open Population by SM-Id" function and this ID.
Release Points from Grou	qu
	The group of SmartMatch points is removed and the single points are saved. Refer to <i>Release SmartMatch Points from the Group on page 5-88</i> .
Automatic SmartMatch He	
	Refer to Automatic SmartMatch Maintenance on page 5-86.
Save Batch as Sample	Opens a dialog box to save a sample using a SmartMatch point or group. Refer to <i>Saving A Batch as A Sample on page 5-89</i> .
User's Browser Definition	Opens the "Browse Columns for Explorer" dialog box. Refer to <i>Browser Customizing on page 4-6</i> .
Rename	Used to rename a selected recipe.
Delete	Deletes the selected recipe after confirmation.
Filter	Refer to Browse Filters on page 4-8.
Reset Filter	Resets the selected filter.

# **Correct or Approve Your Recipe Dialog Box**

Correc	t or app	rove your recipe			×		
Name		Pant, 14-1110 TC Boulder					
Trial	_						
<u>T</u> rial	1	Product name	Concs. Unit				
		Fiber [CO] 100%		DIN 1	_		
		Levafix Yellow E-3RL	0.6478 g/l	R[%]			
		Levafix Brown E-2R	0.3468 g/l				
		Levafix Brilliant Blue E-B	0.3063 g/l				
					[mu]		
		J		400 500 600 7	700		
Inform	nation on •	your last batches Color diffe	rence is CMC				
					_		
Fibe	r(s) [%]	Batch	Date	del E del L del C del I	<u>ı                                    </u>		
E	ass-Fail a	nd Correction	Approve	<u>C</u> ancel			

### Parameters

Name	Name of the selected recipe.
Trial	Selection of the trial to be corrected or approved.
Table:	List of products and concentrations used for the recipe.
Information table:	Color differences of the batches.
Buttons	
Pass Fail and Correction	Opens the "Laboratory Correction" dialog box used for laboratory corrections.
Approve	Approves the selected recipe.

## Laboratory Correction Dialog Box



### Parameters

#### **General parameters**

Trial Number	Trial number of the selected recipe.
Standard	Measured color to be dyed (target color).
Buttons	
Approve	Approves the selected recipe (trial).
Save	Saves manually entered modifications.
Laboratory	Opens the "Recipe Correction" dialog box.
Reset Batch	Resets the batch data.
Datacolor Tools	Opens the "Datacolor Tools" application for color quality con- trol. Standard and batch are transferred automatically from the Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} database to the Datacolor Tools database.
Evaluate	<b>Print:</b> Displays the colorimetric data in a print preview. <b>ASCII:</b> Creates a text file using a specified form. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20.</i>
Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving. <i>Data that not has been saved will be lost.</i>

### Parameters of the "Colorant Set" tab

Colorant set	<b>Protected.</b> A "Colorant set" tab is displayed for each colorant set. The colorant set name and the part of the corresponding fibre (in %) are displayed on the top.
Batch and	Selection of the measured sample dyed according to the rec- ipe to be corrected.
Information line:	Differences (dE and dL) between standard, batch, and "Dif. Formula". On the left, a graphical view of the differences is displayed. If the differences are out of tolerance, the message "Batch refused" appears and the traffic light is red.
SM Analysis	SmartMatch analysis (graphical display and SmartMatch result table). Color differences (standard/batch) according to the formula used for recipe calculation.
Total batch	Check the box if the batch is measured with all fibres.
Table:	Selection of dyes. Refer to <i>Preliminary Work on page 5-69</i> , section <i>Selecting dyestuffs for matching on page 5-71</i> .



### Note

Minimum and maximum concentrations can be changed for the correction. This can result in better corrections if more then 4 or 5 colorants are used by the recipe.

### Settings tab

The settings cannot be modified.

## Laboratory Correction Table

Contect I	002 ELEFANT - ( 'ools Instrumen	-	D				
				<b>3</b>			
	🐺 🔝 🔣 🖥		° 💡 🛛 🚳 🕻	ľ			
Standard	V0002 ELEFAN						
Batch	N0002 ELEFAN	TN					
Quality/Style 100.00 [							
Unit [%s]	%						
Substrate (factor)	PES Blanc Dyei						
Process (factor)		ist (Dispersol) (1	.00)				
Formula	CieLab Default[		N 12 1		-	-	
Type of dE	Modified		Modified		Theory	Theory	PassFail
dE*	0.44	0.46	4.95		0.91	1.33	2.12
dL*	-0.03	-0.02	-3.28		-0.08	-0.11	2.04
da*	0.41	0.46	-1.27		0.73	1.14	-0.05
db*	-0.15	-0.00	-3.48		-0.54	-0.68	-0.59
dC*	0.27	0.14	3.22		0.73	1.02	0.55
dH*	0.35	0.43	-1.83		0.55	0.85	-0.20
Price	2.01	2.04	2.47		1.36	1.70	-1.00
MetamerismA	0.64	0.71	1.55		0.97	1.52	0.35
MetamerismF11	0.39	0.44	0.84		1.49		0.09
Dyestuff	SmartMatch	Additiv	Multiply	Performance	Batch	Standard	Original
Dispersol Scarlet C2R		0.0505	0.0533	0.7692	0.0315	0.0410	0.0410
Dispersol Blue (G)	0.0165	0.0181	0.0334	0.3233	0.0035	0.0108	0.0108
Dispersol Navy C2G	0.0330	0.0309	0.0312	1.0999	0.0377	0.0343	0.0343
Recipe with D65							
				I		I	l
Standard with D65							
Stendard with D65						71-1	
	ispersol /					7	

#### Table columns

Dyestuff	Used dyestuffs.
SmartMatch	Recipe corrected using the SmartMatch algorithm.
Additive	Recipe corrected using the additive algorithm: standard conc. + original conc batch conc.
Multiply	Recipe corrected using the multiplicative algorithm: standard conc. * performance factor
Performance	Relation between batch and original data.
Batch	Data of the measured sample dyed according to the recipe to be corrected. (Recalculated batch recipe)
Standard	Data of the measured sample (color type) to be dyed (target color). (Recalculated recipe for the standard)
Original	Pass Fail: Differences to the original recipe (from the data- base).



### Note

The re-calculation of the recipe for the standard is always done without SmartMatch. If the original recipe has been calculated using SmartMatch, it is different to the standard recipe.

Refer to *Matching on page 5-74*, section *Review (recipe table) on page 5-76* for more information about the parameters.

#### Functions of the "Correct" and the context-sensitive menu

Displays the colorimetric data in a print preview.

Evaluate Print Evaluate ASCII

Creates a text file using a specified form. Refer to ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20.

Theoretical reflectance





Refer to Insert A Theoretical Sample Dialog Box on page 7-123.

View configuration	Opens the "View Configuration" dialog box. Refer to View Configuration Dialog Box (Laboratory Correction Table) on page 7-100.
Modify	Used for changing recipe manually.
Round	Rounds the results according to the specification in the "View" tab of the "options" dialog box.
Modify Graphical	Opens the "Manual Lab Correction" dialog box. Refer to <i>Manual Graphical Correction on page 5-101</i> .

## **View Configuration Dialog Box (Laboratory Correction Table)**

View configuration	×
View configuration         Visible data         d_*         da*         db*         dC         dH         Price         Sensitivity         Total concentration         dE2         dE2         dE3         dE4         ✓ CMCCON02 3         dE4         ✓ 2 illuminants banks	✓         Decimal places colorimetric:       2         Decimal places concentration:       4         Correction table       ✓         ✓       Smartmatch       ✓         ✓       Additiv       ✓         ✓       Additiv       ✓         ✓       Multiplicative       ✓         ✓       Performance         If empty boxes, show the best correction, effects and history
OK	Cancel

Used to configure the laboratory correction table.

# **Production Correction Dialog Box**

ial Num	ber	1/1 Standard					
eset   L yeset	.ab-I	Graphic Settings					
R[%]	=-:	dE* 2.12 dL*: EE Batch refused	ata} ? ELEFAN1 2.04 dC*1	٢N	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	× -0.59	Production Reset bato Match bato Match stand
400		500 600 700 First correction					
		500 600 700		C	oncentration	[g4]	
	n:	Dyestuff Shown : 17 selected : 3	g/i	C Min.(100%)	oncentration	[g4] Relation	
election	n:	Dyestuff Shown : 17 selected : 3 Remazol Yellow R Gran.	<b>дл</b> 0.9309		Max.(100%) 80		
election	<u>ন ব</u>	Dyestuff Dyestuff Shown : 17 selected : 3 Remazol Yellow R Gran. Remazol Red 3B	0.9309 2.8531		Max.(100%) 80 50		
election	য ব ব ব	Dyestuff Dyestuff Shown : 17 selected : 3 Remazol Yellow R Gran. Remazol Red 3B Remazol Brilliant Blue BB gran. 133%	<b>дл</b> 0.9309		Max.(100%) 80 50 20		
election	<u>া ব ব ব</u>	Dyestuff Dyestuff Shown : 17 selected : 3 Remazol Yellow R Gran. Remazol Red 3B Remazol Brilliant Blue BB gran. 133% Remazol Brilliant Yellow 4GL Gran.	0.9309 2.8531		Max.(100%) 80 50 20 60		[Color]ools Evaluate
election	<u></u>	Dyestuff Dyestuff Shown : 17 selected : 3 Remazol Yellow R Gran. Remazol Brillant Blue BB gran. 133% Remazol Brillant Blue BB gran. 133% Remazol Brillant Yellow 4GL Gran. Remazol Yellow GR	0.9309 2.8531		Max.(100%) 80 50 20 60 80		
election		DU BUU 700 Dyestuff Shown : 17 selected : 3 Remazol Yellow R Gran. Remazol Brilliart Blue BB gran. 133% Remazol Brilliart Blue BB gran. 133% Remazol Brilliart Yellow 4GL Gran. Remazol Yellow GR Remazol Golden Yellow RNL gran. 150%	0.9309 2.8531		Max.(100%) 80 50 60 80 50		Evaluate -
election	그	DU BUU 700 Dyestuff Shown : 17 selected : 3 Remazol Yellow R Gran. Remazol Brilliant Blue BB gran. 133% Remazol Brilliant Blue BB gran. 133% Remazol Yellow 4GL Gran. Remazol Yellow GR Remazol Golden Yellow RNL gran. 150% Remazol Brilliant Red F3B Gran.	0.9309 2.8531		Max.(100%) 80 50 60 80 50 80		Evaluate -
election	그 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	DU BUU 700 Dyestuff Shown : 17 selected : 3 Remazol Yellow R Gran. Remazol Brilliart Blue BB gran. 133% Remazol Brilliart Blue BB gran. 133% Remazol Brilliart Yellow 4GL Gran. Remazol Yellow GR Remazol Golden Yellow RNL gran. 150%	0.9309 2.8531		Max.(100%) 80 50 60 80 50		Print

### **General parameters**

•	
Standard	Measured color to be dyed (target color).
Buttons	
Production	Used for calculating the recipe to correct the dyed production. Opens the "Production Correction" dialog box.
Reset Batch	Resets the batch data to original data if modified manually.
Match Batch	The application assumes that exactly the calculated recipe has been used to dye the batch. A correction therefore only makes sense if the color difference is not too large (dE $\leq$ 5.). If the color difference is larger, something has gone wrong during dyeing. In this case, the "Match Batch" calculates a new recipe using the dyestuffs of the original recipe. The new recipe becomes the base for correction and no SmartMatch point is saved.
Match Standard	Calculates a new recipe for the standard.
Datacolor Tools	Opens the "Datacolor Tools" application for color quality con- trol. Standard and batch are transferred automatically from the Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} database to the Datacolor Tools desktop.
Evaluate	<b>Print:</b> Displays the colorimetric data in a print preview. <b>ASCII:</b> Creates a text file using a specified form. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20</i> .

Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving. <i>Data that not has been saved will be lost.</i>				
Parameters of the "Colorant Set" tab					
Colorant Set	<b>Protected.</b> A "Colorant Set" tab is displayed for each colorant set. The colorant set name and the part of the corresponding fibre (in %) are displayed on the top.				
Batch and	Selection of the measured sample dyed according to the rec- ipe to be corrected.				
Information line:	Differences (dE and dL) between standard, batch, and "Dif. Formula". On the left, a graphical view of the differences is displayed. If the differences are out of tolerance, the message "Batch refused" appears and the traffic light is red.				
First Correction	Check the box if it is the first correction of the recipe and a SmartMatch point should be saved.				
Total Batch	Check the box if the batch is measured with all fibres.				
Table:	Selection of dyes. Refer to <i>Preliminary Work on page 5-69</i> , section <i>Selecting dyestuffs for matching on page 5-71</i> .				
Lab Graph tab					
Refer to Lab Graph Tab	on page 7-119.				

### Settings tab

Refer to Match Dialog Box on page 7-116, section Parameters on page 7-120.

# **Production Correction Table**

								ino petro e t	ch in production-		
andard				V0002 ELEF							
				10002 2221				Insert	All Data}		<u> </u>
atch			N	10002 ELEFAI	NT N			Machine	* *		
aton p							L	🗌 Tota	l batch		First dyeing
ibre											
Add new dy	estuff(s)									-	
User selecte	:d				▼	Besta	add Best	positive a	add Reset		
	Dye	stuff		Recipe	+ Amoun	t	Effect	Rel. %	New rec.[%]	ī	
	Scarlet C2R			4.101			0.77	20.91	0.04958		
Dispersol	1.7			1.080			0.32		0.01648		
Dispersol	Navy C2G			3.429	9 -0.12	27 g	1.10	-3.69	0.03302		
Total				8,610	0 1.2988	38		15.09			
. 1				1			1		1		
•									<u> </u>	- L	
BatchSize	10	kg Bath		100		iquor ra	tio 10				
					_					- 1	
ieLab Defaul						R[%	]				
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,					R[%	]		(- <del></del>		
Illuminant	,   [t[D65,]   delE/MI   N	ew delE/MI		delC/MC de			]		<u> </u>		Cancel
<b>Illuminant</b> IE D65	k[D65,] delE/MI N 2.12	ew delE/MI 0.44	-0.03	0.27	0.35	R[%	]				Cancel
<b>Illuminant</b> IE D65 1et A	k[D65,] delE/MI N 2.12 0.35	ew delE/MI 0.44 0.64	-0.03 -0.03	0.27	0.35		]	·		_	Cancel
<b>Illuminant</b> E D65 1et A	k[D65,] delE/MI N 2.12	ew delE/MI 0.44	-0.03	0.27	0.35	<u></u>		·		[nm]	
Illuminant E D65 1et A 1et F11	k[D65,] delE/MI N 2.12 0.35	ew delE/MI 0.44 0.64 0.39	-0.03 -0.03 -0.12	0.27 0.42 0.05	0.35					[uu]	
Illuminant IE D65 Aet A Aet F11 E valuate	k[D65,] delE/MI N 2.12 0.35 0.09	ew delE/MI 0.44 0.64 0.39	-0.03 -0.03	0.27 0.42 0.05	0.35	<u></u>				[uu]	Show Print
Illuminant IE D65 Aet A Aet F11 Evaluate Print	k[D65,] delE/MI N 2.12 0.35	ew delE/MI 0.44 0.64 0.39	-0.03 -0.03 -0.12	0.27 0.42 0.05	0.35 0.48 0.37		0 500	_	0 700	[um]	Show
iieLab Defaul Illuminant IE D65 Aet A Aet F11 Evaluate Print User add Scale back	k[D65,] delE/MI N 2.12 0.35 0.09 ASC	ew delE/MI 0.44 0.64 0.39	-0.03 -0.03 -0.12	0.27 0.42 0.05 Min.Add./o	0.35 0.48 0.37		0 500		0 700	[uu]	Show Print

### Standard

Measured color to be dyed (target color).

Batch

Measured sample dyed according to the recipe to be corrected.

#### SmartMatch in Production:

Used to save a production SmartMatch point.

Total Batch	Check the box if the batch is measured with all fibres.
First Dyeing	Check the box if it is the first correction of the recipe and a SmartMatch point should be saved. This function is only enabled if checked.
Fibre tab	
Add New Dyestuff(s)	
User selected	Selection of unused dyestuffs (of the same colorant set) to be added.
Best Add	Evaluates and adds the best dyestuff according to the colorimetric results.
Best Positive Add	Evaluates and adds the best dyestuff to correct negative amounts. This function is only available if the recipe is calculated with additional illuminants and the initial result has negative add amounts.
Reset	Removes the added dyestuffs.
Recipe table:	
1 st column	Color display.

Dyestuff	Names of the dyestuffs.
Recipe	Values of the original recipe. (Absolute amount of dye lot)
+ Amount	Values of the correction.
Effect	Effect factor for the recipe calculation (performance between original and batch recipe).
Rel. %	Relative correction for the single dyestuff (Addition in %).
New Recipe	Values of the new, corrected recipe (without additions). A print out is not possible.
Batch Size, Bath, Liquor F	Ration
	If you have altered a value, press the Tab key to recalculate the correction.
Use Pickup	<i>For continuous dyeing.</i> If it is checked, the entered pickup value is taken into account. "Amount" and "+ Amount" are adjusted.
The table and the graph s	how the colorimetric data.
Evaluate (buttons)	<b>Print:</b> Displays the colorimetric data in a print preview. <b>ASCII:</b> Creates a text file using a specified form. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20.</i>
User Add (scale back by)	Used to reduce the "+ Amount" by value in %.
Computer Add:	Used for absolute tolerance specification.
Optimal dE	Optimizes dE only with positive adds. Removes all negative adds.
Min. Add. / dE (button)	Recalculates the correction using the dE limit given in the "Compute To Limit" field. dE must be higher than the dE limit.
Min. Add. / dH (button)	Recalculates the correction using the dH limit given in the "Compute To Limit" field.
Buttons	
Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving. <i>Data that not has been saved will lost.</i>
Show	Opens a print preview.
Print	Prints the correction data.
ASCII Export	Saves the correction data to a file in the ASCII format. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20</i> .
Close	Closes the "Production Correction" dialog box.

# Fast Correction Recipe Input Dialog Box

General parameters	
Standard	Selected color to be dyed (target color).
Buttons	
Save	Saves the correction data.
Laboratory	Used for recalculating the recipe. Opens the "Recipe Correction" dialog box.
Production	Used for calculating the recipe to correct the dyed production. Opens the "Production Correction" dialog box.
Match Batch	The application assumes that exactly the calculated recipe has been used to dye the batch. A correction therefore only makes sense if the color difference is not too large (dE $\leq$ 5). If the color difference is larger, something has gone wrong during dyeing. In this case, the "Match Batch" calculates a new recipe using the dyestuffs of the original recipe. The new recipe becomes the base for correction and a SmartMatch point is not saved.
Match Standard	Calculates a new recipe for the standard.
Datacolor Tools	Opens the "Datacolor Tools" application for color quality con- trol. Standard and batch are transferred automatically from the Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} database to the Datacolor Tools database.
Evaluate	<b>Print:</b> Displays the colorimetric data in a print preview. <b>ASCII:</b> Creates a text file using a specified form. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20.</i>
Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving. <i>Data that not has been saved will be lost.</i>

### **Process Data for Matching tab**

Fast correction	for 'Y0006 PISTACHE - 001'			
	Standard V0006 PISTACHE			
Process Data fo	rmatching Dyeset Lab-Graphic	Settings		<u>S</u> ave
Quality/Style			Combined Process	
Q17642 PE	ES/CO 70/30		Disperse Exhaust (Terasil)_Reactive exhaust	Production
Affinity	Q17642 PES/CO	70/30	Substrate delivery [4 elements]	
<u>P</u> ossible dyese	t(s)		Q17642 PES/C0 70/30-1	Match batch
[%] Fiber(s)	) Dyeset	Process	E.Substra Pure Substrate	Match standard
70 PES	Disperse Dispersol	1.00	1.00 Dacron1 :001	
Used dyeset(s)				
30 CO	Reactive Exhaust	1.00		
70 PES	Disperse Terasil	1.00	1.00 PES Blanc Dyeing	
Standard				
			-1	Color <u>T</u> ools
Datamatch	PISTACHE	<u> </u>	<u>-</u>	Evaluate
	PISTAURE	·	<u></u>	Print
				ASCII
				<u></u>
				Cancel

### Parameters

Quality/Style	Field for quality/style specification.
Combined Process	Field for combined process specification.
Affinity	Protected. Display of the affinity.
Substrate Delivery	Selection of a specific substrate delivery. <b>New</b> button: Used to measure a new substrate delivery.
Possible Colorant Set(s)	Selection table with the assigned colorant sets. Select a colorant set using a double-click on the name cell.
Used Colorant Set(s)	Table with the selected colorant sets. Remove a colorant set using a double-click on the name cell.
Standard	Selection of color to be dyed (target color).
#### Colorant Set tab

Standard V0006 PISTACHE								
Process Data for matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic Settings Dyeset Reactive Exhaust Part (%) 30 ≤ 1/2 ≥ Batchsize Amount input Batch & color difference for 'CieLab Default[D65]' (All Data) N0006 PISTACHE N dE* 0.79 dL* 0.72 dC* 0.30 dH* -0.08 da* -0.03 db* 0.31								
400       500       600       700         dE/Mi theory to standard       8.83/5.33       Image: SM-Analyse i						<u>Match standard</u>		
0/1		Dyestuff			Concentratio			
1	ন	Shown : 7 selected : 3 Bezaktiv Yellow S-3R 150%	0.0777	Min.(100%)	Max.(100%) 6.4	Relation		
2	<b>V</b>	Bezaktiv Red S-3B 150%	0.0000		6.4			
3	<b>V</b>	Bezaktiv Blue S-GN 150%	0.0339		6.4		Color <u>T</u> ools	
4		Bezaktiv Yellow S-8G	-	3	6.4		Evaluate	
5	Г	Bezaktiv Green S-4B	1		6.4			
6	Γ	Bezaktiv Navy Blue S-BL	1		6.4		Print	
7	Г	Bezaktiv Black S-GR	1		12.8		ASCII	
							Cancel	

Colorant Set	<b>Protected.</b> A "Colorant Set" tab is displayed for each colorant set. The colorant set name and the part of the corresponding fibre (in %) are displayed on the top.
Part Buttons:	Selection of the colorant set to be displayed (only used with multiple qualities).
Batch Size:	If "Amount Input" is checked, the absolute amount of concen- tration is entered.
Batch and	Selection of the measured sample dyed according to the recipe to be corrected.
Information line:	Differences (dE and dL) between standard, batch, and "Dif. Formula". On the left, a graphical view of the differences is displayed. If the differences are out of tolerance, the message "Batch refused" is displayed and the traffic light is red.
SM Analysis	SmartMatch analysis (graphical display and SmartMatch result table). Color differences (standard/batch) according to the formula used for recipe calculation.
Total batch	Check the box if the batch is measured with all fibres.
SM Insert	If checked, the fast correction is used to enter SmartMatch points manually. <i>Only the SmartMatch point is saved using the Save button</i> .



### Note

If you only save SmartMatch points, it is not necessary to select the standard. Smart-Match points are independent to the standard. They depend to the quality, the substrate delivery and the colorant set. SmartMatch Point Selection

Selection of laboratory or production for the SmartMatch point insertion.



#### Note

Table:

If you do not check "SM insert" the recipe and the SmartMatch point can be saved using the **Save** button. The recipe can be used for the "Recipe Search and Correct" function then.

Dyestuffs selection and concentration input.

#### Lab Graph tab

Refer to Lab Graph Tab on page 7-119.

#### Settings tab

Refer to Match Dialog Box on page 7-116, section Parameters on page 7-120.

## Search and Correct Dialog Box

Used for searching for existing recipes that are based on a batch that has a small color difference to a newly measured standard.

Search & co	rrect			X
Standard	ALL DATA			
Affinity	ALL DATA	dE to search	10	Search
Quality/Style	ALL DATA			
Customer	ALL DATA			End
Tolerance	ALL DATA			
Found recipe	s, without Smartmatch Information			
			_	

StandardSelect the new standard.Affinity, Quality/Style, Customer, Tolerance<br/>Selection criteria.dE to SearchUpper limit for dE.Search (button)Searches for recipes. If recipes are found, they are listed in<br/>the "Search Results" dialog box. Refer to Search Results<br/>Dialog Box on page 7-110.<br/>Recipes without SmartMatch information appear in the<br/>corresponding box. They cannot be used to calculate a new<br/>recipe.

### Search Results Dialog Box

📑 File Search Tools Instrument Window	/ Help					_ 8 >
🛒 🖝 🧱 🐺 🐺 🔝   🛃 🖬 😂   🗗	?					
Recipe Name	∎L DE	DM1	DM2	DM3	Creation Date	Dyestuffs
2001 LR 04691 01A G/S 7351/1 F/S 5031 1	2.69999	.311681	.984579	0	2001-06-25 08:49:16	268 INTSL BL
2001 LR 04055 01A G/S 7726/9 F/S 0318 75	2.90308	1.67375	1.19537	0	2001-05-25 14:36:02	234 INTSL BL
2001 LR 03902 01A G/S 2698/1 F/S 3717 16	2.96059	.646118	.803521	0	2001-05-16 22:44:47	268 INTSL BL
2001 LR 04875 01A G/S 2230/1 F/S 4090 16	3.10535	.742305	.895555	0	2001-07-06 11:46:14	268 INTSL BL
868316-0814-00:00	4.18611	.979327	.540281	0	2001-09-06 09:21:43	213 INTSL BL
2001 LR 11576 02A G/S 3257/1 F/S 3257 64	4.5625	.827654	.60388	0	2001-10-01 09:10:22	268 INTSL BL
2001 LR 05580 21A G/S 7780/2 F/S 0331 75	5.06072	2.00956	1.86858	0	2001-08-16 07:49:02	234 INTSL BL
2001 LR 04883 01A G/S 4448/1 F/S 4448 64	5.56916	1.13963	1.14751	0	2001-07-06 11:23:31	268 INTSL BL
2001 LR 06108 03A G/S 3562/1 F/S 0000 04	5.72801	1.43643	1.13445	0	2001-09-17 10:08:16	213 INTSL BL
2001 LR 05381 01A G/S 1977/18 F/S 0977 16	5.86715	1.16607	1.23132	0	2001-08-08 12:28:24	268 INTSL BL
343275-062W-00:00	5.88042	2.09881	1.04957	0	2001-04-04 19:16:40	234 INTSL BL
2001 LR 06108 02A G/S 3562/1 F/S 0000 04	5.97368	1.03407	1.31574	0	2001-09-17 10:06:47	268 INTSL BL
2001 LR 11935 21 G/S 1442/21 F/S 4019 16	6.10046	.299644	1.12658	0	2001-10-12 15:44:16	213 INTSL BL
860964-0751-00:00	6.40626	1.46439	.920577	0	2001-08-29 08:12:07	213 INTSL BL
2001 LR 05770 01A G/S 8094/1 F/S 0549 75	6.61354	2.07045	.817496	0	2001-08-27 12:54:33	234 INTSL BL
2001 LR 05477 02A G/S 3261/1 F/S 3261 64	6.72603	1.20523	.920589	0	2001-08-09 13:02:46	268 INTSL BL
868316-993N-00:00	6.79562	1.05721	1.66833	0	2001-10-09 10:56:52	268 INTSL BL
2001 LR 06063 02A G/S 1797/5 F/S 3466 75	7.00940	1.28556	1.28361	0	2001-09-13 09:52:30	238 INTSL BL
2001 LR 05477 05A G/S 3261/1 F/S 3261 64	7.75772	.35173	1.52753	0	2001-08-09 13:06:53	268 INTSL BL
2001 LR 04828 02A G/S 2839/5 F/S 4328 64	8.12035	1.93216	1.26568	0	2001-06-29 09:36:10	268 INTSL BL
2001 LR 05477 03A G/S 3261/1 F/S 3261 64	8.16039	1.5403	1.85306	0	2001-08-09 13:04:06	268 INTSL BL
2001 IP 11621 01 G/S 2966/1 F/S 3609 64	8.21144	2.02441	1.34421	0	2001-10-02 10:26:22	213 INTSL BL
2001 LR 04259 07A G/S 1543/20 F/S 5083 16	8.32271	.314930	1.38474	0	2001-06-06 12:12:01	213 INTSL BL
378716-8097-00:00	10.0647	2.50319	1.79492	0	2001-10-12 08:52:31	213 INTSL BL
	10.1112	2.52150	1.75831	ō	2001-05-01 14:46:00	
	10.2818	1.85274	1.97557	ō	2001-08-20 13:32:54	213 INTSL BL
	10.9133	2,40511	1.75062	ō	2001-06-26 13:26:48	234 INTSL BL
	11.6803	1.68912	2.39008	ō	2001-03-22 16:52:11	213 INTSL BL
2001 LR 04628 05A G/S 1638/55 F/S 0552 16		3.18236	3.37655	õ	2001-06-21 14:04:04	234 INTSL BL
	13.5242	2.51857	2,59564	ŏ	2001-09-04 14:17:22	213 INTSL BL.
	13.7869	2.62584	2.73612	õ	2001-09-04 14:06:31	

List of recipes that can be used for the new calculation.

Select the basic recipe and in the context-sensitive menu ...

- Correct and Save Calculates a new recipe based on the selected recipe and saves it for the new standard.
- or •

•

Save as new recipe Saves the selected recipe for the new standard.

# **Unit Dialog Box**

Jnit							>
<u>N</u> ame	<b>§</b> ⊒ <del>∏</del> %						<u>,,,,</u>
ĪD	%						
AuxID	%						
ProductUnit				ParameterUn	iit	<b>V</b>	
UnitRightOfV	alue			UnitSeparOA	/alue		
PriceFactor		100		MetricSysCn	vFactor	0	
Printed decim	nals	4	_	Decimal prec	sision	4	
BaseUnitType	e	Relative	]	ResultUnit		g	-
FactorUnit		g 💌	]	Denominator	Unit	hg	-
	<u>S</u> ave	Delete	e	<u>C</u> lear		Cl <u>o</u> se	

#### Parameters

Check boxes:	Defines use and placement of the unit.
Price Factor	Factor for price adjustment to the price of the default unit. Default units: m, kg, l
MetricSysCnvFactor	Factor for conversion to the metric system.
Printed Decimals	Only used by Datacolor Process production software. Number of decimal digits to be printed.
Decimal Precision	Only used by Datacolor Process production software. Num- ber of decimal digits used for calculations.
Base Unit Type	Relative, Weight, Length, Volume, Other, Time.



# Note

Result Unit, Factor Unit and Denominator Unit can only be selected for the Base Unit Type "Relative",

Result Unit	Absolute unit ID for relative units.
Factor Unit	Nominator unit for composed units (g/l).
Denominator Unit	Denominator unit for composed units (g/I).
Buttons	
Save	Saves the currently displayed unit.
Delete	Deletes the currently displayed unit after confirmation.
Clear	Clears the fields of the dialog box.
Close	Closes the "Unit" dialog box. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

### **Options Dialog Box**

The "Options" dialog box is used for defining views, connecting dispensers, enabling the use of stock solutions, defining laboratory units and printing definitions for the recipe tables.

#### **General button**

Close

Closes the "Options" dialog box. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

### View Tab

)ptions	×
View Dispenser Stock Solution Unit Selection Print	
AuxID	
CombinedProcess	
🔽 Grid Column Titles in Bold	
Small color background in spectral graphic	
Large color background in spectral graphic	
Rounding precision (significant digits)	
Enhanced production correction     Save	
Close	

#### Parameters

Check boxes	If checked the related data will be displayed.
Rounding precision (signit	ficant digits) The rounding function of recipe and the laboratory correction tables rounds to the number of the significant digits.
Small color background in	spectral graphic The color spectrum is displayed to the bottom of the graph box.
Small color background in	spectral graphic The color spectrum is displayed as background of the graph box.
<b>Buttons</b> Save	Saves the current selection.

Default: "ID" "Aux ID, "Combined Process", and "Grid Column Titles in Bold" are checked.



### Note

"Grid Column Titles in Bold" must be checked for the Chinese and Japanese versions of Datacolor MATCH^{Textile}.

# Dispenser Tab

	Dispenser Stock !	Solution Unit Selection	Print			
	Name	Туре	File	Disp. Water	Chemicals	Used Here
		AutoLab	D:\Program Files\Datacolor\DClMatch	<b>N</b>		
		Add	<u>R</u> emove			<u>S</u> ave
,				_		

#### Parameters

Name	Dispenser name.
Туре	Dispenser type: "Autolab" creates an ASCII output file. "DS-5" creates an ASCII output file (DS5 format). "AutoLab Database" writes recipe data for AutoLab dispenser systems to the DCI_ALHB.DB Sybase database.
File	Path to the dispenser folder and input of a file name.
Disp. Water	If checked, the dispenser dispenses water.
Chemicals	If checked, the dispenser dispenses chemicals.
Used Here	if checked, the corresponding dispenser obtains the data of the recipes to be dispensed from the workstation.
Buttons	
Add	Adds a new dispenser.
Remove	Removes the selected dispenser from the table.
Save	Saves the current settings.

### **Stock Solution Tab**

Options		×
View Dispenser Stock Solution	Jnit Selection Print	
☑ Use Stock Solutions here	Check volume	
Default Stock Solution for Dyestuf	ís	
Default Dyestuff		
Default Stock Solution for Auxiliari	25	
No fault Aux June		
🛨 Default Auxilary		
	Save	
	Close	
Use Stock Solution here	If checked, the selected stock solutions are used for this workstation. <i>It is possible to specify different stock solutions for each workstation.</i>	
Check Volume	If checked, the program checks that the final volume is no	t

exceeded by the volumes of the components. Default Stock Solutions for Dyestuffs

Selection of stock solution for dyestuffs.

Default Stock Solutions for Auxiliaries

Selection of stock solution for auxiliaries.

### **Unit Selection Tab**

Options	×
View Dispenser Stock Solution Unit Selection Print	
Laboratory weight unit:	
Laboratory volume unit:	
Laboratory Price Calculation	L
Weight 100 kg	
Volume: 1000 1	
	L
	L
Save	
Close	]

Selection of weight and volume unit for laboratory data.

Laboratory Price Calculation

Weight and bath volume for cost calculation of a laboratory dye lot.

### **Print Tab**

Options	×
View Dispenser Stock Solution Unit Selection Print	
Recipe table Portrait Landscape	
	Close

Selection of portrait or landscape format for the recipe table printouts.

Save The current selection is saved for further use. Otherwise, the selection will only be valid for the current session.

### Match Dialog Box

#### **General parameters**

Standard

Color to be matched. A standard can be selected or re-measured.

General buttons and fields



#### Note

- If the "Fixed" parameter is used, and the recipe is saved before the calculation, the dyestuff concentrations will be used as default values and can be altered. *A correction is possible.*
- If the "Fixed" parameter is used and the recipe is calculated without saving, the specified dyestuff concentrations are constant values and cannot be changed.
   A correction is restricted or impossible.

### **Process Data for Matching Tab**

atch					
	Standard				
Process Data for	matching Dyeset Lab-Graph	ic Settings			<u>S</u> ave
Quality/Style		]	Combined Process		Calculate
Polyester 20	025		Disperse Exhaust (Terasil)	•	
Affinity	Polyeste	er textured	Substrate delivery [1 elements]	New	
Possible dyeset(	[\$]		PES Blanc Dyeing	•	
[%] Fiber(s)	Dyeset	Process	E.Substra Pure Substrate		
100 PES	Disperse Terasil	1.00	1.00 PES Blanc Dyeing		
Used dyeset(s)	Disperse Dispersol	1.00	1 .00 Dacron1 :001		
Standard				Multicolor matching 🗖	
+ K0002 ELE	FANT K				
Dyed substrate					
S Datamatch/	/Sample	ا			Cancel

#### Parameters

Quality/Style	Field for quality/style specification.
Combined Process	Field for combined process specification.
Affinity	Protected. Display of the assigned affinity.
Substrate delivery	Selection of a specific substrate delivery. The latest substrate delivery is selected per default. <b>New</b> Button: Opens the "Substrate Delivery Dialog" box for

	measuring a new substrate delivery. Refer to <i>Substrate Delivery Dialog Box on page 7-27</i> , <i>Substrate Delivery: Example on page 5-30</i> and <i>Overwriting Measurements of Substrate Deliveries on page 5-32</i> .
Possible/Used Colorant	(Dye) Set
	In the "Possible Colorant Set(s)" table, the selection of possible colorant sets is displayed. A mouse double-click moves it to the "Used Colorant Set" table. You can modify the percentage of the fibers, the process factor and the substrate effect.
Tolerance	If a tolerance formula is used, it is displayed above the Stan- dard selection (only if a tolerance is assigned to the color type).
Dyed Substrate	Used to calculate a re-dye. A dye substrate can be selected or re-measured.
Multi Color Matching	If checked, different recipes using different dye processes are calculated simultaneously. Used to calculate recipes with different standards for each fiber of a blended quality/style.

### **Colorant Set Tab**

		Standard									-
		BAT1									
		1									
cess E	)ata	for matching Dyeset Lab-Gr	aphic	Settings							Save
veset	Γ	Disperse Terasil	Part [%	] 100							Calculate
iroup – Sy: Sy:	stem	Delete            Save									
Selectio	on:										
	on:	1	stuff					Concent	tration I	%1	 π
0/1	on:	Shown : 8 selected : 0	stuff   L 1/1	WSH 60	WSH 95	PRES AL	Compul	 Concent			 Ţ
0/1	on:			WSH 60	WSH 95	PRES AL	Compul		Max.(10		 Ĩ
0/1		Shown : 8 selected : 0		5	WSH 95	5	Compul		Max.(10		 Į
0/1		Shown : 8 selected : 0 Accept Limits >>	L 1/1	5		5 5			Max.(10		 Į
0/1		Shown : 8 selected : 0 Accept Limits >> Terasil Yellow 4G	L 1/1 7	5 5 5	5	5 5 5			Max.(10		 J
0/1		Shown : 8 selected : 0 Accept Limits >> Terasil Yellow 4G Terasil Orange 2RL	L 1/1 7 7	5 5 5 5	5 5	5 5	Comput		Max.(10		 Į.
0/1		Shown : 8 selected : 0 Accept Limits >> Terasil Yellow 4G Terasil Orange 2RL Terasil Red 5G	L 1/1 7 7 6-7	5 5 5 5 5 5	5 5 4	5 5 5 5 5 5	Comput F		Max.(10 0.8 2 2		 Į.
0/1		Shown : 8 selected : 0 Accept Limits >> Terasil Yellow 4G Terasil Orange 2RL Terasil Red 5G Terasil Red R	L 1/1 7 7 6-7 6-7	5 5 5 5 5 5 5	5 5 4 5	5 5 5 5			0.8 2 2 2.5		 J
		Shown : 8 selected : 0 Accept Limits >> Terasil Yellow 4G Terasil Red 5G Terasil Red R Terasil Brill. Blue BGE 200%	L 1/1 7 6-7 6-7 7-8	5 5 5 5 5	5 5 4 5 5	5 5 5 5 5 5			Max.(10 0.8 2 2.5 5		

#### Parameters

Colorant Set	Protected. Currently selected colorant set.
Part	Used for multiple color matching. The buttons are used to switch between the colorant sets.
Group	Selection or definition of dyestuff groups (or fiber product groups for Datacolor BLEND). The <b>Save</b> button saves the group with all settings of the "Selection" table. The <b>Delete</b> button deletes a group with all settings. Refer to <i>Calculation of A New Recipe Series on page 5-69</i> .

Table for dye selection. Refer to Selecting dyestuffs for matching on page 5-71.

### Lab Graph Tab

The "Lab Graph" tab is used to check that a recipe can be calculated with the selected dyestuffs.



### Note

The graphical view cannot check the quality of a recipe.

Match		
Standard K0002 ELEFANT K	-	
Process Data for matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic Settings		Save
L ⁺ Funder d Constant on lar	Dyeset Disperse Dispersol Dyestuff's choice Take All [x] / None [ ] Group System Of Dispersol Yellow C5G Of Dispersol Scarlet C2R Of Dispersol Scarlet C2R Of Dispersol Scarlet C2R Of Dispersol Scarlet C4G Of Dispersol Green C6B Of Dispersol Navy C2G	Cancel

#### Graph

The graph may be rotated by pressing down the left mouse button and can be zoomed using the right mouse button.

The standard is displayed as a sphere on the top of a line. *The dyestuff selection is OK if the standard sphere is completely inside the color space.* 

1 Check the possible dyestuff selections by rotating the color space. *The standard sphere must not leave the color space at any position of the color space.* 



#### Note

- If a selection is not OK, you can change the selection of dyestuffs.
- If a recipe is not possible, you must add dyestuffs or use (specify) another colorant set.

#### Parameters Take all/None

Using this check box, you can select or deselect all dyestuffs. The single dyestuffs are selected or deselected with a mouse click.

Group

Selection or definition of dyestuff groups.

### Settings Tab

Match	
Standard K0002 ELEFANT K	
Process Data for matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic Settings	<u>S</u> ave
User's setting User 1 Save Delete	<u>C</u> alculate
Additional illuminants for match	
Calculate all combinations from 2 to 4	
No. of solutions to display 15 for a value dE < 8	
Accept when dE < 3 and dM < 6	
Stop the calculation when 3 matches with dE < 0.04 and dM < 0.3	
Available illuminants / Observer selected illuminants A /10 A /2 C /10 C /2 D50 /10 D50 /2 D55 /10 D55 /10 D56 /10 D56 /10 D57	
D55 /2 Matching technology Lab smartmatch  C4 /2 /2 /2 Matching technology Lab smartmatch  C4 /2 /2 /2 /2 /2 /2 /2 /2 /2 /2 /2 /2 /2	
D65         /2         Weights           D75         /10         for dH         3	
F02         / 10           F02         / 2           Smartmatch factor in %         90	Cancel

#### Parameters

The parameter selection is altered according to "Optimize using."

User's Settings	be saved for	definition of the settings. Individual settings may each user. The <b>Save</b> button saves all settings. nutton deletes the settings.
Predefined Settings	A mouse click defined value	k on the corresponding button sets the pre- es.
Additional Illuminants		dditional illuminants to be used for recipe calcu- e illuminant match. Maximum value is 3.
Calculate All Combination	าร	
	Range of dye	estuffs that can be used for a single recipe.
No. off Solutions		solutions to be displayed with the defined maxi- Ip to this number, the recipes are displayed after
Accept	Recipes are a fied values.	accepted if dE and dM are better than the speci-
Stop	•	s values better than defined, the calculation is the results are displayed.
Selection		Most precise calculation. <i>Recommended for big colorant sets.</i> Other pre-selection is used. s calculate recipes with the same precision. you may not get all possible combinations.

Tolerance Formula	The tolerance formula is selected automatically.
Illuminants	Using these buttons illuminants, may be selected or dese- lected.
Matching Technology	Selection of "Normal Match" (no SmartMatch), "Lab Smart- Match" (SmartMatch points of location laboratory are used), and "Prod. SmartMatch" (SmartMatch points of location production are used).
Weight dH	Weighting of hue. You can change the weight of dH. Value range is 0.2 to 5. 5 = highest weight of dH 0.2 = lowest weight of dH The use of this parameter only make sense if additional illuminants are selected.
SmartMatch Factor in %	<ul> <li>Value: 100 %. New method for matching with one Smart-Match point. The value is set automatically.</li> <li>Value: 0 %. The additive correction is used.</li> </ul>

### **Recipe Calculation Result Table**

Column for weighting the colorimetric values and the price

Standard		PANTON	JE 19-13	33 TC						1						
Quality/Style 100.00 [%]		Trevira	2000													
Substrate (factor)		Trevira	2000 - 99	90210 (1	10)					. 1	Recipe	o Info	matio	n		
Process (factor)	•	Disperse	e Exhaus	t (Disper	sol) (1.0	וכ				$\mathbb{R}^{2}$	Recip		maliu			
Formula	▼	•	Default[D							. 0						
dE* D65	1	0.00	0.00	0.01	0.01	0.00	0.01	0.00	0.01	0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.50	2.15
dL*	0	0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.00	0.0	0.00	-0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.02	-0.01
da*	0	0.00	0.00	-0.01	-0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.01	0.0	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	0.00	-0.29	1.47
db*	0	-0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.01	0.00	-0.01	-0.00	-0.00	-0.0	0.00	-0.00	0.00	0.00	0.40	-1.57
dC*	0	0.00	0.00	-0.01	-0.01	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.01	0.0	0.00	-0.00	0.00	0.00	0.04	0.18
dH*	0	-0.00	-0.00	0.00	-0.00	-0.00	-0.00	0.00	0.00	-0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.49	-2.14
dE* A	0	1.05	1.89	1.90	1.94	2.11	2.71	2.75	2.88	3.18	3 3.77	3.81	3.82	3.98	4.34	1.39
dE* F11	0	0.86	0.47	2.35	2.30	2.64	1.78	1.96	2.15	0.6	3 1.11	1.12	0.61	0.94	1.36	1.69
dE* F07	0	0.12	0.22	0.27	0.26	0.30	0.24	0.26	0.27	0.3	3				0.65	2.16
dE* Average	0	0.51	0.64	1.13	1.13	1.26	1.18	1.24	1.33	1.0		ulated			1.71	1.85
Metamerism A	0.7	1.06	1.89	1.90	1.94	2.11	2.71	2.75	2.88	3.18	Colo	orimeti	ic val	ues	3.93	3.32
Metamerism F11	0	0.86	0.47	2.35	2.29	2.64	1.78	1.96	2.14	0.6	and	prices	3		0.96	2.07
Metamerism F07	0	0.12	0.22	0.27	0.26	0.30	0.25	0.26	0.27	0.38		P	0.00	1 0.04	0.36	0.25
CMCCON02 A	0	4.23		439	4.31	4.41	4.32	4.42	4.47	4.18	3 4.78	4.80	4.68	4.88	4.83	4.89
CMCCON02 F11	0	Colo	r Inco	nstan	CY 3.68	4.07	3.09	3.31	3.51	1.05	5 2.44	2.44	1.86	2.26	2.32	3.16
CMCCON02 F07	0	2.17	2.04	2.34	2.31	2.36	2.17	2.21	2.22	1.8	3 2.09	2.08	1.99	2.05	2.06	2.21
Sensitivity (Hue)	0	1.93	2.37	0.51	1.53	0.70	1.68	0.41	0.78	0.80	4.05	1.56	0.63	1.40	0.70	0.71
Price	0	19.40	21.14	19.09	16.99	18.22	18.72	20.86	20.31	24.81	1 23.90	23.92	22.53	24.52	24.76	20.94
Total concentration [%]		0.9363	0.9856	0.8794	0.8591	0.8579	0.9064	0.9245	0.9112	1.158	3 1.0668	1.0634	1.0814	1.0931	1.1021	0.9244
Trial 1		XX							R	low(s		ser-de	efined	selec	tion m	narks
Dyestuff		1(3)	2(3)	3(3)	4(3)	5(3)	6(3)	7(3)	8(3)	9(3	10(3)	11(3)	12(3)	13(3)	14(2)	15(2)
Dispersol Yellow C5G		0.2109	0.2059	0.0576				0.0374		0.1799	3					
Dispersol Orange CRN (G)					0.3782	0.1421	0.3691		0.0929		Info	rmatic	n abo	out dv	estuff	
Dispersol Scarlet C2R				0.7389		0.6341		0.8223	0.7542		con	centra				0.8623
Dispersol Red C4G (G)		0.6455	0.7174		0.3983		0.4731			0.8203	2			uscu	101	
Dispersol Blue (G)			0.0623				0.0641	0.0648	0.0641		me the	recipe	s			0.0621
Dispersol Green C6B										0.1587	7 0.1424	0.1334	0.1613	0.1627	0.1666	
Dispersol Navy C2G		0.0799		0.0829	0.0825	0.0817					0.0107					
Recipe with D65											Color	Dian				
											Color	r Disp	lay			
Standard with D65																
Standard with A																
Recipe with A											_					

The following help functions for review are implemented:

- "Table" menu and context-sensitive menu:
  - Evaluate Print / ASCII Prints colorimetric details using a predefined form.
  - Theoretical reflectance

Opens the "Insert a Theoretical Sample" dialog box used for saving theoretical reflectance values (E.g., for Datacolor Envision). Datacolor Tools can send this data to a user with a Datacolor Envision system to check the color, for example. Refer to *Specifying Theoretical Reflectance Values on page 5-96*.

- View Configuration Opens the "View Configurations" dialog box used to define the display of the calculated values and the number of decimal places for colorimetric and concentration data.
- Reset Sort Order Resets the sort order of the recipes.

Add Trial Up to five recipes can be marked. After closing the table, the selected recipes are saved for further use.

- Remove Last Trial Removes the last trial mark.
- Hide recipes not selected

The recipe table only shows the selected recipes.

- Show all recipes Shows all recipes.
  - Mail Table Opens the mail form with an attached screen shot of the recipe table (JPEG format).
- Modify Refer to Manual Recipe Modification (Recipe Table) on page 5-81.
- Round Refer to Round the Dyestuff Concentration (Recipe Table) on page 5-81.
- Manually Change Refer to *Manual Graphical Correction on page 5-101*.
- Pressing the **Ctrl** key and clicking in the recipe number field selects the recipes.
- Clicking in a parameter name (first column) in the table with the calculated values sorts the recipe table according to the values of the corresponding row.
- Alteration of weighting (*only possible for metamerism*): If you have altered the weighting, you have to close the window and match again.

### Insert A Theoretical Sample Dialog Box



#### **Parameters**

Name	Selection of the sample. The name of the currently selected sample is used as default.
Insert (button)	Inserts the theoretical reflectance value into the recipe table.

Graph

Refer to Spectral Tab on page 7-73.

### **Recipe Editor Dialog Box**

The "Recipe Editor" dialog box is used to alter recipe parameters. Refer to *Modifying Recipes on page 5-79*.



#### Modification Rules for adding and removing dyestuffs:

The dyestuff selection of a recipe can only be altered if ...

- the recipe is approved;
- it is not in use by the laboratory and a modification could influence the laboratory correction.

#### Note

Data that can be modified is displayed with a green background.

Recipe Editor	×
Recipe structure	Values
P Header	¥0002 ELEFANT - 040400 - 1105
Recipe Name	V0002 ELEFANT - 040400 - 1105
Recipe ID	275-2
- Creation Date	04.04.2000 11:03:04
Modification Date	26.07.2002 09:38:52
Color Type	V0002 ELEFANT
Quality Name	Cotton knitted not mercerised
CombinedProcess	Remazol Pad Batch Silicate
Batch	BAT 15
Customer Name	
🖓 Color Recipe	CO [100 %]
Dye Process Name	Reactive Cold Pad Batch (Silicate)
Colorant Set Name	Remazol SPB (Silicate)
LiquorRatioOrPickup	60.0
Dyestuffs	g/l
Remazol Yellow R Gran.	0.930881
- Remazol Red 3B	2.853106
Remazol Brilliant Blue BB gran. 133%	2.574659
Add Dyestuff	Add Dyestuff
Manual Correction	
CO [100 %]  Go Expand Collaps UnDo	Save Cancel

The recipe is displayed in a tree structure. Data that can be modified is displayed with a green background.

#### Buttons

Expand	Expands the tree structure.
Collaps	Closes the tree structure.
Undo	Cancels the last modifications as long as you have not saved the recipe.
Go (manual correction)	Refer to Manual Graphical Correction on page 5-101.

# **Current Population Dialog Box**

Current popu	ation	×
Affinity Quality/Style	Polyester textured  Datamatch  PES 3000  All Data	Colorimetric Sample L* 20.0509 a* 0.42811 b* -0.586241
Substrate	Dacron1:001	Size dE 250
Process	All Data)	Evaluate Cancel
Machine Dyeset	All Data     All Data	Location Location Location C Production
Dispersol	Green C6B Red C4G (G) Yellow C5G	Operation on population       Initial size       2       Deleted by dE       0       Grouped       0       Points with comment
Show popu		nc. 🔽 Max. points displayed 2

Affinity/Quality/Style/Substrate/Process/Machine/(Colorant Set) These specifications are used to select all SmartMatch

, anning, datancy, orgio, oab	
	These specifications are used to select all SmartMatch points of the same dyestuff combination. You can search for other SmartMatch points by altering the values and clicking <b>Evaluate</b> .
Colorimetric	Colorimetric values of the selected SmartMatch point (batch). "Size dE" represents the space used for SmartMatch points to be evaluated.
Evaluate	Evaluates SmartMatch points for a selected set combination.
Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving. <i>Data that not has been saved will be lost.</i>
Location	Selection of the type of the SmartMatch point.
Products	List of used dyestuffs.

Operation on Population	The program checks the SmartMatch points and indicates how many points will be forced to be deleted or merged because they are similar to each other. Grouped: Number of points grouped automatically by the program. Points with Comments: Number of points with comments to
	Points with Comments: Number of points with comments to the detail screen.



Caution

Points with comments should be checked.

Quick	Opens the list of SmartMatch points and the graphical display.
After Analyses	Opens the list of SmartMatch points and the graphical display. Points outside the tolerances are deleted and points to be merged are automatically merged.
3D in Conc.	3D graph in concentration space. If not checked, the graph are in Laboratory space.
Max. Points Displayed	Specifies the maximum points to be displayed.

Datacolor

### **Population Dialog Box**

List and graph of the SmartMatch points used for the housekeeping. Refer to *Reviewing SmartMatch Points on page 5-87*.

5 File	Smart	то	ols Wir	ndow	Hel		17](	Radius = 32)	213	INIS	L BLU	FRLM	N [1]∧	-191	PNIL R	ED EF	SF2~1	105 1	NILY		- 8
				8	3	<b>e</b> ?															
Iolor II	D	Date		G	ārp	Del	Hide	Comments		dE_K	dE_Kn	dE_S	dE_Sn	L*	a*	b*	dL*	da*	db*	213 IN	191
						>>	ALL	Mean values		1.76		1.31									
					11	<<	C%	57 pts, 0 deleted, 0	) hidden												
			2-26 06:17			DEL	OK			1.78		0.63		41.02	5.45	-34.11		-1.47	-0.87	0.735	
	00018		2-26 06:13			DEL	OK		⊂[4]	1.64		0.33		38.57	0.15	-35.91	2.41	-1.13	-1.22	1.211	
	00019		2-26 06:17			DEL	OK		C[4]	1.54		0.42		38.71	-0.47	-35.78				College States	
	00023		2-26 06:13			DEL	ОК			1.82		0.89		70.57	13.43	5.37	4.50	-0.45	0.23	0.017	
	00025	00-1	2-26 06:17	7:18		DEL	OK			2.01		6.86	6.66	74.97	-8.71	-12.50	2.03	0.80	2.47	0.051	
•																					•
nd/dE	dE*		ind/CC	dCC	-	-															
20	0.0	000	20	0.00	00							18	<b>2</b> 9								
19	0.6	552	19	0.0	11								*								
18	6.5	576	12	0.27	71																
54	8.0	800	9	0.28	80																
16	8.8	388	11	0.29	96 -					16											
14	9.3	384	16	0.38	89					10											
13	10.3	384	18	0.49	90																
53	11.0	585	54	0.52	22												11				
51	13.8	896	5	0.57	75				a												
9	14.8	332	53	0.75	57			54									12				
55	15.6	535	51	0.86	61												1				
8	16.8	321	46	0.86	67						14						1				
З	16.9	937	55	0.90	02				13											+b*	
11	17.3	317	26	1.00	08				+a*												
2	17.3	390	7	1.01	14					-											
12	20.3	183	13	1.03	18																
	30.1	209	6	1.04	STATES .	1															

#### Parameters of the SmartMatch points or groups

All columns in the upper table can be ordered by simply clicking the column header.

Mean Values	Displays the mean values of dE_K and dE_S.
dE_K	CMC 2:1 color differences between the batch and the theoretical curve using the Kubelka-Munk theory.
dE_S	CMC 2:1 color differences between the batch and the theoretical curve using SmartMatch.



### Note

dE_S values should always be lower than the corresponding dE_K values. Otherwise, the population contains bad points that should be deleted.

L*, a*, b*	Coordinates of the batch representing the SmartMatch point.
dL*, da*, db*	CIELab color differences of theory (K/S) and batch.
Dyestuff names	Concentrations of the SmartMatch point dyes.

Buttons

<< >>	With these buttons you can change the radius of the color space (color difference CIELab) used to show the SmartMatch points. Default value is 32. Selectable are 1, 2, 4, 16, 32 and 250.
INS DEL	This button toggles between DEL, to delete, and INS, to insert, the SmartMatch point. The points are definitively deleted if you close the population.
Lab* C%	This button toggles between Lab* and C%. Lab* = Lab color space and C% = concentration space.
OK	The <b>OK</b> button is used to mark the SmartMatch point if it is checked. This SM point is hidden in the SM table but is still displayed in the graph. The spike becomes a sphere. The next point in the list will be selected for checking.
ALL	The All button displays all the points again.

#### Graph

The SmartMatch points are displayed in the graph with different colors:

- The spike has the color of the batch.
- A gray shaft represents a normal point.
- A blue shaft indicates a grouped point and all points belonging to a group.
- The point you have selected in the upper table is displayed with a yellow shaft.
- A red shaft is displayed if a point is suspect.

The length of the shaft is proportional to the dLab* vector representing the lab distance between the theoretical reflectance and the reflectance of the measured batch.

For better identification, all points are numbered, e.g.:

20	Index No. of the SmartMatch point.
[17,4]	The 1 st number is index no. of the SM point, the 2 nd number is the number of the group the point belongs to.
[-54,1] =	A negative index identifies a new group point (not existing in the database); it is built when population is opened. It is saved after confirmation during closing the SM population screen.

#### Table columns on the left of the dialog box

The columns ,ind/dE' and  $,dE^{**}$  contain the index number and the dE for the CIELab space.

The column "ind/CC" and "dCC" show the SmartMatch index and the difference in concentration space.

All SmartMatch points within the color difference selected for the radius (displayed in the dialog title) are colored with different gray shades. Points with the same shade in both columns belong together. This shows clearly how much the color difference depends to the space you are using to evaluate the points.



#### Note

It is necessary to look at the color differences of both spaces to assess the quality of a SmartMatch point.

#### Navigation in the graph

- The selected point in the SmartMatch table (click the color patch) is displayed in the center of the graph.
- Press down the left mouse button and move the mouse to rotate the graphic. The selected SM point (SmartMatch point with the yellow shaft) is the crucial point.
- Press down the right mouse button and move the mouse to zoom in or out.

### Example of A SmartMatch Group Point



The picture shows SmartMatch points that are used to build a group point.

-57,1	Group point built by the program. The negative index
	indicates a new group, the 1 is the number of the group.
23,1 / 24,1 / 25,1	Points used to build the group.

### Example of Lab and C% Graphical View

The following pictures show the influence of the space (Lab* or concentration). You see the same points in both. Only in the concentration space can you see the large difference between the points 17,4 and -57,1.



### Example of Manually Checked SmartMatch Points

The SmartMatch points 12, 11 and 16 (with a sphere on top) have already been checked manually.



### **Comments Used for SmartMatch Points**



Note

Points with a comment should be checked.

Color	ağ 🛛	Date	Grp	Del	Hide	Comments 🛛	dE_K	dE_Kn	dE_S	dE_Sn	L*	a*	b*	dL*	da*	db*	213 IN	191 PN	
				>>	ALL	Mean values	1.76	,	1.31			,	,						
			11	<<	C%	, O deleted, O hidden													
31	00842	00-12-26 06:19:28		DEL	ОК	C[1]	3.16		1.14		71.24	7.66	-7.63	3.26	-0.68	3.14	0.031	0.026	
40	10138	00-12-26 06:44:53		DEL	ОК	Batch[3]	3.77		2.54		82.62	3.85	44.38	0.82	-5.05	-3.69	0.000	0.010	
33	10124	00-12-26 06:44:51		DEL	ОК	Batch[3]	2.28		1.24		80.49	4.85	39.13	1.66	-2.83	-1.28	0.002	0.013	
15	00014	00-12-26 06:17:16		DEL	ОК	Batch[2]	1.38		1.65	1.39	57.46	52.50	19.20	2.22	-1.98	-1.53	0.000	0.387	
35	10126	00-12-26 06:44:51		DEL	ОК	Batch[2]	1.27		0.84	0.82	56.83	45.77	18.73	2.79	-0.55	0.41	0.005	0.338	
23	00027	00-12-26 06:17:18	1	DEL	ОК	Automatic	1.32		0.41	0.00	50.07	51.09	17.92	2.60	0.90	0.91	0.009	0.632	
25	00029	00-12-26 06:17:18	1	DEL	ОК	Automatic	1.43		0.34	0.00	50.74	49.96	17.31	2.96	0.41	0.80	0.009	0.603	-
4																		•	

#### Comments Explanation

Automatic

Points with this comment are grouped automatically. The number of the group is written to the "Grp" column (in the example, it is Group 1). Points are grouped to reduce the number of similar points. Too many points may have a negative influence to the matching quality. Many statistical calculations are necessary to find the SmartMatch points that build a group. The aim is to find "clouds" of points with similar behavior. It is an iterative process, which calculates the average distance between all points and the smallest distance between two points, which are not equal.



The graph shows how the program is looking for points, which can be used for grouping.

	The group point is calculated using the information of the points that are building the group. A theoretical recipe and reflectance values are stored for this new point. Points used for grouping are not deleted from the database. If you select the group point, you can restore the points used to build the group point.
C[x]	All points with "C" and the same number have similar or equal con- centrations, but the reflectance values of the batches are different.
Batch[x]	All points with "Batch" and the same number have similar or equal reflectance values, but the concentrations are different.
dBat[x]	All points with "dBat" and the same number have similar or equal color difference values, but the concentrations are different.

### Example of SmartMatch Points to Be Deleted

Color	ID	Del	Hide	Comments 🛆	dE_K	dE_Kn	dE_5	dE_Sn	L*	a*	b*	dL*	da*	db*	213 IN	199 FO	135 FO	-
		>>	ALL	Mean values	2.24		1.12											
		<<	C%	274 pts, 0 deleted, 0 hidden														
118	01179	DEL	ОК	Batch[15],C[45]	3.77		0.78	0.83	21.23	13.62	1.81	4.12	-1.53	-1.57	0.903	4.379	1.297	
	0 <b>1</b> 177	DEL	ОК	Batch[15],C[45]	3.44		0.36	0.35	20.85	13.50	2.04	3.85	-1.41	-1.18	0.925	4.392	1.293	
205	33709	DEL	ОК	Batch[17],dBat[15]	1.96		0.92		28.80	39.33	8.44	1.87	2.29	2.03	0.094	2.605	0.168	
	33708	DEL	ОК	Batch[17],dBat[15]	1.87		0.54		27.86	37.77	6.85	1.75	2.03	1.90	0.115	2.775	0.079	
	19598	DEL	ОК	Batch[18],C[51]	1.01		0.51	0.53	21.84	19.58	5.06	0.91	-1.17	-0.12	0.557	2.204	1.384	-
•																		+

The two points 205 and 192 have both the same or similar batch and the same or similar difference values. You can delete one point, because it makes no sense to have two points with almost the same information. You should also delete points with the same concentrations C(x) comment.

### **Import Dialog Box**

Import		×
The import of Items may be a critical operation. You should backup your o	latabase first.	
Import Filename		
Browse		
	OK	Cancel

#### Parameters

Import File NamePath and name of the file to be imported. Use the "Browse"<br/>button for searching and selecting.

Browse (button) Displays the Windows standard "Open" dialog box.

# **Export Dialog Box**

Export	×
Samples (Datamatch; *.EXP)	
O Samples (Datacolor Envision/Colorite; *.QTX)	
O Samples (Datacolor Match/DCIMatch; *.XML)	
O Dyesets (Datacolor Match/DCIMatch; *.XML)	
Selected Samples           Selected Samples           Selected Samples	
	<u>,</u>
Filename	
DatamatchSample.EXP	
Browse	
	OK Cancel Help

#### Parameters

Radio buttons	Selection of the sample format.
Selected Samples	Selection of the color samples to be exported.
File Name	Path and name of the export file.
Browse (button)	Displays the Windows standard "Save as" dialog box.

# Form Maintenance Dialog Box

Application	Section	English	Version	
DCIMatch	Quality	English	Version 1.0	ļ
DCIMatch	ColorantSet	Deutsch	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Auxiliary	Deutsch	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	CS-QC	Português	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Illuminant	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Affinity	Português	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Tolerance	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	FiberGroup	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Quality	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	ColorantSet	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Calibration Dyestuff	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Auxiliary	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Fiber	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Affinity	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Illuminant	ú { ê	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Dyestuff	English	Version 1.0	
DCIMatch	Qc-Cmc	English	Version 1.0	
DEIMatch	0.C-Cielab	English	Version 1.0	
Export			Cancel	
	DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch DCIMatch	DCIMatch ColorantSet DCIMatch Auxiliary DCIMatch CS-QC DCIMatch Illuminant DCIMatch Illuminant DCIMatch Tolerance DCIMatch FiberGroup DCIMatch Quality DCIMatch ColorantSet DCIMatch ColorantSet DCIMatch ColorantSet DCIMatch Auxiliary DCIMatch Fiber DCIMatch Fiber DCIMatch Alfinity DCIMatch Alfinity DCIMatch Illuminant DCIMatch Qc-Cmc DCIMatch QC-Crielah	DCIMatch       ColorantSet       Deutsch         DCIMatch       Auxiliary       Deutsch         DCIMatch       CS-QC       Português         DCIMatch       Illuminant       English         DCIMatch       Illuminant       English         DCIMatch       Tolerance       English         DCIMatch       FiberGroup       English         DCIMatch       Quality       English         DCIMatch       ColorantSet       English         DCIMatch       ColorantSet       English         DCIMatch       ColorantSet       English         DCIMatch       ColorantSet       English         DCIMatch       Auxiliary       English         DCIMatch       Auxiliary       English         DCIMatch       Alfinity       English         DCIMatch       Illuminant       Iúklé         DCIMatch       Ucvetuff       English         DCIMatch       Qc-Crec       English         DCIMatch       Qc-Crea       English	DCIMatch       ColorantSet       Deutsch       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Auxiliary       Deutsch       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       CS-QC       Português       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Illuminant       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Illuminant       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Affinity       Português       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Tolerance       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Guaity       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       GolorantSet       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       GolorantSet       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Calibration Dyestuff       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Auxiliary       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Aifinity       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Hiluminant       Iút{jê       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Dyestuff       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       Upstuff       English       Version 1.0         DCIMatch       QecCmc       English       Version 1.0

Form name	Name of the print form.
Application	Application.
Section	Sub-program.
English	Language of the print form.
Version	Version of the print form.
Buttons	
Export	Exports the print form file to the selected location.

# **Pager Window**

🖀 Pager - [Calibration Dyestuff 1]	
Bille Edit Sections View Layout ASCII Export Window Help	
Π	
	□○ <u>■</u> # 🛄   Zoom   100 🚽
>>>>> Header	<u> </u>
	data
	intern
Calibration Header	
Calibration Data	
Modification Date 27.03.2000 Creation Date 27.03.2000	UserID
Calibration Data	
Spefo Used	
Calibration Dveprocess Namel,	=1
Calibration Serie Header	—
Calibration sample Calibration	
No Name Conc Dyestrength dE Used	Measure Conditions
Calibration Serie Data	
L	-L
Calibration Oraphic N #	
Reflectances_	
	<b>_</b>
Ready	Position 19.5:0.1 No Application

# Page View Designer specific Menu Functions

"File" menu	
Import	Opens the "Open" dialog box used to import an exported print form.
Export	Opens the "Form Maintenance" dialog box used to select and export print forms.
Delete/Rename	Opens the "Form Maintenance" dialog box used for renaming and deleting print forms.
Page Setup	Opens the "Page Setup" dialog box used for specifying the left and the right margin.
"Edit" menu	
Remove all fields from c	urrent section
	Removes the fields from the selected section.
Hide current section	Hides the selected section.
"Sections" menu	
List of the sections that a currently used for the for	are available for the current print form. Checked sections are m.
"View" menu	
Toolbar	Switches the toolbar on (check mark) and off.
Status Bar	Switches the status bar on (check mark) and off.

Fields	Opens the "Fields" information box with the database fields used for the selected section.
Properties	Opens the "Properties" of the selected field.
Look	Opens the "Look" dialog box used for window settings.
"Layout" menu	

Help functions for a correct alignments of fields.

### Page View Designer specific Toolbar Functions

<b>?</b>   1				
1	About	Page View Designer version info.		
2	Grid, Zoom, Ruler	Opens the "Look" dialog box used for window settings.		
3	Toggle Fields	Opens the "Fields" information box with the database fields used for the selected section.		
4	Toggle Properties	Opens the "Properties" of the selected field.		
5	Left Alignment	Active if more than one field is selected.		
6	Top Alignment	Active if more than one field is selected.		
7	Right Alignment	Active if more than one field is selected.		
8	Same Horizontal Size			
		Active if more than one field is selected.		
9	Same Vertical Size	Active if more than one field is selected.		
10	Text	Used to specify a text field.		
11	Rectangle	Used to draw rectangles.		
12	Ellipse	Used to draw ellipses.		
13	Bitmap	Used to enter a picture, e.g., a logo. Supported formats: *.bmp, *.pcx, *.jpg.		
14	Date/Time	Used to enter a field with date and time.		
15	Page Number	Used to enter a page count field.		
16	Form Name	Used to enter a field for the form name.		
17	Login User	Used to insert the Name of the logged in user.		
18	Zoom	Selection of predefined zoom values.		

## **Datacolor MONITOR**

### **Batch Series Window**

#### Refer to:

- Adding A Graph Panel on page 5-112
- Printing A Batch Series on page 5-114



#### Navigation

Left and right cursor keys Navigates from one measurement line (orange vertical solid line) to the next or previous. Corresponding to their position, the numeric values are displayed with yellow background color in the table above. The pieces of fabric are separated in the graph panel by a dotted black vertical line.

#### Results shown in the table

- One section with the average of all color differences, indicated by  $\mu$ .
- One section with the standard deviation of all color difference, indicated by  $\boldsymbol{\sigma}.$
- The next section contains the result for all measurement on one line. This section is separated by the name of the piece of fabric.

Symbols describing the relation of the sample pairs used for color difference calculation:

Indicates color difference to a previous measurement, e.g., left to left, center to center or right to right.

- Indicates color differences to a neighbor sample, e.g., left to center, center to right and right to left.
- Indicates color differences to the reference, e.g., left to reference, center to reference or right to reference.

You will have nine color difference decisions if you have checked all possible relations.

### **Create Batch Series Dialog Box**

Refer to Printing A Batch Series on page 5-114.

Name:	M&S Lot 173652	
Folder	CS-Series	
Script:	M&S-CSQC	·
Standard:	CS-Series M&S Blue 454	
Batch name:	M&S Lot 173652	
Batches:	▲ ▲	
Description:	Here you can write down some notes.	
	OK Cancel	

Name	Name of the batch series.		
Folder	Selection of the folder.		
Script	Selection of the script.		
Standard	Selection of the Standard.		
Batch Name	Name of the Batch.		
Batches	Selection of the batches.		
Description	Field for a description of the batch series.		

### **Batch Series Script Name Dialog Box**

Refer to Specifying A Script on page 5-106.

Batch Serie Script	Name		×
	45		
	Name		_
	Script für I	M&S	•
	Delete	Script	
Description			
Side Center Side für M&S			-
< Bac	k Next>	Cancel	Help

### **Batch Series Type Dialog Box**

Batch Series Type				x
Use <u>r</u> eference	<b>V</b>	T 1	Left	
		Tag <u>1</u>		
<u>O</u> ne line only		Tag <u>2</u>	LeftCenter	
		Tag <u>3</u>	RightCenter	
Measurements per line:	4	Tag <u>4</u>	Right	
Measurements per piece:	2			
Iolerance: Iolerance: Iolerance:				
< <u>B</u> ac	k <u>N</u>	ext >	Cancel H	Help

Refer to Specifying A Script on page 5-106.
# **Batch Series Relation Dialog Box**

Batch Serie Relation		×
Releation with standard:		
Tag	Standard	Tolerance Facto 🔺
Left	Standard	
LeftCenter	Standard	1.0
RightCenter	Standard	1.0
Dialat	Chandlard	
Relation with previous ba	tch:	
Tag	Previous Tag	Tolerance Facto 🔺
LeftCenter	LeftCenter	1.0
RightCenter	RightCenter	1.0
🗹 Right	Right	1.0
Relation with <u>b</u> atch on sa	me line:	
Tag	Тад	Tolerance Facto 🔺
🗹 Left	LeftCenter	1.0
LeftCenter	RightCenter	
RightCenter	Right	
Diala	1.59	10
	<u>B</u> ack Finish	Cancel Help

# Select Current Illuminants Dialog Box

Refer to UV Calibration on page 5-11.

Select current illuminants		X
Available illuminants	Se	elected illuminants
A/10 ▲ A/2 C/10 C/2 D50/10 D50/2 D55/10 D55/2 D65/2 D75/10	_	065/10
D75/2 F02/10 F02/2 F07/10 F07/2 F11/10 F11/2		
OK		Cancel

# **Datacolor TICKET**

# **Recipe List Window**

File	Select '	View										
N	ew	Open 🖀	Delete	Quick Search		👖 Close						
F	GB color	Recipe_ID	+	Recipe_Name		Recipe_AuxID	Recipe loc	LockedLeve	Quality_ID	CombProcess_ID	Affinity_ID	
		129-2		Ref. Beige - 002			Theory		CoStch	REA-BEZ	CoLy	
		129-3		Ref. Beige - 003			Theory		CoStch	REA-BEZ	CoLy	
		129-4		Copy ofRef. Beige			Theory		1	REA-BEZ	CO-SPZ	
		129-5		Ref. Beige - 004			Theory		1	REA-BEZ	CO-SPZ	
		13-41-00/01		Maninp 240401			Theory		1	REA-BEZ	CO-SPZ	
1		132		Ref. Grey			Theory		9	REA-BEZ	CO-Norm	
-		1336		Olive-Green			Laboratory	•	3	DISP-TER	PES-TEX	
		135		Ref. Red			Laboratory		9	REA-BEZ	CO-Norm	
		135-2		Copy of Ref. Red			Laboratory		9	REA-BEZ	CO-Norm	
•		138		Ref. Navy			Theory		9	REA-BEZ	CO-Norm	
		141		Ref. Green			Laboratory		1	REA-BEZ	CO-SPZ	
		141-1		Ref. Green - 001			Laboratory		1	REA-XY-TAB	CO-SPZ	
		141-2		Ref. Green - 1904-1	100		Laboratory		1	REA-BEZ	CO-SPZ	
		141-3		Ref. Green - 002			Theory		9	REA-BEZ	CO-Norm	
		1424		N00011 HELLBEIGI	N01:00		Theory		3	DISP-2	PES-TEX	
		1424:01		N00011 HELLBEIGE	N01		Theory		3	DISP-2	PES-TEX	

#### Functions of the "Select" Menu

Quick Search	Opens a dialog box used to specify a search criteria for the recipes.
Default Query	Selects all recipes.
Recipes with Quality List	Adds a column with the query list.
Recipes with a Product ir	a Given Conc. Range Opens a dialog box for setting a concentration range for searching.
Functions of the "View'	' Menu
Find in Value	Switches the search bar on and off.
Reset View	Resets the search bar.
Record Count	Displays the number of records in the title bar.
Buttons	
New	Opens the "New Recipe" dialog box for specifying a new recipe. Refer to <i>Datacolor TICKET - Production Recipe on page 5-115</i> .
Open	Opens the "New Recipe" dialog box with the selected recipe. Refer to <i>Datacolor TICKET - Production Recipe on page 5-</i> <i>115.</i>
Delete	Deletes the currently selected recipe after confirmation.
Quick Search	Opens the dialog box "Quick Search" dialog box.
Close	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

#### Table columns

RGB Color	Display of the color.
Recipe_ID	Unique identification of the recipe.
Recipe_Name	Name of the recipe.
Recipe_AuxID	Additional identification of the recipe.
Recipe Location	Recipe type.
Locked Level	Red: The recipe must not be used for dye lot generation.
Quality_ID	Unique identification of the quality.
CombProcess_ID	Unique identification of the combined process.
Affinity_ID	Unique identification of the affinity.
Context-sensitive menu	
Refresh Grid	Refreshes the grid.
Select All	Selects all displayed combined processes.
Unselect All	Deselect all combined processes.
Locate	Opens the "Locate" dialog box.
Filter	Opens the "Filter" dialog box.
Show/Hide Columns	Opens the "Selected Fields" dialog box. Using the "move" buttons, you can move the field columns to be displayed to the "Selected Fields" and remove the field columns that are not to be displayed.
Set Font	Opens the "Font" dialog box used to define the font for the table text.
Find in	Select the requested table column and type the search crite- ria. The pointer jumps to the first line with the corresponding data.

# **Recipe Window (Datacolor PROCESS)**

	Old Gold Yellow 1630 (9728-001)	×
File Edit Recipe		
	🛏 🛨 🔤 🔤 Apply 📝 OK 🗶 Cancel 🤶 Help	
ID:	9728-001 AuxID: MB1209 Old Gold Yellow 1630	
Name:	MB1209 UId Gold Yellow 1630	_
Color type	7-42-00 MB1209 Old Gold Yellow 1630	-
duality	1 Cotton bleached	-
Affinity	CO-SPZ Cotton bleached	
CombProcess		-
Location:	Laboratory	
8	Dy Dye process Part DyeFiberGroup Colorant set	^
	▶ 1 Reactive exhaust 100% CO 1/10 Reactive Exhaust	
	# Product ID Product Name Conc Old Cond Unit Actual.	
	#         Product ID         Product Name         Conc         Old Conc Unit         Actual           0         14         Bezaktiv Yellow S-3R 150         0.7683         0.0000         50.34	
	1 15 Bezaktiv Red S-3B 150 0.1128 0.0000 % 150 %	
	2 4 Bezaktiv Green S-4B 0.2301 0.0000 % 100 %	
PassFail		•
ا 🔏	Modify Template	
User : DCI d	created 03.10.2002, modified 03.10.2002 by DCI	

### Functions of the "Recipe" menu

Is used to modify a recipe and keep a copy of the original rec- ipe. Refer to <i>Production Correction on page 5-96</i> .
All loaded recipe components (using the "Load and Modify Template" button) are to be removed.
Opens the "Dye Lot List" window with the existing dye lot of the selected recipe. Refer to <i>Datacolor TICKET - Dye Lot on page 5-117</i> .
Opens the "New Dye Lot" dialog box. Refer to <i>Datacolor TICKET - Dye Lot on page 5-117</i> .

### Buttons on the top

First









📴 Apply	



Previous	Jumps to the recipe process.
Next	Jumps to the next recipe.
Last	Jumps to the last recipe of the list.
New	Prepares the window for specifying a new recipe.
Delete	Deletes the currently displayed recipe.
Apply	Saves the currently displayed data. The window is not closed.
OK	Saves the currently displayed data and the window closes.
Cancel	Closes the window without saving.

Jumps to the first recipe of the list.

### Parameters

ID	Unique identification of the recipe.
AuxID	Additional identification of the recipe.
Name	Unique name of the recipe.
Color Type	Display of the color type.
Quality	Selection of the quality.
Affinity	Display of the affinity.
CombProcess	Selection of the combined process.
Location	Selection of the recipe type.
Traffic Light	The "traffic light" may be set to red if the recipe must not be used for dye lot generation.
Pass Fail (button)	The color difference between the color type and the last batch is calculated and displayed.

### Dye process table

Displays data of the dye process(es).

### **Colorant table**

Displays data of the colorants used for the recipe. It is possible to modify the recipe.

### Buttons on the footer

Load and Modify Template (or Modify Template)

Opens the "Root Recipe" dialog box with the list of all products with there relative amounts. Refer to *Root Recipe Dialog Box on page 7-149*.

New Dye Lot

Opens the "New Dye Lot" dialog box. Refer to *Datacolor TICKET - Dye Lot on page 5-117*.

# **Root Recipe Dialog Box**

	0	Θ	4	6	DYE TANK O
2	VOL	Volume	0	I	
3			0	I	
4	PE-ELB	Perivet ELP	1	g/l	
5	EM-DPR	Emigen DPR	10	g/l	
6					DYESTUFFS
7	85	Remazol Yellow GR	6,13235	g/l	
8	80	Remazol Brilliant Red F3B Gran.	0,08437	g/l	
9	77	Remazol Brilliant Blue R Spec. Gr	1,73236	g/l	
10					ALKALI TANK
11	SOD-SIL-38	Sodium Silicate 38 Bé	50	ml/l	
12	NaOH38	Caustic Soda 39* Bé	5	ml/l	

#### Table columns

- Sequence of the use
- Product ID
- Product name
- e Relative amount
- O Unit
- Remarks

### Buttons

Append

Opens the "Insert" dialog box, used to insert call offs, dyestuffs, products, parameters and notes.

Inse	ert
	<u>C</u> allOff
	<u>D</u> yestuff
	Product
	Parameter
	Note
	,
	<u>Operation</u>
	🔀 <u>C</u> ancel



### Note

Do not use operate with the dyestuff class as dyestuff placeholder. The color recipe will thereby be duplicated. When you insert an operation, all items are grabbed from the operation and saved in the generated recipe. Recipes are not adjusted, if you change the operation. Production recipes created with the Datacolor TICKET are stored with a flat structure. All recipes must be adjusted manually.

• All items are added to the end of the list. Do not forget to move the products to the correct position in the recipe. Use the "Drag and Drop" method to move items to a different position.

Delete	Removes the currently selected table line(s).
ОК	Saves the currently displayed data, and the dialog box closes.
Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving.

# **Dye Lots List Window**

<u>N</u> ew	<u>M</u> odify	<u> </u>	Open	<u>D</u> elete	Quick Searc	h \llbracket	<u>G</u> enerate	👖 Close			
DyeLot_I	D R	edye	DyeLot	ProductT	oBeReserved	Prod state	ProdStateText	Correction	Recipe_ID	Customer_ID	Quality
8787878	7		-			0	Generation needed		135:01		9
990422-0	101		-			20	Active	1	129		9
990426-0	101		-			40	Dyeing finished		129		9
990426-0	02					0	Generation needed		661		DLCOM
990426-0	105		-			20	Active	1	129		9
990427-0	103		-			40	Dyeing finished		64		1
990427-0	08		-			10	Scheduled		64	M&S	1
990427-0	11					0	Generation needed		64		1
990427-0	12		-			10	Scheduled		64		1
990427-0	13		-			10	Scheduled		64		1
990427-0	114					10	Scheduled		64		1
990427-0	115		-			0	Generation needed		64		1
990428-0	102		-			40	Dyeing finished		277 · 001		9
990428-0	05					40	Dyeing finished		64	M&S	1
990428-0	08		-			20	Active	-	64		1
990428-0	109		-			20	Active		277		10
990429-0	01		-			10	Scheduled		64		1
990429-0	02		-			10	Scheduled		61	M&S	1
990429-0	12					10	Scheduled		277 · 001		10
990506-0	01		-			10	Scheduled		681		9
990506-0	02		-			0	Generation needed	-	135:01		9
990507-0	101		-			0	Generation needed		135:01	RW	9
990507-0	02		-			10	Scheduled		277 · 001		10
											F

#### Menu functions

Refer to the Datacolor Process help (Press F1).

Buttons	
New	Opens the "New Dye Lot" dialog box for specifying a new dye lot. Refer to <i>Datacolor TICKET - Dye Lot on page 5-117</i> .
Modify	Opens the "New Dye Lot" dialog box. Refer to <i>Datacolor TICKET - Dye Lot on page 5-117</i> .
Open	Opens the "New Recipe" dialog box with the selected recipe. Refer to <i>Datacolor TICKET - Dye Lot on page 5-117</i> .
Delete	Deletes the currently selected recipe after confirmation.
Quick Search	Opens the "Quick Search" dialog box.
Generate	Generates the selected dye lots (only if not generated).
Close	Closes the window. If data is altered, the program requests the data be saved.

#### Table columns

Find in

Refer to the Datacolor Process help (Press F1).

Select the requested table column and type the search criteria. The pointer jumps to the first line with the corresponding data.

# New Dye Lot Dialog Box

## **Recipe Selection Tab**

New dyeld	)t	<u> ×</u>
DyeLot_ID	25022002-1	D AuxID
DyeLot_Name		
Recipe selection	fachine selection	
Recipe	279-003 V0006 PIST/	ACHE - jobticket example
Color type	279 V0006 PIST/	ACHE
CombProcess		
Customer	•	
Quality_ID	Quality_Name	Grey quality Quality_A
1	Cotton bleached	
CoBa	Cotton Baia	
		-
•		•
	🗐 <u>G</u> enerate	✓ OK X Cancel
	E Contrace	

Refer to the Datacolor Process help (Press F1).

# **Machine Selection Tab**

New dyeld	ot	- 🗆 ×
DyeLot_ID	25022002-1 0 AuxID	
DyeLot_Name		
Recipe selection	Machine selection	
Recipe	279-003 V0006 PISTACHE - jobticket example	•
CombProcess		
	Continuous Reactive Cold Pad Batch (Soda/	Watergla 🔺
		-
Length	2754 m WeightPerQuantity	619.65 kg
	Machine_ID Machine_Name	-
	FOUL1 FOULARD 01	
	4901 Trog volume 501 Pickup	70 %
Total volume	4901 Trog volume 501 Pickup	/0 %
Note		
	🗐 Generate 🗸 🗸 🖉	X Cancel

Refer to the Datacolor Process help (Press F1).

# **Datacolor SORT (Option)**

# **Datacolor SORT List Window**

### Table columns

The data (table columns) to be displayed and the names of the table columns can be altered using the "User's Browser Definition" function of the "Tools" menu. Refer to *Browser Customizing on page 4-6*.

Sort Job Name	Unique name of the sort job.
Sort Script Name	Unique name of the sort related script.
Name	Name of the standard.
Modification Date	Date of last modification.
Description	Description of the standard.

#### Functions of the "Datacolor Sort" and the context-sensitive menu

Refer to *Menu Functions of the Sort Job Menu on page 7-155* and for general functions of the context-sensitive menu *Functions of the "Basic Data" Menu on page 7-10*.

# **Job Result Window**



#### Menu Functions of the Sort Job Menu

Maintain Sample Property

Recalculate

Refer to Maintain the Sample Property on page 5-131.

If you open an existing sort job, the program recalculates the job with the settings and batches saved in the job.

Executing the option "Recalculate" - the program reads the Sort Script again and re-builds the job with all modified settings. If "I want to use a Datacolor Tools Standard" was activated in the job, all new batches are added automatically. This task is very important, if you build the groups and tapers on the basis of fabric length. For example, if some of the fabric rolls have been delivered and the remaining length has changed, the job must be recalculated, so that the new length is taken into account when new clusters and tapers are built.

Options

Copy

You can select other data to be displayed in the "Job Result" window:

	View Options	×
	Table Options         L*       dE(CMC)         a*       dL(CMC)         b*       dC(CMC)         C*       dH(CMC)         h       VI(GG)         T(GG)       VI(CIE)         T(CIE)       OK	Graph Options C Lab Graph Difference Graph Cancel
Batch removed	roll) is delivered. The sam	rom a job, e.g., if the sample (fabric ple is grayed out but it is not e-activate the sample, remove the
Modify Job	Refer to Modifying a SOR	T job on page 5-125.
Save Job	Saves the job.	
Save Job As	You can specify a copy of	an existing job using the function.

The copy of the job can be used to cluster and taper with new

This task copies the entire table to the Windows clipboard.

E.g., this is a simple way to transfer the data to Excel.

conditions without loosing the original data.

Print Preview	Shows the print out in the Job Result table. Refer to <i>Examples of Printouts on page 7-158</i> .
Print	Prints the result without displaying on screen. Refer to <i>Examples of Printouts on page 7-158</i> .
ASCII Output (optional)	Writes the job result to an ASCII file (An ASCII form must exist). Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20</i> .
Close Sort Job	Closes the sort job.

Standard	Bor										
Tolerance	CMC	2:1									
Illuminant	D65										
Sort type	Gro	up and Tap	er								
Clustered by	Colo	)r								_	_
Tapered by	Colo	r								_	
Tolerance Scaling	1									_	
Distance Color	0.2		≻	Grou	up and/o	or ta	nor			_	-
Min pieces in cluster	8		-(-		litions	n ta	hei			_	-
Max pieces in cluster	-			Cont	nuons					_	-
Minimum Amount	+									_	-
Maximum Amount	-									_	-
Tapering method	Line	ar								-	-
Taper Distance	0.3									_	-
Print sort order		Group/Tape	ar J							_	-
Batch	_	dE(CMC)		deremen	dH(CMC)	0	35	123	Т	۲	~
200204-C1440307-037	13	0.47	0.33	-0.20	-0.27	Ś		1 **	-	ř	<b>()</b> [
200204-C1440307-037 208205 D7460205 017	75	0.47	0.33	-0.20	-0.27		Bat	ches		$\vdash$	-
200205-D7460205-017 200205-D7460205-021	76	0.43	-0.31	0.08	0.46		not			$\square$	-
		0.58	-0.31					stered		$\square$	-
200205-D7460205-024		the colu		0.14	0.45	$\rightarrow$	and				-
200200 01 100000 0		er to re-		0.27	0.39			ered			-
200200-22010200-0	neau the ta		oruer	-0.19	-0.19		, ap	orea		$\square$	
200203-6207 0300-03				-0.29	-0.17		<b>—</b>	-	-		
200205-E2070606-085	130		0.33	-0.32	-0.34						
200205-E2070406-042	119	0.20	0.00	-0.12	-0.16	A	1	1	в		
200204-C1440107-001	1	0.20	0.00	-0.07	-0.19	A 👘	1	2			
200207-G7350101-008		0.12	0.00	-0.09	-0.08	A	1	3			
200206-F1990303-029	184	0.24	-0.03	-0.20	-0.14	A	1	4			
200207-G7350101-005	217	0.12	-0.01	-0.09	-0.08	A –	1	5			ſ
200205-E2070406-041E	118	0.10	-0.01	-0.09	-0.03	A	1	6	G		[
200205-E4180709-093	160	0.21	-0.03	-0.18	-0.11	A	1	7			Г
200205-E2070406-045	120	0.14	-0.03	-0.11	-0.08	A	1	8			Γ
200206-F1990303-025	183	0.26	-0.05	-0.17	-0.18	А	1	9	E		Γ
200205-E4180509-065	153	0.14	-0.05	-0.12	-0.06	A	1	10	Г	Η	F
200204-C1440207-013	4	0.25	-0.08	-0.09	-0.22	А	1	11	+	H	F
200206-F3940101-001	187	0.07	-0.06	-0.01	-0.04	A	1	12	F		F
200207-G7350101-001	216	0.24	-0.10	-0.19	-0.11	Δ	1	13	С		F
200205-D1870102-005	57	0.24	-0.10	-0.17	-0.08	Д	1	14	ſ	Η	F
200206-G5650303-045	215	0.16	-0.09	-0.06	-0.13	A	1	15	+	H	F
200205-C6330303-033	51	0.23	-0.12	-0.13	-0.14	Δ	1	16	D	Η	+
200203-C0300003-005	10	0.25	0.07	-0.10	-0.08	A	2	1	н	Η	F
200206-G5650203-021	207	0.10	0.07	-0.13	-0.00	Δ	2	2	-	Η	+
200205-E2070306-025	111	0.20	0.07	-0.10	-0.14	Δ	2	3	+	H	-
200205-E2070306-025 200206-F4500202-017	194	0.16	0.00	-0.10	-0.10	Δ	2	4	+	H	+
200206-G5650203-017	206	0.20	0.07	-0.23	-0.18	Δ	2	5	+	Η	+
200206-F4500102-005	191	0.20	0.07	-0.20	-0.16	м А	2	6	+	H	-
200205-E4180709-089	159	0.25	0.08	-0.17	-0.16	м А	2	7	+	H	-
200205-E4180709-089 200206-F4500202-021	159	0.27	0.08			A A	2	1	-	$\square$	-
				-0.16	-0.09	A			+	$\square$	-
200207-G7350101-008/	_	0.19	0.01	-0.13	-0.13	A	3	2	+	$\square$	-
200204-C1440307-033	12	0.13	0.01	-0.08	-0.10	A	3	3			Ļ
200204-C1440507-065	26	0.25	0.01	-0.16	-0.19		1	1	A	F	F
200206-F1990403-037	186	0.38	-0.06	-0.32	-0.20	B	1	2			1

## Details to the Job Result Table



### **Examples of Printouts**

Use the menu function **Sort Job**, **Print Preview**, or **Print** to show or print the sort result.

## Example 1:

Printout sorted by group and/or taper code

01.10.2003 11:10 DCI			<u>datacolor</u>					
JobName Bordo 30.09.2 Standard Bordo Tolerance CMC 2:1	2003 11:43:07 Di	55			SortType ClusteredBy TaperingMethod TaperedBy TaperDistance	Group and Taper Color Linear Color 0.30		
Tolerance Scaling Distance Color		PiecesInCluste PiecesInCluste		8	Minimum Amoun Maximum Amour			
Batches not clustered								
BatchName		dE(CMC	: du CM		MC, <u>dH(CMC</u> ,			
200204-C1440307-037		0.47	0.33	-0.20				
200204-C1440307-037 200205-D7460205-017		0.47	0.33 -0.20	-0.20				
200205-D7460205-017		0.45	-0.31	0.00				
200205-D7460205-024A		0.57	-0.32	0.14				
200205-D7460505-069		0.48	-0.08	0.27				
200205-E2070206-017		0.32	0.18	-0.19	-0.19			
200205-E2070306-037		0.41	0.22	-0.29	-0.17			
200205-E2070606-085		0.57	0.33	-0.32	-0.34			
TaperID 1	ClusterTap	erID A/1				<u>Sum. of</u>		
<u>BatchName</u>	<u>Seque</u>	nce <u>dE(CMC</u>	; <u>dL(CM</u>	<u>c; dC(C)</u>	MC <u>dH(CMC</u>			
200205-E4180709-089		1 0.27	0.08	-0.22	-0.13			
200206-F4500102-005		2 0.25	0.08	-0.17	-0.16			
200206-G5650203-017		3 0.28	0.07	-0.20	-0.18			
200206-F4500202-017		4 0.26	0.07	-0.23	-0.10			
200200-1 4300202-017		5 0.16	0.08	-0.10	-0.10			
200205-E2070306-025								
200205-E2070306-025 200206-G5650203-021		6 0.20	0.07	-0.13				
200205-E2070306-025 200206-G5650203-021 200204-C1440307-025		6 0.20 7 0.15	0.07 0.07	-0.10	-0.08			
200205-E2070306-025 200206-G5650203-021 200204-C1440307-025 200206-F4500202-021		6 0.20 7 0.15 8 0.18	0.07 0.07 0.03	-0.10 -0.16	-0.08 -0.09			
200205-E2070306-025 200206-G5650203-021 200204-C1440307-025 200206-F4500202-021 200207-G7350101-008A		6 0.20 7 0.15 8 0.18 9 0.19	0.07 0.07 0.03 0.01	-0.10 -0.16 -0.13	-0.08 -0.09 -0.13			
200205-E2070306-025 200206-G5650203-021 200204-C1440307-025 200206-F4500202-021 200207-G7350101-008A 200204-C1440307-033	1	6 0.20 7 0.15 8 0.18 9 0.19 0 0.13	0.07 0.07 0.03 0.01 0.01	-0.10 -0.16 -0.13 -0.08	-0.08 -0.09 -0.13 -0.10			
200205-E2070306-025 200206-G5650203-021 200204-C1440307-025 200206-F4500202-021 200207-G7350101-008A 200204-C1440307-033 200205-E2070406-042	1	6 0.20 7 0.15 8 0.18 9 0.19 0 0.13 1 0.20	0.07 0.07 0.03 0.01 0.01 0.00	-0.10 -0.16 -0.13 -0.08 -0.12	-0.08 -0.09 -0.13 -0.10 -0.16			
200205-E2070306-025 200206-G5650203-021 200204-C1440307-025 200206-F4500202-021 200207-G7350101-008A 200204-C1440307-033 200205-E2070406-042 200204-C1440107-001	1 1 1	6 0.20 7 0.15 8 0.18 9 0.19 0 0.13 1 0.20 2 0.20	0.07 0.03 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.00	-0.10 -0.16 -0.13 -0.08 -0.12 -0.07	-0.08 -0.09 -0.13 -0.10 -0.16 -0.19			
200205-E2070306-025 200206-G5650203-021 200204-C1440307-025 200206-F4500202-021 200207-G7350101-008A 200204-C1440307-033 200205-E2070406-042	1	6 0.20 7 0.15 8 0.18 9 0.19 0 0.13 1 0.20 2 0.20 3 0.12	0.07 0.07 0.03 0.01 0.01 0.00	-0.10 -0.16 -0.13 -0.08 -0.12	-0.08 -0.09 -0.13 -0.10 -0.16 -0.19 -0.08			

DCIMatch/DynaSortByCluster/English/Version 1.0/DynaSort_OrderdBy_Clust

Page 1

### Example 2:

Printout sorted by name (sort order depends on order on result screen)

Standard Bor	do 30.09.2003 1 do C 2:1	1:43:07	D65				SortType ClusteredBy TaperingMethod	Group and Taper Color Linear	Tolerand Distance Tapered			Таре	erDistance	1.00 0.20 0.30	
MinPiec	esinCluster 8		Max	Pieces	InClust	er	Minim	um Amount	M	aximum A	Amount				
OrderedBy Clu	ster														
<u>BatchName</u>		<u>L*</u>	<u>a*</u>	<u>b*</u>	<u>C*</u>	<u>h*</u>		<u>dE(CM</u>	IC) <u>dL(CMC</u>	1 <u>dC(CM</u>	<u>C) dH(CN</u>	<u>C</u>	ClusterPathS	ieg.	
00204-C1440307-0			40.21					0.47	0.33	-0.20	-0.27	Pass			
00205-D7460205-0			40.48					0.43		0.08	0.38	Pass			
00205-D7460205-0			40.59					0.58	-0.31	0.16	0.46	Pass			
00205-D7460205-0			40.57					0.57	-0.32	0.14	0.45	Pass			
00205-D7460505-0 00205-E2070206-0			40.89					0.48	-0.08 0.18	0.27	0.39	Pass Pass			
00205-E2070206-0 00205-E2070306-0			39.95					0.32	0.18	-0.19	-0.19	Pass			
00205-E2070506-C			39.95					0.41	0.22	-0.29	-0.34	Pass			
00205-E4180709-0			40.09					0.27	0.08	-0.22	-0.13	Pass	A/1/	1	
00206-F4500102-0			40.20					0.25	0.08	-0.17	-0.16	Pass	A11		
00206-05650203-0			40.15					0.28	0.07	-0.20	-0.18	Pass	A/1/		
00206-F4500202-0			40.05					0.26	0.07	-0.23	-0.10	Pass	A/1/	-	
00205-E2070306-0	)25	27.48	40.33	17.38	43.92	23.32		0.16	0.08	-0.10	-0.10	Pass	A/1/	5	
00206-05650203-0	021	27.47	40.30	17.30	43.85	23.24		0.20	0.07	-0.13	-0.14	Pass	A/1/	6	
00204-C1440307-0	125	27.48	40.32	17.41	43.02	23.36		0.15	0.07	-0.10	-0.08	Pass	A/1/	7	

# Sort Job Maintenance Dialog Box

### New Sort Job Wizard Tab

rt Job Maintenance	
New Sort Job Wizard Script and Filter Set of Batches Tapering Parameters View Options Outpu	ut Options
This dialog helps you maintaining a job for sorting and/or tapering samples.	
All Data)	71
Select an existing sort job Bordo 08.10.2003 15:34:55	
Note: If you switch to input mode and enter a new name, you can create a new job.	
Description	
1	
	OK Abbrechen Übernehmen Hilfe

### Parameters

Select an existing sort job Selection box with the name of the sort job.

Description Text box for an additional description of the sort job.

## Script and Filter Tab

rt Job Maintenance				
New Sort Job Wizard Script and Filter Set of Ba	itches Tap	pering Param	eters View Options Output Options	
Script Name and Filter The Sort Script defines the sort operation,	and with the	e filter you se	lect which batches will be proposed for the sort.	
Sort Script (All Data) Taper only CMC F 1 Taper only CMC F 1.0, (		distance 0.3	inear path	
I want to use a ColorTools Standard Standard  Standard  Note: If you leave the stand Use only Batches with these properties:		-	include new batches Measure average will be used	
Batch Property	Туре	Use Filter	Value	٦
Use only batches from this folder				
BAT_IMAGE (ImageMaster Batch Image)	Ab			
			OK Abbrechen Übernehmen Hilf	e

#### Parameters

Sort Script	Selection box with the currently used sort job.
Check boxes	If you check "I want to use a Datacolor Tools Standard" only Datacolor Tools standards are displayed to select from. The batches linked to this standard are listed in the set of Batches" tab. They are already selected if "Automatically include new batches" is checked as well. In this case, it is not possible to remove batches from the list. This is only possible if "Automatically include new batches" is not selected.
Standard	Selection box with the selected standard. If you do not select a standard, the program calculates the average of all batches and uses this as the theoretical stan- dard for the pass/fail decision.
Measure	Start button for the measurement. Refer to <i>Measurement on page 5-20</i> .

### Table:

You can set filters to reduce the number of batches that are displayed for selection. A filter might be a specific folder or any user defined field you have created either with Datacolor Tools or with Datacolor SORT.

## Set of Batches Tab



Selection table for the batches to be used.

# **Tapering Parameters Tab**

Job Maintenance		
v Sort Job Wizard   Script and F	ilter Set of Batches Tapering Parameters View Options Output Options	
Tapering Parameters You have decided to taper	What type of tapering do you prefer?	
- Sort by-	Tapering Method	
Color	C Next Neighbour	
dl(CMC)	<ul> <li>Linear Path</li> </ul>	
	C Minimum Path	
🗖 dC(CMC)		
🔲 dH(CMC)		
Start a new taper sequence if d	stance (CMC) greater than 0.6	

### Parameters

Sort by	
Color	Samples are sorted by color. All three dimensions are used (dL, dC and dH).
dL(xxx)	Samples are sorted by dL only. (xxx) = placeholder for selected Pass/Fail formula (1 dimensional).
dC(xxx)	Samples are sorted by dC only. (xxx) = placeholder for selected Pass/Fail formula (1 dimensional).
dH(xxx)	Samples are sorted by dH only. (xxx) = placeholder for selected Pass/Fail formula (1 dimensional).

dL(xxx) plus dC(xxx) or dH(xxx)

Samples are sorted by dL plus dC or dH.

(xxx) = placeholder for selected Pass/Fail formula (2 dimensional).

Start a new taper if distance (xxx) is greater

This tolerance defines the distance between the batches. If the distance is above the limit, a new taper starts. If "Color" is selected as the sort type, the limit corresponds to a color difference dE(xxx).

We call the limit a distance because it is not a real color difference if you select a 2-dimensional sort, e.g. dL plus dC. The distance represents in this case:

$$Maxdis = \sqrt{dL(xxx)^2 + dC(xxx)^2}$$

(xxx) = placeholder for selected Pass/Fail formula

### **Tapering Method**



Note

The program starts tapering with a batch that has a connection to a compatible cluster. This allows a taper to be built across the cluster borders

Next neighbor	The program searches for the closest next batch.
Linear path	The program calculates a regression line and tapers the batches along this line.
Minimum path	The program calculates the total distance of all batches of a taper path using "next neighbor" and "linear path" methods. The method with the lower total distance is selected as the "Minimum Path".

# **View Options Tab**

Sort Job Maintenance	×
New Sort Job Wizard   Script and Filter   Set of Batches   Tapering	Parameters View Options Output Options
View Options Define the columns you want to see in the result window an	d the graphical display modus
□ L* IZ dE(CMC) C	iraph Options ' Lab Graph ' Difference Graph
	OK Abbrechen Übernehmen Hilfe

In the "View Options" tab, you can define what you would like to see in the results window.

## **Output Options Tab**

t Job Maintenance							)
lew Sort Job Wizard   So	ript and Filter Set of Bato	ches Tapering Parameters View Opt	ions Output Option	18			
Output Options How do you want	your output to be sorted a	nd identified?					
Print Output Sort Order Sy Group/Taper c				]			
C By Sample Name							
Group Codes C 1, 2, 3				]			
A, B, C C L*a*b* code	First Group Code	A					
Taper Codes				]			
🔿 A, B, C	First Taper Code	1					
Group/Taper Separato	ſ	7		1			
				ок  Г	Abbrechen	Übernehmen	Hilfe
			_				

The last wizard page is used to set up the output and to select the coding you would like to use for groups (clusters) and tapers. The print output sort order is linked to individual print forms. One is used to print the job ordered by Group/Taper code, and the second is sorted identically to the order you have displayed in the output screen. You can change the order in the output screen by clicking in the table columns.

# Sort Script Maintenance Dialog Box

### Script Name Tab

Script Name       General Settings       Tapering Parameters       View Options       Output Options         This dialog helps you maintaining a script for sorting and/or tapering your samples. The script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will be sorted / tapered.         This dialog is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please press Cancel now.         Select an existing script         All Data         Taper only       CMC F 1.0         Note: If you switch to input mode and enter a new name, you can create a new script.         Description         Taper only CMC F 1.0, Color, taper distance 0.3; linear path         OK       Abbrechen         Upernetment       Hilfe	Sort Script Maintenance	×
The script defines the fundamental criteria, according to which the batches will be sorted / tapered. This dialog is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please press Cancel now. Select an existing script             (All Data)             Taper only CMC F 1.0             Note: If you switch to input mode and enter a new name, you can create a new script.              Description             Taper only CMC F 1.0, Color, taper distance 0.3; linear path	Script Name General Settings Tapering Parameters View Options Output Options	
Select an existing script          (All Data)         Taper only CMC F 1.0         Note: If you switch to input mode and enter a new name, you can create a new script.         Description         Taper only CMC F 1.0, Color, taper distance 0.3; linear path		
(All Data)          Taper only CMC F 1.0          Note: If you switch to input mode and enter a new name, you can create a new script.       Description         Taper only CMC F 1.0, Color, taper distance 0.3; linear path	This dialog is intended for experienced users only. If you feel unsafe, please press Cancel now.	l
Taper only CMC F 1.0 Note: If you switch to input mode and enter a new name, you can create a new script. Description Taper only CMC F 1.0, Color, taper distance 0.3; linear path	Select an existing script	
Description Taper only CMC F 1.0, Color, taper distance 0.3; linear path		
Taper only CMC F 1.0, Color, taper distance 0.3; linear path	Note: If you switch to input mode and enter a new name, you can create a new script.	
	Description	I
OK Abbrechen Übernehmen Hilfe	Taper only CMC F 1.0, Color, taper distance 0.3; linear path	
OK Abbrechen Übernehmen Hilfe		
OK Abbrechen Übernehmen Hilfe		
	OK Abbrechen Übernehmen Hilfe	]

#### Parameters

Select an existing scriptSelection box with the name of the sort script.DescriptionText box for an additional description of the sort script.

## **General Settings Tab**

Sort Script Maintenance	×
Script Name General Settings Tapering Parameters View Options Output Options	
General Settings Do you want to group or taper or both? What are your fundamental colorimetric conditions?	
Method C Group only C Taper only C Group and Taper	
Tolerance         Kall Data}            CMC 2:1	
<u>I</u> lluminant (All Data) / 10	
Maximum distance (CMC) Batch to <u>S</u> tandard	
OK Abbrechen Übernehmen Hilfe	

#### Parameters

Group only	The program builds subsets of samples (clusters, groups) that pass the pass/fail decision based on the selected for- mula and tolerance factor.
Taper only	The program searches for the best sequence of samples that pass the pass/fail decision based on the selected formula and tolerance factor.
Group and Taper	In the 1st step the program builds subsets of samples (clus- ters, groups) and in the 2nd step it tapers the samples in each cluster.
Tolerance	All tolerance formulas can be selected.



## Note

M&S89 is optional. If M&S 89 is used you must select one of the M&S illuminants (msTL84-10, msD65-10, msA-10). No results are displayed if other than ms-illuminants are selected.

Maximum distance[xxx] Batch to Standard

Tolerance factor (scaling factor) used for Pass/Fail. (XXX) is a placeholder for the selected formula.



### Note

This scaling factor modifies the tolerance value set in the tolerance block.

### **Tapering Parameters Tab**

Refer to Tapering Parameters Tab on page 7-163.

## **View Options Tab**

Refer to View Options Tab on page 7-165.

### **Output Options Tab**

Refer to Output Options Tab on page 7-166.

# Sample Property Dialog Box

### Sample Property Tab

Sample Propert	· · ·
Standard:	Bordo
Batch:	200205-E4180709-089
Property:	
Bat_Fabric_V BAT_FabricL	/width
BAT_IMAGE	
Length	
Quality Type	
(-)	
Value 44.0	Save
	Save
	Save OK Cancel Hel

#### Parameters

Standard	Standard, the sample is related to.
Batch	Batch, the sample is related to.
Property	Properties specified for the sample.
Value	Value of the selected property.

# **Property Tab**

			×
Property			
Property type			
C Standard	Batch	C Difference C System	
Mana	DAT. Eshvisi su sik		í
Name:	BAT_FabricLength	•	
Data type			
C String	Float	C Double	
C Long	C Integer	Calculation	
✓ Store to data	base	Length: 0	
🔽 Required		Precision: 1	
🔽 Datacolor To	ools input field	Default:	
Description:	Batch fabric length		
	Save	Delete	
		OK Cancel Help	

### Parameters

Property type	Selection of the property type.
Name	Selection (or input) of the name.
Data type	Selection of the data type.
Store to database	If checked, the property is stored in the database.
Required	If checked, the value must be filled in (mandatory field).
Database Tools input field	If checked, the field is defined as input field in Datacolor TOOLS.
Length	Length of a field of type "String".
Precision	Defines the number of decimals.
Default	Field for setting a default value.
Description	Description of the property.

# Sort Job Definition Options Dialog Box

In the sort job definition options dialog box can be specified, which dialog boxes of the "Sort Job" wizard and tabs of the "Sort Job Maintenance" dialog box are displayed for specifying and modifying sort jobs. The invisible tabs are filled with the corresponding data of assigned sort script.

Sort Job Definition Options	×
Check the input pages you want to see when a new job is defined, or an existing job is maintained. Invisible pages are filled with the values from the Sort Script.	
Grouping Parameters	
🔽 Group Limits	
Tapering Parameters	
View Options	
🔽 Output Options	
OK Can	cel



## Note

If you want to be sure that a user works only with the predefined settings of the sort script, you have to limit the access rights, respectively.

Login as User "DCI" and run the option "User Administration" (Menu Tools  $\rightarrow$  User Manager  $\rightarrow$  User Administration).

# **User Field Pre-selection Dialog Box**

The "User.fld" file may contain many fields that cannot be used by Datacolor SORT. This task is used to select only relevant user defined fields for Datacolor SORT.

User Field Pre-Selection	<u>×</u>
Batch Properties BAT_DCC_STATUS BAT_IMAGE BRAND_LABEL BRAND_MANAGER BRAND_MNGER_EMAIL BUYER CHROMA_BRIGHT_EXTREME CHROMA_BRIGHT_SLIGHT CHROMA_DULL_EXTREME CHROMA_DULL_SLIGHT COMMENTS_1 COUNTRY_ORIGIN DCC_CAL_1_104 DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_105 DCC_CAL_1_1205 DCC_CAL_1_1205 DCC_CAL_1_13_04 DCC_CAL_1_14_04	Pre-Selection Properties          BAT_FABRIC_LENGTH         BAT_QUALITY_LEVEL         FABRIC_SUPPLIER
Add All >> Add >	< Remove << Remove All
	Save Cancel

Refer to Pre-Selections of User Defined Fields on page 5-132.

# **Datacolor BLEND (Option)**

# **Blend Fiber Set Window**

olorant Set	Values		Actual colorant :	Wool Yellow	/			_	Show and prin	nt	
ame	* Wool Felt 2										
	* Wool Felt 2		R[%]								
dustry Type	* Fiber blending		ω								
/e Process	* Wool Felt 2		_								
ethode Calibration		•	8								
ram O	* 1.0806										
ram 1	* 0.043893		<del></del>					$\checkmark$			
eation Date	22.10.2004 15:12:57										
dification Date	22.10.2004 15:27:22		8					_			
[Sigma]	1.60[ 0.0]		· ·			_					
nit	%										7
	10		4	00	450	50	00	550	600	650	7
RGB Product [3]	Created	Modifie	d			dE	Product Ty	/pe	Min Conc	Max Conc	Stren
White 2	22.10.2004 15:27:20		2004 15:27:35			1.601		hite	0	100	1
Black2	22.10.2004 15:27:22	22.10.2	2004 15:27:35			1.601	W	hite	0	100	1
Wool Yellow						0.000	Color Fi	ber	0	100	1
New	. 1										
alibration serie						Compone	nts in one calibr	ation se	rie		
RGB	Sample [1]	dE	Strength	Don't use		Product	[1]	Туре		Concentration	Jnit
	Yellow-wool-felt [100.00]	0.000				Wool Yel		Color F	iber	100	6
				1			New				
							19077				

#### Color codes of the fields

Green	Values that can be modified. Select the field and press the space bar.
Blue	Values calculated while opening the window.
Pale yellow	Values that cannot be modified.
Red *	Mandatory fields.
Buttons	
Show and Print	Prints the complete set of data. The print-out is based on a print form.
Calculate	
Single	The selected colorant is recalculated.
All	All colorants of the colorant set are recalculated.
Store	Saves the colorant set.
End	Closes the window. If data has been changed, a dialog box with a save request appears.

### **Header Information**

Name	Unique name of the fiber set.
ID	Unique identification of the fiber set.
Industrie Type	Type of the dyeing process. Value: "Fiber Blending".
Type Process	Dye process name.
Method Calibration	"Rohner Function" or "Approximation".
Param 1	Parameter 1
Param 2	Parameter 2
Creation Date	Date of creation.
Modification Date	Date of last modification.
dE (Sigma)	Delta E: color difference (sample - theory) and standard deviation dependent to the calibration method.
Unit	Unit used for the concentration.

## **Graphical Display**

Graphical view of the calibration results: Values and units of the axis are displayed according to the selected analysis.

Reset	Resets the "Zoom" and "With Origin" settings.
Change Color	Refer to Customizing Graphs on page 4-30.
Change Printer Color	Refer to Customizing Graphs on page 4-30.
With Origin	If checked, the current graph is displayed with the coordinate zero point.
Grid	If checked, a grid is displayed.
Fonts	Opens the "Font" dialog box used to define the font for the graph. Useful for "R% and K/S vs. Wavelength" graph.
Points	If checked, the measurement points are displayed.
Log View	The graph is based on logarithmic values.
More	Refer to Customizing Graphs on page 4-30.
Visible Curves	List of all curves. The curves may be selected or the selection can be canceled using a mouse click.
Clicking on a curve:	
Select	Selects a curve. The measurement points are displayed with a greater diameter.
Hide	Hides the selected curve.
Do not use this point/Use	this point (not used for colorant set program) The selected point is either used or not used for calibration. The point is displayed in a red color if it is not used.
Restore all points	Resets all points. Only used for "Reflectance of Calibration Samples" and "Absorptions of Calibration Samples" graphs.

#### **Context-sensitive menus**

### Fiber Table

RGB	Color display.
Product	Unique name of the product. The header contains the number of listed products.
Created	Date and time of creation.
Modified	Date and time of the last modification.
dE	Delta E: color difference between current samples and the theoretical values. A red background indicates that there are no selected or measured calibration samples.
Product Type	White, Black or Colored.
Min. Conc.	Specification of the minimum concentration.
Max Conc.	Specification of the maximum concentration.
Strength	Product strength in percents.
New (button)	Click to add a new fiber.

### **Calibration Series Table**

Results of the calibration series. The first column displays the color of each sample.

RGB	Color display.
Sample	Unique name of the sample. The header contains the number of listed samples.
dE	Delta E: color difference dependent to the calibration method.
Strength	Relative strength in percents.
Do not use	If checked, the sample is not used for the calculation.
CNew (button)	Click to add a new calibration sample.

## **Components in One Calibration Series (Table)**

Product	Unique name of the product. The header contains the number of listed products.
Туре	Product type.
Concentration	Numeric value of the concentration.
Unit	Unit used for the concentration.
New (button)	Click to add a new product.

# **BLEND Match Dialog Box**

General Parameters	
Standard	Protected. Display of the selected standard.
General Buttons	
Save	Saves a manually created recipe. Refer to "Fixed" parameter in <i>Colorant Set Tab on page 7-118</i> .
Calculate	Starts the recipe calculation. Refer to <i>Calculation of A New Recipe Series on page 5-69</i> .
Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving. <i>Data that not has been saved will be lost.</i>

# Process Data for Fiber Matching Tab

tch		
itandard	4	
Olive-W	ool	
ocess D	ata for fiber matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic Settings	Save
vailable I		Calculate
Used	Fiberset	
	Wool Felt	
	Wool Felt - Approximation	
	KSP Baumwolle	
	KSP Baumwolle - Approx	
	Jay 1	
	Wool Set	
sed fiber Standard		
Fibra	mix 🔐	Cancel

### Parameters

Available Fiber sets	Table with the specified fiber sets.
Used Dye Set	Selected fiber set.
Part	Part of the selected fiber set. Refer to <i>Recipe Calculation</i> with several Fiber Sets on page 5-144.
Current Total [%]	Display of the currently used part.
Standard	Section of the Standard to be used.

## Dye Set Tab

Match			, k					
- Standard								
Jouverv	1001							
Process D	ata	for fiber matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic Set	tings					Save
Fiberset	Γ	Wool Felt Part [%] 100						Calculate
	neory	E Standard	r difference — Data} Share		Max Of Group	Share	> R%	
Selectio	n:						Save	
0/1		Dyestuff			Con	centration [%]		
A/S/N		Shown : 14 selected : 5	Compul	Fixed	Min.(100%)	Max.(100%)	Relation	
1	7	Wool-white-felt	Г			100		
2	2	Black-wool-felt				100		
3	ন	Yellow-wool-felt				100		
4		Orange-wool-felt				100		
5	<b>N</b>	Red-wool-felt				100		
6	2	Blue-wool-felt				100		
7		Navy-wool-felt				100		
8		Grey-wool-fett				100		
9		Brown-wool-felt				100		Cancel

### Parameters Fiber Set

Protected. Selected fiber set.

Batch and Color Difference

Selection of the Batch.

Share / Max. of Share	Shows the part (in %) of the current fiber set and the current summary (in %) of all selected fiber sets.
Group	Selection or definition of dyestuff groups. The <b>Save</b> button saves the group with all settings of the "Selection" table. The <b>Delete</b> button deletes a group with all settings. Refer to <i>Calculation of A New Recipe Series on page 5-69</i> .
Table for fiber selection.	Refer to Recipe Calculation with several Fiber Sets on page 5-144.

### Lab Graphic Tab



### Graph

XY-Graph for the standard and all selected fibers. A recipe can be calculated, if the standard is inside of all possible triangles that can be drawn between each combination of three fibers.

### Parameters

Flber Set	Protected. Selected Fiber Set.
Take all	Check the box if all fibers are to be used.
Group	Selection or definition of dyestuff groups. The <b>Save</b> button saves the group with all settings of the "Selection" table. The <b>Delete</b> button deletes a group with all settings. Refer to <i>Calculation of A New Recipe Series on page 5-69</i> .
Box for fiber selection	Refer to Recipe Calculation with several Fiber Sets on page 5-144.

### **Settings Tab**

Refer to Settings Tab on page 7-120.
- HE 🛃 🖬 🕄		er 👪 🛛			E` 💔	60 🖻	1	See Charles						Sec. Ch	
Standard		Olive-Woo													
Formula		CieLab De	efault[D65,	A,F11]											
dE* D65	1	0.56	0.57	0.62	0.62	0.63	0.67	0.67	0.74	0.76	0.79	1.49	1.70	1.85	2.2
dE* A	0	0.56	0.55	0.61	0.58	0.58	0.63	0.65	0.70	0.78	0.70	1.44	1.56	1.69	2.2
dE* F111	0	0.60	\$ 0.61	0.70	0.67	0.67	0.71	0.73	0.78	0.82	0.78	1.49	1.71	1.87	2.3
dE* Average	0	0.57	0.58	0.64	0.63	0.63	0.67	0.68	0.74	0.79	0.76	1.47	1.66	1.80	2.3
Metamerism A	0.7	0.05	0.07	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.10	0.09	0.10	0.10	0.08	0.22	0.23	0.1
Metamerism F11	0	0.17	0.17	0.18	0.17	0.17	0.16	0.16	0.16	0.17	0.14	0.09	0.06	0.04	0.2
CMCCON02 A	0	3.00	2.99	2.98	2.98	2.98	2.97	2.97	2.97	2.98	2.95	2.91	2.82	2.79	2.9
CMCCON02 F11	0	2.11	2.12	2.14	2.13	2.13	2.11	2.11	2.09	2.13	2.10	2.06	2.05	2.04	1.8
Price	0	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.67	1.65	1.66	1.60	1.82	1.83	1.6
Total concentratio	n [%]	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.0
Trial		XX													
Dyestuff		1(3)	2(4)	3(3)	4(2)	5(4)	6(4)	7(4)	8(4)	9(4)	10(4)	11(4)	12(4)	13(4)	14(2)
Wool-white-felt	1233533			0.0000				0.0001			0.1306	0.0014		0.0001	
Black-wool-feit		29.4717	29.7363	30.1544	30.3211	30.2186	28.0384	27.6538	26.0062	28.9741	30.7579	26.4411	25.9293	25.5401	
Yellow-wool-feit		69.5161	69.5665	69.8456	69.6789	69.6881	69.8763	69.9470	70.0170	69.1112	69.1113	66.0323	63.9749	63.2585	72.354
Orange-wool-felt	000003								0.0000	0.0005	0.0002				
Red-wool-felt			0.0000												
Blue-wool-felt		1.0122	0.6972												
Navy-wool-felt						0.0927	2.0817	2.3991	3.9768						27.645
Grey-wool-felt							0.0036			1.9142		7.5252	0.0112		
Brown-wool-felt						0.0006							10.0846	11.2013	
Recipe with D65															

## **BLEND Recipe Calculation Result Table**

Refer to Recipe Calculation on page 5-142 and Recipe Correction on page 5-148.

#### **BLEND Correction Dialog Box**

General parameters	
Standard	Protected. Measured fiber blending.
Buttons	
Correction	Opens the "BLEND Correction Recipe Correction" dialog box.
Datacolor Tools	Opens the "Datacolor Tools" application for color quality con- trol. Standard and batch are transferred automatically from the Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} database to the Datacolor Tools database.
Evaluate	<b>Print:</b> Displays the colorimetric data in a print preview. <b>ASCII:</b> Creates a text file using a specified form. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20</i> .
Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving. <i>Data that not has been saved will be lost.</i>

#### Dye Set Tab

Correction for	'Wool-Olive'					
Standard					7	
Dyeset Lab-	Graphic Settings					_
Fiberset	Wool Felt Part [%] 100					
EF[%] dE/Mitheory dE/Mitheory Selection:	dE*1.20 dL*- <u>E</u> 500 600 700 to standard	ata} Wool (1)/1		M[D65,]*	1.56	Correction
	Dyestuff			Concentration [	61	1
	Shown : 14 selected : 3	%	Min.(100%)	Max.(100%)	Relation	
	Black-wool-feit	29.471		100		
2	Yellow-wool-felt	69.516		100		
3	Blue-wool-feit	1.0122		100		ColorTools
4	Wool-white-felt			100		Evaluate
5	Orange-wool-felt			100		Print
6	Red-wool-felt			100		
	Navy-wool-felt			100		ASCII
	Grey-wool-felt			100		
9	Brown-wool-felt			100		Cancel

#### Parameters

Fiber set	<i>Protected.</i> The fiber set name and the part of the corresponding fibre set (in %) are displayed on the top.
Batch and Color Differen	ce
	Selection of the measured sample produced according to the recipe to be corrected.
Information line:	Differences (dE and dL) between standard, batch, and "Dif. Formula". On the left, a graphical view of the differences is displayed. If the differences are out of tolerance, the message "Batch refused" appears and the traffic light is red.
Table:	Selection of dyes. Refer to <i>Preliminary Work on page 5-69</i> , section <i>Selecting dyestuffs for matching on page 5-71</i> .

#### Lab Graphic Tab

Refer to Lab Graphic Tab on page 7-178.

#### Settings Tab

Refer to Settings Tab on page 7-120.

#### **BLEND Correction Recipe Dialog Box**

andard 🦵	14 19 19 1			06	ve-Wool				stmetch act 🔀	(All Data)	
stoh 🔽				Olive-Wr	11110				Total batch	200230013	First dyeing
bre								-			
Add new dy	stuffist									less and the	
User selecte	100				-	B	est add Be	est por	bbe evitie	Reset	
	Dyest	uff	R	ecipe	New rec	ipe	+ Amount		Effect	Rel. %	
Black-woo	x-fet			147.359	13	4,191	-0.000	kg	1.08	-0.00	
Yellow-w				347.581		2.858	39.902		0.98	11.48	
Blue-wool	-fet			5.061	1	2.951	9.162	kg		181.03	
Total				500.000	50	0.000	49.06327	kg			
Batch to d	rop			0.000						1	C REALESS
fotal batchsis ieLab Defaul Burninant	(D65,)	New delEM	iew batchs	]	549.063	5	२[%]			/	
E D65	1.20	0.27	-0.10	0.14	0.20	9		1			Cancel
et A	0.08	0.27	-0.10	0.05	0.05						a contraction of the second
let F11	0.05	0.04	0.00	-0.04	-0.01	S				-	Show
	USumino			reason and a second			400	500	600	700	Print
		A DOUBLE	nputer add	1							ASOI
Evaluate Prink	AS	CII	The launch of	Mire date	LAIR CONTRACT						S 1 123 Depterson Control of Control
Evaluate Print User add	AS		lotime dE Ianual Cor		- Falls	oute to	ini >- 0		dE Limit		Save

#### Standard

Batch

Measured fiber blending.

Measured sample produced according to the recipe to be corrected.

SmartMatch in Production:

Used to save a production SmartMatch point.

Total Batch	Check the box if the batch is measured with all fibres.
First Dyeing	Check the box if it is the first correction of the recipe and a SmartMatch point should be saved. This function is only enabled if checked.

#### Fibre tab

Recipe table:

1 st column	Color display.
Dyestuff	Names of the fibers.
Recipe	Values of the original recipe. (Absolute amount of dye lot)
+ Amount	Values of the correction.
Effect	Effect factor for the recipe calculation (performance between original and batch recipe).
Rel. %	Relative correction for the single dyestuff (Addition in %).
Total Batch Size	Batch size for the calculated correction.

New Batch Size	Fibers have to be added to correct the color. The batch size becomes bigger than the total batch size. About 50 kg must be added in the example to correct the color.
The table and the graph s	show the colorimetric data.
Evaluate (buttons)	<b>Print:</b> Displays the colorimetric data in a print preview. <b>ASCII:</b> Creates a text file using a specified form. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20.</i>
User Add (scale back by)	Used to reduce the "+ Amount" by value in %.
Computer Add:	Used for absolute tolerance specification.
Optimal dE	Optimizes dE only with positive adds. Removes all negative adds.
Min. Add. / dE (button)	Recalculates the correction using the dE limit given in the "Compute To Limit" field. dE must be higher than the dE limit.
Min. Add. / dH (button)	Recalculates the correction using the dH limit given in the "Compute To Limit" field.
Buttons	
Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving. <i>Data that not has been saved will lost.</i>
Show	Opens a print preview.
Print	Prints the correction data.
ASCII Export	Saves the correction data to a file in the ASCII format. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20</i> .
Save	Saves the fiber blend recipes.

#### **BLEND Fast Correction Dialog Box**

General parameters	
Standard	Selected color to be dyed (target color).
Buttons	
Save	Saves the correction data.
Correction	Used for recalculating the recipe. Opens the "BLEND Correction Recipe Dialog Box" dialog box.
Datacolor Tools	Opens the "Datacolor Tools" application for color quality con- trol. Standard and batch are transferred automatically from the Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} database to the Datacolor TOOLS database.
Evaluate	<b>Print:</b> Displays the colorimetric data in a print preview. <b>ASCII:</b> Creates a text file using a specified form. Refer to <i>ASCII Output (Option) on page 4-20.</i>
Cancel	Closes the dialog box without saving. <i>Data that not has been saved will be lost.</i>

#### **Process Data for Fiber Matching tab**

Fast correction for	
Standard Olive-Wool	
Process Data for fiber matching Dyeset Lab-Graphic Settings Available fibersets	Save
Used Fiberset	
KSP Baumwolle	
KSP Baumwolle - Approx	Correction
Wool Fett Wool Fett	
	DCTools
Used fiberset Wool Felt Part [%] 100 Current total [%] Constant Standard	Print
Si Fibramix ≑ <mark>tob</mark> Olive-Wool	ASCII Cancel

#### Parameters

Available Colorant Set	Selection table with the assigned fiber sets. Select fiber sets by checking the box.
Used Fiber Set(s)	Table with the selected fiber set. Remove a fiber set using a double-click on the name cell.
Part	Part of the selected fiber set. Refer to <i>Recipe Calculation</i> with several Fiber Sets on page 5-144.
Current Total [%]	Display of the currently used part.
Standard	Section of the Standard to be used.

#### **Colorant Set tab**

rust correctio	on for 'Olive-Wool - 001'							
Standard							-1	
Olive-Wool								
Process Data	for fiber matching Dyeset	Lab-Graphic Setting	js					Save
Fiberset	Wool Felt	Part [%] 100			Batchsize Amount input			
8 ^{F[%]}		dE*1.20 dL*-1.1	ta} 'ool (1)/1		<u>i</u>	-0.56		Correction
400	 500 600 700	-	Share	100.00	Max Of Share	92.23> R ²	*	
dE/Mi theor	y to standard 1.33/5.60						_	
dE/Mi theor	y to batch 1.20/4.95							
Selection:	🔲 SM-Analyse							
0/1	Dyestu	ff			Concentration [9	6]		
	Shown : 12 se	lected : 3	%	Min.(100%)	Max.(100%)	Relation		
4 10								
	Wool-white-felt				100			
	Black-wool-felt		26.840		100			DCTools
	Black-wool-felt Yellow-wool-felt		26.840 70.569		100 100			
	Black-wool-fett Yellow-wool-fett Orange-wool-fett				100 100 100			DCTools
3 ▼ 4 □ 5 □	Black-wool-feit Yellow-wool-feit Orange-wool-feit Red-wool-feit		70.569		100 100 100 100			
	Black-wool-felt Yellow-wool-felt Orange-wool-felt Red-wool-felt Blue-wool-felt				100 100 100 100 100			Evaluate Print
3 ▼ 4 □ 5 □	Black-wool-felt Yellow-wool-felt Orange-wool-felt Red-wool-felt Blue-wool-felt Navy-wool-felt		70.569		100 100 100 100 100 100			Evaluate
3 ▼ 4 □ 5 □	Black-wool-felt Yellow-wool-felt Orange-wool-felt Red-wool-felt Blue-wool-felt Navy-wool-felt Orey-wool-felt		70.569		100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100			Evaluate Print ASCII
3 ▼ 4 □ 5 □	Black-wool-felt Yellow-wool-felt Orange-wool-felt Red-wool-felt Blue-wool-felt Navy-wool-felt		70.569		100 100 100 100 100 100		_	Evaluate Print
3 ▼ 4 □ 5 □ 6 ■ ▼ 7 ■ 8 □ 9 □	Black-wool-felt Yellow-wool-felt Orange-wool-felt Red-wool-felt Blue-wool-felt Orey-wool-felt Grey-wool-felt Brown-wool-felt		2.5899	nt set na	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	splayed for ea he part of the op.	ach	Evaluate Print ASCII Cancel
Fiber Set	Black-wool-fett Yellow-wool-fett Orange-wool-fett Red-wool-fett Blue-wool-fett Oray-wool-fett Grey-wool-fett Crey-wool-fett	set. The co fibre (in %)	70.569 2.5899 . A "F blorar ) are Inpu	nt set na displaye t" is che	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	e part of the	ach cori	Evaluate Print ASCII Cancel
3 ▼ 4 □ 5 □	Black-wool-fett Yellow-wool-fett Orange-wool-fett Red-wool-fett Blue-wool-fett Grey-wool-fett Brown-wool-fett Brown-wool-fett Crey-wool-fett Crey-wool-fett Crey-wool-fett Crey-wool-fett Crey-wool-fett Crey-wool-fett	set. The co fibre (in %) If "Amount tration is e	2.5899 2.5899 A "Folorar are Inpu ntere	nt set na displaye t" is che d. measur	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	op.	ach cori	Colorant responding

Batch and	Selection of the measured fiber set sample according to the recipe to be corrected.
Information line:	Differences (dE and dL) between standard, batch, and "Dif. Formula". On the left, a graphical view of the differences is displayed. If the differences are out of tolerance, the message "Batch refused" is displayed and the traffic light is red.
SM Analysis	SmartMatch analysis (graphical display and SmartMatch result table). Color differences (standard/batch) according to the formula used for recipe calculation.
Total batch	Check the box if the batch is measured with all fibres.

## SmartMatch PointSelection of laboratory or production for the SmartMatch<br/>point insertion.

Table: Dyestuffs selection and concentration input.

Lab Graph tab

Refer to Lab Graphic Tab on page 7-178.

#### Settings tab

Refer to Settings Tab on page 7-120.

8

# Glossary

	Note
	References to other glossary entries are written in <i>italics</i> .
Absorption	The conversion of light or other electromagnetic radiation into heat energy. This light energy cannot be reflected back to an observer. The selective absorption of light is responsible for our perception of color.
Affinity	The affinity group is an optional field that is used to group qualities with the same dyeing properties.
Auxiliary	Chemicals to used for dyeing, finishing, etc.
Calibration data	Concentrations of dyestuffs and blank dyed <i>Substrate</i> which (when measured with the spectrophotometer) become part of the match prediction database in the form of colorant sets.
Calibration sample	Measured sample dyed with defined concentration and dye strength. The data of cali- bration samples are used for recipe calculation and correction. Calibration samples are used to calculate the calibration data (K/S) for each dyestuff used for recipe calculation and correction.
Color inconstancy	Color inconstancy is the color difference if a single sample is illuminated with different light sources. The magnitude of color inconstancy can be defined by DE CMC (or any other color difference formula) of the sample between two light sources.
Colorant set	A colorant set is a set of color information about the <i>Substrates</i> and dyes the system uses to produce match and correction recipes. It contains
	<ul> <li>information about the overall colorant set, e.g., the substrate(s) and process(es) that will be used with the dyes;</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>product information about each dye, e.g., price and specific gravity (density);</li> </ul>
	color information about each dye;
	information about the qualities used with the colorant set.
Color index	The color index is produced jointly by SDC (Society of Dyers and Colourists) in the UK, and the AATCC (American Association of Textile Chemists and Colorists) in the USA. The index is split into two parts: one part gives the commercial names for the individual dyes; the other part of the index gives the color index number, and lists the commercial names for the dyes using that number. Refer to <i>Color index number</i> .
Color index number	Every dye is given a color index number based on its chemical type. The same number is given to the dyes with the same chemical structure. For example, Resolin Red FB and Dispersol Red B2B, both have the color index number "CI Disperse Red 60."
	The index number is divided into four sections:
	Cl stand for color index and is displayed in every color index number
	• The next section is the dye type, e.g., Disperse, Acid, etc.
	• The third section is the color, according to a defined list off color names, e.g., Red Yellow, Orange
	• The last number is increased every time a new dye is added to the index; in the example above, "CI Disperse Red 60" is the 60th red disperse dye to be added to the index. Refer to <i>Color index</i> .
Colorant	A coloring matter; a dye, a pigment or an ink.
Color type	Measured color of a sample. The color type is the target color to be dyed.

Combined process	A combined process is used to describe the entire dyeing process either for laboratory or production. A treatment is generated for each calibration dye process type (e.g., Exhaust, Continuous,) linked to the combined process.
Correction	Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} supports three types of correction:
	Laboratory correction: The existing recipe is altered and saved again. Every additional laboratory correction reduces the differences to the color sample.
	• <b>Production correction:</b> An additional recipe is calculated that is used to change the color of the dyed batch to the correct color.
	• <b>Fast correction:</b> Used for a production correction without an existing rec- ipe. It is based on a theoretical calculated recipe of the standard.
Dye class	Classification of dyes according to the chemical composition and reaction, e.g., dis- perse, reactive.
Dye fiber group	Group of fibers dyed in the same bath with the same dyestuffs, e.g. Cotton/Viscose.
Dye process	The dye process contains <i>Dye class</i> , <i>Process type</i> and <i>Process factor</i> . The dye process is associated with combined process and colorant set.
Dye strength	The attribute of color which increases the concentration of the <i>Colorant</i> , all other condi- tions remaining the same.
Dyestuff type	Description of the dyestuff, e.g. gran., conc., supra. The dyestuff type is used to specify the dyestuff name.
Fast correction	Refer to Correction.
Fiber	Single fiber to be dyed.
Fiber group	All fibers used for a <i>Quality / Style</i> . A fiber group can be a single fiber or a combination of different fibers, e.g., PES, PES/CO.
K	Kubelka Munk coefficient of <i>Absorption</i> . The optical property that describes the absorption of light by a colorant or mixture of colorants.
K/S	A ratio of the Kubelka Munk constants, K (coefficient of <i>Absorption</i> ), and S (coefficient of <i>Scattering</i> ).
Kubelka Munk theory	A theory that describes the optical behavior of materials which scatter and absorb radi- ant energy.
Laboratory correction	Refer to Correction.
Metameric match	Two samples which match under one set of conditions but no longer match on changing one or more of the conditions.
Metamerism	A pair of colors that match under one or more sets of conditions but differ markedly in color if you change one or more of the conditions. A metameric pair of samples have the same tristimulus values for a specific set of viewing conditions but have different reflectance curves.
Monotone data	Reflectance data of a dyestuff is manipulated for a non-linear build-up of $K/S$ . It is used when an error in making a sample or contamination causes the build-up curve to dip and divert in the opposite direction to the general trend. Monotone means keeping the same slope as the general trend.
Off shade	Descriptive of a match that is commercially unacceptable.

Quality / Style	The quality is used to define the type of fabric you are going to dye. It contains a reference to the composition and describes whether the fabric is used for exhaust or continuous dyeing or both.
Operation	The operation specifies the sequence of action to be done during the dyeing. Actions may be parameters (e.g., temperature, volume,) or products (e.g., chemicals, etc.).
Parameter	The parameter values (e.g. "fastness") are defined in a colorant set for each dye, and used to set limits for the recipe calculation.
Process	Refer to Dye process and Combined process.
Process factor	In match prediction, used to take in account differences in dyestuff build up. The dye- stuff concentrations are multiplied with the process factor.
Process type	Values: Exhaust, Continuous, Cold Pad Batch.
Product	A Product is either a dyestuff or an auxiliary.
Production correction	Refer to <i>Correction</i> .
Recipe calculation	A process which identifies and calculates the amounts of each coloring matter in a material so that the final color looks like (i.e. matches) the given sample in a specified light source and price. It is possible to get several combinations which match the sample so the process can give the most cost effective one.
S	Kubelka Munk coefficient of <i>Scattering</i> . The optical property that describes the scattering of light by a <i>Colorant</i> or mixture of colorants.
Sample	Measured color stored with its spectral values.
Scattering	The diffusion or redirection of radiant energy encountering particles of a different refrac- tive index.
Security key	Used by the software to decide which sections of the software are available on the com- puter, or workstation, it is attached to.
Settings	Parameters used for recipe calculation. Refer to Settings Tab on page 7-120.
SmartMatch point	Information about a specific laboratory or production dyeing stored in the database. This information is used to improve first-time matching and correction.
SmartMatch population	A group of <i>SmartMatch points</i> which were all dyed on the same substrate using the same dyes.
Smoothed data	The reflectance data is manipulated in such a way that minor variations in the build-up of a dyestuff are eliminated by a least mean squared fit.
Specular reflectance	Light striking a surface and being reflected, or turned back, at an angle equal to the angle of incidence. The reflected light is specular reflectance.
Specular reflectance coefficient	A numerical term used to describe the value for the <i>Specular reflectance</i> when used in the Sauderson correction.
Standard	Measured color to be matched (target color). In Datacolor MATCH ^{Textile} , a standard becomes a color type.
Stock solution	Definition of different dilutions used for optimizing the accuracy of manual dyestuff pipetting and to prevent that the maximum of the dye solution is to be exceeded.
Substrate	The materials onto which Colorant is applied to obtain the desired shade.
Substrate blank dyeing	Dyeing without dyestuff but with all auxiliaries.

Substrate delivery	Specific substrate delivery. Small differences between different substrate deliveries may force corrections of the recipe.
Tolerance value	A numerical value used to determine the acceptability of a sample.
Treatment	A treatment consists of one or more operations describing the dyeing process for labo- ratory and/or production.

9

Index

#### Α

Absorption explanation 8-2 Access rights specification 4-3 Address dialog box 7-44 Administration Datacolor TICKET 5-117 Affinity exclude colorant sets 5-29 explanation 8-2 include colorant sets 5-29 Affinity list window 7-88 Alternate Substrate Information dialog box 7-84 Approve approving a recipe for production. 5-84 ASCII output 4-20 output of basic data 4-23 output of recipes 4-23 specifying forms 4-20 Auxiliary explanation 8-2 overview 2-3 Auxiliary list window 7-89

## В

Backup database using Datacolor Match Textile 4-16 database using Sybase utilities 4-17 Basic data ASCII output 4-23 color type 5-43 customers 5-39 dye class 5-38 dye process 5-37 menu functions 7-10 overview 2-2, 5-25 parameters 5-40 product 5-34 quality/style 5-26 recommended input sequence 5-25 tolerance 5-44 Basics browse and select 5-2 custom query 5-5 data handling 5-2 default query 5-5 field-specific selection aids 5-6 quick search 5-4 selection using the list windows 5-3, 5-4

selection using the object tree 5-2 selection using the overview window 5-3 specify, modify, delete objects 5-8 using special browse functions and the query designer 5-4 Batch series window (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-139 Batch series script name dialog box (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-141 Batch series type dialog box (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-142, 7-143 BLEND correction dialog box 7-179 correction recipe dialog box 7-181 fast correction 5-150 fast correction dialog box 7-182 fiber set window 7-173, 7-176 option 5-134 recipe calculation 5-142 recipe correction 5-148 recipe table 7-179 specify a new fiber set 5-135 start 5-135 Browse basics 5-2 Browser alter position of table column titles 4-7 alter table column titles 4-7 customizing 4-6 display table columns 4-6 filters 4-8 Button browse 5-5 overview window 7-3

#### С

Calculation recipe (Datacolor BLEND) 5-142 Calibrate green tile test 5-18 instrument correlation 5-16 monitor 4-24 spectrophotometer 5-10 UV calibration 5-11 Calibration data explanation 8-2 Calibration methods colorant set overview 2-5 Calibration sample explanation 8-2 Change position of table column titles 4-7 table column titles 4-7 Check dyestuff selection for a recipe 5-73 Color index explanation 8-2 Color index number explanation 8-2 Color type data handling 5-43 deletion 5-43 explanation 8-2 overview 2-3 specify newly 5-43 updating 5-43 Color type list window 7-85 Color type property sheet dialog box 7-45 Colorant explanation 8-2 Colorant set calibration methods 2-5 comparing colorants 5-59 complete imported textile printing colorant sets 5-57 explanation 8-2 import 4-14 introduction 5-47 move colorants 5-51 overview 2-4 re-measure, delete or move calibration sample 5-51 remove dyestuff 5-54 specify auxiliary recipe 5-49 specify colorant and calibration sample 5-50 specify for an alternate substrate 5-55 specify newly 5-48 using the graphical display 5-52 window 7-77 Colorant set list window 7-76 Combined process explanation 8-3 introduction 5-61 overview 2-6 specify, modify, delete 5-62 window 7-61 Combined process list window 7-93 Combined processes window 7-58 Compare colorants (colorant set) 5-59 Complete imported textile printing colorant set 5-57 Configure instrument correlation 5-16 Context-sensitive menu opening 5-8

Correct or approve your recipe dialog box 7-95 Correction **BLEND** fast correction 5-150 dialog box (Datacolor BLEND) 7-179 existing recipe for a new standard 5-103 explanation 8-3, 8-4 fast correction 5-99 introduction 5-91 laboratory correction 5-92 laboratory correction dialog box 7-96 laboratory correction table 7-98 manual graphical correction 5-101 overview 2-9 production correction 5-96 production correction dialog box 7-101 production correction from Datacolor Process 5-98 production correction table 7-103 recipe (Datacolor BLEND) 5-148 specify theoretical reflectance values 5-96 Correction recipe dialog box (Datacolor BLEND) 7-181 Create batch series dialog box (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-140 Create calibration series dialog box 7-82 Current population dialog box 7-125 Custom query basics 5-5 Customer data handling 5-39 deletion 5-39 overview 2-3 specify newly 5-39 updating 5-39 Customer list window 7-91 Customer property sheet dialog box 7-43 Customize browser 4-6 graphs 4-30

#### D

Data export 4-12 import 4-13 Data handling basics 5-2 Data in Folder dialog box 7-13

9 - Index

Database backup using Datacolor Match Textile 4-16 backup using Sybase utilities 4-17 maintenance 6-2 **Datacolor Match Textile** removing 3-6 security system 3-4 setting up 3-2 starting 5-2 system requirements 3-2 updating 3-3 **Datacolor Process** access to production correction 5-98 Datacolor tolerance block dialog box 7-55 Default query basics 5-5 Delete calibration sample 5-51 color type 5-43 combined process 5-62 customer 5-39 Dye class 5-38 Dye process 5-38 object 5-9 objects 5-8 operation 5-64 parameter 5-40 print forms 4-28 product 5-35 quality/Style 5-33 tolerance value 5-46 user's data 4-2 Dispenser connecting 4-11 Display existing BLEND recipes 5-151 existing recipes 5-104 Dye class data handling 5-38 deletion 5-38 explanation 8-3 specify newly 5-38 updating 5-38 Dye fiber group explanation 8-3 specify into a dye process 5-37 Dye lot Datacolor TICKET 5-117 Dve lots list window (Datacolor TICKET) 7-151 Dye process data handling 5-37 deletion 5-38 explanation 8-3 specify dye fiber groups 5-37

specify newly 5-37, 5-48 updating 5-38 Dye process list window 7-88 Dye process property sheet dialog box 7-29 Dve strength explanation 8-3 Dyestuff check selection for a recipe 5-73 overview 2-3 round concentrations 5-81 selection for a recipe 5-71 settings for a recipe 5-74 Dyestuff class list window 7-88 Dvestuff list window 7-89 Dyestuff type explanation 8-3

## Ε

E-mail sending printfiles 4-25 Enable instrument correlation 5-16 Enter SmartMatch point manually 2-10 SmartMatch points manually 5-90 SmartMatch with recipes points manually 5-90 Error handling 6-2 messages 6-2 Explorer folder structure 7-9 toolbar 7-7 window 7-2 Explorer window menu functions 7-4 Export data 4-12 dialog box 7-135 print forms 4-19, 4-29 samples (QTX format) 4-16

#### F

Fast correction dialog box (Datacolor BLEND) 7-182 overview 2-10 Fast correction recipe input dialog box 7-105 Fiber explanation 8-3 Fiber group explanation 8-3 Fiber group list window 7-87 Fiber set specify 5-135 window (Datacolor BLEND) 7-173, 7-176 Fibre list window 7-86 Field selection and input mode 5-5 specific functions 5-5 Filter browser 4-8 disabling browse filters 4-9 export browse filters 4-9 import browse filters 4-10 import browse filters from e-mails 4-10 using browse filters 4-8 Folder structure (explorer) 7-9 Form delete print forms 4-28 export print forms 4-29 import print forms 4-29 modify print forms 4-28 rename print forms 4-28 specify print forms 4-26 Form maintenance dialog box 7-136 Formula specify, modify 5-66 Formula edit window 7-71 Formula setting dialog box 7-42 Function field-specific 5-5 Functions tables 5-7

## G

Graphical display using (colorant set) 5-52 Graphs customizing 4-30 Green tile test 5-18

## Η

Handle errors 6-2

Illuminant list window 7-85 Import colorant sets 4-14

data 4-13 dialog box 7-134 print forms 4-19, 4-29 samples (QTX format) 4-16 Input sequence recommended for basic data 5-25 Input form selection of context-sensitive menu 5-8 Insert a theoretical sample dialog box 7-123 Instrument correlation 5-16 configure and enable 5-16 Introduction colorant set 5-47 combined process 5-61 correction 5-91 Datacolor SORT 5-118 recipe calculation (matching) 5-67 SmartMatch 5-85

#### J

Job result window (Datacolor SORT) 7-154

## K

K explanation 8-3 K/S explanation 8-3 Kubelka Munk theory explanation 8-3

#### L

Laboratory correction specify 5-92 List window basics 5-3, 5-4

#### Μ

Maintenance database 6-2 spectrophotometer 6-2 Manual type styles and symbols 1-3 Manual input tolerance values dialog box 7-56 Match dialog box 7-116 introduction 5-67 multi color matching 5-70 recipe 5-74 Matching overview 2-7 Measure multiple measurement 5-21 samples 5-20 until tolerance measurement 5-22 Measurement main window dialog box 7-15 Menu functions basic data 7-10 explorer 7-4 Page View Designer 7-137 Messages error messages 6-2 Metameric match explanation 8-3 Metamerism explanation 8-3 Modify combined process 5-62 Datacolor SORT job 5-125 Datacolor SORT script 5-130 formula 5-66 maintain sample property (Datacolor SORT) 5-131 manual modification of recipes 5-81 modification of recipes using the editor 5-79 objects 5-8 operation 5-64 print forms 4-28 recipes 5-79 replace dyestuffs in recipes 5-82 user's data 4-2 MONITOR adding a graph panel 5-112 batch series relation dialog box 7-143 batch series script name dialog box 7-141 batch series type dialog box Window batch series type dialog box (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-142 batch series window 7-139 create batch series dialog box 7-140 option 5-106 printing a batch series 5-114 select current illuminations dialog box 7-144 specify a batch series 5-110 specify a script 5-106 Monitor calibrate with Spyder2 4-24 Monotone data explanation 8-3 Move calibration sample 5-51 colorants 5-51

## Ν

New dye lot dialog box (Datacolor TICKET) 7-152

## 0

Object specify newly 5-9 update and delete 5-9 Object tree basics 5-2 Off shade explanation 8-3 Open context-sensitive menus 5-8 sort job 5-121 Operation explanation 8-4 formulae 5-66 specify, modify, delete 5-64 window 7-67 Operation list window 7-93 Operations browse window 7-65 Option connecting dispensers 4-11 Datacolor BLEND 5-134 Datacolor MONITOR 5-106 Datacolor SORT 5-118 Datacolor TICKET 5-115 Options dialog box 7-112 sort job definition options 5-133 Output ASCII 4-20 ASCII files of basic data 4-23 ASCII files of recipes 4-23 specifying ASCII forms 4-20 Overview auxiliary 2-3 basic data 2-2, 5-25 calibration methods (colorant set) 2-5 color type 2-3 colorant set 2-4 combined process 2-6 correction 2-9 customer 2-3 dyestuff 2-3 fast correction 2-10 matching 2-7 product 2-3 quality 2-2 recipe calculation 2-7 SmartMatch 2-8 style 2-2

window 7-2 Overview window buttons 7-3 selection 5-3

#### Ρ

Page View Designer delete print forms 4-28 export print forms 4-29 import print forms 4-29 modify print forms 4-28 rename print forms 4-28 specify print forms 4-26 starting 4-26 Page View Designer window menu functions 7-137 toolbar functions 7-138 Pager window 7-137 Parameter data handling 5-40 deletion 5-40 explanation 8-4 specify newly 5-40 updating 5-40 Parameter definition dialog box 7-57 Parameter list window 7-86 Password changing 4-2 Population dialog box 7-127 Preliminary work recipe 5-69 Print delete print forms 4-28 existing BLEND recipes 5-151 existing recipes 5-104 export print forms 4-29 import print forms 4-29 modify print forms 4-28 recipe lists 5-84 rename print forms 4-28 specify print forms 4-26 Print form delete print forms 4-28 export 4-19, 4-29 import 4-19, 4-29 modify print forms 4-28 rename print forms 4-28 specify print forms 4-26 Process factor explanation 8-4

Process type explanation 8-4 Product data handling 5-34 deletion 5-35 explanation 8-4 overview 2-3 specify newly 5-35 updating 5-35 Product list window 7-90 Product property sheet dialog box 7-31 Production correction access from Datacolor Process 5-98 specify 5-96 Production recipe Datacolor TICKET 5-115

#### Q

Quality data handling 5-26 explanation 8-4 overview 2-2 quality/style property sheet 7-22 specify newly 5-27 update and delete 5-33 using SmartMatch points of other qualities 5-31 Quality list window 7-87 Quick search basics 5-4 dialog box 7-59

#### R

Recipe approving for production 5-84 ASCII output 4-23 calculation (Datacolor BLEND) 5-142 check dyestuff selection 5-73 correction (Datacolor BLEND) 5-148 display and print 5-104 manual modification 5-81 matching 5-74 modification 5-79 modification using the editor 5-79 multi color matching 5-70 preliminary work 5-69 print lists 5-84 replace dyestuffs 5-82 review 5-76 round dyestuff concentrations 5-81 rules for re-dyeing 5-71 selecting dyestuffs 5-71 settings 5-74

specify a new series 5-69 specify theoretical reflectance values 5-96 window (Datacolor TICKET 7-147 Recipe (BLEND) display and print 5-151 Recipe calculation explanation 8-4 introduction 5-67 overview 2-7 Recipe editor dialog box 7-124 Recipe list window 7-91 window (Datacolor TICKET) 7-145 **Recipe Table** window (Datacolor BLEND) 7-179 Recipe table window 7-121 Re-dye rules 5-71 Release group(s) of SmartMatch points 5-88 Re-measure calibration sample 5-51 Remove bad SmartMatch points automatically 5-86 bad SmartMatch points manually 5-87 Datacolor Match Textile 3-6 dyestuff from a colorant set 5-54 Rename print forms 4-28 Requirements system requirements for Datacolor Match Textile 3-2 Review recipe 5-76 Root recipe dialog box (Datacolor TICKET) 7-149 Round dyestuff concentrations of recipes 5-81 Rules re-dying 5-71

## S

S explanation 8-4 Sample explanation 8-4 import/export (QTX format) 4-16 measure 5-20 multiple measurement 5-21 until tolerance measurement 5-22 Sample input dialog box 7-72 Sample list window 7-85 Sample property dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-169 Scattering explanation 8-4 Search and correct dialog box 7-109 Search results dialog box 7-110 Security key explanation 8-4 Security system Datacolor Match Textile 3-4 Select current illuminants dialog box (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-144 Selection basics 5-2 dyestuffs for a recipe 5-71 field-specific aids 5-6 step by step 5-5 Set settings for a recipe 5-74 Setting up Datacolor Match Textile 3-2 removing DCI-Match 3-6 Settings explanation 8-4 SmartMatch automatic maintenance 5-86 introduction 5-85 manual housekeeping 5-87 manual input of points 5-90 manual input of points with recipes 5-90 overview 2-8 release group(s) 5-88 using points of other qualities 5-31 SmartMatch list window 7-94 SmartMatch point enter manually 2-10 explanation 8-4 SmartMatch population explanation 8-4 Smoothed data explanation 8-4 SOR sort script maintenance dialog box 7-167 SORT introduction 5-118 job result window 7-154 maintain sample property 5-131 modify job 5-125 modify script 5-130 open a sort job 5-121 option 5-118

sample property dialog box 7-169 sort job definition options 5-133 sort job definition options dialog box 7-171 sort job maintenance dialog box 7-160 sort list window 7-154 specify script 5-126 start 5-120 user field pre-selection dialog box 7-172 Sort specify job 5-122 Sort job open 5-121 Sort job definition options dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-171 Sort job maintenance dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-160 Sort list window (Datacolor SORT) 7-154 Sort script maintenance dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-167 Special browse functions basics 5-4 Specify auxiliary recipe for a colorant set 5-49 **BLEND** fast correction 5-150 colorant set for an alternate substrate 5-55 combined process 5-62 correct an existing recipe for a new standard 5-103 Datacolor Sort job 5-122 Datacolor SORT script 5-126 dye fiber groups into a dye process 5-37 exclude colorant sets from an affinity 5-29 fast correction 5-99 fiber set 5-135 formula 5-66 include colorant sets from an affinity 5-29 laboratory correction 5-92 manual graphical correction 5-101 new color type 5-43 new colorant and calibration sample to a colorant set 5-50 new colorant set 5-48 new customer 5-39 new dye class 5-38 new dye process 5-37, 5-48 new object 5-9 new parameter 5-40 new product 5-35 new quality/style 5-27 new recipe series 5-69 new stock solution 5-36 new tolerance 5-44 objects 5-8

objects using the input form 5-8 operation 5-64 print forms 4-26 production correction 5-96 theoretical reflectance values 5-96 unit 4-11 user 4-2 Spectrophotometer calibrate 5-10 green tile test 5-18 instrument correlation 5-16 maintenance 6-2 UV calibration 5-11 Specular reflectance explanation 8-4 Specular reflectance coefficient explanation 8-4 Standard explanation 8-4 Start Datacolor BLEND 5-135 Datacolor Match Textile 5-2 Datacolor SORT 5-120 Page View Designer 4-26 Stock solution explanation 8-4 specify newly 5-36 Style data handling 5-26 overview 2-2 quality/style property sheet 7-22 specify newly 5-27 update and delete 5-33 Substrate explanation 8-4 Substrate blank dyeing explanation 8-4 Substrate delivery explanation 8-5 Substrate delivery dialog dialog box 7-27 Substrate delivery effect dialog dialog box 7-28 Substrate delivery list window 7-87 Supplier list window 7-90 Symbols description 1-3 System requirements for Datacolor Match Textile 3-2

## Т

Table alter column titles 4-7 alter position of column titles 4-7 display columns 4-6 functions 5-7 tool tips 5-7 Theoretical reflectance values creation 5-96 TICKET administration 5-117 dve lot 5-117 dye lots list window 7-151 new dye lot dialog box 7-152 option 5-115 production recipe 5-115 recipe list window 7-145 recipe window 7-147 root recipe dialog box 7-149 Tolerance data handling 5-44 specify newly 5-44 Tolerance block dialog box 7-46 **Tolerance list** window 7-86 Tolerance value deletion 5-46 explanation 8-5 updating 5-46 Tool tip tables 5-7 Toolbar explorer 7-7 **Toolbar functions** Page View Designer 7-138 Treatment explanation 8-5 Type styles description 1-3

## U

Unit dialog box 7-111 specify 4-11 Update color type 5-43 customer 5-39 Datacolor Match Textile 3-3 dye class 5-38 dye process 5-38 object 5-9 parameter 5-40 product 5-35 quality/style 5-33 tolerance value 5-46 User access rights 4-3 administration 4-2 changing the password 4-2 specify, modify, delete 4-2 User field pre-selection dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-172

#### W

Window address 7-44 affinity list 7-88 alternate substrate information 7-84 auxiliary list 7-89 batch series (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-139 batch series relation dialog box (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-143 batch series script name dialog box (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-141 color type list 7-85 color type property sheet 7-45 colorant set 7-77 colorant set list 7-76 combined process 7-61 combined process list 7-93 combined processes browse 7-58 correct or approve your recipe dialog box 7-95 correction dialog box (Datacolor BLEND) 7-179 correction recipe dialog box (Datacolor BLEND) 7-181 create batch series dialog box (Datacolor MON-ITOR) 7-140 create calibration series 7-82 current population dialog box 7-125 customer list 7-91 customer property sheet 7-43 data in folder 7-13 Datacolor tolerance block dialog box 7-55 dye lots list window (Datacolor TICKET) 7-151 dye process list 7-88 dye process property sheet 7-29 dyestuff class list 7-88 dyestuff list 7-89 explorer 7-2 export dialog box 7-135 fast correction dialog box (Datacolor BLEND) 7-182 fast correction recipe input dialog box 7-105 fiber group list 7-87 fiber set (Datacolor BLEND) 7-173, 7-176 fibre list 7-86 form maintenance dialog box 7-136 formula edit 7-71 Formula setting 7-42

illuminant list 7-85 import dialog box 7-134 insert a theoretical sample dialog box 7-123 job result window (Datacolor SORT) 7-154 laboratory correction dialog box 7-96 laboratory correction table 7-98 manual input tolerance values dialog box 7-56 match dialog box 7-116 measurement main window 7-15 new dye lot dialog box (Datacolor TICKET) 7-152 operation 7-67 operation list 7-93 operations browse 7-65 options dialog box 7-112 overview 7-2 Pager 7-137 parameter definition 7-57 parameter list 7-86 population dialog box 7-127 product list 7-90 product property sheet 7-31 production correction dialog box 7-101 production correction table 7-103 quality list 7-87 quality/style property sheet 7-22 quick search dialog box 7-59 recipe editor 7-124 recipe list 7-91 recipe list window (Datacolor TICKET) 7-145

recipe table (Datacolor BLEND) 7-179 recipe table) 7-121 recipe window (Datacolor TICKET) 7-147 root recipe dialog box (Datacolor TICKET) 7-149 sample input 7-72 sample list 7-85 sample property dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-169 search and correct dialog box 7-109 search results dialog box 7-110 select current illuminants dialog box (Datacolor MONITOR) 7-144 SmartMatch list 7-94 sort job definition options dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-171 sort job maintenance dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-160 sort list (Datacolor SORT) 7-154 sort script maintenance dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-167 substrate delivery dialog 7-27 substrate delivery effect dialog 7-28 substrate delivery list 7-87 supplier list 7-90 tolerance block program dialog box 7-46 tolerance list 7-86 unit dialog box 7-111 user field pre-selection dialog box (Datacolor SORT) 7-172